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EXPLANATORY PREFACE.

1IN presenting a new edition of this Work to the Public, in consequence
of additional matter, it bocomes neceszary for the Editor to give some '
introductory explanation of the present plan, and of the abbreviations
made use of in the work, and of the additional information to be
expected by the reader.

The whole of the work has been re-writien and carefully examined,
and the greatest part of the County visited by the editor.—After
the names of the places, are the following abbreviations, vig, :—
ham. for bamlet, s. k. for single house, f. A. for farm house, scatt. ks,
for scattered houses, p. A. for public house, cotts. for cottages,
pointing out at once what the place is; and where ths seat &c. follows
the name of the place, it implies only a single house. Wherever a
Gentleman's Seat is adjoining to, or-within a town or village, it is
given after the wapentake: all places not having any of the above
abbreviations following, are to bc considored as towns or villages.—
Some few places are denom’nated townships or parishes, as Abbotaide,
High and Low, and Ellerburn, there being no villages of the names,
put only certain districts so called,

In giving the township, in which each hamlet or single house, &o-.
is situated, it may be proper {o observe that they are given ac-
cording as they pay Poor’s Rates, with some few exceptions.—This
part, which may be considered the most valuable, as additional matter,
and what has never been attempied before, will be found of the greatest
utility in all pablic offices.
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In the next part we have to notice the abbreviations, &c. respecting
the value of church livings, which are as follow, viz. :—the value in
the King's books, is marked () when discharged from the payment
of first fruits;—p. r. is for parliamentary return;—the marks before
the values returned to parliament, will be seen in note below.—All
livings, except such as are stated to the contrary, are within the
diocese of York.—The Patrons of the livings have been corrected by
a correspondence with the resident clergy. The valne in the
King’s books, whether Rectories or Vicarages. &o. is taken from
Bacon's Thesaurus ; but wherever a difference was found in the return
made to parliament, by the incumbent of that time, the latter has been
taken, conceiving such return most likely to be correct at the present
time,

‘With respect to the anthorities for historical and biographical notices,
introduced by way of relieving the work from the dull, dry, tedinm
of detail, we have nothing to add, having made a point of giving the
authorities at the end of each article, not solely for showing the
source of information, but, that the reader, who might want & more
enlarged aocount, may know where to refer to withoaut much con-
sultation,—such authorities only, as may berelied on, have invariably
boeen seleoted with some trifling exceptions,

The informations relative to public hospitals, &c. without authori-
ties, bave been furnished us by residents, comparing the same with
the returns of such institntions made to parliament, in 1786,

This (°) before the value, denotes that the statement is taken from the acconnt
of the names of the livings not exceeding the value of £150 per annum, certified to
the Governors of Queen Anne’s Bounty, by the Archbishops and Bishops, and order-
ed to be printed by the House of Lords, 7th Juue, 1810.

This (1) before the valne, denotes that the living has increased in value since
the year 1810, which appears in comparison of the value returned in 1810, to
the Governors of Queen Anne’s Bounty, with that yreturned by the Bishops in
1815, to the Privy Coundil. .

This (1) before the value, denotes that the living has decreased in value since
1810, although it has received augmentation since that time, The autharity
for this is the vame as in the preceeding case,
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Certain liberties, for the sake of abbreviations, having been omitted
in the text of this work, which appeared in the last edition ; it becomes
necessary to inform the reader, that such liberties omitted, are Lang-
barugh, Pickering-Lythe, Whitby-Strand, and Allertonshire, which
are co-extensive with their respective wapentakes. The liberty of
Richmondshire extends over the five wapentukes of Hung-Kast and
West, Gilling-East and West, and Hallikeld, except where St. Peter,
or any other similar liberty interferes, which is invariably noted,

The Ainsty, which was, in the last Edition, separated from the
three Ridings, is in this, embodied with the West-Riding, baving
the word (Ainsty) inserted after the name of each place, thereby ren-
dering the references less.

Having briefly explained the several abbreviations, &c. in the work,

it now only remains for the Editor to retarn his most gratefal thanks

to the resident Clergy of the County, and other Gentiemen, for their
communications, and to the Chief Constables and other public Officers,
by whose assistance and information, this work bas been rendered
much more correct than it otherwise would have been. The voluntary
contributions to this laborious work being few, the Editor cannot so
far suffer himself to be guilty of ingratitude, as to pass them by un-
noticed ; therefore to the author of a letter, signed ¢ Clericus,” from
the East-Riding, and to another, signed  An Anfiquary,” from
Brampton, his best thanks are due, not alone for the matter, but also
for the manner in which each was conveyed. And, to the very Rev,
the Dean of Ripon he has to express his obligations, for the use of
several papers belonging to his archdeaconry; as well as for his
readiness, at all times, in furnishing him with information, which
might in the leest tend to improve or render the work correct.

"He now consigns the Book to its fate, asuring the reader that

neither time nor expense has been spared, in rendering the work as
socurate as the nature of the subjeot will admit of.

RIPON, NOV. 1, 1822.
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Yorxsrine®, in the time of the Ancient Brilons, was inhabited by
the Brigantes, whose territories included our present Counties of
Cumberland, Durbam, Lancashire, Westmorland, and Yorkshire.

When the Emperor Constantine divided Britain into three parts, viz.
Britannia Prima, Britannia Secunda, and Mazima Cesariensis, this
County was included in the last, and York was the Capital City of it.

The Romans, in the construction of their Roads, evinced peculiar
grandeur of de-igm, patient labour, and persevering industry ; bat at
what time they were first formed is now impossible to ascertain. Dr.
Stukeley supposes that Hermen-Streot was the first, which be attri-
bates to the time of Nero; but Horsley, with far more probability,
conjectures, that moct of thei: rcads were laid out by Agricola. A
strong marked feature in the arrangement of all of them, is their con-
tnuance in a straight line, from which they seldom deviated, unless,
a8 in some cases, they were formed on pert of a British Track-way,
or some local impediment was found in the way, such as a morass, or
a deep ravine, &c. Their principal roads were of great breadth, and
paved with large stones ; but where these could not readily be procured,
gravel, lime, and other materials were substituted, and raised high
sbove the soil, in some places to the height of eight or ten feet, and
their durability greatly assisted by good drains.

Camden, on the authority of Ulpien and Frontinus, says that the
Romans gave the great Roads the names of Vi@ Consulares, Pretorie,
Militares, Publicee, Cursus Publici. They were unquestionably the

blic roads of those times, and distinguished from the common roads
t; being covered with better and more durable materials. They had,
besides, minor or vicinal roads, leading from one station to another,
which intersected the country in almost every direction. The four
great military roads were distinguished from others atan early period,
as the laws of Edward the Confessor comprehend regulations relative
to the four great Highwayr, called Watling-Strete, Foss, Ikenied-
Strete. and Ermine-gtrde. From Tacitus we learn, that Agricola,
anxious to communicate Roman customs to the Britons, instructed
and amsisted them * in building of houses. temples, courts, and
market-places ; and :chn.izing the industrious, and reproaching the in-
dolent, he excited an emulation among the Britons, that after

had constructed all those necessary editices in their towns, they
ed to build others merely for ornament and pleasare ; as Por-

ticos, Galleries, Baths, Banqueting- Houses, &c.”+

¢ Called Eororwicacras by the Saxons. 1 Vita Agric.
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Many of the roads, after so mary centuries have pnmed
still, in numerous places, preserve their primeval form, though th‘(}]
have suffered much from the slow consuming hand of time, and t
cupidity, not to say worse, of owners of lands, through which the
roads

When the Saxons had settled themaelves in this part of the IslanD
and divided it amongst their leaders into seven Kingdoms, Yorkshi
was part of the Kingdom of Northumberland ; which being (hvulQ
into two parts, Deira, and Bernicia, this connty was under § P
government of the King of Deira, who, after a succession of six Kin
of Bernicia, in the space of 27 years, became master of thewhole ; al
continued until thé West Saxuns subdued the other six Klngdomm -
the Saxons, and made the wholea Monarchy.

Yorkshire is by far the largest county in the Kingdom, containin "'
about 3,658,380 acres of land, with a population of 1,173,187 persop ™

It is 130 miles long, from east to west, and 90 broad, from north ™
south, and 460 in circumference. It is bounded on the east by the Gg,
man Ocean, on the south by Derby, Nottingham, and Lincolnshires u
on the west by Lancashire; and a small part of Cheshire ; and on th
north by the counties of Durham and W estmorland.

The North-Riding is bounded by the river Tees on the north, thq
separates it from the county of Durham ; the German Ocean on th
east ; the East-Riding on the south-east; "and by the Ainsty, and th
West-Riding on the south ; and the county of Westmorland on th
west. It is divided into 12 wapentakes, containing 5 boroughs, viz *
Richmond, Scarborough, Northallerton, Malton, and Thirsk. - .

The East-Riding is bounded on the east by the German Ocean ; o=
the south by the Humber; on the west by the rivers Ouse and Der.;-
went ; and on the north by the latter and the little river Hertford, Ity
is divided into six wapentakes, and Hullshire, containing three bo-‘
roughs, viz. Beverley, Hedon, and Hull.

The West-Riding is bounded on the east by the Ainsty and the l'lver 5
Ouse, which separates it from the East-Riding ; on the south by 3
of Nottinghamshire and Derbyshire ; on the west by parts of Cheshn-e 3
Lancashire, and Westmorland; and on the north by the l\orth-R:dmg-
1t is divided into nine wapentakes, containing five boroughs, viz_ “1
Ripon, Pontefract, Boroughbridge, Aldborough, and Knaresbroq gh, -
The whole oounty contains thirteen boroughs and one city, Whlch N
sends twenty-eight Members to Parliament, and two Knights of thg ™

ire. i

The Ainsty*, accounted a twentieth part of the county at large, iy -
a district on the west-side of York, under the jurisdiction of the -
Lord-Mayor, Aldermen, and Sheriffs of (he city, to which it was an. _
nexed the 27th of Henry V1. though before it was a wapentake of the
West-Riding, and has ever since been called the county of the ci :
York. The whole district was anciently a forest, but dls-forestetf
Charters of King Richard the 1st, and King Jobn,

® Ainsty, from Ancientcy, to denote its Antiquity ; or more probably l'xom the
German word, Antossen, implying & bound, or limit.—CAMDEN,
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PLANATION OF THE TABLE.
—a—
two Towns being wantod, look for the name of the one
{ by its initial Letter, in the Perpendicular Alphabet, then carry
until youn ai.ive immediately under the name of the other Town
ures at the junction of the horizontal and perpendicular Lines
istance. N
from Northallerton (N)to Doncaster (D) is 63 miles. From
Il (H) is 115 miles. And all other places may be found in like

pre computed according to those given in this book, by adding
he regular Pest Read between each place, except in some few
the saving is very great by taking a move direct road; for in-
from Pateley-bridge to Otley and Skipton—Kettlewell to Hawes
py-bridge, &e.; roads which are certainly not much frequented
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Sherburn.

40 | Skipton.

16 | 51 | Snaith. -
30| 67 | 22 | South-Cave.

56 | 61 [66] 70 | Stokesley.
713421 ] 35] 53 | Tadcaster.

36| 41]46| 50| 20| 33 | Thirsk.

23 | 57| 7| 25[73 | 28 | 53 | Thorne.

2816225 43 34 ] 62 | 18 | Tickhill.

82
17135123 44]64| 19| 45| 28| 27 | Wakefield.
12131128 42[143]| 7123]37]|39|21]| Wetherby.

63]190|71} 6128 ,58]44]78[91]76] 63| Whitby.

56161]166] 70] 9]53]20]73]82]|64]43]385] Yarm.
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OF

YORKSHIRE.

NORTH-RIDING.

ABBOTSIDE, HIGH and LOW, two townships on the north-side
of the river Ure, in the parish of Aysgarth, wapentake of Hang-
West, the former running from Askrigg, westward, to Hell-gill 5
g latter from thence to Cam’s-House.—Population, High, 641 —

w, 181,

ACKLAM, a parish town, in the west-division of Langbarogh;
(Acklam-Hall, the seat of Thomas Hustler, Esq.) 3 miles from
Stockton, (Durham) 7 from Yarm and Stokesley, 10 from Guis-
borough, 50 from York.—Pop. The Church is a perpetual
curacy, in the deanry of Cleveland, value, p. r. +120/. Patron, the
Archbishop of York.

ACRE-INGS, f. k. in the township of Newton-Mulgrave and parish
of Liythe ; 8 miles from Whitby, 14 from Stokesley.

ADDLEBOROUGH-HILL, f. k.in the township of Bainbridge,
and parisb of Aysgarth; 2 miles from Askrigg, 9 from Leybarn.

AGGLETHORPE, in the township of Coverham with Agglethorpe,
and parish of Coverham, wapentake of Hang-West, (Agglethorpe-
Hall, the seat of Matthew William Chaytor, Esq.) 3 miles from
Middleham, 4 from Leyburn.—Populatien included in Coverham.

AIKBER or AKEBAR, in the parish of Fingall, wapentake of
Hang-West; 4 miles from Leyburn, 5 from Middleham, 6 from
Richmond.—Pepulation 43.

AINDERBY-MYERS, in the parish of Hornby, wapentake of
Hang-East ; 3 miles from Catterick, 4 from Bedale, 8 from Rich-
mond.—Population 79.

AINDERBY-QUERNHOW, in the parish of Pickhill, wapentake
of Hallikeld ; 6 miles from Thirsk, 8 from Ripon and Bedale.—
Population 99

AINDERBY-STEEPLE, a parish town, in the wapentake of Gilling-
East; 3 miles from Northallerton, 5 from Bedale, 33 from York.
—Pop. 266. The Church is a vi , dedicated to St. Helen,
in the deanry of Richmond, diocese o% Chester, value $13L 6s. 84,
p. r. *142/, 16s. 8d. Patron, the King.

A
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AINTHORPE, f. }. in the township and parish of Danby, east-divi-
gion of Langbarugh ; 9 miles from Guisbrough.

AIRSHOLME, kam. in the township of Linthorpe and parish of Ack-
lam ; 4 miles from Stockton, (Dur.) 8 from Yarm.

AIRYHOLME, f. 4. in the parish of Hovingham, wapentake of
Rydale ; 8 miles from Malton and Helmsley, 8} from Kisbymoor-
side.—Hopulation, including Howthorpe and Baxter-How, 2 f.
h. 33, which being united form a township.

AISENBY, in the parish of Topcliffe, wapentake of Hallikeld ; 5}
miles from Boroughbridge and Ripon, 6 from "Thirsk.—Pop. 230.

AISKEW, in the parish of Bedale, wapentake of Hang-East; } of
8 mile from Bedale, 7} from Northallerton.—Population 620.

AISLABY, in the ish of Middleton, wapentake of Pickering
Lythe, (the seat of Mrs Hayes.) 1} mile from Pickering, 6} from
Kirbymoorside, 10} from Malton.—Population 147.

AISLABY, in the parish of Whitby, east-division of Langbarugh
(the seats of Mark Noble and John Benson, Esgre.) 3 miles from
Whitby.—Pop. 253. The Chureh is a perpetual curacy, value, p. r.
450. Patron, John Boulby, Esq.

ALDBY-PARK, (the seat of Henry Darley, Esq.)in the township of
Buttercrambe and parish of Bossall, 10 miles from Malton and
York, 15 from Easingwold.

Aldby which signifies in Saxon, an old habitation, is unquestionably the
Roman Derventio mentioned by Ptolomy. 1tissituated on the banks of the Derwent
where many remains of antiquities are frequently found ;—and upon the top of
the hill, towards the river, appears the rubbish of an old castle.—CampEn. It was
at this castle, at that time converted into a royal palace by the Northumbrians,
that Edwin, earl of ‘Northumberland nearly lost his life by an assassin. In
the time ofthe Saxons, it was a royal village, now a single house. Drake, with
some degree of probability, places this station at Stamford-bridge.—And,
Young, in his History of Whitby, with some ingenuity attempta to fix it at Malton.

ALDBOROUGH, in the parish of St. John Stanwick, wapentake
of Gilling-West ; 7 miles from Richmond and Darlington, ( Durham)
—Population 544.

This village issituated ahout halfa mile from the Ermine-Siveet, now Leeming~

Lane. “ It has been, » says Cade, “ alarge Roman city, but by what name distin-

ished has never becn ascertained. ”” The vestiges still remaining very plainly
indicate its great antiquity.—He again adds, “Aidburgh may dateits decline from
the new military way or road, being directed ad Tisum vinovium, and the valluwm ;
on which account we hear of no altars, inscriptions, or other memnorials of any
kind found there, to assist us in our inquiries.“—Arcu=2oL.

ALDBURGH, kam. in the township of Burton-upon-Ure and parish
of Masham ; (the seat of James Henry D'Arcy Hutton, Esq.) 2
miles from Masham, 6 from Bedale, 9 from Ripon.

ALDWARK, in the parish of Alne, wapentake of Bulmer, a part
in the liberty of 8t. Peter ; 5§ miles from Boroughbridge, 6 from
Easingwold, 13 from York.—Population 163.

This place carries evident marks of antiquity in its name ; and through it,

the ferry, the Roman road from Isvrivm to Kboracom ; then went thi

the Forest of Galtres to Beningbrough, and entered the city of York at Bootham~
Bar. Drake.

ALLERSTONE, =a parish-town, in the wapentake of Pickering-
Lythe; 43 miles from Pickering, 11 from Malton, 13} from Scar-
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botough, 29 from anl:.—-Pofnlation 401. 'The Church, peculiar,

. isu vicarage, in the deanry of Rydale, Batron the Dean of York.

ALLERTHORPE, in the township of Swainby with Allerthorpe,

parish of Burneston, wapentake of Hallikeld ; 5 miles from Bedale,

8 from Thirsk and Northallerton, 12 from Ripon.—Population,

included in Swainby.

Allerth Hall, now occupied az a f. A. » time the residen
of the celebr:rtg: Mys Elizabesh &w:s ,{vhtsewlae:t::;, ;::m; ::;‘r:vhich are dat:i
from this place, have been most favourably received by the literary world. Her
father was Matthew Robinson, . of West-Layton, and nearly allied to
Dr. Robinson, who founded the Schools and Alms-House at Burneston.
ALLERTONSHIRE, a wapentake, of which the Right Rev. the
LordBishop of Durham is Lord and Chiief-Bailiff. —The wapentake
and liberly are co-extensive. It is Bituated about 25 miles
north from York, from which point it extends over a natrow tract
of country to the confines of the county of Durliam, and forms a
pert.of the rich vale of Mowbray—comprising 33 townships, of
which 11 are parishes, and one market-town—-Population, 1,783
housts, and 8,759 imhabitrorts. Two of the townships are situated
on the borders of the West Riding, near Ripon; a third five
miles south of Thirsk ; and three others on the banks of the Tees.
ALNE, a parish-town in the wapentake of Bulmer, a part in the
liberty of St. Peter ; ( Alne- House, the residence of Stamp Brooksbanl:,
Esq.) 4 miles from Essingwold, 6 from Boroughbridge, 11 from
York.—Pop. 386. 'The Church, peculiar, is a vicarage, dedicated
to 8t. Mary, in the desnry of Bulmer, value {10!, Patron, William
John Bethell, Esq. .

AMOTHERBY, in the parish of Appleton-le-Street, wapentake of

Rydale; 3 miles from Malton, 11 from Kirbymoorside, 15 from

Helmsley.—Pop. 249. A Chapel of Ease to Appleton-le-Street.

AMPLEFORTH, a parish-town, in the parishes of Ampleforth and
Oswaldkirk, wapentakes of Birdforth and Rydale, a part in the
liberty of St. Peter; 4 miles from Helmsley, 9 from Kirbymoor-
side, 15 from Malton, 22 from Y ork.—Population 192.—S8t. Peter,
214, total 406.—The Church, peculiar, isa vicarage, dedicated to
8t. Peter, in the deanry of Rydale, value $4l. 6s. 55d. Patron, the
Prebendary of Ampleforth,

AMPLEFORTH-OUT-HOUSES, a few houses between Ampleforth
and Oswaldkirk, two, (one of which is the Roman catholic college)
in the township of Ampleforth and parish of Oswaldkirk, and the
rest in the township and perish of Ampleforth, wapentake of Ry-
dale; 3} wiles from Helmsley.

Here is a college for Roman Catholics, established in 1802, by the members
of the Catholic College of Dieulouard, near Pont a Mousson, in Lorraine, their
pmp‘egithen being confiscated by the fatal Revolution in France. In March
M, , the Rev. Robert Nixon, B. D. F. A. 8. presented a drawing of an
Um w0 the Antiquarian Soeieti‘;:;!ound in & barrow here, formed by a circle of

stones, about 10 feet in diameter; the Urn was at the depth of between 3

- and"4 fe¢t near the centre of the barrow.—ARcH=0L.

ANGRAM, Aam. in the township of Muker and pdrish of Grinton,
6 miles from Askrigg, 12 from Reeth.
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ANGRAM-COTE, f. k. in the township of East-Witton-without,
miles from Middleham and Masham. :

ANGRAM-GRANGE, & township, in the parish of Coxwold,

ntake of Birdforth, liberty of Ripon; 5 miles from Kasing-
wold, 8 from Thirsk.—Containing 4 Houses and 29 Inhabitants.

ANGROVE-HALL, s. k. in the township and parish of Great-
Ayton; 2 miles from Stokesley.

APPERSET, ham. in the township of Bainbridge and parish of
Hawes ; 2 miles from Hawes,

APPLEGARTH, 3f. k. two in the township and parish of Rich-
mond, and one in the township and parish of Marske; 4 miles from
Richmond, 7 from Reeth.

APPLETONS, EAST and WEST, a township in the parish of
Catterick, wapentake of Hang-East ; 2 miles from Catterick, 5
from Bedale.—Population 87.

Here died in 1673, that facetious and eccentric genius, Drunken Barnaby, or
Barnaby Harrington, but whose real naine appears to have been Richard Braith-
waite, a native of Burneshead, in the county of Westmmorland, leaving behind
him, says Woon, the character of a “ well bred gentleman and a good neighbour. »
He was author of many popular pieces, as well as of the Journal.—The following
monumental inscription to his memory appears in Catterick Church,

: Juxta sitee sunt

. Richardi Braithwaite
; De Burneshead, in comitate
Westmorelandz armigeri, et
Marize, ejus conjugis, Religniz.
1lle quarto die Maii, anno, 1673,
Denatus est; haec undecimo Aprilis 1681,
Supremum diem obiit. Horum filius
Unicus, Straflord Braithwaite, Eques
Auratus adversus Mauros Christiani
Nominis hostes infestissimos, fortiter
Dimicans occuhuit. Cujus Cineres
Tingi, in Mauritania Tingitana,
Humantur.
Renuiescant in Pace.

APPLETON-LE-MOOR, in the parish of Lastingham, wapentake
of Rydale; 4 miles from Kirbymoorside, 10 from Helmsley, 14
from Malton.—Population 276. '

APPLETON-LE-STREET, a parish-town in the wapentake of
Rydale; 4 miles from Malton, 9 from Kirbymoorside, 14 from
Helwmsley, 18 from York.~—Pop. 173. 'The Church is a vicarage,
dedicated to All-Saints, in the deanry of Rydale, value 7. 8s. 6id.
Patron. the Rev. J. J. Cleaver.

APPLETON.-WISKE, in the parish of Great-Smeaton, west-divi-
sion of Langbaragh; 7 miles from Yarm, 8 from Northallerton,~— -
Pop. 492.—Appleton is a Chapelry under Smeaton, in the deanry
of Cleveland.

ARDEN with ARDENSIDE, a township, in the parish of Hawnby,
wapentake of Birdforth ; (Arden-Hall, the seat of D’ Arcy Tancred,
Esq.) 73 miles from Thirsk, 10 from Helmsley, 11 from North-
allerton.—Population 139.

* Here Peter de Horton founded a_Priory, abont the year 1150, for Nuns of
the Benedictine Order,—Duspate, Not a vestige of it now remaios. Ep.
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ARKLESIDE, kom. in the township of Cariton-high-dele and
perish of Coverham, wapentake of Hang-West; 8 miles fi
Middleham, :

ARKENGARTHDALE, a parish, in the wapeniuke of Gilling-
West; 3 miles from Reeth. 9 from Barnardcastle, (Durham) 11
from Leyburn, 13 from Richmond and Askrigg, 18 from Brough,
(Westm.) 56 from York.—Population 1,512.—The Church is a
perpetual curacy, in the deanry of Richmond, diocese of Chester,
value, p. r. 62. Patron, John Lowther, Esq.

The present Church was erected through the benefaction of the late George
Brown, Esq. the foundation stone of which was laid September 24, 1817, and
an inscription to that effect is upon the Church. This parish, of emall extent, is
co-extensive with the township, and inhabited chiefly by miners. The lead
mines here, appear to have been worked as early as the reign of King John. The
annual produce of the mines, carried on under the firm of the Arkengarthdale
and Darwent Mining Company, was some few years ago, estimated at 2000 tons.
It is a narrow dale on the north-side of Swaledale .

ARKLE-TOWN, kam. inthe township and parish of Arkengarth-
dale; 3 miles from Reeth.

ARNCLIFFE, or INGLEBY-ARNCLIFFE, a parish in the west-
division of Langbarogh ; 8 miles from Northallerton and Stokesley,
13 from Thirsk, 36 from York.—Population 331. The Church
is a perpetual curacy, in the deanry of Cleveland, value +39L
Patron, Brian Abbs, Esq. Near the Church is

ARNCLIFFE-HALL, the seat of Mrs Mauleverer.

ARNGILL, f. & in the township of Lunedale and parish of Ro.
maldkirk ; 5 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) 8 from Gretabridge.

ARRATHORNE, or ARROWTHORNE, in the parishes of Hornby
and Patrick-Brompton, wapentake of Hang-West; 5 miles from
Richmond, 5} fromLeyburn, 7 from Middleham.—Population 64.

ARUNDEL-GRANGE, f. A. in the township of Carlton-high-dale,
parish of Coverham ; 7 miles from Middlebam.

ASHGILL, f.A. in the township of Coverbam with Agglethorpe,
and parish of Coverham; 2 miles from Middleham.

ASKE, a township, in the parish of Easby, wapentake of Gilling-
West; (Aske-Hall, the seat of the Right Hon. Lord Dundas) 2 mileg.
from Richmond, 5 from Catterick.—Population 109.

The family of Dundas is descended from Gospatrick, Eari of Northumber-
land, who, 1066, wentinto Scotland with King Malcolm Canmore, rather than
submit to the Conquerer. King Malcolm ‘gave him lands of Dunbar, and many
other possessions in Scotland. Sir Lawrence Dundas, father of the late Lord, was
created a baronet in 1762, and the late lord was elevated to the barony of Aske
in 1794, who was succeded by the present lord in 1821,—DEBRETT’S PEERAGE.
8ir Lawrence Dundas purchased the Manor of Aske of the last Earl of Holderness,
in 1760, or 1762, in which family it has ever since remained.— WRITAKER. -

ASKEW, HIGH and LOW, 2 £. h. the former in the township
of Lastingbam, the latter in that of Spaunton, and both in the
parish of Lastingbam; 4 miles from Kirbymoorside.

ASKRIGG, in the parish of Aysgarth, wapentake of Hang-West;
$ miles from Hawes, 11 from Reeth, 12 from Leyburn, I8 from
Richmond, 22 from Bedbergh, 49 from York, 246 from London.
Market, Thursday.—Fairs, May 11, and first Thursday in June,
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for woollen cloth, &e. Ooctober 28 and 29, for borned cattle,
sheep, &c.— Principal Int, King’s Arms.—Population 765. The
Church is a perpetual curacy, dedicated to St. Oswald, in the
deanry of Catterick, diovese of Chester, value, p. r. +80/. Patron,
the Vicar of Aysgarth.

Askrigg it a small market-town, situated high on the hill, on the north-side
of the river Ure, and adjoining the Moors. It has heen a place of great antiquity,
though now fallen into decay. 1n the neighbourhood are the water-falls of Mill-
Gill, Whitfield-Gill, Hardraw-Scar, and Aysgarth-Force.

ATLEY-HILL, f. k. in the township of S8outh-Cowton and parish
of Gilling ; 8 miles from Richmond, 9 from Northallerton. )
AYSDALE-GATE, f. h. in the township of Moorsholme and parish

of Skelton ; 3 miles from Guisbrough.

AYSGARTH, a perish-town in the wapentake of Hang-West; 4
miles from Askrigg, 9 from Hawes, 7 from Leyburn, 9 from
Middleham, 52 from York.—Population 293. The Churchisa
vicarage, dedicated to St. Andrew, in the deanry of Catteriok,
diocese of Chester, value $19/. 6s. 8d. p. r. 122l. 1ls, Patron,
Trinity-college, Cambridge. '

Aysgarth is.remarkable, as baving near the church the finest water-fall in
the county, called Ay -Force. In this village was born about 1710, James
Tunstall, a learned and amiable divine. He was educated at St. John’s College,
Cambridge, of which he became fellow and principal tutor. In 1741, he was
elected public orator of the University, afterwards chaplain to Archbishop Potter,

created D. D. in 1744, and lastly, vicar of Rochdale. He died in 1772.—Bio-
GRAPRICAL DiCcTIONARY,

AYTON, GREAT, a parish-town in the west-division of Lang-
baragh ; 2} miles from Stokesley, 5} from Guisbrough, 10 from
Stockton, (Dur.) 45 from York.—Pop. 1,023. The Church is a
perpetual curacy, dedicated to All-Saints, in the deanry of Cleve-
land, value, p.r. 70 10s. 104. Patron, the Rev. Geo. Marwood.

Here is a School-house, which, from an inscription over the door, appears to
have been first built by the late Michael Postgate, yeoman, in the year 1704,
and rebuilt in 1785, with a small endowment for the instruction of eight poor
children within the township. Ayton is famous in story, by the Register-
%, written by the late JosepA Reed, of facetious memory ; andin this humble
wvillage seminary, the immortal Cuptain Cook received his school education.

AYTON, LITTLE, in the parish of Great-Ayton, west.division of
Langbarugh; 3 miles from Stokesley, 6 from Guisbrongh, 12 from
'Yarm.—Population 68.

AYTON, EAST, in the parish of 8eamer, wapentake of Pickering-
Lythe ; § miles from Scarborough, 13 from Pickering. 16 from
Malton.—Pop. 333. A smuil bridge across the Derwent sepa rates
it from West-Ayton.

AYTON, WEST, in the parish of Hutton-Bushell, wapentake of
Pickering-Lythe—Population 229.

Here are the remaing of an ancient Castle, which helonged to the Evers,
and which wasafterwards vested in the Clifford’s Family.—HinpEawzria

B
BAGBY, in ‘the parish of Kirby-knowle, wapentake of Birdforth ;
4 miles from Thirsk, 8 from Easingwold.—Pop. including Faw-
dington, 242. Here isa Chapel of ease to Kirby-knowle.
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BALDERSRY, in the parish of Topcliffe, wapentake of Hallikeld ;
&3 miles from Thirsk, 53 from Ripon, 9 from Bedale,—Pop. 241.

BALKE, in the parish of Kirby-knowle, wapentake of Birdforth
4} miles from Thirsk, 8 from Easingwold.—Population 124,

BAINBRIDGE, in the parish of Aysgarth, wapentake of Hang-
West; 1] mile from Askrigg, 4 from Hawes, 11} from Leyburn.
—Population 872.

This was formerly a Roman station called the Bracchium ; the fortifications of
which are vigible upon a hill, called Borough-Hill, at the junction of the Bain,
a emall stream that flows from Semmerwater and the Ure, close by the village.—
A part of the 6th Legion was stationed here. Every night at 10 o'cloek, from
Holyrood, Sept. 27, to Shrovetide, a horn is blown, cailed the forest horn, of
which tradition affirms, that it was intended as a signal to the benighted travel-
lers, to direct bis footsteps to the nearest points which could him shelter’
and accommodations.—WHrTAker. This is a part of the old forest laws.— For an
account of the Free School, see Yores-bridge.

BAINWOOD-HEAD, f£. 4. in the township of Spaunton and parish
of Lastingham ; 4 miles from Kirbymoorside,

BARDEN, in the parish of West-Hawkswell, wapentake of Hang-
West ; 3 miles from Leyburn, § from Richmond and Middleham:
Population 106. in the same township and parish ig

B EN-DYKKS, three farm houses, and

BARDEN LANE, Public-House.

BARFORTH, in the parish of Gilling, wapentake of Gilling-West ;
7 miles from Gretabridge, 8 from Darlington, (Dur.) 10 from Rich-
yoond.—Population 141.

“}ere,” says Cade, *“ was formerly a Roman station, near an ancient seat of the
Pudsays, of which family, I fing Amérose Pudsay, Sheriff of Yorkshire, anno
1762. » There is a large station above 61 acres. After giving a deseription
of its form, &c. he further adds, * the common name, ascribed to the station, we
are treating of at Barford, has long been called Old Richmand, for no other rea-
son, ¥ suppose, than its maguitude. ”” Again, * if any altars or inecriptions were
found at the station near Barford, it is presumed they have been applied towards
execting an old church or chapel, dedicated to 8t. Lawrence, still remaining close
by the place, but long disused, and the family seat of the Pudsays, which is of

great antiquity, no doubt, partook of the spoils.—Ancrzor. Of the chapel
alluded to, som’e remains are still extant.—Ebp.

BARMER-LODGE, f. A. in the township of Hutton-le-Hole and pa-
rish of Lastingham ; 4 miles from Kirbymoorside.
BARNABY-HOUSE, f. A. in the township and parish of Guis-
brough ; 2} miles from Gui
BARNBY, f. 4. in the township of Battercrambe and perish of Bos-
sall; 9 miles from Malton, 11 from York.
BARNBY, EAST, inthe parish of Lythe, east-division of
barugh; 6 miles from Whitby, 16 from Guisbrough.—Pop. 21Q
BARNBY, WEST, in the township of East-Barnby and parish of
Lythe; 6} miles from Whitby, 151 from Guisbrough.
BARNINGHAM, a parish-town in the wapentake of Gilling-West,
(a seat of Mark Milbank, Esq.) 2 miles from Gretabridge, 6 from
. Barnard-Castle, (Durkam) 10 from Richmend, 53 from Yerk.~
Pop. 383. The Church is a rectory, dedicated to St. Michael,
in the deanry of Richmond, diocese of Chester, value 194 17s. 1d
Patron, the King.—Here is an endowed School, founded by Ack-
lam Milbenk, Esq. date not known.
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BARTON in the parishes of St. John Stanwick, and Gilling, waper
- take of Gllllnw-Past, 7 miles from Richmond and Darlington,
(Dur.) Pop. 436. Inthis village are two Chapels, that of Stanwick,
dedicated to St. Cathhert, value, p. r. +46/. and that of Gnllmg
to St. Mary, value, p.r. +65.. the Vicars of each parish being
Patrons.— The boundaries of these chapelries are very intricate,
and not ascertained.

BARTON-LE-STREET, a parish-town in the wapentake of Rydale,
(the seat of Henry Cockerill Leatham, Esq.).5} miles from Malton,
9 from Kirbymoorside, 12 from Helmsley, 19 from York.—Po
lation 176. The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to St. Michael,
in the deanry of Rydale, value 144. 3s. 6d. Patroness, the Mar-
chioness of Hertford. '

BARTON-LE-WILLOWS. in the parish of Crambe, wapentake
of Bulmer ; 8 miles from Malton, 10} from York.—Pop. 188,

BARUGH, GI{F.AT, in the p:lrish of Kirby-misperton, wapentake
of Pickering-Lythe; 6} miles from Pickering, 7 from Malton
and Kirby moorside.—Population, including Little-Barugh, 241,

BARUGH, LITTLE, in the parish of Kirby-misperton, and being
united with Great-Barugh, form the township of Barughs-Ambo 3
5 miles from Pickering, 7 from Malton end Kirbymoorside,

BARUGH, ROOK, see Rook-Barugh.

BATT ER&BY in the parish of Ingleby-Greenhow, west-division
of Lnngbarugh 5 miles from Stokesley, 8 from Guisbrough, 13
from Yarm.—Population 87.

BAXBY, in the township of Thorntbn-on-the-Hill with Baxby,
parish of Coxwold, wapentake of Birdforth; 6 miles from
wold.-—Population included in Thornton, (a Mill and f. h.)

BAXTER-HOWE, f. k. in the township of Airyholme, Howthorpe,
and Baxter-Howe, and parish of Hovingham; 74 miles from
Kirbymoorside, 8 from Malton.—Population included in Airyholme.

BAYSDALE, in the township of Westerdale and parish of Stokes-
ley, west-division of Langbarugh; 7 miles from Guisbrough, 8

from Stokesley.

Guido de Bowincourt founded a Priory here for Nuns of the Cistercian Order,
to which 4/ illiam de Percy aud others were ben.factors, valued at the dissolution
at 20/. 1s. 4d. DunaLE.—21L. 19¢. 10d. Sreep. The site of the priory, together with
the scveral lands, was granted 36 Henry VIIf. to Ralph Bulmer and John
Thyn, to he held of the King in capite. After divers grants and alienations, it
became the property of the l-oﬂu-rle\\ of Castleton ; and about the year 1729,

urcha-ed by Ann, danghter of William Peirson, Esq. of the mldSIo temple,

J:)n Lut the raid Ann dying unmarried and intestate, her brother, Bradshaw
Pclrson, E«q. surceeded to her estates.  The baildings of the priory retaining
little of their mona-tic appearance, are now converted into Farm-houses.
BurrRTON—GRAvVES.
‘BEADLAM, in the parish of Helmsley, wapentake of Rydale; 3
miles from Kirbymoorside and Helmsley,—Popalation 143.
BEALE-HOUSE, f. h. in the townsbip and parish of Thornton-le-
street; 4 miles from Thirsk, 6 from Northallerton.
BEARE-PARK f.h in the township of Carperby and parish of
Aysgarth ; 4 miles from Askrige, 7 from Leyburn,
This ancient house was long the residence of the oldest line of the Metcalts
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BEDALE, a Market' and parish town, in the wapentake of Hang-
KEast (the seat of Henry Peirse, Esq.) 6 miles from Masbham,
7 from Catterick, 8 from Northallerton, 14 from Thirgk, 13 from
Ripon, 10 from Middiebam, 12 from Leyburn and Richmond, 17

. from Boroughbridge, 34 from York, 222 from London.—Market,
Tuesday.—Fairse, Easter and Whit-Tuesdays, for horned eattle
and sheep; July 6and 7, October 11 and 12, for horned cattle,

and leather; Monday se’night before Christmas-day, for
horned cattle, sheep, and pigs,—Principal Inns, Black Swan,
and Royal-Oak.—Popalation 1,137. The Charch is a rectory,
dedicated to St. Gregory, in the deanry of Catterick, diocese of
Chester, value 89/, 4s. 9jd. Patrons, Henry Peirse and Thomas
Stapylton, Esqrs.

The Castle of Bedale, the residence and most probably the workmanship of
Brian Fitzalan, stood a little to the south-west of the Church-Steeple, from
which it appears to have been detached only by a street. The foundations have
heen to a cunsiderable extent from the gardens of Henry Peirse, Esq. the
present owner of the site, intoa field north-west from the chureh, but no vestiges
now remain above the surface. Here is an hopital founded by Dr. Samways,
in 1718, and an ancient grammar school; but neither the time nor the person
by whom it was founded can be now ascertained. It is supposed to have existed
before the dissolutioh, as a stipend of 7. 11s. 4d. is paic annually, at the audit
holden at Richmond, out of the land-revenues of the crown.

BELLMAN:BANK, in the township and parish of Guisbrough.

.1t is remarkable for being the place where Akom was first produced in Brie
tain, about 1595.—The works were wrought for 15 years and upwards, when they
were transferred to another spot, where it was continued for 15 years or more,
after which it was totally abandoned. Youna’s WriTsY.

BELLERBY, in the parish of Spennythorne, wapentake of Hang-
West; 2 miles from Leyburn, 5 from Middleham, 6} from Rich-
mond.—Population 407. The Church is a perpetnal curacy, value,
p. r- 80l Patron, the Rector of Spennythorne.

BENINGBROUGH, in the parish of Newton-upon-Ouse, wapen-
take of Bulmer; 7 miles from York and Easingwold, 11 from
Boroughbridge.—Population 99. about } a mile oat of the village is

BENINGBROUGH-HALL, the seat of Mrs Earle.

BENKIL-GRANGE, (the seat of the Rev. John J.Monson,)in the
township and parish of Bedale ; } of a mile from Bedale.

BERWICK or INGLEBY-BERWICK, in the parish of Stainton,
west-division of Langbarugh ; 3 miles from Yarm, 6} from Stokes-
ley.—Population 175.

BICKLY, f. k.in the township and parish of Ebberston ; 9 miles from
Scarborough.

BILSDALE-MIDCABLE, or EAST-SIDE, a township, in the
parish of Helmsley, wapentake of Rydale; 8 miles from Helmsley
and Stokesley, 14 from Thirsk.—Population 780.

BILSDALE-KIRKHAM, another Township in the same parish and
wapeniske; 10 miles from Helmsley.—Population included in

- Bilsdale-Midcable. The Church is a perpetual curacy, valae, p. r.
60L 15s. Od. Patron, the Vicar of Helmsley.
: B
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BILSDALE, WEST-SIDE, a township, in the parish of Hawnly,
wapentake of Birdforth ; 8 miles from Helmsley and Stokesley, 14
from Thirsk.—Population 127, o e

The above three townships form what. is called Bilsdale, a long
narrow dale. ) A :

BINSOE, in the township and parish of- West-Tanfield, wapentake
of Hallikeld ; 3 miles from Masham, 6 from Bedale; 7 from Ripon.

BIRCH, f. A. in the parish of Stonegrave; 3} miles from Helmsley,
7} milesfrom Kirbymoorside. - )

BIRDFORTH, in the parish of Coxwold, wapentake of Birdforth;
§ miles from Thirsk and Easingwold. - The Church is a perpetual
curacy, in the deanry of Bulmer, value; p. r. 184/ Patron, the
Archbishop of York.—Pop. 42: ’

BIRDFORTH, a wapentake, nearly in centre of this Riding, the

_ southernmost part being about 15 miles north from York, and
extends through the vale of Mowbray to near Yarm. It contains
44 Townships, of which 17 are parish-towns, and one Market
town, containing 2,430 Inhabited Houses and 12,304 Inhabitants.

BIRKBY, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Allertonshire; 6

" miles from Northallerton, 11 from Darlington, (Dur.) 38 from
York. Pop. 90. The Church is a rectory, dedicated to St. Peter,

. in the deanry of Cleveland, value t6l. 13s. 4d. Patron, the Bishop
of Durham.

BIRKDALE, hkam. in the township of Muker and parish of Grin

_ ton; 16 miles from Reeth, - .

BIRK-RIGGS, f. h. in the township of High-Abbotside and parish
of Aysgarth; 24 miles from Hawes, 7 from Askrigg.

BIRKS, f. h. in the township of East-Witton-without, and parish

- ‘of Fast-Witton; § miles from Middleham and Masham., :

BISHOPDALE, a township, in the parish of Aysgarth, wapentake
of Hang-West ; 5 miles from Askrigg, 8 from Hawes, 9 from

- Leyburn.—Population 95. : ' i

BLADES, 2 or 3 A. in the township of Melbecks and parish of
Grinton; 4 miles from Reeth.

BLAKEHOW.-HOUSE, p. A. in the township of Farndale-East-side,
and parish of Lastingham ; 8 miles from Kirbymoorside, 15 from
Stokesley. - -

BLANSBY-PARK, kam. in the township and parish of Pick-

- ering ; 2 wiles from Pickering, ' »

BLEAN, HIGH and LOW, (2 f. k. in Raydale)in the township of
Bajnbridge and parish of Aysgarth; 4 miles from Askrigg.

BLUE-ANCHOR, p. 4. in the township and parish of Middleton-
Tyas; 4 miles from Richmond, 4} from Catterick.

BOLBY-HALL f. k. in the township of Low-Abbotside and parish
of Aysgarth ; 1 mile from Askrigg, 4 from Hawes.

BOLDRON, in the parish of Startforth, wapentake of Gilling-West 3
3 miles from Gretabridge and Barnardcastle, (Dur.) Pop. 168.
BOLTBY, in the parish of Feliskirk, wapentake of Birdforth; §

miles from Thirsk, 8 from Helmsley. Hereis a Chapel of Ease to
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Peliskirk, dedicuted to the Holy-Trinity, rebuilt in 1804.—Po.
BOLTON or CASTLE-BOLTON, in' the parish of Wensley,
* wapentake of Hang-West ; 5 miles from Leyburn, 7 from Middle.
bham, 11 from Hawes.—Popalation 278. The Church is a perpe-
~ tual ‘curacy, dedicated to 8t.-Oswald, value, p. r. 68/ Patron, the
Rector of Wensley. -

Here on the hrow of a hill, and on the north-side of Wensleydals, stands
frowning the remains of a Castle, which was built by Richard-le-Scrope,
chancellor of England, in the time of Richard II. This Prince granted his license
to Richard-le-Scrope, chevalier, to found a chantry of 6 chaplains in this Castle,

- and endowed: it with the yearly rent of 106/, 13¢. 44. In this Castle the beautiful,
but unfortunate, Mary Queen of Scots was confined in 1568. Her name, inseri-
.bed by herself, appeared, till lately, on a pane of glass in the window of the room
of her confinement.  Although Lord Scrope, her gaoler, had given no reason to
dispute his vigilence or fidclity, yet Queen Elizabeth caused her to be removed
to Tutbury- Castle, and committed her to the keeping of the Earl of Shrewsbury.
Perhaps, as Lord Scrope . was brother-in-law to the Duke of Norfolk, who
formed a design of mounting the throne, 'by marrying Mary, might be the reason
why Elizabeth changed her confinement. Daring the civil wars this Castle was
long defended for the King, by Lord Scrope, anda party of the Richmondshire
Militia, against the Parliamentary forces, but surrendered on honourable terms,
November 5, 1645. Emanuel, Lord Scrope, who died without male issue, in
the reign of Charles I. was the last of the family who inhabited this Castle. The
building of this stately fabrie, occupied eighteen years, and cost 12,000/, It is
the property of Lord Bolton, (from whence the title is derived) having descended
to that family by the marriage of one of his ancestors with a daughter of Emanuel
Lord Scrope, Evar! .of Sunderland. Tt is much demolished with age, and the
ruins of time, serving as a receptacle for hats, owls, and jackdaws. The situation
commands an extensive prospect, interesting and pictu resque, and forms a scene,
which sets description at defiance.—CaMDEN— DU6DALE—GROSE,
BOLTON, EAST and WEST, the former comprises 2 f. k. and the
. latter, one, both in the township of Bolton and parish of Wensley 3
53 miles frolm Leyburn. ©
BOLTON-HALL, (the seat of the Hon. Thomas Orde Powlett,) in
the township of Preston and parish of Wensley ; 2} miles from
Leyburn. o
This mansion of the noble family of the Powletts, was “built by the Maguis
‘of Winchelsea, first Duke’ of Bolton, in 1678.—Grost. * It stands‘in nearly the
centre Wensleydale. ) B
‘BOLTON-UPON-SWALE, in the parish of Catterick, wapentake
of Gilling-East; 3 miles from Catterick, 6 from Richmond, 10
from Northallerton.—Population 100. The Church is a - perpetual
- caracy, dedicated to St. Mary, in the deanry of Richmond, diocese
. of Chester, value, p. 1. 58/, x2s. 10d. Patron, the Vicar of Catterick.
i Here is a handsome pyramid which marks the grave of Henry Jenkins, the
oldest Englishman upon record.— For further account of him see Ellerton.
ﬁOOZ, ham. in the township and parish of Arkengarthdale ; 3 miles
. from Reeth, 18 from Brough, (Westm.)
BOB.KESGILL, J.A. in the township of Carlton-high-dale and
parish of Coverham ; 74 miles from Middleham.
BORROWRBY, in the parish of Lythe, east-division of Langharagh ;
9 miles from Whitby, 12 from Guisbrough.—Population 64.
BORROWRBY, iu the parish of Leak, wapentake of Allertonshire;

-
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& miles from Northallerton and Thirsk.—Pop. 267. A part'of
this village is in the wapentake of Birdforth, and forms a township
of itself, ander the name of Geldable, (ad Geldam)—Pop. 128,

BORWINS, 3f. A in the township of Bainbridge and parish of
Aysgarth ; 2 miles from Hawes. A

BOSSALL, ham. and parish in the township of Buttercrambe with
Bossall, wapentake of Bulmer; 10 miles from York, 8 from
Malton, 13 from Easingwold.—Population 31. The Charch is
a vicarage, dedicated to St. Botolph, in the deanry of Bulmer,
value 12{. Patron, the Dean and Chapter of Durham.

BOULBY, in the township and parish of Easington, east division of
Langbarugh; 1! miles from Whitby and Guisbrough.

A branch of the ancient family of the Conyers resided here for many genera-
tions, whose mansion is now converted into a farm-house ; over the door of which,
on a square &tone, is an escutchenn bearing the arms of that family. .

BOW.-BANK, 3 or 4 4. in the township of Lunedale and parish of
Romaldkirk ; 9 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) -

BOWES, a parish town in the wapentake of Gilling-West ; 4 miles
from Barnardeastle, (Dur.) 6 from Greiabridge, 13 from Brough,
(Westm.) 16 from Richmond, 60 from York.—Pop. 1,095. The
Church is a perpetual caracy, dedicated to St. Giles, in the deanry
of Richmond, diocese of Chester, value, p.r. +108l. 4s. 10d, .

Patron, Thos. Harrison, Esq.

At the west-end of the church, lie the remains of Roger Hrightson and
Martha Railton, both of Bowes. The mutual attachment of this humble pair,
“who died for the love of each other, *’ gave rise to the ballad of some celebrity,
called “ Bowes Tragedy ; or, a Puttern of True Love ;”’ and Mallet’s beautiful
and pathetic poem of Edwin and Emma is founded on this story. Here isa free
Grammar-school founded and endowed by the late /¥illiam Hutchinson, Ksq. of
Delro, Hertfordshire, about the year 169.‘3. The endowment, according to Car-
lisle, i3 worth 339/. 13s. per annum. There are six scholarships at Pembroke-
Hall, Cambridge, for superannuated scholars from Merchant Taylor’s achool ;
and for one scholar, educated at the free-schoal at Bowes, each 40/ per annum,
and may be held seven years. Bowes is of great antiquity, being once a Roman
station. At the N. W. angle of which stands the remains of a Castle, buailt out of
the ruins of the Roman fortress, by Alan Niger, the first Earl of that title, who

d therein William his relation, with 580 archers to defend it against some
nsurgents in Cumberland and Westmorland, confederated with the Seots. _ It is
situated on the brink of a hill declining swiftly to the southward, at whose foot
runs the river Greta. It is built in the form of a square. This castle appears to
have belonged to Jokn de Dreux, Earl of Richmong, in the reign of Edward III.
. who granted it to Mary St. Paul, the Countess of Pembroke, in the 5th of the
same reign; from her it passed to John Duke of Bedford, third son of Henry
IV. who died possessed of it; it afterwards devolved on Henry VI. It is now
as well as the toll for cattle passing through the manor of Bowes, the property of
Henry Percy Pullcine, Esg. The town of Bowes is situated on the Roman mili-
tary way, called by 4ntoninus, Lavatre. Thisstation, occupying the field called-
the # Baile,” and the church-yard, is an exact square cunsisting of four acres :
the south vallum is very perfect. Coins of Hadrian Jespasian, Constantine,
Nero, Faustina, Severus, &ec. as well as Roman altars, remains of baths and
aqueducts have been found here:—An old etone was used some time ago, in
the church, as a communion table, with an inscription in honour of Hadrian.
— Canpen—HoRsLEv—Grose. Bowes-Hall, the ancient seat of the family of
Brunskell, is now the iroperty of Thos. Harrison, Esq. as patron of the church.
BOWFORTH, f.A in the township of Welburn and parish of

Kirbymoorside 2} miles from Kirbymoorside, 6 from Helmsley.



NORTH-RIDING, 13

BRACKENBROUGH, f. A. in the township of Brough and parish
of Catterick; | mile from Catterick, 5 from Richmond.

BRACKENBY, f. A. in the township of Barton and parish of Gil-
ling ; 7 miles from Darlington, (Dur.) 7} from Richmund.

BRADLEY, kam. in the township of Carlton-bigh-dale and purish
of Coverham, wapentake of Hang-West; 9 miles from Middleham.

BRAFFERTON, a parish-town in the wapentake of Bulmer; 3}
miles from Boroughbridge, 6 from Easingwold, 9 from Ripon,
16 from York.—Population 178. The Church is a vicarage, dedi-
cated to St. Peter. in the deanry of Bulmer, value, $9/. 155 6d.
p-r. *79, 10s. Pation, the King.

On the outside of the chancel (south) are the arms of the Nevilles and other

rings, carved on stone, and underneath, running round in Saxon Monastic

racters: ‘‘ orate pro animo Radulphi Neville fundatoris hyjus Kcclesie’’—

“ soli deo honor et gloria !>’ and on the laygest bell is also inscribed “ Radulphus
Neville Armiger, I. H. S. 1598.”

BRANDSBY, a parish, in the township of Brandsby-cum-Stearshy,
wapentake of Bulmer ; (Brandsby-Hall, the seat of Francis Cholm-
ley, Esg.) 6 miles from Easingwold, 14 from Malton and
York.—Pop. including Stearsby, 277. The Church is a rectory,
dedicated to All-Saints, in the deanry of Bulmer, value 9/ 8s,
113d. Patron, Francis Cholmley, Ksq.

BRANSDALE, EAST and WEST-SIDE, a dale, in the wapentake
of Rydale; the East-side of which is in the township of Farndale,
High-Quarter, and parish of Kirbymoorsidle; and the West-
side, a township of itself, in the parish of Kirkdale ; 8 miles from
Helmsley and Kirbymoorside,—Pop. West-side, included in
Skiplam, '

BRAITHWAITE-HALL, f. A in the township of East Witton-
within, and parish of East-Witton ; 2 miles from Middlebam.

BRAMPTON or BRANTON, f. A. in the township of Langthorpe, .
and parish of Kirby-on-the-Moor ; 2 miles from Boroughbridge.

This place was for several generations the residence of the ancient family of
the Tarcreds.

BRAWITH-HALL, (the seat of Warcop Conzett, Esq.) in the town-
ship of Knayton-cam-Brawith, and perish of Leak ; 4 miles from
Thirsk, 5 from Northallerton. '

BRAWARTH f. h. in the township of Skutterskelfe, and parish of
Stokesley ; 2 miles from Stokesley.

BRAWBY, in the parish of Saiton, wapentake of Rydale, 'iberty
of St. Peter; 7 miles from Kirbymoorside, 7} from Malton, 8
from Helmsley,—Population 188,

BRAWBY-GRANGE, f. k. in the township of Brawby, and parish
of Salton ; 7 miles from Pickering and Kirbymoorside.

BRECKENBROUGH, in the township of Newsham-cum-Breclen-
brough and parish of Kirby-Wiske, wapentake of Birdforth, (tke
sent of John Lineage Armitage, Esq.) 3} miles from Thirsk. 7}
from Northallerton. 93 from Ripon. Pop. included in Newsh:.a, -

This place, consieting of four farms, formerly belonged to the ancient fanily
of the Lascelles, *“ where,” as Leland says, ¢ Muster Lascelles.hath builded a
very praty house.” Sir Thomas Lascclles died here May, 1619,
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BRIGNALL, a patish-town in the wapentake of Gilling-West's ‘I
mwile from Gretabridge, 4 from' Barnardcastle, (Durkam) 13 from
. Richmond, §5 from York.—Population 216. The Church isa
vicarage, dedicated to St. Mary, in the deanry cf Rmhmoml
diocese of Chester, valuc 8l. 12s. 6d." Patron, the King.

BRISCOE, f. &.,in the townshlp and parish of Lythe; 6 miles from
Whitby.

BRISCOE, EAST, in the township of Cotherstons, and pa¥ish of
Romaldkirk ; 6 miles from Barnardcastle, (Durkam.) -

BRISCOE, WEST in the same township and parish ; 73 miles from
Barnardcastle (Dur) 13 from Gretebridge.

BROAKES-GILL J. h. in the township of Hipswell, and parlsll of
Catterick ; 1} mile from Richmond.

BROATES, 2 h. in the township and parish of Pickering ; 2 miles
from Pickering, 9 from Kirbymoorside.

BROATES-HOUSE, . . in the township and parish of Salton,

BROCKEN-GILL, £. 4. in the township of Coverham, with A
thorpe, and parish of Coverham ; 2} miles from Middleham.

BROMAKIN-GRANGE, f. . in the township of Exilby, Newton,
and Leeming, and pansh of Burneston ; ‘2 miles from Bedale,

BROMPTON, a pafish-town in the wnpentnke of Pickering-Lythe ;
(theseat of Sir George Caley, Bart. )8 milesfrom Scarborough, 10 from

- Pickering, 14 from Malton, 32 from York.-—Pop. 516. TheCliurchis
a vicarage, dedicated to All-Saints, in the deanry of Rydalé, value,
1124 p. r. 31 Patron.§ Sir Geo. Caley, Bart.

Of this place the celebrated Monkish historian, Jain of Brompfon was a
native. He wasa Cistercian Monk and Abbot of Jerveaux-Abbey in Richmondshire.
The * Chronicon that goes under his name begins at, the year 558, when Au
tin, the monk came into England, and is carried on to tgve death of Richa the
ll nnno domini 1198.  But Seldon says, “ that this chronicle does not belong

. rson whose name it goes under, and that John of Bmmpton, the Abbot,

d:d only procure it for his monastery of Jerveaux., >’ This historian has borrowed

retty ﬁ'ee!y from %_n- Hoveden. His chronicle is printed in the ‘ Decem

. Hist. Ang. he family of the Cayleys, formerly from Norfolk, but

who have reside. here upwards of two centuries, is very ancient. William Cay-

ley received the honour of knighthood, March 2, 1641 ; and for his gervices to

King Charles I. and 1. was created a baronet, Apnl 20 168! The present
Sir George is the sixth baronet.

- 9 It would seem as if ;the Rev. J. Cayley, the prcsenl‘. incumbent, was in-

tituled, to some share in the right of prerentation, being possessed of a third

. part of the Glebe-land, charged with the payment of a tlnrd part of thé repairs

of the Church, an annual payment to his Grace the Archbsthop of York, and
a part of the annunl stipend to the Vicar.

BROMPTON, in the parish of Noithallerton, wapentake of Allerton-
shire; 13 mlle from Norﬁmllerton, 13; from Yarm, 14} from
Stokesley —Pop. 1,223. "The Church isa perpetual curacy, Patron,
the Vicar of Northallerton.

BROMPTON-GRANGES, 3 f k. in the township of Brompton,
and parish of Northnllerton 23 miles from Northallerton.

BROMPTON, EAST, in the township of Patrick-Brompton, and
perish of Bedale, It is separated from Patrick-Brompton by a
small brook.

-
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BROMPTON, PATRICK, see Patrick-Brompton.
BROMPTON-UPON-SWALRK, in the parish of Easby, wapeniake
gggilling East; 2 miles from Catterick, 3 from Richmond.—Pop,

BROOMFIELD, f. A. in the township of Romanby, and parish of
Northallerton ; 1 mile from Northallerton.

BROTTON, ‘in the parish of Skelton, east division of Langbarugh §
6 miles from Guisbrough, 15 from Whitby. It is an ancient

* Chapelry dependant on the church of Skelton, enjoying parochial

rights.—Pop. 332. :

BROUGH, a township, in the parish of Catterick, wapentake of
Hang-East, (Brough Hall, the seat of Sir Henry Maire Lasoon,

Bart.) 5 miles from Richmond, 7 from Bedale.— Pop. 90. s
- " Brough-Hall formerly belonged to the ancient family of Brough, from whom
it had its name, and from them came into the present family by wmarriage. - It

‘has been built above 200 years, but considerably improved and altered to its
sent state, by the last Sir Join Lawson, who added the wings. The family
rom whom this is descended, were for many generations seated at Burwell, in
Northumberland.—Sir John, the first baronet, created July 6, 1665, was captain
of horse in the army of Charles I. in whose service his elder brother Henry was
;l.:;in.——Sir Henry, the present and 6th baronet succeeded his brother John, June

: , 1811, ) .
BROUGHTON, in the parish of Appleton-le-Street, wapentake of

Rydale; 1} mile from Malton, 12} from Kirbymoorside.—Popu- -

lation 94. :
BROUGHTON, GREAT, in the parish of Kirkby, west-division of
Langbarugh; 3 miles from Stokesley, 9 from Guisbroagh, 10
from Yarm.—Pop. 517. T ) !
BROUGHTON, LITTLE, f. &. in thetownship of Great-Broughton
2 miles from Siokesley. ' T :
BROXA, in the perish of Hackness, wapentake of. Whitby-Stmndi
7 miles from Scarborough, 15} from Whitby, 18 from Pickering.
Population 1,702, : )
BRULLAMOOR-HOUSES, 3 or 4 4. in the township and parish of
Northallerton ; 1} mile from Northallerton, 9 from Thirsk. ’
BULMER, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Bulmer; 6 miles
from Malton, 13 from Easingwold, 14 from York.—Pop. 339,
The Church is a rectory, dedicated to St. Martin, in the deanry
. of Bulmer, value 11/, Patron, Ear] Fitawilliam,
. Bulmer was formerly the seat of the ancient family of the Jdels.
BULMER, a wapentake, the most southerly in the Riding ; extends
to the very walls of York, and is bounded on the east by the East-
Riding, and on the west by the West-Riding. It comprises 65
townships, of which 33 are parish-towns, and one market-town,
containing 2,800 inhabited houses, and 15,535 inhabitants,

BUMPER-CASTLE, (a Shooting-Boz) in the township of Bilsdale,,

. West-tide, and parish of Hawnby ; 8 miles from Helmsley.
BURNESTON, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Hallikeld ; 3}

. from Bedale, 9 from Masham, 9} miles from Ripon, 30 from.

. York.—Pop. 288. The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to St

. Lowhart, in the deanry of Catterick, diocese of Chester, valne 371,
" 6a, 84, Patron, Gregory Elsley, Esq.
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Here is an Hospital or Alms-house, and a Free-school, founded and endowell
in 1681, by the late Rev. Dr. Robinson, vicar of Burneston.

BURNISTON, in the parish of Scalby, wapentake of Pickering-

 Lythe; 4 miles from Scarborough, 17 from Whitby. Fop. 345,

BURRELL, in the parish of Bedule, wapentake of Hang-East; 2
miles from Bedale, 7 from Masham.—Pop. 1]3.

BURTERSET, hkam. in the township of Hawes, and parish of
Aysgarth ; 1 mile from Hawes, 4 from Askrigg.

BURTON, in the township of Burton-with-Walden, and parish of
Ajysgarth, wapentake of Hang-West, (the seat of William Purchas,
Esq.) 53 miles from Askrigg, 8} from Leyburn.—Pop. including
Walden, 478, -

BURTON-CONSTABLE, in the parish of Fingall, wapentake of
Hang-West; (Burtop-Hall, the seat of the Rev. Christopher
Wyuille,) 5 miles from Leyburn and Middleham, 53 from Rich-
mond.—Pop. 204,

Burton- Constable is surrounded by one of the largest parks in Richmond-
shire, abounding with wood, and the house which is a modern magnificent fabric,
with a portico to two fronts, to make room fer which, a house, designed by Mnigo
Jones, is said to have been demolished by the presumption of an architect, in
the owner’s absenee, and contrary to his instructions. Wrrraxes.

BURTON. HIGH, and 2 f.h. in the township of Burton-

BURTON, LOW, HALL, § upon-Ure, and parish of Masham ;
the former 1 mile, and the latter } a mile from Masham.

BURTON-HOUSE, and MILL, in-the tewnship of Burton-upon-
Ure, and parish of Masham; i mile from Masham.

BURTON, HUM, see Humberton.

BURTON-UPON-URE, a township, in the parish of Masham, wa-
pentake of Hang-East; 2 miles from Masham, 5} from Bedale.—
Pop. 170.

BUSBY, GREAT, in the perish of Stokesley, west-division of

- Langbarugh; 3 miles from Stokesley, 10 from Yarm, 14 from
Northallerton.—Pop. 117.

BUSBY, LITTLE, in the township of Great-Busby, and parish of
Stokesley, west-division of Langbaragh ; (Busby-Hall, the seat of
the Rev. George Marwood) 3} miles from Stokesley, 10 from

- Yarm, 13 from Northallerton.

The family of the Murwoods appear to have resided here since 1600, though
originally from Nunthorpe.—Gaaves. In 1745, Busby-Hall was in the
of Mrs Turner, widow. of Cholmley Turner, Esq. who bequeathed it to the late
William Marwood, Esq.

BUSBY-STOOP, p. A in the township of Sandhutton, and parish
of Thirsk ; '3 miles from Thirsk, 8 from Ripon, 9 from Northal-
lerton, 10 from Boroughbridge.

’ Bushy-Stoop, o called from a per-on of that name, being gibletted here for
the murder of Daniel Awtie, about 1702, whose daughter Bushy had married.

BUTCHER-HOUSES, Aam. in the townships of Kirklington and.
Ainderby-Quernhow, and parishes of Kirklington and Pickhill ;
7 miles from Ripon, 7} from Thirsk, 8 from Bedale,

BUTTERCRAMBE, in the parish of Bossall, wapentake of Bulmer;
10 miles from York and Malton, 15 from Easingwold. -- Pop. 235, -

BUTTERWICK, in the perish of Barton-le-Street, wapentake of
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Rydule; 7 miles from Kirbymoorside, 8 from Malion, 10 from
Helmsley.—Pop. including Newsam. 50,

BYLAND, in the parish of Coxwold, wapentake of Birdforth; 6
miles from Helmsley, 7 from Essingwold, 10 from Thirsk.-—Popu-
lation of Byland and its Members, 372.

Here are the remains of the magnificent Abbey of Byland, situated in a rich
valley, separated from Rivauls, by the hilly ridge of Hambleton. According to
Dugdale, this Abbey was founded in 1134, by Koger de Mowbray, and valued at
the diseolution at 238L 9s. 4d. It had a noble cathedral and monastery, and was
dedicated to the blessed Virgin, and continued to the general dissolution. It was
surrendered in 1540, by John Leeds, the last Abbot, and tweaty-four Monks. The
scite was granted to Sir Wm. Pickering, Knight.—WiLis. It would seem from

ed, that r de Mowbray originally founded this monastery at Hode, (Hood-
range) in 1134, and at the instance of his mother, in 1143, yemoved it to a part
of her jointure near the river Rye, at Byland, opposite to the Abbey of Rivaulz,
since called Old Byland, which place {veing thought inconvenient for Religious,
:four years they re to Steking, near Coxwold; and at last fized &
g::le more easterly, near Whitaker, where it continued in a flourishing state till
t lgmenl dissolution. It is now the property of Martin Stapylton, Esy. of Myton-
all.

BYLAND-MEMBRIS, a township, comprehending Byland, Wass,
and Oldstead.

BYLAND, OLD, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Birdforth; 4
miles from Helmsley, 9 from Thirsk. 25 from York.—Pop. 133.
The Church is & perpetual curacy, in the deanry of Rydale, value,
P- I. 1141, Patron, Sir George Wombwell, Bart.

C

CALDBERGH, fn the parish of Coverham, wapemtake of Gilling
West; 4 miles from Middleham, snd Leyburn, 11 from Mas-
ham.—Pop. 103,

€CALDWELL, in the parish of St. Jobn Stanwick, w-gnhkeof
QGilling-West ; 7 miles from Barnardcestle, (Durkam) 9 from Rich- .
mond.—Pop. 188.

This has heen a very considerable mdd‘gre-tmﬁt‘:hy,mnba
Ermine-street, leading to Gretabridge and Lavatree, between which stations ano-
ther road hranched offin a direct line, and crossed the Tees at Thorngate, astreet
90 called in Barnardcastle.—Arcazor. * There appere,” says Lekmnd,  ruines
of buildinges at Cawdewelle village ;’ again, “ Cawdewell iz sa caullid from »
little font or spring, by the ruines of the olde place, and s» rennith into a beke
halfe a quarter of a mile of.”

CALVERT-HOUSES, kam. in the township of Muker, and parish
of Grinton, wapeniake of Gilling-West, (tke seat of Major Met-
“calfe) ; 8 miles from Reeth.

CAMP-HILL (the seat of William Rooks Leeds Serjeantson, Esq.)
in the township of Carthorpe, and parish of Burueston; 5 miles
from Bedale, 7 from Masham, 7} from Ripen, 13 from Borongh-
bridge.

CAMS-HOUSE, f.A. in the township of Low-Abbotside, and parish
of Aysgarth; 2} miles from Hawes and Askrigg.

CARKIN, in the parish of Gilling, wapentake of Gilling-West; 7
miles from Richmond, 8 from Darlington, (Dur.)—Pop. ”*

C
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CARLTON, /am. in the township and parish of Steckton-on-tha
Forest, wapentake of Bulmer ; 4 miles from York,

CARLTON, (in Coverdale) in the parish of Coverbam, wapen-
take of Hang-West; 5 miles from Middieliam, 6 from Leyburn.—
Popalation 280, ’ v T

In this Dale was born, in 1487, Miles Coverdale, the learned Bishop of Exe-
ter, to which See he was collated in 1561, on account of his extraordinary know-
ledge in Divinity, and unblemished character. On the accession of Queem

. he was ejected from his see, and thrown into prison, out of which he was

" at the earnest request of the King of Denmark, after two years confinement, and
_only banished the realm. At the accession of Elizabeth, he returned to ,
.but refused the Bishopric, and lived privately to the age of 81 years. He died in
1568, and was buried 1n Bartholomew’s, behind the E . He was the next
translator of the Bible after Wickliffe, which appeared in 1635.—It was dedicated
“to King Henry VIIL. and was the first English Bible allowed by Royal Authority ;
and the first translation of the whole Bible printed in our language.—Crasssss.

CARLTON, a parish-town, in the west-division of Langbargh;
(the seat of Joshua Reeves, Esq.) 3 miles from Stokesley, 10 from

- Yarm, 13} from Northallerton, 40 from York.—Population 260.
The Church is a perpeinal curacy, in the deanry of Cleveland,
valne, p.r. 52l 15s. Patron, Joshua Reeves, Esq.

CARLTON, in the township and parish of Helmsley ; 2 miles from-
Helwsley, 7 from Kirbymoorside.

CARLTON and CARLTON-HALL, (the seaf of Samuel Barrett
‘ Moulton Berreit, Esq.) in-the townships of Stanwick and Aldbrough,
and parish of St. John Stanwick, wapentake of Gilling-West; 7
miles from Darlington, (Dur.) 8 from Richmond.

CARLTON-HIGH-DALE, a township, in the parish of Coverbam,
wapentake of Hang-West ; 7 miles from Middleham.—Pop. 397,

CARLTON-HUSTHWAITE, (the seat of Falentine Kitchingman,
KEsqg.) in the parish of Husthwaite,” wapentake of Birdforth; 6
miles from Easingwold, 7 from Thirsk.—Pop. 153. Here is a

of esse to Husthwaite. ‘ ‘

CARLTON-MINIOTT, in the parish of Thirsk, wapentake ‘of
Birdforth, liberty of St. Peter; 2 miles from Thirsk, 9 from
Ripon.—Pop. 22]1.—8t. Peter’s, 169, total, 390, Carlton-Miniott
with Sandhution, is a perpetual curacy, in the deanry of Bulmer,
Patron, the Archbishop of York. . ‘

CARPERBY, in the parish of Aysgarth, wapentake of Hang-West ;
*4 miles from Askrigg, 7 from Leyburn.—Pop. 283.

CARPLEY-GREEN, f. A in the township of Bainbridge, and
parish of Aysgarth ; 5 miles from Hawes.

CARR-BRIDGE, f. k. in the township and parish of West-Roun-
ton, wapentake of Allertonshire; 7 miles from Yarm, 8 from
Northallerton.

CARR-END, (ths seat of William Fothergill, Esq.) in the township
of Bainbridge, and parish of Aysgarth ; 3} miles from Askrigg.

. Here, in 1712, was horn Dm JoAn Fothergill, son of John and Margaret
FPothergill, Quakers.—He received his education under the care of his d-
father, Thomas Hough, in Cheshire, and at Sedburgh, in this county. his
apprenticeship, he removed to London, in 1738, where he studicd two years,and
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then went to Edinburgh: he afterwards visited Leyden, France, and Germany,
:Il:ll ‘i‘? ll;i«io, settled in London. Dr. Fothergill mda wan x:ef”amishlte .mmnen,u ;
h yelcian, a grest encourager of learning, and an excellent Botauist.

works consistiug chiefly of medical pieces, have been printed in 3 vois..8vo. wth
his Life prefixed. He formed a Koh.mul Garden at Upton, .in Eseex, .and
liberally endowed the seminary for young Quakers at Ackworth. The fortune
which he acquired, was computed at 80,000/. He died at his house in Harpuy
Street, Dec. 26, 1780.—Lerson’s Lire, &c. . .

CARR-HALL, (the seat of Mrs Holt) in the township of Ruswarp,
and parish of Whitby ; 3 miles from Whitby.

CARTHORPE, in the parish of Burneston, wapentake of Hallikeld 3

§ miles from Bedale, 7 from Masham, 8} from Ripon.—Pop. 301.

CASTLE-BANK, if h. in the township of Bolton, and parish of
Wensley ; 5} miles from Leyburn.

CASTLE-HOWARD, (the seat of the Earl of Carlisle) extraparochiaf,
in the township of Hinderskelfé, and wapentake of Bulmer; 6
miles _from Malton, 12 from Helmsley, 15.from York and
FEasingwold. C

-- Here was an old Castle called Hinderskelf Castle, built in the reign of Ed-
ward I11. which was burnt down ; and on the place where itstood, the Righs Hem.
Chavles- Hward, Earlof Carlisle, built the present noble and magnificent Seat,
frem a design of Sir John Funbrugh, in the same style as Blenheim- House, and is
esteemed one of the finest mansions in the county. It has a longer kine of front
than - Blenheim-house, its exterior is magnificently grand, and the state apant~
meuts are particuladly distinguished for their princely appearance. The fine
collection of Paintings, Statues, Antique Busts, &c. with which this noble man-
sion ie enriched, must afford the highest gratification to the admirers of the fine
arts; whilst the libemlit? of the noble pruprietor entitles him to the praise and _
gratitude of the public, for allowing them to view this elegant repository of taste
and refinement. The walls are adorned with numerous and excellent paintinge, a
detail of which would be too extensive for our insertion. The paintings of the
three Maries by Annibale Carracci, has always been considered as the great Trea-
sure of Castle-Howard, which for colouring, composition, expression, and pa
and for .every quality that constitutes excellence in the art, cannot be surpaised.:
In the park is a stately obelisk, upwards of 10Q feet high, in the cestre of four
fine avennes, on which is the following inscription : —

Virtuti et fortunza
Johannis Marlburie ducis,
Patrie Europmeque defensoris,
bhoc Saxum,
Admirationi ac fame Sacrum
Carolus comes Carliol. posuit

B} Anno Domini, M.DCC.XI1V,

Near the north front of the house is an extensive sheet of water, which richl
merits the more dignified appellation of a lake ; broad and beautiful, it npm&
over an expanse of many acres ; and not far from it is an elegant monument, erect-
ed by the proprietor of this noble mansion, to commemorate the victories &f our
immortal Nelson : on three sides of it are inscribed in letters of gold, the names of
Awpouxer, Corennaaen, and Taarawcar. The mausoleum, situated in the Park,
is a circular edifice crowned with a dome, and surrounded by a handsome colonade
of doric pillars. Over the vault is an elegant circular chapel, 34 feet in diameter.
The noble family of the Howards have often filled, since the time of Henry VI.
the highest offices of the State, and always made an honourable figure in English

History The present head of thu illustrious family, Frederiek Howard, Eazl of
lCian:lisle, Viscount Dacre,v and Knight of the (imr, w:&:m Msy g’ﬂ !736

eir & nt- iseonnt , € son t
i et s B

CASTLETON, Aam. in ‘the township and parish of Denby, east-
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. division of Langbarugh; 9 miles from Guisbrough, 12 from

8tokesley, 14 from Whitby.

; Castleton anpears to have been so called, from an ancient castle which stood
Vere; and of which there are still some evident remaine ; but at what period this
fortification, which seems to have heen of a circular form, was erected, our ac-

*_counts are silent.—GRrAves. It is now the principel place in Danby-Dale,

CATGILL-HALL, £, k. in the township and parish of Danby-Wiske;

3} miles from Northallerion,

CATTERICK. a post and parish-town, in the wapentake of Hang-

. East; § miles from Richmond, 7 from Bedale, 13 from North-

allerton, |5 from Darlington, (Dur.) and Gretabridge, 17 from
Yarm, 21 from Bishbpauckland, (Dur.) 39 from York.—Pop.
561. The Church is a vicarage, in the deanry of Catterick, diocese
of Chester, dedicated tp St, Anne, value, 25!, 2s. }d. Patron,
the King.

1t Is a place of great antiquity, and was unquestionably a Roman city. Here
the Roman read, the great Ermime Séreet (which in Saxon signifies a military
way) crossed the river. The first cohort of the Thracians was garri beré
when }irus Lapus was Propreetor of Britain.  Catterick is called Cattaractonism
and Cateracton by Ptolemy, and Cataracta by Bede : the former of which confers
po small honor an it, in his second book of geography, from thence taking an ob-

.sergation of the posture of the heavens, describing the 24th paralle! through this
place, and making it diztant from the equator fifty-seven degrees. Cardo supposes
this place to have Leen honoured with en academy for the study of the sciences,
and &lt, he thinks, the high mountain mentioned by Camdesn and other authors,

+ was the place et apart for astronomical obeervations.—Arcrzor. He considers
\Burgh to have been the quarter including the Mint; Thornbrough the station ;
and the limits of the city from the village to the bridge. But whatever the Roman

- city was, it has now, ax Camden obzerves, nothing great but the memory of what
it once was, having been totally destroyed by the Danes; and the modern Cat~
‘terick .is now only a village. ¢ Keterick,” saya Leland, “ is now a very poor
town.” Here is an hospital for 6 peor widows, and teaching poor children, found-
ed and endowed in 1658, by the Rev,  Saydule—present value. 43/, perannum,

CATTERICK-BRIDGE and INN, in the township of Brough,

and parish of Catterick; 1 mile north from Catterick.

Of this place Dr. #hitaker observes,  that whereas Camden understands
by the vicus juxta Catavactum, avillage near the Catsract, I should conceive that
he means the village near the Roman Cataractonium, which was certainly by the
present bridge ; and that the village m ant by Bede is the modern town of Cat~
terick, which, from the site of the church, I conceive to have been the Saxon

, town.” Upon the south-end of this bridge was formerly a Chapel or Oratory,
where, as tradition tells ue, Mass was said every day at eleven o’cloek for the
_benefit of Travellers. By whom or at what time it was founded is not said or
known. Ag iment it is used as a coal magazine for the adjacent Inn.—GRrosz.

CATTO, f.A. in the township of Landmoth, and parish of Leak ; 4-

miles from Northallerton, 6} from Thirsk. ,

CATTON. in the parish of Topcliffe, wapentake of Birdforth; §

miles from Thirsk, 8 from Ripon.—Pop. 99.
CAWTHORNE, 2 f, h. in the township of Croptan-with-Cawthorne,
%a.ri;h 1_)! Middletgn, wapentake of Pickering-Lythe ; 4 miles from
ickering,
CAWTON, in the parish of Gilling, wapentake of Rydale; 6 miles
from Helmsley, 9 from Kirbymoorside.—Pop. 105,

CAYTON, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Pickering-Lythe; 4

wiles frem Scarborough, 19 from Piokering.—Pop. including
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Killerby and Deepdale 447. Here is a Chapel dedicated to St,
Leonn{!

CHAPEL:HILL, J. A. in the township of East-Tanfleld, and parish
of Kirklington ; 6 miles from Ripon, 7 from Bedale.

From the name of this house, and a ficld adjoining, cplled to this day Chapele
garth, and the foundations of 2 building, we are led to suppose there has, at

. some distant period, heen a Chapel of ease here.

CITTADILLA, p.h. in the township of Brompton-upon-Swale,
and parish of Easby; 2 miles from Catterick, 3 from Richmond,
11 from Nortballerton.

CLAXTON, in the parish of Bossall, wapentake of Bulmer; 8 miles
from York, 11 from Maiton, 13 from Easingwold.—Pop. 135.
CLEASBY, a parish-town. in the wapentake of Gilling-Eest; §
miles from Darlington, (Dur) 11 from Richmond, 47 from York.—
Pop. 147. The Church is a perpetual curacy, in the deanry of
Richmond, diocese of Chester, Patron, the Dean and Chapter

of Ripon. '

Inpt:isobscnmvﬂhge was bomn in 1850, Dr. JoAn Rodinsen, a distinguished
prelate and statesman. He wa« educated at Oriel College, Oxford—In 1710 he
was preferred to the bishopric of Bristol, and while in that situation plenipoten-

. tu\rg at the treaty of Utrecgyt; in 1714 translated to the see of London, which he
held till April 1723, when he died at Fulham. At this place of bis nativity, he
built the Chapel, Parsonage bouse, snd added a echool. Tbe latter is ed
with 16 acres of land, valued at 20 or 22L. per anpum, for teaching 6 boys.

CLEAVES, f. h.in the township of Sutton-under-W hitestonecliff,
and parish of Feliskirk ; 3} miles from Thirsk.

CLEVELAND-PORT, formerly CARGOFLEET, in the town-
ghip and parish of Orwesby, west-division of Langbarugh ; 8} miles
from Guisbrough, 9 from Stokesley and Stockton.

From this-sma)l port, which is situated upon the River Tees, about two thirds
of the produce of Cleveland are shipped and sent coastwise to London, Newcastle,
and other markets. The trade earried on here averages nearly 1000l per day

throughout the year.—Guavas. ,

CLIFFKE, in the parish of Manfield, wapentake of Gilling-West;
(the seat of Henry Witham, Esq.) 6 miles from Darlington, (Dur.)
10 from Richmond, 11 from Barnardcastle, (Dur.)

CLIFTON, in the parishes of St. Michael-le-Belfrey and St. Olave,
York, wapentake of Bulmer, liberty of St. Peter, adjoins the
north side of York.——Pop. 269.—S8t. Peter’s, 200, total, 489.

CLIFTON, a township, in the parish of Thornton-Watlas, wapen-
take of Hang-East.—Pop. 50. In this township and parish is -

CLIFTON-CASTLE, (the seat of Timothy Hutton, Beq.) 2} miles
from lgasham, 4} from Bedale. vho had | h‘

in the reign of Edward II. Gegffrzy-ie-Scrope, W, h .
these parts, obtained license to make a cﬁtle of his house ata(t?l?moh-uptm— re,
and also for free warren in all his demesne lands at Clifton, &c.—Dvep. Barox.

_"This castle has long since ceased to exist, and the last remains were removed by’
the present proprietor in 1802, to make room for the present elegant modem:

MARsion.
TLIFTON-LODGE, (the seat of Jokn Clerveauz Chaytor, Esq.)
ACLINTS, (the seat of Thomas Errington, Esq.) in the township apd
parieh of Marske ; 5.miles from Richmond and Reeth,

BRI TS B CL -
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N The time when this mansion was built we are not scquainted with, hat from
its appearance it is doubtless of great anuqm it formerly belonged to the
hmnl of Willans, from whom it passed ihthun!s, and from them to the

r Charles Turner, who sold it to Mﬂes Suplewn, Esq. of whom the present
ropnewr urchased it.—Aneuvs’viEws.

UGH?I‘O N, in the perish of Scalby, wapentske of Pickering-
L the : 5 miles from Scarborough, 16 from Whithy.—Pep. 366.
CLOUGHI‘ON-NEWLANDS a few f. h. in the township of

Cloughton.

CLOWBECK, f. k. in the township and perish of Manfield ; 6 miles
from Darlmgton, (Dur.)

COAT-BANK-LODGE, (the seat of D’Oyley Saunders, Esq.) in the
townsbip and parish of Egton; miles from Whitby.

COATHAM EAST in the township and parish of Kirkleatham,
east-division of Langbarugh 3 } @ mile from Redear, 6 miles from
Guisbrough, 14 from Stokesley and Stockton, (Dnr ) 24 from
Whitby. It consists of one row of houses or half street, facjng
the sea, about a quarter of a mile long, and was formerly a small
Fishing-Town. Few people now resort to it for the purpose of
bathing, in consequence of its being a greater distance from the
sea than Redcar. It has, however, one Inn for the reception of
Company, some Lodgmg-bouses, and two Bathing-machines. °

OOATHAM WEST, ~similarly situsted as East-Coatham, only
nearer the Tees. It is a small hamlet, consisting of a few fartns.

COBSHAW, f. A in the township ofLangthome, and parish’ of
Bedale 3 2 miles from Bedale.

COCK-BUSH f. h. in the township and perish of Arncliffe ; 8 mﬂes
from Northalierton and 8tokesley.

COCK-MILL, f. A and Mill, in the township of Kausker-w:t,h-
Stainsacre, and parish of Wlntby 5 11 mile from Whitby. .
COCKAN, comprising a few houses, in the township of Bransdale
west-side, parish of Kirbymoowide, wapentake of Rydale; 10

miles from Kirbymoorside. Here is a Chapel of ease.

COGDEN-HALL, (the seat of Mutthew Whitelock, Esq.) in the
township of Grlnton-mth-Whimldo and parish of Gﬂnton, 13
mile from Reeth, 7 from Leyburn,

COLBURN, in the perish of Catterick, wapentake of Hang-East 3
3 miles from Richmond and Cntterick.—-Pop. 133. -

COLD-CAM., 2 f. A. in the township of Byland-Membris, and parish.
of Low-Kiiburn ; 6 miles from Helmsley, 8 from Tlmsk

COLD-KIRKBY, see Kirkby-Cold. .

COLEBY, Aam. in the township of Helmington, and parish of
Slznnton, west-division of Langbarugh ; 6 miles from Stokesley.,

COLDWELL, see Caldwell. K

COLTON or OOULTON inthepmdl of Hovingham, wapentake
of Rydale; 7 miles from Helmsley, 9 from Knrhymoonide, 12
from Malton.—Pop. 112.

COMBOOTS, kam, in the township and parish of Scalby ; § miles
from Sentborough, 15 from Pwkering and Whitby.

COMMONDALE, a township, in the parish of Guishrongh, east-
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division of Langbarugh ; 5 miles from Guisbrough, 9 from Siokes-
Jey, 16 from Whitby.—Pop. 88.
" This Is a narrow secluded Vale, forming the southern boundary of the parish ;
" gt which place there was formerly an hermitage or cell to the priory of Guis-
~ Graves.

YSTHORPE, in the parish of Barton, wapentake of Bulmer;

5 miles from Malton, 14 from Easingwold, 16 from York.—Pop.
160,

CORNBROUGH, a township, in the parish of Sherif-Hutton, wa-

e of Bulmer; 7 miles from Easingwold, 9} from York, 13

' Malton.—Pop. 63.

CORN-PARK, in township of Cotherston, and parish of Ro-
maldkirk ; 63 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) 9} from Richmond.

©OTCLIFFE, f. k. and Wood, (extraparochial,) in the townsbip of
Landmoth, wapentake and liberty of Allertonshire; 4} miles from
Northallerton, 6 from Thirsk.

COTESCUE, (the seat of Mrs Smith,) in the townships of Coverbam
and Agglethorpe, and parish of Coverham; 1} mile from Middle-

.. bam, 3 from Leyburn.

COTHERSTON, in the parish of Romaldkirk, wapentake of Gilling-
. West, liberty of Richmondshire; 3 miles from Barnardcastle,
- (Dur.) 6 from Gretabridge, 18 from Richmond.—Pop. 706.

COTTERDALE, Aham. in the township of High Abbotside, and
parish of Aysgarth ; 4 miles from Hawes, 9 from Askrigg.

COUNTERSIDE, ham. in the township of Bainbrfidge;hnnd perish of
Aysgarth, wapentake of Hang-West, liberty of Richmondshires
3 fniles from Askrigg, and Hawes, 15 from Leyburn.

COVERBRIDGE, jgglz and Public-House, a bridge over the cover,
in the township of East-Witton, within, and parish of East-Witton;
2 miles from Middleham. .

COVERHEAD, f. k. in the township of Carlton-high-dale, and parish
of Coverham; 11 miles from Middieham.

COVERHAM, ‘a parish in the wapentake of Hang-West, liberty of
Richmondshire ; 2 miles from Middlebam, 3 from Leyburn, 48
from Y ork.—Pop. including Agglethorpe, 131, which being united,
form a township. The Charch is a perpetual curacy, dedicated to

“the Holy Trinity, in the deanry of Catterick, diocese of Chester,
value, p. r. 180/, Patron, Sir James Graham, Bart. At a short:
distance from the church are the small remains of

COVERHAM-ABBEY, which stands on the north-side of the rapid
brook of Cover, which gives name io the dale, .

This Abbey was built by Radulphus, son of Robert Fitz Ralph, for white

Canons of the monstrantensian order, about the year 1213, who endowed it
with several lands and tenements. He died in 1251, and was buried here. Fhe

house is stiled a , by Leland, but Tanner says it-was an Abbey. - By an
mm&: :;m ilbyuw :h% over the door of M:;’ Lister’s ﬁ,ﬁu
en, it 8; at thi was either thoroughly repair-
edormhﬂllm&em&ﬁe ofﬁng‘ Henry VII. Itb’mthe
date of 1501, and states the Abhot « finished this house.” In building some ott~
houses, wererdug up, some years since, two statues larger than life, habited in the
asmour of knights-templars, in & cumbent posture, ornamented with ﬂohm
- animals, butin a very rude style,—Lxranp— DuepaLe—GALrs—TANNER.
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statues, in 1812, were placed -on.each side of the door leading into the garden of
Mrs Lister, and which aresaid to be the figures of the founder of the abbey, and
Robert Fitzrandolph, founder of Middleham-Castle. 1ts revenues at the time of
the dissolution, 15638, amonnted to 160/ 18s. 3d. clesr. It was sold in 15587, to
Humphry Orme, for 419¢. 15s.

COWFOLD-HOUSE, f. 4, in the townships of Exelby, Leeming,.
and Newton, and parish of Burneston; 2} miles from Bedale.

COWLING, in the township of Burrell, and parish of Bedale, wa-
El:’hke of Hang-East ; liberty of Richmondshire; 2 miles from

ale; 5 from Masbam, 10 from Richmond.

COWSBY, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Birdforth; 7 miles
from Thirsk, 9 from Northallerton, 30 from York.—Pop. 91.
The Church, peculiar, is a rectory. dedicated to St. Michael, in the

" deanry of Cleveland, value, $5.. 1ls. 0id. p. r. 65l Patron,
Thomas Alston, Esq. Here is an Hospital for decayed Tennangs,
vested in the Alston family, but when or by whom founded is un-
certain. Lord Crew is the supposed founder.

COWTON, EAST, or LONG, a parish-town, in the wapeniake of

" 'Gilling-East ; 8 miles from Northallerton and Richmond, 9
from Darlington, (Dur.) 40 from York.—Pop. 338. The Church_
is a vicarage, dedicated to St. Mary, in the deanry of Richmond,
diocese of Chester, value, 34/ 6s. 10id. Patrons, the Trustees of
St. John's Hospital, Kirkby-Ravensworth.

COWTON-GRANGE, f. k. in the township of Moulton, and parish
of Middleton-Tyas ; 8 miles from Northallerten, 9 from Darling-
ton. (Dur.) ’ )

COWTON, NORTH, in the parish of Gilling, wapentake of Gilling-
East, liberty of Richmondshire; 8 miles from Richmond, 8} from
Northallerton, 10 from Darlington, (Dur.)—Pop. 270.

COWTON, SOUTH, in the parish of Gilling. wapentake of Gilling- -

Kast ; 8 miles from Northallerton and Richmond, 11 from
Darlington, (Dur.)—Pop. 148. The Church is a perpetual curacy,
dedicated to St. Mary, under Gilling, value, p. . 33/ ‘
These three villages are nearly half a mile from each other.

COXWOLD, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Birdforth ; 5 miles
from Easingwold, 8 from Helmsley, 9 from Thirsk, 18 fromx
York.—Population 348. The Church is a tual curacy, dedi-
cated to St. Michael, in the deanry of Bulmer, gatron, T. E. W.
Belusyse, Esq. and Lady Charlotte his Wife.

It is a small hand=ome light gothic building, with an octagonal tower, the in-
side of which is decorated with several handsome marble momlmemgmcuhrl
of the Fauconberg family. Near to the church is a Free-Grammar w-
ed in 1603, by Sir Jobn Harte, Knight, Citizen and Alderman of London. Here
is alio a neat Houpital founded in 1696 by Thomas, Earl of Fauconberg, for ten
poor men; who are provided with blue coats every two years, with an annual sti-
pend, and 5/. a year laid out in coals for theirnse ; slso another Hospital for eight
poor women, who each receive 40s. and eight bushels of eo-hlnlunlll:y, and flve

of cloth every two years. This was also founded by one of the Fauconberg
family, but at what time is unknown. In 1760, the facetious
was presented to this curacy hy Lord Fauconberg.
CRACKPOT, 2 or 3 ha. in the township, and parish of Grinton,
wapentake of Hang-West ; § miles from Reeth.
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“ At Crackpot were dug up, in the 1800, several pieces of iron arewur,
with several battle axes (I xven’::e)ofthe same metal ; and about a
mile from this place is a valley, called the bloody vale, the scene unquestionably
of & sanguinary combat at some remote period.”’—Wunrraxzs. Crackpotisabout

3 miles westward of the encampment, called Maiden-Castle. Isp.
CRAGG, f. A in the township of Lartington, and parish of

Romaldkirk ; 5 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) 6 from Greta-

bridge.

'CRAKE, (a part of the Biskopric of Durham) a parish-town, in the
wapentake of Bulmer; 2} miles from Kasingwold, 12 from
Helmsley and York.—Pop. 538. It is a rectory within the arch-

- deaconry and peculiar jurisdiction of the Dean and Chapter of
Durham, value, 10l dedicated to St. Cuthbert, Patron, the Bishop
of Dm'lm.m685 , who is also Lord of the Manor.

In 685, King Egfridus and Theodore Arohbishop of Canierbury, gave to S,

Cuthbert thil‘:i?fige and several lands about it, that hedmight, going sgd mm:-
ing from York, have a place to rest at; who here built a monastery, nota vestige
of which is now to be seen. Here are also the remains of an ancient castle, but
by whom built we have not the least information, although Drake supposes it to
have been & Castrum exploratorum of the Romans, and certainly no place couMd
have been better chosen for that purpose. The little that rerains of this ancient
structure is now used as a farm-house and out-offices. It was given by King
Egbright to the 5th Cuthbert.—Smuron DunEin.~Draxr.

-CRAKEHALL, ham. in the township of Elmyre with Crakehall, and
parish of Topcliffe, wapentake of Birdforth ; 6 miles from Thirsk,
8 from Ripon.—Pop. included in Elmyre,

CRAKEHALL, in the parish of Bedale, wapentake of Hang-East;
(the seat of Henry Percy Pulleine, Esq.) 2 miles from Bedale, 10
from Richmond.—Pop. 550.

CRAKEHA LL, LITTLE, in the township of Crakeball, and only
separated from it by a small rivulet.

CRAMBE, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Bulmer; 6} miles
from Malton, 114} from York, 15 from Essingwold.—Pop. 152,
The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to §t. Michael, in the
of Bulmer, value, $9. 1s. 8d. p. r. #127L. 12s. 4d. Patron, the Arch-
bishop of York. .

CRATHORNE, a parish-town, in the west-division of Langbarugh
4 miles from Yarm, 6 from Stokesley, 12 from Northallerton, 38
from York.—Pop. 330. The Church is a rectory, dedicated to
All-Saint’s, value, 10L 11s. 10jd. in the deanry of Cleveland,
Patron, the Hon. Mrs Cockayne. Here is a Roman Catholic

1,

It is the seat ¢f George Crathorne, Esg. lineally descended from a family
that have been resident here ever since the conquest, and bore asa crest, a Crake
or Orow.—GRraves,

CRAVEN-HOLME, f. A. in the township of Bainbridge, and parich
of Aysgarth; 1} mile from Askrigg, 4} from Hawes.

CROFT, e parish-town, in the wapentake of Gilling-East; (a seaf of
William Chaytor, Esq.) 4 miles from Darlington, (Dur.) 10 from
Richmond, 12 from Northallerton, 44 from York.—Pop. 388.
The Charch is a rectory, dedicated to St. Petér, value, 214 8s, 4d,

D
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tn the deanry of Richmond, diocese of Chesier, Patron, the

King. -

. In the church is an altar-tomb to one of the Milbanks, of Halnaby, and
another to the Clavereux, ancestors of the Chaytors. Croft is situated upon the
River Tees, over which it has a handsome bridge into the County of Durham,
About half a mile west of the village iz a mineral spring, to which, ing the
summer months, many people resort. Here is a good Jnn and several new lodg-
ing-houses built for the accommodation of visitors. A Treatise on these
u'-!:rers was published by Dr. Cayley a few years ago. In this village was bora
about the year 1635, Dr. Thomas Burneit, & most ingenious and ledrned writer,
the author of the “ Theory of the Earth,” &c. His early edueation he received at
the Free Grammar-School of Northallerton, from whence he was removed in 1651,
to Clare-hall, Cambridge, where he had Dr. Tillotson for his tuter, bit afterwards
removed to Christ’s College, where he was chosen Fellow, and took his degree of
M. A. in 1658. In 1685 he was appointed Master of the Charter House; in
which situation he opposed the attempt of James II. to place a Papist on the
Foundation of that }rouse. After the revolution he was made Chaplain to the

: Kin%nnd Clerk of the Closet. - He died in 1715.—CnaLmgns.

CRONKLEY, f.A. in the township of Lunedale, and parish of

Romaldkirk ; 13 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) - -
CROPTON, in the township of Cropton-with-Cawthorne, and parish
of Middleton, wapentake of Pickering-Lythe; 4 miles from
Pickering, 5§ from Kirbymoorside, 13 from Malton.—Pop. inclu-
ding Cawthorne, 343. Here is a Chapel of ease to Middleton.
¢ Within about 200 yards of this chapel,” says Young in his History of
‘Whitby, “is a round Fort, on a projecting point of the heights where the chapel
and chapel-yard are situated. It looks like a very large sumuine, and measurgs
150 feet over, including the height of its sloping sides, and the depth of a trench
that encircles its base. Its height may exceed 30 feet. The approaches towards
it from the chapel, have been altered, an old Hall, the ruins of which are still
discernible, having stood in that direction; from which the fort is called Hall-
gerth-hill, ; but in the opposite direction, towards the valley, we find a double
ditch of great strength, sweeping round the point of the hill, and another ditch
round the foot of the hill, defending the approach from the plain. These camps
or forts are decicedly British.” This Hall or Castle, as Drake calls i:'a is within
& quarter of a mile of several Roman camps, ene of which is si upon the
Roman road running from Camulodunum to Dunsley, a road which he appears to

. have taken some pains to discover.

CROSBY, a township. in the parish of Leak, wapentake of Aller-
~ tonshire; 3 miles from Northallerton, 63 from Thirsk.—Pop.-39.
CROSBY-COTE, 2f, 4. in the township of Thornton-le-beans, and

. parish of Northallerton; 3 miles from Northallerton.

CROSBY-HALL, (the seat of the Rev. William Dent) in the town-
ship of Thornion-le-beans, and parish of North-Otterington; 2%
wiles from Northallerton, 7} from Thirsk.

CROSSETT, 2 or 3 f. k. in the township of Bilsdale-Midcable, and
parish of Helmsley ; 8 miles from Helmsley, 12 from Stokesley.
CROSS-HOUSE, f. k. in the township of Barton-with-Walden, and

parish of Aysgarth; 10% miles from Leyburn.

CROSS-BUTTS, f. k. in the township of Ruswarp, and perish of
Whithy ; 2 miles from W hitby. :

CROSSTHWAITE, f. & in the township of Holwick, and parish of
Romaldkirk ; 11 weiles from Barpardci=tle b))

€UNDALL, a parish-town, in the wapentaks oi Liullikeld 5 43 mwiles
from Boroughbridge, 7 from Thirsk, b irow Kipon, 18 from
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York.—Pop. inclading Leckby, 170. The Church, a mean
edifice, situated about } of a mile north of the village, is a perpe-
tual curacy, dedicated to St. Mary and All-Saints, in the deanry
of Boroughbridge, diocese of Chester, velue, p. r. 30/. Patron,
Mrs Prest. In Bacon, it is styled a vicarage in charge, valued at
3l Gs. 8d. D

DALBY, a parish, in the wapentake of Bulmer; 9 wiles from Ea-
singwold, 13 from Malton, 15 from York.—Pop. inclading
Skewsby, 169. The Church is a rectory, dedicated to St. Mary,
%:.m the deanry of Bulmer, value, }5l. ls. 0id. Patron, Mrs Ley-

rne.

DALBY, 3f. k. in the township and parish of Thornton, wapentake
of Pickering-Lythe ; 5 miles from Pickering.

DALE-END, ham. in the township and parish of Danby, wapentake
of Langbaragh ; 9; miles frem Guisbrough, 12} from Whitby.
DALE-HOUSE, f. k. in the township of Borrowby, and parish of

Lytbe; 13 miles from Whitby and Guisbrough,

DALE-HOUSE MILL, in the township and parish of Hinderwell 5
11 miles from Whitby, 13 from Guisbrough.

DALE-TOWN, in the parish of Hawnby, wapentake of Birdforth ;
6 miles from Helmsley, 9 from Thirsk.—Pop: 68.

DALTON, in the parish of Topcliffe, wapentake of Birdforth; §
miles from Thirsk, 7 from Ripon.—Pop. 235.

DALTON, in the parish of Kirkby-Ravengworth, wapentake of Gil-
ling-West; 6 miles from Richmond, and Gretabridge, 9 from
Barnardcastle, (Dur.)—Pop. 265. .

DALTON-UPON-TEES, in the parish of Croft, wapentake of Gil-
ling-East, liberty of St. Peter; 5 miles from Darlington, (Dwr.)
10 from Richmond, 1] from Northallerton,—Pop. 167. )

DANBY, a parish, in the east-division of Langberugh; 9 miles from
QGuisbrough, 12 from Whitby, 14 from Stokesley, 42 from Y ork.—
Pop. 1,373." The Charch, a modern edifice, is a perpetual curecy,
in the deanry of Cleveland, value, p. r. $90L Putron, Lord Vis-
count Downe. .

North of the Church, on the brow of a naked hill, of no great elevation, stands
the remains of Danby Castle, supposed to have bean built soon after the conquest,
by Robert de Brus; or mdre probably by Willlam de Latimer, soon after the
reign of Edward II. when .Danby esme to the Latimers by iage with-the
dsuqhter of Robert de Thweng, as the arms of Latimer appear in the armorial

on the North Wall. From the ruins, we are led to conjecture, that the
building has heen extensive ; but can form no just idea of its strength and ancient

grandeur. " A farm-house and its ¢ffices now occupy-a great part of it.—Graves:
~LCaxprs, .

DANBY-BEACON, in the township and parish of Danby; 10}
miles from Guisbrongh and Whitby.

DANBY-HALL, (the seat of Simon Thomas Scroope, Esq.) in the
township and parish of Thornton-Steward 5 2 miles from Middleham,
4} from Leyborn. ’ :

The Scropes qof Danby have survived every other branch of that Qllustrious
‘name,—WHITAKER, :
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DANBY-HILL, (the seat of the Rev. William Cust) in the township
and parish of Danby-Wiske ; 3} miles from Northallerton, 8} from -
Bedale, 134 from Richmond.

DANBY, LITTLE, f.A. in the township of Yafforth, and parish of
Denby-Wiske; 3 miles from Northallerton.

DANBY-LODGE, (the seat of Lord Downe) in the township and
parigh of Danby, east-division of Langbarugh ; 9 miles Guisbrough.
This is a modern built house, and intended merely as a Shooting-
Box. .

DANBY-WISKE, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Gilling-East ;
4 miles from Northallerton, 9 from Bedale, 13} from Richmond,
36 from York.—Pop. 348. The Church is a rectory, in the deanry
of Richmond, diocese of Chester, value, 9/. 3s. 11jd. Patron,
the Rev, William Cust, the present rector.

DANOTTA-HALL, f. h. in the township and parish Kirby-Wiske;
4} miles from Thirsk. ’

DEEPDALE, .. in the township of West-Harlsey, and parish of
Osmotherley.

DEEPDALE, f.k. and cot. in the township of Suffield-coum-Everley,
and parish of Hackness ; 6 miles from Scarborough.

DEEPDALE, 2 f. h. in the township and parish of Cayton, 2} miles
from Scarborough.

DEEPDALE-MILL, in the township of Lartington, end parish of
Romaldkirk ; 1 mile from Barnardcastle, (Dur.)

DEIGHTON, in the parish of Northallerton, wapentake of Aller-
tonshire; 5 miles from Northallerton, 10 from Yarm, 11} from
Darlington, (Dur.)—Pop. 134. Here is a Chapel of ease,

DIDDERSLEY-GRANGE, f. . in the township and parish of Mel-
sonby ; § miles from Richmond, 7 from Darlington, (Dur.)

Didderston or Diddersley-hill, by Bede called Hilfarus Dun, i« memorable
for the dispersion of King Oswin’s army, and the melancholy catastrophe that
succeeded it at Ingethingrumor Gathly. Opposite is another mount of & conical
form, called Clack-hill. King Oswin’s life atoned for his in-auspicious temerity,
by osteasibly appearing to combat Oswin’s army, so exceedingly superior to his
own.—ASCHZOL, vol. X. p. 65.—Capk.

DINSDALE, OVER, in the parish of 8ockburn, (Dur.) wapentake
of Allertonshire; 6 miles from Darlington, (Dur.) 7 from Yarm,
9 from Northallerton.—Pop. 66.

DISHFORTH, in the parish of Topcliffe, wapentake of Hallikeld ;
4 miles from Boroughbridge, 5 from Ripon, 7 from Thirsk.—Pop.
340. The Church is a perpetual curacy, value, p. r. +43L Patron,
the Vicar of Topeliffe.

DOE-PARK-HALL, or LEDGARD-HALL., (the seat of William
Hutchinson, Esq.) in the township of Hunderthwaite, and parish
of Romaldkirk ; 4 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.)

DOWNHOLME, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Hang-West ;
4 miles from Reeth, 4} from Leyburn, 6 from Richmond.—Pop.
including Walburn, 251. The Church is a perpetual cursey,
dedicated to St. Michael, in the desnry of Catterick, diocese “of
Chester, value, 5l 15s. 10d, p. r. +88L. Patron, T. Hutton, Esq.
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DOWTHWAITE-DALE, or HALL, (fke seat of William Shepherd,
Esq.) in the township of Hatton-le-hole, and parish of Lastingham ;
3 miles from Kirbymoorside, 9 from Helmsley.

DROMANBY, GREAT, kam. in the township and perish of Kirkby,
west-division of Langbarugh; 2} miles from Stokesley, 10 from
Guisbrough.

DROMANBY, LITTLE, f. A in the same township and parish; 3
miles from Stokesley.

DRUID'S TEMPLE, in the township of Ilton-with-Pott, and parish
of Mashbam ; 4 miles from Masham. .

This place consists of 8 collection of singularly rude stones, erected at the
expence of William Danby, Esq. of Swinton, upon whoee monrs it is situated.

DUﬁBOGS, f.h. in the townsbip and parish of Lythe; 6 miles
from Whithy. :

DUNCOMBE-PARK, (?he seat of Charles Duncombe, Esq.) in the
townsbip of Rievalx, and parish of Helmsley; } a mile from
Helmsley. *

This noble seat of the Duncombe family was built from a design of Sir John Van-
burgh. “ The character of the building is Doric, the east front is rather heavy,
but the west presents a good specimen of that order. lHere is & noble terrace,
terminated by two handsome circular temples, from which is a most beautiful
prospect. Embossomied in trees appears the noble tower of Helmsley castle, and
near it, oemnionalllxihpeeps forth part of the town; and deep beneath is seen a
beautiful valley, the river Rye winding among hanging woods. On entering
the hall the spectator is struck with the general air of greatness it conveys ; here
is & fine piece of sculpture called the of Alcibiades, waid to be the work of
Myron ;” Dartaway in his description of statuary and sculpture, ssys “ it was
discovered at Monte Ca , and procured by Henry Constantine Jennings, Esq,
who brought it to E: d, and from whom it was traasferred to Mr Duncombe
for a 1000 guineas. [t ranks among the five famous dogs of antiquity.” Here is
also the famous statue called Discobulus, which, says Gilpin, ““is esteemed the
first statute in England. It exhibits on every side the justest proportions, and the
most pleasing attitudes.”  Notwithstanding the prejudice and illiberal
often used against the fame of Sir John Vanburgh as a bailder, he certainly con-
trived to give an air of grandeur to his structures, rarely to be met with.” The
saloon here (now library) may be adduced among others in proofof the assertion,
it possessing an uncommon air of magnificence.” It is 87 feet long, and 20 broad,
thrown into three divisions by ionic columns, and adorned with four antique sta-
tutes of Apollo, Bacchus, Mars, and Mercury, aleo two good busts of Cicero and
Horace. The paintiugs, which are by the first masters, and in the highest esti-
magion, are very numemu;—d:a have been collected with great judgment, and
the easy access to the seeing of them, says Daves, is an honourahle testimony of
the liberal epirit of their present owner. In this splendid collection of paintings
are the seourging of Christ, painted by old Palmer, in successful competition with
Titian; the head of St. Paul by Leonardo de Vinci, estecemed the finest work of
that great painter ; a niagnificent Land-storm, by Nichola Pousin ; and a Candle-
’lli'ﬂt Scene (0ld woman and girl) by Rubens, purchased, it is said, for 1500 guineas,

lovers of poetry will, we presume, feel no small gratiication from the
of the Wﬂl description, (never before printed) by the lgte Rev. Dr.
Drake, to Thotuss Duneombe, Esq. :

Fos sapere, et solos aio bene vivere, quorum
Gma}m!x;- nitidis, fundata peﬂn:'a, villis——HoRran

Attend my muse, inspire the artless strains, S
And len‘:ayawhil; those fayor’d southern plains
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Jadulge no more the Poet’s ra; theme,

‘Where Thames meandring, rolls his silver stream ;

Twicknam’s coo! grot, or Chiswick’s shady bowers,

Or where fam’d Windser rears his royal towers;

Aid me to sing, in these more northern climes,

Groves yet unknown, and scenes untold in rhymes }

0! lend me Denham’s pleasing fire, and skill,

Helmsley shall shin¢ in song like Cooper’s Hill ;

Here art, and nature, join their friendly aid,

Rise in Rotund, or stretch in sylvan shade.

On stately columns see the fabric rise,

. And Babel-like insult th’ impending skies;

Tho’ strong, yet light, tho’ massive, yet not cosrse,

. With all Palladio’s ease, and Vanburgh’s force ;

.. . Within whose walls immortal Shakespeare shines,

Jn ‘Garrick’s* action, and in Hogarth’s lines ;
Th"exfres‘eive features speak the tortur’d breast,
And all the savage tyrant stands confest :

Where Saturn’s statue bids the iron shade

Point the swift minutes, as they rise and fade :
View the long terrace ~tretch’d on either hand,

At whose extremes the Roman Temples stand ;
Here various ohjects in perspective rise,
Burst on the sight, and strike the wond’ring eyes
Extensive groves, that rising by degrees, .
Form a d Circus *midst the slogzmg trees 3
Whilst tmgh the vale the serpentizing flood
Falls in cascades, and murinurs through the wood :
Scenes such as these, not Poussin could design,

- Nor Wotton’s genius form with rule, or line ;
Nature’s chief master-piece ! whoee every grace
No muse could fancy, nor no pencil trace ;

- Such a8 in fabl’d tempe’s fertile plains,
8till shine in song, and live in classic strains.
Mark where in ruins lies the east retreat
Of motley Villierst—once the rich, and great :

He who’erst liv’d in Charles’ careless Court,

"In hours of pleasure, and in scenes of sport ;

‘Whe from his Monarch stole each power to please,
Lull’d in the softmess of that age of ease ;

g:il'ih ev’ry vice, and virtue in %xcgss,

ill in extremes, in plenty, or distress:

Here sunk in ndrmw?and depriv’d of all,
They taw him greatly livé, and meanly fall.
View from yon summit nobler scenes arise,
Romantic scenes, that steal upon the :
Nature’s wild efforts !— where each ruder part
Must charm beyond the rigid rules of art:
Projeeting rocks that o’er the vale suspend,
Along whoee sides the waving woods extend ;
Gloomy recess ! when in that darkling time,
The monkish muse first halted into rhyme ;.
Here suclding Clio chose her silent seat,

. And dawning science fix’d her rude retrest:

Now low in ruins lies the learned pile,}

‘Whose gothic seats ill-omen’d bmﬂ defile,

. Th?r celebrated mmnomek in Richerd I, -
®*{ Rievalx Abbey,
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‘The murm’ring Rye that rolls his streams alsng,

Bemieemnnt:‘moumhcympﬂhyofmng;

While the brown ivy curls its wreaths

And hollow echo dies in solemn sound.

Hail gen’rous youth ! on whom kind heav’n bestows

These seats of solitude, and calm re H

You, who have all Romania’s villas

Yet seen no spot more noble than your own.

Long may the scenes thus wild, without a waste,

Aumse your leisure, and enmloyyourm;

Bid art with nature dignify the place,

To Gothic rudeness, join each attic grace :

See at your word the new Creation spring,

Which some more able Bard in distant times sball sing.
I emereley, Yorkshire, 1740,

DUNSLEY, in the township of Newholme-with-Dunsley. and parish
of Whitby; 3} miles from Whitby, 19 from Guisbrough.—Pop. -
included in Newholme.

This is & small village situated on the bay of Dunwm Sinxs, of Ptolemy, and
st the northern termination of a Roman road, now called by the country people

" Wade’s Causey, which crossed the moore from York, and where it appears pro-

bable there was 2 Roman station, which Young, in his history of Whitby, sp
¢ has stood on the eminence in the middle of the village, where Dundeycm
-was afterwards erected.”” This chapel was destroyed at the dissolution.

E

EARBY, or IRBY, f. k. in the township and parish of West-

. Rounton; 6} miles from Northallerton,

EARBY-LODGE, (the seat of William Hutchinson, Esq.) in the

. township of Newsham, and parish of Kirkby-Ravensworth; 8

. miles from Richmond.

EARSWICK, in the parishes of Strensall and Huntington, wa
take of Bulmer, a pert in the liberty of 8t. Peter; 4 mﬂesgz‘;
York, 12 from Easingwold, 14 from Malton.—Pop. 8t, Pe-
ter’s, 113.

EASBY, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Gilling-West ; (the seat
of Robert Jaques, Esg.) 1 mile from Richmond, 4 from Catterick.—
Pop. 105. The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to 8t. Agatha, in
the deanry of Richmond, diocese of Chester, value, 2L 13s. 4d.
P 1. 178l 8s. 2d. Patron, the King. .

Here is an hospital for four poor women, founded in 173?‘;:‘}; William Smith,
i discovery was

then rector of Melsonby. A very singular Ty in this church
about 1790, of am epitaph * pon the death of Richard Swale, gentleman,” who
died in 1598, It is written in four different languages, Hebrew, Greek, Latin,
and English: “ The circumstances attending the discovery ave not less curious
than the thing iteelf.” Full particulars of which, ind the inscriptions, may be
met with in the Gent’s. Magazine for April 1790—History of Richmond, 4to.
—and Whitaker’s Yorkshire. Near to the parish ehurch are the venerable re-
mains of the: Abbey of St. Agatha, commonly called Easby-Abbey, situated on
the northern banks of the Swale. It.was founded about the year 1152, for Pre-
monstratensian Canons by Roaldus, constahle of Richmond castle, and dedi-rt
to St. Agaths, to which Roger de Mowbray, Alan Bygot, and others wer: *
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factors. Richard & Serope, of Bolton, in the time of Richard 1. gave the Ab-

bot and Convent 150/ per annum for the maintenance of ten Canons, over and

above the number in- the mmstez,r and two secular chaplains; but Whitaker
says he only meditated a donation, for which he obtained a licence that year, It
was valued.a the dissolution at 1114, 17¢. 11d.—Duebare. The last Abbot was

Robert Bampton, who surrendered it in 1535. The site with the possession of the

monastery, was granted for 30 years to Lord Scrope, of Bolton, at an annual rent
of 283L 13s. 11d.; in 1557, it was sold by Philip and Mary to Ralph Gower, of
of Richmond, for 660/. 3s.-4d. the tenure in chief for Knight’s service ; he dying,
bequeathed the same to his son John, who being attainted of high treason, had all

his estates confiscated to the Crown. lu the reign of Elizabeth and James 1. it

was again in possession of the Scropes, of Bolton, and at length was purchased
by Robert Jaques, Esq. for 45,0000,

EASBY, in the parish of Stokesley, west-division of Langbarugh ;
(Easby-Hall, the seat of Robert Champion, Esy.) 3} miles from

. Stokesley, 7 from Guisbrough.—Pop. 124,

EAST-HOLME-HOUSE, f. 4. in the township of Thoraldby, and
parish of Aysgarth; 10 miles from Leybum. ' -

EAST-FIELD, f. k. in the township of Mickleton, and parish of
Romaldkirk ; 7 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.)

EASINGTON, a parish-town, in the east-division of Langbarugh ;
10 miles from Guisbrongh, 12 from Whitby, 18 from Stokesley,
60 from York.—Pop. 507. The Church is a rectory, dedicated
to All-Saints, in the deanry of Cleveland, value, 14. 8s. 6d.
Patron, the King.

EASINGWOLD, a market and parish-town, in the wapentake of
Bulmer; 10 miles from Thirek, 11 from Boroughbridge, 13 from
York and Helmsley, 15 from Ripon, 20 from Malton, 212 from
London.—Market, Friday.—Fairs, July 6, September 26, for
cattle and sheep.—Principal Inns, Rose and Crown, and New-
Inn.—Pop. 1,912. The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to All-
Saints, in the deanry of Bulmer, value, $12. 11s. 0}d. Patron, the

" Bishop of Chester. )

EASTERSIDE, f. 4 in the township of Bilsdale West-side, and

" parisb of Hawnby, wapentake of Birdforth ; 7 miles from Helmsley.

EAST-MOOR, ham. in the township and perish of Helmsley ; 4 miles
from Helmsley, 8 from Kirbymoorside.

EAST-RAW, in the township of Newholme-with-Dunsley, and
parish of Whitby, wapentake of Whitby-Strand ; 2} miles from
Whitby,

EAST-THORPE, 3 A in the township and parish of Appleton-le-
Street, wapentake of Rydale ; (East-Thorpe-House, the residence of
the Rev. — Gatcliffe) 3 miles frum Malton. :

EASTWOOD, . A. in the township and parish of Barningham; 1 mile
from Gretabridge, 4 from Barnardcastle, (Dur.)

EBBERTSON, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Pickering-Lythe;
6 miles from Pickering, 10} from Scarborough, 13 from Malton,
31 from York.—Pop. 505. The Church, peculiar, is a vi
in the deanry of Rydale, value, $5/. 17s. 3id. p. r. 180L Patron,
the Dean of York,
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. Hete la4 handsome rural seat of the Hotham fimily, constructed on the plas
of a Roman villa. On the hill, north-east of the house, beyond the plantations,
are some vestiges of a cave, called by the country people, Elfiwin’s or Elfrid’s
Hole, now almost fil'ed up, over which was once placed, (as some old people now
living ean recollect) a stone, and afterwards a board, with an inscription to the
bollowing purport :—* Alfrid, King of Northumberiand, was wounded in a bloody
battle nigh this dplux-, and was hid in a cave; and from thence he was removed
to Little Driffield, where he died.”> The battle, it is raid, was fought on the west
side of the village, now called the Bloody Field.— You~a.

EDGLLEY, f. . in the township of Burton-with-Walden, and parish
of Aysgarth; 7 miles from Leybnrn,

EDSPONE, GREAT, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Rydale 5
2 miles from Kirbymoorside, 8 from Pickering, 12 from Maiton,
26 from York.—Pop. 156. The Charch is a vicarage, in the
deanry of Rydale, valae, $71. 10a p. r. +140L Patron, George
Dowker, Esq .

Over the south door of the Church is a Saxon Dial with an inscription, simi~
Iar to that at Kirkdale, but not so perfect.—Youne. .

EDSTONE, LITTLE. f. h. a township, in the parish of Sinnington,
wapentake of Rydale; 3 miles from Kirbymoorside, 7 from Pic-
kering, 8 from Helmsley, 10 from Malton. !

EGGLESTONE-ABBEY, in the townehip and parish of Rokeby,
wapentake of Gilling-West ; 2 miles from Gretabridge and Bar-
nardeastle, (Dur.) .

* This Abbey, (which Dugdale and Leland by mistake call a Priory) is situ-
ated u}mn the high cliffs of the Tees, almost opposite to Barnardcastle, was founded
by Ralph de Multon, in the latter end of the reign of Henry II. or beginning of
that of Richard 1. for white Canons, and dedicated to St. Mary and 8t. John
tist. It had revenues to the yearly value of 65(. 5¢. 64. in the whole, and 37..
7s. 2d. clear, TanNeEr—3117, 8s. gd Duapare; and was granted Ind Edward V1. to
Rabert Shelley. The ruins of the Church are in the form of a Cross, and are
considerable ; a part of the house is entire, and now occupied as a farm-house :—
It is now destitute of monuments, but in the time of Lelard, stood * too faix
tumbes of gray marble, in the greater was buried, as I learned, one Syre Rafe
Bowes; and in the lesser, one of the Rokebys.”—BurToN—TANNER— GROSE.

EGTON, a parish-town, in the east-division of Langbaragh ; 6 miles
from Whitby, 14 from Pickering, 15 from Guisbrough, 54 from
York.— Market, Tuesday before Palm-Sunday, and every Tuesday
after May-day Fair, till Tuesday before old Midsumwer-day, and
another Market on Tuesday before old Michaetmas-day, for horses,
cattle, sheep, &c.—Fairs, September 4, Tuesday before Novem-
ber 23, Tuesday before February 14, and Taesday before May

. 13, forhorned cattle, &c. a hiring for S8ervauts, Noyember 5.—Po
1,037. The Charch is a perpetnal caracy, dedicated to St. Hiln{
in the deanry of Cleveland, value, p.r. 30/, Patron, the Archy
bishop of York.

It originally belonged to the Church of Lythe, from which it appears to have
previous to the year 1349, when the present one was consecrated
the Bishop of Damascus at Egton. The market, for which charter was granted,
12th of the reign of William IT1. has now nearly fallen into disuse.

EGTON-BANKS, 4 f. . in the township and parish of Egton, 7
miles from Whithy. .

EGTON-BRIDGE, #am. in the tow nship and parish of Egton, east-

' B
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division of Langbarngh ; (the seat of Rickard Smith, ‘Esq.) 7 miles
from Whitby.

EGTON-GRANGE, f.A. in the township and parish of Egton; 8
miles from Whitby. :

ELAM-HOUSE, f. 4. in the township and parish of Kirklington;
8 miles from Ripon.

ELLERBECK, in the parish of Osmotherley, wapentake of Aller-
tonshire’; 6 miles from Northallerton, 9 from Thirsk, 11 from
Yarm and Stokesley.—Pop, 81.

ELLERBURN, a parish, in the wapentake of Pickering-Lythe ; $
miles from Pickering, 9 from Malton, 19 from Whitby, 27 from
York.—The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to St. Hilda, value,
74 4s. 93d. p.r. +1451, Patron, the Dean of York.

In this parish are two townships, viz. Wilton and Farmanby, nearly one mile
from the parish Church, there being no wtlage of the name of Ellerburn.

ELLERﬁaYr", in the parish of Lythe, east-division of the wapentake
of Langbarugh ; 7 miles from Whitby, 15 from Guisbrough, 23
from Stokesley.—Pop. 80.

ELLERTON, or ELLERTON-ABBEY, in the township of El-
lerton-with-Stainton, and parish of Downholme, wapentake of
Hang-West; 3 miles from Reeth, 8 from Richmond.

Here was a small Priory of Cistertian Nuns, founded, it is supposed, l?
‘Warherus, Chief Steward to the Earl of Richmond, in the time of Henry II. It
was surrendered, 26th Henry VILI. by Johanna the last prioress, and was valued

-~ at 164 10s. 6d. clear—BunrToN. 1t was situated on the south banks of the Swale,
2 little belew the Priory of Marrick, very little of which now remains. The Shell
of the Church is entire. X

ELLERTON-UPON-SWALE, in the parish of Catterick, wapen-
take of Gillihg-Fast; 1 mile from Catterick, 6 from Richmond,
10 from Northallerton.—Pop. 140.

Ellerton iz famous for being the birth-place of Henry Jenkins, who was born
in 1500, and died in 1670, heing then 169 years old. He remembered the battle

. of Flodden Field, being at that time 12 years of age, when he was sent to Northal-
lerton with arrows for the army. In the church-yard of Bolton is a plain stona
pillar, on which is the following inscription on one side of the pedestal.

‘This monument was :
I Erccted bi' nggmBmON of
(3 y
"y YI?ENRY JE| Klggnm
On the other,
HENRY JENKINS,
d in the Churct M tat?g'wg; ith tion

i is a Monumen! il , with an inserj] i
Dr. Thomas Chapman,  memom ¥ pHion write by

ELLINGSTRING, in the parish of Masham, wapentake of 3
East, liberty of St. Peter ; 4 miles from Masham, 6} from Mid-

" dlebam, 9 from Richmond.—Pop. 204.

ELLINGTON, HIGH, in the parish of Masham, 'wapentake of
Hang-East ; 5 miles from Masham, 9 from Richmond.—Pop. 152.

ELLINGTON, LOW, in the township of High-Ellington, and
parish of Masham, wapentake of Hang-East, a part in the liberty
of 8t. Peter; 4 miles from Masham, 63 from Middieham.

ELLINGTHORPE, 2 f. 4. inthe parish of Aldborough, (W. R.)
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e of Bulmer ; 3 miles from Boroughbridge, 7 from Ripon,
10 from Easingwold. Adjoining the principal house is a Presbyte-
rian-Chapel, liberally endowed by the family or ancestors of Lord
Grantley.

ELM YRé. in the townsbip of Elmyre-cum-Crakeball, in the parigh
of Topoliffe, wapentake of Birdforth; 5 miles from Thirsk, 7
from Ripon.—Pop. inclading Crakeball, 78.

ELM-HOUSE, (the seat of Thomas Other, Esq.) in the township of
Redmire, and parish of Wensley ; 4 miles from Leyburn.

ENTERCOMMON, HIGH, p. A and toll-bar, in the township
and parish of Great-Smeaton, wapentake of Gilling-East ; 8 miles
from Northallerton, Darlington, and Yarm.

ENTERCOMMON, LOW, f£. A in the same township and parish.

EPPLEBY, in the parish of Gilling, wapentake of Gilling-West ;
8 miles from Richmond and Darlington.—Pop. 157.

ESKDALESIDE, a township, in the parish of Whitby, wapentake
of Whitby-Strand ; § miles from Whitby, 17 from Pickering.—
Pop. 395.

Here was formerly a Hermitage, but when or by whom it was founded, or at
what time it ceased to be used as such, is not known : it would seem from Young’s
Whithy, that it had been converted into an Ordinary Chapel previous to 1296.
‘The chapel which was called St. John’s, is now in ruins, and in which state it
appears to have been in 1774, when Grose took the view which he has inserted in
his Antiquities, (vol. vi.) and where may be found a full account of the murder of
thc;. Monk at Whitby, which he tells us, gave rise to the building of this chapel.
—Youxa,

RSKEYLITH, «. k. in the township and parish of Arkengarthdale ;
4 miles from Reeth,
ESKLITTS, s k. in the township of Westerdale, and parish of
Stokesley ; 11 miles from Guisbrough, 12 from Stokesley.
ESTON, in the parish of Ormesby, east-division of Langbarugh; 4
miles from Guisbrough, 8 from Stokesley, 8; from Stockton,
(Dur.)=Pop. 272. The Chapel which is ancient, and situated a
- little distance from the village, is a perpetual curacy, value, p. r.
20l. Patron, the Dean of York. .
Above the village is the promontory called Eston-Nah, where a Beacon was
erected during the late wars, commanding a prospect both of rea and land, which
for variety and extent, can be rarely egnalled.—** On the summit of this pro-
,” says Graves in his History of Cleveland, ““there is an ancient encamp-
ment, conjectured to be of Saxon origin, consisting of a double circle of rough
Jooee stunes ; the inner rampart or entrenchment being 150 paces in circumference,
the whole still perfect, except on the north, where a small portion of the circle
;I::I,l’t off by the abruptness of the rock, which on that side is nearly perpendicu-~

EVERLEY, ham. in the township of Suffield-with-Everley, and
parish of Hackness, wapentake of Whitby-Strand , 4} miles from
Scarborengh, 18 from Whitby.—Pop. included in Suffield,

EWE or WETHER-COTE, f. A. in the township of Skiplam, and

ish of Kirkdale ; 4 miles from Kirbymoorside.

EXELBY, in the township of Exelby, Leeming, and Newton,
and parish of Burneston, wapentake of Hallikeld ; 2 miles from
Bedale, 8 from Masham, 9 from Northallerton.—Pop. including

Leeming and Nowton, 562.
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EXELBY-GRANGE, f A. in the same township and parish ; 2§
miles from Bedale.

EYREHOLME, in the parish of Gilling, wa) e of Gilling-
East; 4} miles from Darlington, (Dwr.) 11 from Riehmond, 12

* from Northallerton.—Pop. 177. The Church isa perpetual curacy,
under Gilling, dedicated to St. Mary, value, p. r. 63L. 10s. 4d.

F

FACEBY, a parish-town, in the west-division of -Langbarugh ;.
(Faceby-Lodge, the residence of James Favell, Esq.) 4 miles from
Stokesley, 9 from Yarm, 12 from Northallerton, 39 from York.—
Pop. 178. The Church, which was formerly a donative benefice,

. is a perpetunl curacy, dedicated {o St. Mary Magdalen, in the
deanry of Cleveland, value, p. r. 36/. 16s. Patrons, 'Trustees of
the late George Sutton, Esq. The principal part of the township

. is within the parish of Whorlton. .

FADMOOR, in the parish of Kirbymoorside, wapentake of Rydales
2 miles from Kirbymoorside, 7 from Helmsley, 16 from Malton.—
Pop. 162.

FAGEER-GILL, 3 or 4 A. in the township and parish of Arken-
garthdale; 6 miles from Reeth, .

FALLING-FOSS, s. A. in the township and parish of Sneaton ; 7
miles from Whitby.

FALSGRAVE, inthe parish and borough of Scarborough, wapentake
of Pickering-Lythe ; 1 mile from Scarborough.—Pop. 345.

A fine stream of water is conveyed from this village in channels of hollowed
. stones, to the town of Scarborongh.—HINDERWELL.

FAREHOLME, 2 f, k. in the township of Morton-upon-Swale, and
parish of Ainderby -Steeple; 5 miles from Northallerton.

FARLINGTON, a parish-town in the wapentake of Bulmer; 6
miles from Easingwoid. 10 from York, 13 from Maltou.--Pop. 170,
The Church i# a perpetual curacy, dedicated to St. Leonard, in the
deanry of Balmer, value, +133/. 12s. Patron, the Archbishop of

- York.

FARMANRBY, in the parishes of Ellerburn and Thornton, wapentake
of Pickering-Lythe ; 2} miles from Pickering, $ from Malton, 12
from Whitby.—Pop. 403,

For an account of the hospital, see Thornton which adjoins this place.

- FARNDALE, EAST-SIDE, or HIGH-QUARTER, a township,
in the parish of Lastingham, wapentake of Rydale ; 4 miles from
Kirbymoorside, 10 from Helmsley and Pickering.—Pop. 455.

FARNDALE, WEST-SIDE, or LOW-QUARTER, a township,
in the parish of Kirbymoorside, wapentake of Rydale ; 4 miles-from
Kirbymoorside, 10 from Helmsley and Pickering.—Pop. 213.

FAWCETTS, f.A. in the township of Mickleby, amd parish of
Lythe; 7} miles from Whitby.

FAWDINGTON, in the parish of Cundall, wapentake of Birdforth;
5 miles from Boroughbridge, 6 from Easingwold.—Pop, included
in Bagby. Fawdington is in the constablery of Bagby, but a
township of itself. ‘ '
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FEARBY, in the parish of Masham, wapentake of Hang-East: 2
miles from Masham, 8 from Richmond and Bedale —Pop. 214.
FEETHAM, Aam. in the township of Meibecks, and parish of Grit-

ton ; 3 miles from Reeth.

FEETHAM-HOLME, kam. in the township of Grinton-with-
Whitaside, and parish of Grinton ; 3 miles from Reeth.

FELDOM, 4 f. k. in the township and parish of Marske ; 4 miles
from Richmond, 8 from Reeth.

FELISKIRK, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Birdforth ; 3 miles
from Thirsk, 11 from Helmsley, 13 from Kasingwold, 26 from
York.—Pop. 113. The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to St.
Felix, in the deanry of Bulmér, value, 10l Patron the Archbishop
of York.

FENCOTE, GREAT, in the township and parish of Kirkby-Flee-
tham, wn'fentake of Hang-East; 4 miles from Bedale, 10 from
Richmond.

FENCOTE, LITTLE, in the same township and parish,

FIELDS, LOW, § f. h. in the township and perish of Kirkby-
Flectbam, wapentake of Hang-Fast; 3 miles from Catterick, 8

- from Bedale, 9 from Richmond.

FI1ELD-HOUSE, (the seat of Christopher Richardson, Esq.) in the
township of Ruswarp, and parish of Whitby ; 2 miles from Whitby,

FILEY, a parish-town and township, in the wapentakes of Pickering-
Lytbe and Dickering (E. R.); 8 miles from Scarborough, 9 from
Bridlington, 18 from Driffield, 39 from York. The Church,

- (which with a f. A. ure the only perts in the North-Riding) is a
perpetual caracy, dedicated to St. Oswald, in the deanry of Dic-
" kering, value, p. r. 120l. Patron, Humphrey Osbaldeston, Esq.
Filey is a small fishing town, south-east of Scarborough. It is particuiarly
celebrated for its excellent fish andlobsters. The sands, which sweep ronnd a
beautifuily curved bay of four or five miles in extent, are hounded on the north
by a remarkable ridge of rocks, projecting nearly half 8 mile into the sea, and
-distinguished by the name of Filey-Bridge, and thought.to resemble the cele-+
brated Mole of Tangier in Africa. Their southern limit is » stupendous rauge of
chalk-cliffs, running onward to Flamborough Head.

FINGALL, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Hang-West; §
miles from Leyburn and Middleham 7 from Bedale.—Pop. 126,
The Church is a rectory, dedicated to St. Andrew, in the deanry’
of Catterick, diocese of Chester, value, 18/, 18s. 4d. Patron, the
Rev. Christopher Wyville,

FIRBY, in the parish of Bedale, wapentake of Hang-Fast; 1 mile
from Bedale, 6 from Masham, 9 from Northallerton.—Pop. 76,
FIRBY-GRANGE, kam. in the township of Firby, and parish of

Bedale, wapentake of Hang-East; ] mile from Bedale.

FISHER’'S-LODGE, s. k. in the township and parish of Tanfield; 7
miles from Ripon, 5 from Masham. -

FLASK-INN, in the township and parish of Fylingdale; 9 miles
from Whitby, 11 from Scarborough.

FLAWITH, in the parish of Alne, wapeniake of Bulmer, librg
of St. Peter; § miles from Easingwold and Boroughbridge,
from York.—Pop. 94.
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FLAXTON, in the parishes of Bassall and Foston, wapenéake of
Bulmer, a part in the liberty of 8t. Peter; 9 miles from York, 9}
from Malton, 11 from Easingwold.—Pop. 299. Here is a Chapel
to Bossall. -

FLEETHAM, in the parish of Kirkby-Fleetham, in the wapentake of
Hang-East; 5 miles from Bedale, 9 from Richmond.—Pop. 566.

FLEETHAM, KIRKBY, a parish, in the wapentake of Hang-
East ; (Kirkby-Hall, the seat of Mrs Lawrence) § miles from Bedale,
8 from Richmond. The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to S§t.
Mary, in the deanry of Catterick, diocese of Chester, value, 9L
18s. 2d. p.r. *147l. 17s. 6d. Patron, the King.

FLEENSOP, kam. in the township of Carlton-high-dale, and parish
of Coverham, wapentake of Hang-West ; 7 miles from Middlebam.

FLUL'S HOUSE, f. A. in the township and parish of East-Witton-

- within, 3 miles from Middleham.

FOOLRICE, kam. in the townships and .parishes of Bransby and
Whenby, wepentake of Bnlmer; 7 miles from Easingwold, 12
from Malton, 14 from York.

FORCETT, in the parish of Gilling, wapentake of Gilling-West ;
(Forcett-Hall, late the seat of Charles Mitehell, Esq.) 7 miles from
Richmond, 8 from Darlington, (Dur.) 10 from Barbardcastle,
(Dur.)—Pop. 86. The Church isa perpetual curacy, dedicated to
8t. Cuthbert, value, p. r. +38L Patron, the Vicar of Gilling.

FOSSDALE f. A. in the township of High-Abbotside, and parish of
Aysgarth ; 1} mile from Hawes.

FOSTON, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Bulmer; 7} miles
from Malton, 11 from York, 13 from Easingwold.—Pop. 91.
The Church is a rectory, dedicated to All-Saints, in the deanry
of Bulmer, value, 14/. Patron, the King.

FOXBERRY, f. k. in the township of Caldwell, and parish of 8t. Jobn
Stanwick; 7 miles from Richmond.

FOXHALL, p. h. in the township of Ravensworth, aud parish of
Kirkby-Ravemsworth ; 6 miles from Richmond, 7 from Catterick.

FOXTON, kam. in the township of Thimbleby, and parish of Sigston,
wapentake of Allertonshire ; 5 miles from Northallerton. -

FOXTON, ham. in the townshigand parish of Crathorne, wapentake
of Langbarugh; 4 miles fom Yarm.

FREEBURGH-HILL, in the township of Moorsholme, and parish
of Skelton ; 4 miles from Skelton,

Canjectured by some to have been a Druidical work. Tt is a detached moun-
tain of & conical form, having a natural rock on its top now worked as a quarry.—

GRrAVEs,

FREMINGTON, in the township of Reeth, and parish of Grinton,
wapeniake of Gilling-West ; (4. D. Hall, the residence of G. Leigh
Heck, Esq.) | mile from Reeth, 9 from Richmond,

. Here is-a School founded in 1643, by Mr Alderman James Hutchinson of
York, and endowed by him with a salary of about 70.. per annum, arising from
ﬁs at Gate-Fulford and Fremington ; to be kep¢ in repair by the master of the
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FRITH, 2 A. in the township of Muker, and parish of Grinton ; ¥
miles from Askrigg, 14 from Reeth.

FRYOP, GREAT and LITTLE, 2 dales, in the township and
parish of Danby, east-division of Langharugh ; 11 milles from Guis-
brough, 15 from Stokesley.

FRYTON, in the parish of Hovingham, wapentake of Rydale; 7}
miles from Malton, 9 from Helmsley and Kirbymoorside.—Pop. 62.

FYLINGDALE, a dale, and parish, in the wapentake of Whitby-
Strand; 7 miles from Whitby, 14 from Scarborough, 16 fiom
Pickering, 43 from York.—Pop. 61. The Church of Fyling iz a
per curacy, dedicated to 8t. Stephen, in the deanry of Cleve-
land, value, p.r. +106L. Patron, the Archbishop of York.

FYLING-HALL, f. A in the township and parish of Fylingdale ; 7

- miles from Whitby.

This was formerly the seat of Sir Hugh Cholmley, which he sold te
bis kinsman, Sir John ,in 1634, and in which family it now remains.

G

‘GAILES, in the perish of Kirkby-Ravensworth, wapentake of Gil-
ling-West; 5 wiles from Richmond, 7 from Gretabridge, 10 from
Barnardcastle, (Dur.)—Pop. 218.

GALLOW.GREEN, &. k. in the township and parish of Sneaton ;
2 miles from Whitby.

GALLOW.HEADS, f. h. in the township of Marton, and parish of
Sinnington ; 3 miles from Pickering.

GAMMERSGILL, kam. in the township of Carlton-high-dale, and

rish of Coverham, wapentake of Hang-West; 6} miles from
ﬁiddleham, 73 from Leyburn, 9 from Kettlewell.

GANTHOREPE. in the parish of Terrington, wapentake of Bulmer ;

. (the 2eat of Mrs Forth) 6 miles from Malton, 10 from Easingwold,
15 from York.—Pop. 1086.
GARRISTON, in the parish of West-Hawkswell, wapentake of
" Hang-West; 3 miles from Leyburn, 5 from Middleham, 6 from
Richmond.—Pop. §2.

GATHERLEY, HIGH and LOW, 2 f. A. in the township of

Moulton, and parish of Middleton-Tyas; 5 miles from Richmond,
. 6 from Catterick.

GATENBY, in the parish of Burneston, wapentake of Hallikeld ; 4}
miles from Bedale, 9 from Northallerton, 13 from Ripon.—Pop. 88,

GAYLE, ham. in the township of Hawes, and parish of Aysgarth,
wapentake of Hang-West ; } a mile from Hawes, 53 from Askrigg.

About 200 yards east of this place, are to be seen, the vestiges of a Roman
encampment, supposed to have been an out-post to the Romaa etation on Borough-
- Hill, near Bainbridge.

GAYLE-BANK, £. A in the township and parish of Wensley; 3

" miles from Leybumn and Middieham.

GEBDYKE, f. . in the towmsltip apd parish of Well ; 1 mile from
Masham, § from Bedale, '
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GERSHAM, f. k. in the township of Lunedale, and perish of Ro-
maldkirk ; 16 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) 20 from Gretfa-
bridge. ’ ' ' -

GERRICK, Aam. in the townzhip of Great-Meorsholme, and parish
of Skelton, east-division of Langbarugh. ]

GILES-ALLEY, f. A. in the township of Coverham-with-Aggle-

. thorpe, and parish of Coverham ; 2 miles from Middlebam.

GILES, ST. f. A. in the township of Brough, and parish of Catterick 5
3 miles from Catterick and Richmond.

On the south side of the Swale, oppesite to Brompton, “ wag the ancient
Ho:&ital of St. Giles, founded, it is suppo-ed, by Henry Fitz Randolph, of Ravens-
worth, in the beginning of the reign of Henry I11. the master of whigh held two
bovates of land in Brompton. The annual payment of 8/. which constituted the

gﬁncipal part of its revenues, at the reformation, was then confiscated to the

rown, and becoming afterwards a rent-charge upon the estate of Sir John Law-

.son, of Brough-Hall, it was purchased by bim some years ago from the Crown.

The hospital was for a long time after its dissolution, made use of as a farm-house,
but wanting many repairs, it was pulled down, and every appearance of it is now
obliterated. The site, and the estate belonging to it, is now the property of Sir
Henry Maire Lawson, Bart.”

GILLAMOOR, in the parish of Kirbymoorside, wapentake of Ry-
dale; 2 miles from Kirbymoorside, 8 from Helmsley, 16 from i
Malion.—Pop. 195. It is a Chapel of Ease to Kirbymooreide. ‘

GILLING, a parish-town in the wapentuke of Gilling-West; (ths
seat of the Rev. William Wharton,) 3 miles from Richmond, 5 from
Catterick, 8} from Gretabridge, 47 from York.—Pop. 921. The
Church is a vicarage, dedicated to 8t. Agatha, in the deanry of
Richmond, diocese of Chester, value, 23L 11s. §3d Patron, John
W harton, Esq.

Tt was here that Oswyn, King of Deira, was murdered by Oswin of Bernicia,

A.D. 651. To atone for this foul murder, Eanfleda, wife of Oswin, who was also
related to Osvyn, founded the monastery of Ingethlingum, o called by Bede, noth
vestige of which is now to be seen.  Gillipg is remarkable also as having been thé
residence of the Saxon Edwin and his progenitors. The Castle, the seat of the
Saxon Earls was situated upon a hill, nearly a mile to the south of the villagg,
the vestiges of which were removed some time since.

GILLING, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Rydale; (Gilling-

Castle, the seat of Charles Gregory Fairfer, Esq.) 5 miles from
Helmsley, 8} from Easingwold, 10 from Kirbymoorside, 18 fromh
York.—Pop. 168. The Charch is a rectory, dedicated to the
Holy-Cross, in the deanry of Rydale. value, 13/. 10s. Patrons, the
Master, Fellows, and Scholars of Trinity College, Cambridge.

. The Castle here, which stands vpon an eminence on the west side of the
village, formerly belonged to the family of the Mowbrays, has now been long in

the poesession of the ancient family of the Fairfax’s.—CampeEN. The most
ancient part is the east end which is circular, and commands the vale below.
Thos. Fairfax came into poesession of Gilling-Castle and Estate, 7thof Henry VII. in-
consequence of his marriage with Elizabeth Etton.— Draxe. In this Castle, * a

. singular record is extant of the gentry in this county in the beginning of the
reign of Qucea Elizabeth. In the upper part of the pannels of the scot of,
the great dining-room, are panted armorial trees, bearing the arms of each ﬁ:l:z'
in every wapentake in this county at that period, one wapentake ocsupyi
;mmel, all of which, together with the beautiful finishing, wainscotting, ﬂ
ing of the whole room, are still in perfect preservation.”—Sraicxtann.

CArv~
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GILLING-EAST, & wapeatake, situate on the west-side of Aller-

. tonshire, being separated from that wapentake by the River-Wiske,

and from the county of Durbam, on the north, by the Tees. Ttis

a low, warm, and fertile tract, without one Market-Town ; and

contains 32 tuwnships, 10 of which are parish-towns, 1,453
inhabited houses, and 7,200 inhabitants.

GILLING-WEST, the western part of the ancient wapentake of
Gilling, which contains a large part of that district called RicA-
tmondshire, its southern boundary is the Swale, and the northern
the Tees, whilst it bas Westmorland on the west. [t is a moun-
tainous district, and bas only two Market-Towns, Richmond and
Reeth. It contains 49 townships, 16 of which are parishes,
3,392 inbabited houszes, and 17,785 inhabitants. Gilling-East,
and West have unquestionably at some early period been one
wapeniake, but at what time separated does not appear to be known,

GILMONBY, in the parish of Bowes, wapentake of Gilling-West ;
4 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) 7 from Gretabridge, 17 from
Richmond.—Pop. 175.

GIRLINGTON, f. A. in the township of Thorpe, and parish of
Wyecliffe; 6 wmiles from Barnardeestle, (Dur.) 9 from Richmond.

GIRSBY, in the parish of Sockburn, (Dur.) wapentake of Aller-
tonshire; 6 miles from Yarm, 7 from Darlington, (Dur.) 10 from
Northallerton.—Pop. 85.

GLASEDALE, atownship, in the parish of Danby, eest-division of
Langbarugh ; 9 miles from Whitby, 15 from Guisbrough, 19 from
Stokesley.—Pop. 1,043. The Chapel here is a perpetual curacy,
value, 3 38.. 16s. 104. Patron, the Archbishop of York. Glase-
dale is a fertile valley, watered by the Esk.

GODELAND or GOADLAND, a township, in the parish of Pic-
kering, wapentake of Pickering-Lythe; 10 miles from Whitby,
11 from Pickering.—Pop. 335. Here is a Chapel of esso to

Here was 8 Hermitage granted by Henry 1. 1117, to Osmund, a Priest,and
a fow Brethren, who took up their habitation there, but soun afier transferred to
the A of Whitby. It was dedicated to St. Mary, and probably stood above a.
mile -east of the present Godeland Chapel, at 2 place called 4850¢’s Horse. —
Bunron.—Youxa. .

GOLDSBROUGH, in the township and parishlof g&ythe; ea:t-div!-

sion of Langbarugh; 6 miles from Whitby, 16 from Guisbrough.

GOLDSBROUGH-FIELD-HOUSE, s. A ,ln the township ard

h of Lythe ; 6 miles from Whitby, -

GOULTON, Aam. in the township of Potto, and parish of Whorl-

ton, west-division of Langbaragh; 4 miles from Stokesley.

GOWNLEYFOOT, Aam. in the township of Healey-with-Satton,

and parish of Masham ; 4 miles from Masham, \

GRANGE, ham. in the township of Low-Abbotside, and parish of
Aysgarth ; 1 mile from Askrigg, 4 from Hawes.

In 1807, Christopher Alderson, Esq. of Homerton, Middlesex, a native of
Askrigg, founded and endowed here an Alms-House, for 6 poor widows, with 108,
F;_nu-_- each. Not far fyom this place, ‘“and close to-Meerbeck,” Dr,

informs us, “ is the original site of Jervaulx-Abbey, since its aban~
r
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donment, Jeng known by the name of Dale-Gmnge, sndpow by thatof e 6;

alone. The Abbey of Fors, or de Caritate, stood almost on the brink of the:
Meerbeck, about 100 yards south from the road leading from Askrigg to Bain-
bridge. Some recent alterations having been made in a barn which occupies the

" spot, I discovered one round-headed light, a genuine remnant of the original

building ; and there still remains in the wall a single tiefoil window, from which
T infer that the Monks of Jervaulx, out of reverence to the place of their origin,
maintained a small cell upon the site long after, and perhaps to the dissolution.”

GRANGE, 3 f. A in the township and parish of Oswaldkirk; 2}
miles from Helmsley.

GRASING-NOOK, f. k. in the township and-parish of Fingall; 6

_ miles from Leyburn.

GRAYSTONES, f. k. in the township of Caldwell, and parish of
8t. John Stanwick; 5 miles from Darlington, (Durham.)

GREENGATES, f. A in the township of Lunedale, and parish of
Romaldkirk ; 10 miles from Barnardeastle, (Durkam.)

GREENHOWE, in the parish of Ingleby-Greenhowe, west-division
of Langharugh; 5 miles from Stokesley, 11 from Guisbrough, 13
from Yarm.—Pop. 102.

GREENS, 2f. A. in the township of Muker, and parish of Grinton;
10 miles from Reeth. : .

‘GRENDALE.—S8ee Handale. :

GRETABRIDGE, two Inns, the George Inn, (Post-Office) on the
north eide of the river ; and the Moritt’s Arms on the south, both
Posting-houses, in the township and parish of Brignall, wapen-
take of Gilling-West; 3 miles from Barnardeastle, (Dur.) 12 from
Richmond, 13 from Reeth, (snoor road) 14 from Catterick-Bridge,
19 from Brough. (Westm.) -

Near to this place are vestiges of a Roman Camp, and old Coins are fre-
xlenﬂy' found here. Not long since-a Roman Altar was dipcovered, haviog a
oman Inscription upon it.—~CampEv. The encampment here alluded to, is

- . immediately behind the George Inn.

GRIMESCAR, a Mill and f. k. in the township and parish of Scru-

. ton; 3 miles from Bedale, 6 from Northallerton. Co

AGRIMESTONE, in the parish of Gilling, wapentake of Rydale;

6 miles from Helmsley, 10 from Kirbymoorside, 14 from Malton.
Pop. 56.

GRINKLE-PARK, (the seat of Robert Wharten Myddieton, Eaq.)
in the township and parish of Essington; 11 miles from Guis-

: brough, 14 from Whitby.

‘GRINTON, a parish-town, in the wafpentake of Hang-West; 1 mile
. from Reeth, 7 from Leyburn, 10 from Richmond, 49 from York.

"+ Pop. 689, The Church is s vicarage, dedicated to 8t. Andrew, in
the deanry of Catterick, diocese of Chester, value, 12, 5s. 7d. p. 1.
140l Patron the King. This parish is situated at the head of

. Swaledale. -

GRINTON-CASTLE, (a shooting residence of the Rev. William Carr
Fenton, now occupied by Col. Hillyard) in the township of Grinton,
and parjsh of Grinton ; 1} mile fronr Reeth.

GRISTHORPE, in the parish of Filey, wapentake of Pickering-
Lythe ; -6 miles from Scarborough, 12 feom Bridkingtan, 18 from

“ - Pickering.—Pop. 212, - ‘ c. -
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GRISTBWAITE, 3 £ A. in the township and parish of T
take of Birdforth ; 2} miles-from ‘Thirsk, 9 from Ripon.
GROWMOND-ABBLRY, in the township and parish of Egton, east-
division of Iﬁgbamgh 3 8 miles from Whitby, 19 from Guisbrough,
21 from Stokesley. <

‘This was a Cell to the Abbey of Gramont, in France, given by Joan, wife of
Robert de Tarnham, and confirmed by King John, in the 15th year of his reign,
Atthe general digsolution it was valued, according to Dugdale, at 12/. 3s. 8d. amd
according to Speed, at 14 2s. 84. The site, 35 Henry VHII. was granted to
Edward Wright, Esq. for the sum of 184/, 13s. 2d. subject mumly ps of
18s. 10d. The next year it came into the possession of Sir Richard Cholmley,
Kanight, and continued till 1668, and now belongs to Rickard and Matthew Agur,
and Mr Jobn Linskill. From the ruins of the convent a spacious farm-house
with out-offices, has been long ago erected, at the west-end of the Priory Chureh.
Poavow.——Graves. It was situsted on the northern banks of the River Eak.

GROWMOND-BRIDGE, in the township and parish of Egton;
8 miles from Whitby. '
Near this place are the remains of an ancient Forge, where lron has been
manufactured, occupying a space about 100 feet square.—YowNa.
GUISBROUGH, a market and parish-town, in the east-division of
Langburngh ; 3 miles from Stokeeley and Redcar, 12 from Stock-
ton, (Dur.) 14 from Yarm, 21 from Whitby, 24 from Kirbymoor-
side, 51 from York, 248 from London.— Market, Tuesday.— Fairs,
the last Tuesdays in March and April; Tuesday before W hitsun-
tide ; third Tuesdays in August and Sept.; second Taesday in
Nov. for horned cattle, horses, &c. last Tuesday in June fot long
wool, and last Tuesday in July for short wool.— Principal Inn, the
Cock.—Pop. 1,912, The Church is a perpetual curaey, dedicated,
to St. Nicholas, in the deanry of Cleveland, value, p. r. $100L,
Patron, the Archbishop of York.
Robert Chaloner, Esy. obtained the King’s Letters Patent for these Fairs and
Market in 1814. .

The town i3 of considerable antiquity, and is supposed by Baxter to be the
Urbs Caluviom of the Romans, although it does not appear that any Roman re-
mains have been found here. In Doomsday-Book it is called Ghigesburg, and
at that time contained three manors, one of which was an ancient demesne of the
Crown : at an early period after the Conquest, these manors became united under
the fee of Robert de Brus, Lord of Skelton, who, at the instance of Pope Calixtus
II. and Thurstin Archbishop of York, in 1129, [Camden states the date to be
1119, making a difference of 10 years, and as Pope Calixtus T1. by whose advice
the Priory was built, died in 1124, it is more than probable that he is correct]
founded here a rich and magnificent Priory for Canons regular of the order of St.
Austin, apd dedicated it to the Virgin aary.—Cnnoxlc. Jomannis Brourron,
Few monastic ruina can boast of the stately grandeur of this Priory. The large
east window, which forms a part of its venoni'lz remains, is a complete model of
the finest gothic architecture, which makes one Jament that more of this beautiful
structure has not been preserved.

e—————————— “but all things have their end ;
“ Churches and cities (which have diseases like to men,)
¢ Must have like death that we have.”” .

The founder died in 1141, and was buried in this monastery, as were many
of his successors ; it was also the common burial place of rpost of the nobilityof.
shese parts. The yearly revenues of these Monks were estimated at 628/.3s. 4.
Dz»ul——lnd 612/, 6s. 6d. Sppep. - It was surrendered by Robert Pursglove
slias Silvester, in 1540, who had a pension of 166/. 13s. 4d. assigned him ous of
the revenues. The site was granted, 4th Edward V1. to Sir Thomas Chaloner,

and is st preseat the property of his descendant, Robert Chaloner, Esq. In the
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: Guisbrongh k - house’m':::hthi:ta e
Prior of Gui ept & pompous , in 8o m towne consyst-
inge of 600 householders had no iande, but lyved all on the abbey” and that ““ a
Steward of theirs was turned out of office, because he had aforehand but onely
Jour hundred quarters of grayne to serve their house.” Except the great east
window, little remains of this once magnificent edifice, but a small ffm-y to-
wards the west. The famous Walter Hemingford, & chronicler of much celebrity,
whose work extends from 1066 to 1303, was an ecclesiastic in this priory. In
those days every abbey had at least one pernon, whose office it was to instruct
youth ; and the historians of thiz country are chiefly heholden tg the Monks for
their knowledge of former national events. [n these houses the arts of painting.
architecture, and printing, were likewise cultivated. Here were formerly the
first Alum-works in England. The art was first brought by that learned natara-
list, Sir Thomas Chaloner, from the Pope’s Alum-work< at Rme, for which his
holiness fulminated an anathema against him, as well as against those he had se-
duced. Here is a Grammar-School and Hospital, situated on the north side of
the Church-yard, founded by Letters patent of Queen Elizabeth, dated 19th of
June, 1561, granted to Robert Pursglove, clerk, the last Prior of Guisbrough,
who endowed the same with his lands, &c. at Bolam, in the parish of Gainforth,
and with 684. O=. 26r. in the parish of Smeaton, in. this county. By a late divi-
sion of the common fields at Bolam and some additional grants to this charity, its
revenues have been tly increased,—the lands being now 361 acres, and its
prosent rental 375/, 15s. 7§d. per annum. The School-house adjoins the Hospi-
tal on the east—The master’s salary 50/.—Ten boys on the foundation.—There
are six old men and women in the hoepital, who have clothing and 5s. per week,
with a small dwelling, and 12 8s. per annum for coals.—Carlisle’s Hist.of Gram.
Schools. Mr G. Venables, anold i itant of the tower, London, died Aug. 1814,
wasmade the honoured instrument of founding & noble edifice heve, calied Providence
Schoel, in which are constantly educated ninety poor children. Tosccomplish this
great and important work, he travelled upwards of 20,000 miles at his own ex-
ce.— Gent. az. Sept.1814.
GUELDABLE, properly GELDABLE.—S8ee Borrowby in Aller-
tonghire, of which this is a part.
Its name implies that it paid Geldage or Danegeld. Geldum, Gildum, and
Geldage are frequently mentioned in Doomsday. It was an annual tax of 2s. im-
in the reign of Ki %Ethelred. ou every hide of arable land in the kingdom.
-@UNNERSIDE or GUNNERSETT, in the township of Melbecks, -
and parish of Grinton, wapentake of Gilling-West ; 6 miles from
Reeth, 8 from Askrigg.

H

HABTON, GREAT, in the parish of Kirbymisperton, wapentake
of Pickering-Lythe; 4 miles from Malton, 6 from Pickering, 9
from Kirbymoorside.—Pop. 136. -

HABTON, LITTLE, in the parish of Kirbymisperton, wapentake
of Pickering-Lythe; 4 miles from Malton, 6 from Pickering, 9
from Kirbymoorside.—Pop. 50.

HACKFORTH, in the parish of Hornby, wapentake of Hang-East,
liberties of 8t. Peter and Richmondshire ; 3 miles from Catterick,
4 from Bedale, 8 from Richmond-—Pop. 134. .

Heie was born about 1474, the celebrated Bishop Tunstall. He was & na-

Oxtordy Carmbridge, and st Paduas wioce be 1ok . degroe of Dot of Law;
, Cambridge, an re he r

and was weountgeed the best h;:’themﬁcim of his time. He mcouem:ii

Bishop of London in 1522; and the year following made keeper of the Privy Seal.

In 1527 he attended Cardinal Wolsey in his pompous embassy into France ; and

in 1530 was tranalated to the bishopric of Durham, of which he was deprived in
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the reign of Elisabeth, for denying her supremscy; having previously been sent
to the tower in 1561, where he continued & priconer till 1653, He died in the
Palace at Lambeth, Nov. 18, 1559, when in the custody of Parker, Archbishop of
Canterbury. He wrote “ De Arte Supputandi” Lond. 1532, 4to0. and 6
worke— Gen. Biog. Diot.—Nichols’ Lit. Anecdotes. *
HACKNESS, a parish-town in the wapentake of Whitby-Strand.
(the seat of Sir Rickard Bempdé Joknstone, Bart.) 4 miles from Scar-
borough, 14 from Pickering, 17 from Whitby, 40 from York.
Pop. 143. The Church is a perpetnal curacy, dedicated to St.
Peter, in the deanry of Dickering, value, p. r. 188L Patron, Sir
Richard Bempdé Johnstone, Bart.
In 1088, Serlo, Prior of Whitby, built & cell for Monks, subordinate to Whit-
w, and King William Rufus granted them six caracutes of land in Hackness and
orth Field—BurTon. There had previously been a cell here, built by Lady
Hilda, Abbess of Whitby, in 680, for eight Nuns.

HAGG, f. A. in the township and parish of Kirbymoorside ; 2} miles
from Kirbymoorside.

HAGG-COTTAGE, in the township and parish of Grinton ;<2 miles
from Reeth.

HAGWORTH-HILL. f. & in the township of Cotherstone, and.
parish of Romaldkirk ; 8 miles from Barnardoastle. (Dur.)

HALFPENNY-HOUSE, s+ A in the township of Barden, and
parish of West-Hawxwell ; 3} miles from Leyburn.

HALIKELD, f. 4. in the township of Winton, and parish of Sigs-
ton ; 23 miles from Northallerton.

HALLIKELD, a wapentake in Richmondshire, a narrow but rich
tract of land, stretching from Lecmingbeck south to Boroughbridge,
having the Swale all the way for its eastern boundary. The Ermine.
Street, now called Leeming-Lane, runs through the centre of this
wapentake, which has not one market-town in it; but contains 29
townships, 8 of which are parishes, and 1,218 inhabited houses,
5,958 inbhabitants.

HALL-GATE, Aam. in the township of New-Forest, and parish of
Kirkby-Ravensworth ; 5 miles from Richmond.

EALL-GATE-KI;OW, q'f;a'l:rly situated,

HALLWITH-HOUSE, f. A. in the township and parish of Spenni-
thorne; 2 miles from Middieham, 3 from Leybarn.

HALNABY-HALL, (the seat of Jokn Peniston Milbank, Esg.)'in the
township and parizh of Croft, wapentake of Gilling-EKast ; 6 miles
from Darlington, (Dur.) 7 from Catterick, 73 from Richmond.

HAMBLETON-HOUSE, in the township and parish of Cold-Kirby;

7 miles from Thirsk and Helmsley, 14 from Northallerton ; mlve-
brated as a training-ground for Race-Horsee,

HAMERS, s. A, in the township of Hartoft, and parish of Middleton ;
9 miles from Kirbymoorside, 10 from Pickering.

gAﬁtgg—gggG, I Izs.f X ﬁ the township ott: Appleton-le-
A - SES, 27. A oors, and parish of Lastingham ;-
4} miles from Kirbymoorside,

HAMMER, f. h in the township of East-Witton-without, and parish
of East-Witton ; 4 miles from Middleham, 6 from Leyburn.
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" HANDALE, or GRENDALE, in the township and parish of Loft- .
us, east-division of Langbarugh, (Handale- Abbey, the seat of
Edward Turton, Esq.) 9 miles from Guisbrough, 12 from Whitby.

A Benedictine Priory was founded here in 1133, dedicated to the Virgin
Mary, zwmim de Percy, grandson of the first W. de Percy, who endowed it
with lands in Grendale, Dunsley, and Staxton. At the dissolation there were eight
Nuns, when the revenue was only 13/, 19s. Duapaig, 20/ 7s. 8d. Speep. The
site of this Priory was grunted, 35 Henry V1I1. to Amhrose Beckwith, in whose
descendants it continued for several generations. It is now the property of Thos.
Stevepson, Esq.—TanNER.~BurTon. Little of this monastic building now re-
mains, except the west-end of the chapel, and some of the walls which are observ-
able in the farm-house erected on the site.—~Graves.

HANG-BANK, in the township and parish of Melsonby ; 5 miles
from Darlington, (Dur.) 6 from Richmond, 7 from Catterick,
1t is a small public-house, and well known as a repository for ecals.

HANG-EAST and WEST, two wapentakes in Richmondshire..
They are bounded on the south by the West-Riding, on the west

“ by a part of Westmorland, on the north by Gilling-West, and on
the east by the river Wiske and the wapentake of Hallikeld. The
major-part of Hang-East is a low, warm, and fertile district. It
contains two market-towns, Bedale and Masham ; 34 townships,
10 of which are parishes, 2,050 inhabited houscs, and 10,050 in-

- habitants. Hang-West is a mountainous district, particularly to
the westward ; the Ure winds its way through that part of it called
Wensleydale. In Hang-West are three merket-towns, Hawes,
Leybumn, and Middieham ; and it contains 50 townships, 12 of
which are parishes, 3,606 inhabited houses, and 18,317 inhabitants,
These two wapentakes, like the Gillings, bave originaily been bt
one.

HARAM, in the parish of Helmsley, wapentake of Rydalé ; 3 miles
from Helmsley, 4} from Kirbymoerside, 15} from Maiton.—Pop.
190. Here is a Chupel of ease to Helmsley. i

HARAM-GRANGE, f. A. in thé township of Aisenby, and parish
of Topcliffe ; 5 miles from Ripon. .

HARDRAW, in the township of High-Abbotside, and perish of
Aysgarth, wapentake of Hang-West; 1; mile from Hawes, §%
from Askrigg.—The Church is a perpetual curacy, in the d
of Catterick, diocese of Chester, value, +65. Patron, Jamed
Archibald Stuart Wortley, kKsq. .

Here is 8 Water-Fall, called Hardraw-Force, ofa very striking character;
the water falling in one vast sheet, from a ledge of rocks ninety-nine feet in per~
ndicular height. The ravine, or chasm, which extends below the fall, is
nded on each side by huge masses of rock, and is about 300 yards in length.
Behind the fall is a deep recess, or cavern, whence a good view of it may b eb-
tained with safety. Duting the hard frost in the year 1741, a prodigious iciele i
recorded to have been found here, of the whole height of the fall, and neasly
equal in circumference.—Dayes,

HARDY-FLATS, s. k. extraparochial, in the wapentake of Rydale
1} mile from Kirbymoorside.

HARKERSIDE, in the township and parish of Grinton; 2} miles
from Reeth. Houses cattered on the mountain side,
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HABLSEY, EAST, a parish-town, in the wapantake of Birdforth ;
(the_ seat of John Charles Maynard, Esq.) 6} miles from North-
sllerton, 10 fram Stokesley, 12 from Thirsk, 35 from York.—Pop.
420. The Church is a perpetual curacy, in the deanry of Cleve-
land, value, p. r. 75l Patron, John Charles Maynard, Esq,

HARLSEY, WEST. a township, in the parish of Osmotberley,
wapentake of Allertonshire ; 5 miles from Northallerton, 11 from
Thirsk, 11} from Stokesley.—Pop. 51.

Here, says Leland, “ Strangwaise the judge builded s praty castelle. ” The
keep of this castle on the estate of the Earl of Harewood, having received consi-
derable injury from lightning, was, a few years since, taken down.

HARMBY, in the parish of Spennithorne, wapentake of Hang-
West; 2 miles Leyburn, 4 from Middieham.—Pop. 194,

HARTFORTH, in the township and parish of Gilling, wapentake
of Gilling-West ; (the seat of Sheldon Craddock, Esq.) 4 miles from
Richmond, 8 from Catterick, and Gretabridge.

- _Here is 8 school, founded in 1670, by Sir Thomas Wharton of Edlington,
K. B. and endowed with a small estate in Cleveland, for the instruction of a
certain number of poor scholars. At this school the Rev. W. Beloe, received the
ground work of his classical education, under the Rev. Matthew Raine, father of
the late Dr. Raine of the Charter-House, and Jonathan Raine. Esq. an eminent
Barrister.—Nicrous’ Lir. Axec.

HARTOFT, or HARTOFT-DALE, in the parish of Middleton,
wapentake of Pickering-Lythe ; 8 miles from Pickering, 9 from
Kirbymoorside, 15 from Whitby.—Pop. 134.

HARTCAKES, 3 A. in the township of Muker, and parish of Reeth ;

- 10 miles from Reeth. ]

HARTON, in the parish of Bossall, wapentake of Bulmer ; 9 miles
from York, 9} from Malton, 13 from Easingwold.—Pop. 190,
HAREWOOD-DALE, in the parish of Hackness, wapentake of
~ Whitby-Strand ; 7 miles from Scarborough, 14 from Whithy.—

Pop. 235. Here is a Chapel of ease to Hackness.
Querns and stone instruments have been dug up in this neighboyrhood, for
- an account of which, see Young’s Whitby, p. 764.

HARRIOT-AIR, f. k. in the township of Rievalx, and parish of
Helmsley ; 25 miles from Helmsley.

"HAWCLIFFE-HOUSE, f. k. in the township and parish of Spenni.
thorne ; 3 miles from Middlehsun. :

+HAWES, a small market-town, in the parish of Aysgarih, wapen-

- “tuke of Hang-West; 5§ miles from Askrigg, 144 from Sedbergh,
17 from Kettlewell, Ingleton. and Leyburn, 18 from Middleham,
22 from Setile,. 61 from York, 250 from London.—Market,
Tuesday—Fairs, Whit-Tuesday, for woollen goods, &c. Sep-
tember 28, for horned cattle, horses. sheep; woollen-cloth, &c.—
Priucipal Inn, White-Hart.—Pop. 1,408. The Church is a perpe-

. tual curacy, value, p. r. *86/. 19s. Patrons, the Land Owners
-of the township. ' ‘

Hawes is situated in Wensleydale, on the south banks of the River Ure.
Here is a Grammar School, founded by the Inhabitants, and endowed by them witha
salary of 10/. per annum.

HAWKNEST, f. k. in the township and parish of Egst-Harlsey ; 2

orthalierton,

mileg from Tontine-Inxi, 6 from N
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HAWXWELL, FAST, in the perich of West-Hawxwell, wapen-
take of Hang-West ; (the seat of Mre Gale, and residence of Foster
Lecmere Coore, Esq.) 4} miles from Leybarn, § from Richmond,
6 from Middleham. .

HAWXWELL, WEST, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Hang-
West; 4} miles from Leyburn, 5 from Richmond, 6 from Middie-
ton, 40 from York.—Pop. including East Hawxwell, 176. The
Charch is a rectory, dedicated to St. Oswald, in the deanry of Cat-
térick, diocese of Chester, value, 20I. 14s. 4}d. Patroness, Mrs

ale.

HAWKHILL-FARM, f. &, in the township and parish of Easing-
wold ; | mile from Easingwold.

HAWNBY, a parich-town in the wapentake of Birdforth; 6 wiles
from Helmsley. 10 from Thirsk, 14 from Northallerton, 29 from
York.—Pop. 286.. The Church is a rectory, dedicated to All-
Saints, in the deanry of Cleveland, value, $71. 18s, 63d. p. r. 1474
Patron, Lord George Augustus Henry Cavendish.

HAWKER, f. k. in the township of Killerby, and parish of Catterick; 1
3 miles from Catterick, § from Bedale.

HAWSKER, a township in the parish of Whitby, wapentake of
Whitby-Strand ; 3 miles from Whithy, 18 from Scarborough,—

Pop. including Stainsacre, 634, which united form s township.

Here was formerly a Chapel to Whitby, dedicated to All-Saints ; an ancient
croes 64 feet high, neatly carved on all sides, is almost the only thing remainiag
to point out the site.—Youna’s WmrrnY,

HAQ’BY, in the parish of Strensall, wapentake of Bulmer, liberty
of St. Peter; 4 miles from York, 10 from Easingwold, 15 from
Malton.—Pop. 117.

HAZLEHEAD, afew houses, in the townsbip and parish of Egton;

10 miles from Whitby, 11 from Pickering. A Roman-Roed runs
in front of this place.

HEALAUGH, or HELAGH, in the townships of Melbecks and
Reeth, and parish of Grinton, wapentake of Gilling-West; 1
mile from Reeth.

On e very lofty site, on the great projection of Hertay, on the south side of
the Swale, opsosite to the village of Healaugh, and commanding a very extensive
view of Swaledale, is an encampment called Maiden Castle. Itisas neul({;ircu!_n
as the nature of the ground will admit, and the ditches still continue deep and
wide. On the east-side is sn avenue, about 120 yards long, leading towards i
and formed by stones gathered from the adjoining common. Near the east-en
of the avenue, but towards the north, is a large barrow of stones and gravel,
which has been impem :rened, and of which tradition reports, that it yet
contains an iron chest th money. About 300 south-west from the
encampment is another oblong barrow, about 6 yards high, and further west ave
the remains of several cairns.~WAITAKER,

HEALLY, in the parish of Masham, wapentake of Hang-East; 3
miles from Masham, 9 from Middlebam.—Pop. including Sutton,
413, which being united, form a township.

HEALEY-COTE, f. . in the township of Healey-with-Sutton, and
parish of Masham ; 3} miles from Masham.

'HEANING-HOUSE, f. 4. in the tcwnship of Thoralby, and parish
of Aysgarth ; 5} miles from Askrigg, 9 from Leyburu.

HEATHWAITE, ham. in the township and perish of Whorlton ; €
miles from Stokesley, 11 from Northallerton.
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HEDGEHOLM, f. 4. in the township of Barforth; 10 miles fromse

" Richmond. ‘

HELBECK-LUNDS or HELGILL-BECK, a brook that divides

' Yorkshire from Westmorland.—See Lunds.

HELMING, f.h. in the township of Rookwith, and parish of Thorn-
ton-Watlag ; 4 miles from Bedale.

HELMSLEY, & murket and parish-town, in the wapentake of Ry-
dale; 6 miles from Kirbymoorside, 13 from Kasingwold, 14 from
Thirsk, 16 from Stokesrley and Malton, 20 from Northallerton, 23
from York, 221 from London.—Market, Saturday.——Fairs, May
19, July 16, Oct. ! and 2, Nov. 5 and 6, for horned cattle, sheep,
linen and woollen cloth, &ec. ; if the fairs for horned cattle fallona
Monday, the sheep fairs will be held on the Saturday preceding.-—
Principal Inn, Black Swan.—Pop. 1,520. The Church isa vicarage,
dedicated to All-Saints, in the deanry of Rydale, value ¢11L 8e.
63d. Patron, Charles Duncombe, Ksq.

Helmsley, called by Bede Ulmetum, it a small town situated on the east-side

* of Hambléton-Hills, or Hambleton-Blackmoor, and is (requently called Hedmaloy=
Blackeymoor. 1t had formerly the protection of a Castle on the west, which, ac-

* cording to Camden, was built by Robert de Ross, and called Castle Fursam. It

- was besioged in 1644, by Sir Thomas Fairfax, and surrendeced to the arnts of
parliament Nov. 21, and by their order soon afterwards dismantled. The ruins,
yet remaining, consixt of a LﬁyTower and some other small detached parts, with
& Gateway from the south, situated on an eminence surrounded with a double moat,

, The old Tower and Helmaley Church are very conspicnous objects from the Ter-
race at Duncombe-Park. Helmsley formerly belonged to the Duke of Bucking-

, which he obtained by marriage of the heiress of the Duke of Rutland. ARer

is death it came into the pos:ession of his son, the well-known George Villiers;

Duke of Buckingham, whe svld it, along with the whole of Lis estates in the

parishes of Helmsley and Kirkdale, to Sir Charles Duncombe, ancestor of the
present Charles Duncowmbe, Esq. of Duncombe-Park.

HELMSLEY, GATE, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Bulmer,
liberty of 8t. Peter; 6 miles from York, 13 from Kasingwold, 14
from Malton,—Pop. 229. The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to
8t. Mary, in the deanry of Bulmer, value, $2. p.r. +103{. Patron,

- the Prebendary of Osbaldwick, York.

HELMSLEY, OVER. or UPPER, a parish-town, in the wapentake

, of Bulmer; 7 miles from York, 12 from Malton, 14 from Easing-
wold.—Pop. 63. The Church isa rectory, dedicated to St. Peter,
in the deanry of Bulmer, value, $4/. 19¢. 2d. p. r. *105/. 13e. 2d,
Patyon, the King.

HELPERBY, in the parish of Brafferton, wapentake of Bulmer,
liberty of St. Peter; 5 miles from Borvughbridge, 6 from Eesing+
wold, 9 from Ripon, 16 from York.—Pop. 611.

HEMLINGTON, in the parish of Stainton, west-division of -
barogh ; 6 miles from Stokeeley, 7 from Yarm, 9 from Gnisbrou
Pop. 72.

HELWITH, in the township of New-Forest, and perish of Kirkby«
Ravensworth ; 6 miles from Richmond.

HESSELTONE, £. A, in the township and parish of Fingall; 6 miles-
from Leyburn,

G
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HEWORTH, in the parishes of 8t. Cuthbert, St. Saviour, and $t;
Giles, York, wapentake of Bulmer; ! mile from York, 14 from
Easingwold, 17 from Malton.—Pop. 1486.

HIGH-CLOSE-HOUSE, f. 4. in the township and parish of §t. John
Stanwick ; 6 miles from Richmond, 7 from Darlington, (Dwr.)

HIGHTHORN, (the seat of William Hotkam, Esq.)in the townsbip
and perish of Husthwaite; 4 miles from Easingwold.

HILDENLEY, (the seat of George Strickland, Esq.) a township
in the parish of Appleton-le-Street, wapentake of Bulmer ; 2 miles
from Malton, 17 from York,. 18 from Eassingwold.—Pop. 23.

HILDERWELL, or HINDERWELL, a parish-town, in the east- .
division of Langbarugh ; 8 miles from Whitby, 14 from Gui y
21} from Stokesley, 56 from York.—Pop. 1,483. The Church is
a , dedicated to St, Hilda, in the deanry of Cleveland, valune,
151. Patron. the Rev. William Smith, the present incumbent,

HILLER-GREEN, f. A. in the township and parish of Hackness ;
7 miles from Scarborough.

HILTON, a Vrlah-town, in the west-division of Langbarugh; 4
miles from Yarm, § from Stokesley, 42 from York.—Pop. 135,
The Church is a perpetual curacy, in the deanry of Cleveland,
value, p, r. +47. Patron, Lord George Augustus Henry Caven-
dish.

It was anciently a Chapel of Ease to Rudby ; but on being augmented by the

‘bounty of Queen Anne, it was made parochial It still contributes to the repairs
of the Mother Church.~—~Gnaves.

HINDERSKELFE, (extraparochial) a township, in the wapentake
of Buolmer; 6 miles from Malton.—Pop. 159. It is a donative,
but no church or chapel.

Here was an old Castle, called Hinderskelfe-Castle.—See Castle- Howard. '

HINDERSKELFE-MOOR-HOUSES, Aam. in the township of
Hinderskelfe, and parish of Bulmer; 6 miles from Malton.

HINDLEYTHWAITE, 2 ﬁ A. in the township of Cariton-high-
dale, and parish of Cov: 3 6 miles from Middlebam.

HIPSWELL, in the parish of Catterick, wapentake of Hang-East ;
3 miles from Richmond, 8 from Leybarn.—Pop. inciuding 8¢,
Martin's ‘Abbey, 296. The Church is & perpetual curacy, valne,

. 7. +55I, Patron, the vicar of Catterick.

H}’PSWELL-LODGE, (the seat of Thomas Hutchinson, Esg). in the
township of Hipswell, and parish of Catterick ; 2} miles from
Richmond.

HOLE OF HERCUM, a fewf. k. in the townships of Levisham and
Lockton, and parish of Levisham, wapentake of Pickeriug-Liythe ;
8 miles from Pickering. 13 from Whithy.

HWOLLIN-HILL, f£. A in the township of Yearsiey, and perish of
Coxwold ; 3 miles from Easingwold.

HOLLY-HILL, (the seat of Richard P. Strangways, Esq.) in the
township and parish of Well ; 34 from Masham, 4 miles from Bedale.

HOLME, or CRAVEN-HOLME, f. 4. in the township of Bain-
bridge, and parish of Aysgarth ; 1} mile from Askrigg. -
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BOLME, in the perish of Pickhill, wapentake of Allertonshize; 6
miles from Bedale, 8 from Noriballerton, 9 from Ripon.—Pop. 102.

HOLME, NORTH and SOUTH, see North and Soutk-Holme.

HOLTBY, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Bulmer; 5 miles from
York, 15} from Malton.—~Pop. 170. The Church is a reciory,
dedicated to the Holy-Trinity, in the deanry of Bulmer, value, 8L
Patroness, Mes C. Nelson.

HOLTBY, GREAT or HIGH, in the township of Ainderby-Myars-
with-Holtby, and parish of Hombhy ; (Holtby-House, the seat of
Thomas Robinson, Esq.) 35 miles from Bedale, 4 from Catterick.—
Pop. included in Ainderby-Myers. :

- HOLTBY, LITTLE or LOW, s. k. in the township of Ainderby-
Myers-with-Holtby, and parish of Hornby ; 4 miles from Bedale.

HOLWICK, in the parishof Romaldkirk, wapentake of Gilling- W est;
11 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) 13 from Gretabridge.—-Pop. 20).

HOOD-GRANGE, f. k. in the township and parish of Low-Kilburn,
wapentake of Birdforth, liberty of Ripon; 7 miles from Thirsk,
9 trom Helmsley.

Here was an Hermitage to Whitby, where Robert de Alnetto, a Monk of
Whitby lived; but in 1138, through the influence of Roger de Mowbray and
Gundred his mother, was converted into an Abbey for Monks of the Cistercian
order, which was removed to old Byland in 1143, aund finslly w Bgrl:l-d near
Coxwold in 1147,—Buaron, 8rssp, Duevawx. It is now merely a house,
the thick walls of which, with its antique windews, sdd » stone coffin placed in the
wall of the west buildings, prove its antiquity.

HOPE, a township, in the parish of Barningham, wapentake of
Gilling-West; 3 miles from Gretabridge, 4 from Barnardcastle,
(Dur).—Pop. 44.

HORNBY, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Hang-East, a pert
in the liberty of St. Peter ; 5§ miles from Bedale, 7 from Richmond,
39 from York.—Pop. 102. The Church is a vicarage, dedicated
to St. Mary, a peculiar under the church of Ripon, in the deanry of
Cutterick, diocese of Chester; value, 161. 15s. 6d. p. r. 85/ Patron,
the Dean and Chapter of York. Nearly adjoining the village, is

HORNBY-CASTLE, (the seat of his Grace the Duke of Leeds)

Leland says ¢ Horneby Castle a iii miles from Swale and a ii from Keter-
ick.” This noble mansion was the ancient seat of the St. Quintins, which after-
wards belonged to the Coniers. It came imto the poseession of Richard Lord
Lumley, by his marriage with Anne, one of the daughters of Sir John Coniers.—
Caxpxy.—Maena BreTan. A large portion of this Castle is as early as the Cone
quest; but the modern parts were built by Robert, the last Earl of H.
from whom it passed into the present family, by marriage of Frandis, the Gfth
Duke, with Amelia D’Arcy, only surviving daughter and sole beiress of the said
Robert, Earl of Holderness. It is a spacious structure, some parts of which are.
of Gothic Architecture, and others finished in the m stile. The paintings
are numerous, and many of them by the first masters.

HORNBY, in the parish of Great-Smeaton, wapentake of Allerton-
shire ; 8 miles from Northallerton and Yarm, 10 from Darlington,
(Dur.)—Pop. 238. In thjs township is ‘

HORNBY-GRANGE, (the seat of Henry Hewgill, Esq.) 7. miles
from Northallexton. '

HORSEHOUSRE, kam, in the ip of Carlton-high-dale, and
parish of Coverham, take of -West; 7} miles from
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Middleha, 8 from Leybyrn and Kettlowel. The Church isas
- al curacy, under Coverbam, value, p. r. +T0L
HOWLANDS or EWELANDS, £. 4. in the township of Hurst,
and parish of Marriok ; 3 miles from Reeth, 7 from Richmond.
HOVINGHAM, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Rydale; (the
+ seat of Edward Worsley, Esq.) 7 miles from Helwmsley, 8 from
Kirbymoorside, 9 from Malton, 19 from York.—Pop. 649. The
Church is a perpetual curacy, dedicated to All-Saints, in the deanry .
of Rydale; value, p. r. +57L Patron, the Earl of Carlisle.
Youny, in his.six months tour, thus describes Mr Worsley’s house. * The
approach is through a very large stone gateway, upon which is the following
. inscription; .
Virtus in actione consistit.
and as the building looks pretty much like the gable end of & large houee, I mis~
tok it at first (with that inscription) for an hoepital : The entrance is directly
. out of the street for coaches, through a narrow into a large riding-house,
then through the anti-space of two stables, and so up to the houre door. In the
hall is an antique basso relicve of a Bacchanalian group : Two bronzes— Hereou-
les rqueezing Anteus ; anda Hercules and a Stag ; likewise a very good t
of Bishop Iilliams. The chimney-piece is of white Sienna Marble, with doric
illars, an instance of the bad effect of piilars without bases even of that order.
gf'he els of the room are painted in fresco, Sarifice to Diana, &c.” In
:he nmd ,i:gawinx, and dining-rooms, are several busts and small statues, draw-
ngs, res.
-HOWE, gn the parish of Pickhill, wapentake of Hallikeld; § miles
from Thirsk, 7 frem Ripon and Boroughbridge.—Pop. 32.
HOWE, and HOWBRIDGE, 3 4. in the township and parish of
Old-Malton ; 2 miles from Malton. 7 from Pickering.
HOWGRAVE, in the parish of Kirklington, wapentake of Halli-
keld ; 6 miles from Ripon, 7i from Bedale.—Pop. included in
Sutton.

‘The singular situation of this place is as follows, it consiste of only three
farms, one in the township of Sutton, in the parish of Kirklington; a second in
that of Holm, in the partsh of Pickhill; and a third in that of Nunwick, in the

arish of Ripon.— The house in Nunwick has of late been converted into cottages.
'H%)W-HILL, in the township of Newby, and parish of Secamer ; 3
miles from Stokesley, '

This is a remarkable tumulus, and on the side of the hill towards the south
are evident marks of an intrenchment, probably Saxon, and in the plain below,
it is reported that armour, swords, and human bones have frequently beea found.

HOWIE%IKE, in the townships of Danby snd Glandale, and parish
of Danby, east-division of Langbarugh; 10 miles from Guisbrough
and Whithy.

HOWTHORPE, f, k. in the township of Airyholme, Howthorpe,
and Baxter-Howe, and parish of Hovingham, wapentake of Ry-

« dale; 7 miles from Malton, 8} from Kirbymoorside and Helmsley.—
Pop. included in Airyholme. Airyholme, Howthorpe, and Baxter-
Howe, 3 farms, have a Constable and an Overseer of the Poor
- uppointed annually. :

HUBY, in the parish of Sutton-on-ihe-Forest, wapentake of Bulmer;
4 miles from Easingwold, 9 from York.—Pop. 497.

HUDSWELL, in the parish of Catterick, wapentake of Hang-

”‘West 5 2 miles Aﬁom Richmond, 9 from Leyburn.—Pop. 30,
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‘The-Church is 2 perpeteal curaoy, valwe, p. r. 166l. Patron, the
Vicar of Catterick.

HUM-BURTON, or HUMBERTON, a township, in the parishes of

- Kirby-on-the-Moor and Aldborough, wapentake of Hallikeld ; 3
‘wiles from Boreughbridge, 7 from Ripon, 9§ from Thirsk.—Pop.

- including a part of Milby, 120.

HUMERSTY, s. k. in the township and parish of Loftus; 10 miles
from Gnisbrough. )

HUNDERTHWAITE, in the parish of Romaldkirk, wapentake of
Gilling-West; 6 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) 9 from Greta-
bridge, 2] from Richwond.—Pop. 313.’

HUNTERS-HALL, f. k. in the township of Carlton-high-dale, and

- parish of Coverham ; 10 miles from Middleham.

HUNT-HOUSE, s. k. in the township of Goadland, and parish of
Pickering ; 10 miles from Pickering, 13 from Whitby.

HUNTINGTON, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Bulmer; a
part in the liberty of St. Peter; 3 miles from York, 13 from Ea-
singwold, 16 from Malton,—Pop. 346. The Church is a vicarage,
dedicated to All-Saints, in the deanry of Bulmer, value, 354 p.r.
+130L. Patrons, the Sub-chanters and Vicars-Choral, York.

HUNTON, in the parishes of Patrick-Brompton and .Hornby,
wapentake of Hang-West, a part in the liberty of. St. Peter ; 6
miles from Leyburn, Middicham, and Richmond.—Pop. 496. -
The Church is a perpetnal caracy, (rebuilt in 1794) dedicated to St.
John, value, p. r. $63. and annexed io Patrick-Brompton.

HURST, in the parish of Marrick, wapentake of Gilling-West; 3
miles from Reeth, 7 from Richmond..

HURY, f. k. in the township of Hunderthwaile, and parich of Ro-
meoldkirk; 7 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) .

HUSTHWAITE, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Birdforth,
liberty of St. Peter ; 4 miles from Easingwold, 5 from Thirsk,
17 from York.~—Pop. 324. The Church is a perpetnal curacy, in
the deanry of Bulmer, value, p. 1. 91L 4s. Patron, Thomas
Edward Wynn Belasyse, Esq. and Lady Charlotte his wife.

HUTTON, or HUTTON juxta RUDBY, in the parish of Rudby, west-
division of Langbarugh; 4} miles from Stokesley, 6 from Yarm,
12 from Northallerton.—Pop. 919.

HUTTON, or HUTTON juxta SEBSAY, in the parish of Sessay, wa-
)t:)entakeof Allertonshire; 5 miles from Easingwold, 6 from Thirsk,

'op..129.

HUTTON-BONVILLE, a township, in the parish of Birkby, wa-

pentake of Allertonshire ; (Hutton-Hall, the seat of Wm. Battie

" Wrightson, Esq.) 5 miles from Northalletton, 11} from Dar-

¢ lingten, (Dur.)—Pop. 107.  The Church, peculiar, is a perpetual

. ‘euracy, dedicated to St, Laurence, value, p. r. +40L Patron,
Henry Peirse, Esq, :

The mansion and estate of Hutton-Bonville, recently purchased by Henry
Peirbe, Esq. afd a¥folns hix other estates at Lazenby, &c. all once the property
and residence of the ancient family of Cenyers. The last Baronet of that family
(Sir Thomge) died a few ago in Chester-le-8treet.

HUTTON-BUSHELL, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Picker- °
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ing-Lythe ; (the seat of George Oobaldeston, Eny.) &  frone

Scarborough, 12 from Pickering, 15 from Melton, 34 from York.

Pop. 419. The Chusch is a vicarage, dedicated to $t. Matthew, in

the deanry of Rydale, value, 14L 17s. 6d. Patren, Earl Fits-
2l

In the Church is a marble monument to the memory of Dr. Richard Osbal-
deston, Bishop of London, who died in 1764. A great part ofjthe manor-houss
was burnt to the ground, Jan. 4, 1809.

HRUTTON-CONYERS, a township, (but extraparochial) in the e~
pentake of Allertonshire; 1} mile from Ripon, 6 from Borough-
bridge.—Pop. 127.

This place was anciently the residence of a breanch of that ancient family,
the Conyers, of Sockburn, whose Hail 3]:»11 to have been on the North
side of the, village in a field, now called the Hall Garth, the foundations of
which shew themselves in every direction—it appears to bave been moated
round-—The Mallories of Studley, having, by marriage, afierwards come into

ion of this estate, it is now the property of Mrs. Lawrence.

The following singular cusiom of holding the courts here, is extracted
from “Blount’s Ancient Tenmres.” *The lord holds his court the first day
in the year, and to entitle the several iownships of Hutton Conyers, Mel-
merby, Baldersby, Rainten, Dishforth, and Hewick, to right of estray for

. thbeir sheep to certain limited boundaries on the common or moer of Hution
Conyers, the shepherd of each township attends the court, and does fealty
by bringing to the court = large apple-pye, and a twopenny sweet-cake, exe
cept the shepherd of Hewick, who compounds by paying sixieen pence for
ale, ( which is drunk as afier mentioned) and a wooden spoon ; each pys
fs cut in two, snd divided by tbe bailiff, ene half betweea the steward, bal-
Liff, and the tenant of the comey-warren, ( upon the Moor,) and the other
half into six parts, and divided amongst the six shepherds of the before-
mentioned six townships. In the pye, bronght by the shepherd of Rainton,
an inner one is made flied with prunes. The calies ave divided in the same
manner. The bailiff of the maner provides furmety, and mustard, sad de-
livers to each shepherd a slice of cheese and a penuy roll. The farmety,
well mixed with m , is put into an earthen pot and placed in & hole
the ground, in a garth belonging to the baflif’s honse, to which place the
steward of the court, with the bailiff, tenant of the warren, and six shep-
herds, adjonrn, with their respective. woodea spoons. The bailiff provides
spoons for the steward, the tenant of the warren, and himself. The steward
first pays respect to the furmety, by taking a large spoonful; the bailiff has
the next bonour, the temant of the warren next, then the shepherd of
Hutton-Conyers, and afterwards the other shepherds, by regmiar turns;
then each person is served with a giass of ale ( paid for by the sixteen-pence
brought by the Hewick shepherd ) and the health of the lopd of the manor is
drunk ; then they adjourn back to the bailifPs house, and the further husi.
messes of the court is proceeded in”’. He further adds “ each pye contains
ahout a peck of fleur, is about sixteen or cighteen inches diameter, and as
large 03 will go into the mouth of an erdinery oven; that the bailiff of the
manor measures them with a rule, and takes the diameter, and if they are
not of a sufficient capacity, he threatens to retarn them, and fine the town.
If they are large enough, he divides them with a rule and compasses into
four equal parts, of which the steward claims oe, the warrener amother,
and the remainder is divided amongst the shepherds.”  The Moor baving
mow been inclosed some years the custom is abolished.

HUTTON-HALL, in the township of Hutton-Conyers; 2 miles
from Ripon.

HUTTON-HANG, HIGH, f. k. in the township of Fingall, and

parish of Bedale, wapentake of Hang-West ; 5 miles from Bedale,
6 from Leyburn.—Pop. 25.

HUTTON-HANG, LOW, 4 coftages, similarly situsted.
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RUTTON-LE-HOLE, in fhe parish of Lastingham,

:b ogo I:‘yda!e ;3 miles from Kirbymoorside, 7 from Pinkermg.-—

HUT'!ON HIGH and LOW, which being united, form the parish
of l!llm!m-Allbo, 'lpentnke of Bulmer; (Hu!tcm-Lodge, the resi
dence Geural M’ Leod) 3} miles from Malton, 15 from York, 18
fﬁom old.—Pop. 445. ;l‘he Church, situated in H:gh.

uiton, is a perpetual cursoy, dedicated io St. Magaret, in the
W of Bulmer, value, p.r. +106L Pctron the Archbishop of
or

HUTTON-LONGVILLIERS, or MAGNA, in the parish of Gil-
ling, wepentake of Gil.ling-Wut; 3 miles - from Gretabridge, 9§
from Richmond.—Pop. 248. The Charch is s perpetual eursey,
value, p. 1. +361, Patrom, the Vicar of Gillin,

HUTI'ON LITTLE, ham. in the township ofBarfoﬂb and parish
of Gilling; 3 miles from Gretabridge.

HUTTON-LOWCROSS, or LOCRASS, & township, in the parish
of Guisbrough, east-division of anghmgh 2 miles from Guis-
broagh, 8} from Stokesloy.—Pop. 56.

s b e Eviory of Cuamyosgh, by Wiliam e Beradiys and the dootng
g:‘conﬁmed by T, son of P‘:’ie:‘e Blnu —Tamnza~—Burron. Some mu-
m:;chﬁdmnmdmndminmoﬂhem houses point out the situae

18

HUTTON-MULGRAVYE, in the parish of Lythe, east-division -of
MI.M; 6 m’lsuﬁo- Whitby, 16 from Guisbrough, 22 from -

HUTTON, SAND, see Sandhutton, in the parish of Thirek.

HUTTON, SAND, m&mdhwou in the parish of Beesall,

HUT’I‘ON SHERIFF, mw

I

IBORN-DALE, <. 4. in tbe township of Ugglebarnby, and parishof
Whitby ; 4 wiles from W
ILTON, or HILTON, in the p-hi of Masham, wapentake of
-Eill)t; szllesfmmMM 10 from Ripon, 13 from Rich.
—Pop. 266,
ING-HEAD, f. Linlhowwndapolﬂud,nd pﬁshoflhniok
7 wiles from Riochmond, 8 from Leybarn.
INGLEBY, in the townshipnnd perish of Arncliffe, west-division
oflnnghmgh 8 miles from Norﬂnllerton, Yum,mdStokelhy
FNGLEBY-CROSS, dam. in the townshi parish of Arnoliffs,
INGLEBY, or INGLEBY jexta GREE HOW a pu.rish-tuwn in
the weet-division of Langbarugh; 4; miles from Stokesley 8 from
Guishrough, 44 from York.—Pop. 158. The Charch is s
tual curacy, dediosted to St. Andmw, in the degury of Clgveland,
valae, p. 1. 68L 19¢. 4d. Patron, Sir William Foulis, Bart. At
& short distance from the village is
!NGLEBY-MANOR, (the seat of Sir William Foulis, Bart.)
A degosndunt of . Sir Duvid Fodlis, Bart. who came into England
mm L was mmde ¢ Knight In 1603, ead crested Batt. in 1619, « He
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was & native of North Britain, and emplor;dliy Jatnes V1. of Scotihad, iri gebi
veral commissions to Queen Elizabeth. He received -the .honour of Knight-
hood in 1603, and attending his royal master to Oxford. "In 1609 he purchased
of Ralph, Lord Eure, Lord President of the Council in Wales, the Manors of
Ingleby and Battersby, the Manor-housos, the Parks, with. the Rectory an@:
Chureh of Ingleby, and lands in Ingleby, Battersby, and Greenhow.— For firther
account, see Graves’ Cleveland. In this bouste was born that emiinent histori-
an and divine, Henry Foulis,,the second son of Sir Henry Foulis, he was sent to
Queen’s College, Oxford, and was soon after elected Fellow .ot Lincoln College,
in 1659. He wrote “the History of Wicked Copspiracies,” and “a ng
of the Romish Treasons and Usurpations.” He died Dec. 24, 1669, aged
or thereabouts, and was huried in the chancel of St. Michael’s Church, Oxen.
—ibid.— Wood in his Athcna Oxon, says * the products of his writings shew bim
« to have been a true son of the Church of England.” * ’ L
IRTON, or URTOQN, in the parish of Seamer, wapentake of Pic-
ering-Liythe; 4 miles from Scarborough, 15 from Pickering, 19
. from Malton.—Pop.. 105. - -
* =" <. :]§LEBECK, in the township of Carlton-Miniott, and parish of Kirkby-"
Knowle, wapentake of Birdforth ; 4. miles from Thirsk.
.IVELETT, ham. in the township of Muker, and parish of Grinton '
5 miles from Askrigg, 7 from Reeth.
JEATOR-HOUSES, ham, in the township of Thimbleby, and parish
of Sigston ; 5 miles from Northallerton. 7} from Thirsk.
JERVEAUX-ABBEY, (a secal of the Earl of Ailesbury) in the
. township of East-Witton-without, and parish of East-Witton, wa-
pentake of Hang-West ; 5 miles from Masham and Middieham, 7
from Leyburn and Bedale. . . !
 Gervalx Abbey,” says Leland, “of white Monkes, ripa citerioni a ii miles
beneth Middleham.” Akarius Fitz Bardolph, in the time of King Stepben,
to Peter de Quinciano, a Monk, and to other Monks of Savigny, certain lands at.
Fors and Worton, in Wensleydale, being part of his poesessions; where in 1145,
they began to lay foundations of a Monastery of their order, Cistertians, which was
successively called the Abbey of Furs, Wensleydale, and Charity. The donations .
that had been made by Akarius and others, appear to have been confirmed by
Alan, Earl of Richmond.—Serlo, thep Abbot of Savigny, disapproved of the
foundation, as made without his knolwedge and consent ; néither did he chooee,
though repeatedly solicited hy Peter, to supply it with Monks from his Convent,
on’account of the great difficulties experienced by those he had before sent into’
England. He ﬂmmfoméwnenl chapter, proposed that it should be trans-
i ferred to the Abbey of (Bylamd) which from its vicinity weuld be better
_ able to lend the necessary assistance reguired in its yet infant state.—This being
agreed to, twelve Monks, with Joker ingston for their Abbot, were sent them
from that house.—After undergoipigmn bardships from the smallness of their
: endowment and sterility of theiv:lands for some time, (during which they had re-
ceived occarional relief from the :Abbat of Byland) Conan, son to Alan, Earl of
Richmond, greatly increased their revenues ; and, in 1156, removed their Mo-
nastery to a pleasant and healthy valley'in East-Witton, the present situation.
This was done with the consent of Harveus, the son of Akarius, the founder; who
100k care to reserve to himself the patsonage of the Abbey, as well as the prayers
4 of the Monks, usually offered up for the founder gnd his relatious ; and that the
bones of his father and mother should be removed to an honourable place in the
! new Monastery. In this place the Monks erected & magnificent Church and
Monastery, which, ke most of the Cistertian order, was dedicated to St. Mary.
—At the dissolution it was valued-at 4557 10s. 5d. Srrep ; 234(. 18s. 54. Dve-
pate. The site in the 36th of ﬁcn{vyh:'lll. was granted to Matthew, Earl
of Lenox, anl Lady Margaret his wile. t little remains of this ancient struc~
ture, hac become nearly overgrown with rough wood and briars, and scarcely an
trace of it, as a buillisg, vemained; except some few arches, nearly lm{wnxl
the ground; when in 1805, -the late Eadl of Allesbury, visited this place; and
.mmeng 1 great variety of. improvements projected upom his estats, was magh
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pleased with an experiment that had been made by his steward in digging down
to the bottom of oue of the arches, which proved to be the door of the Abbe
Church, and led to a beautiful floor of tesselated pavement. His Lordehip cause
the whole of this ruin to be explored and cleared out; which was done in 1806
and 18()7, at a very considerable expense, as the hase of the buildiug wa« buried
several feet helow the surface; when the Abbey-church and choir, with the
cross ailes,—the high altar, and =reveral tombs,~—the chapter-house, with
marble-pillars, formerly supporting the roof, were discovered ; also the Abhot’s
house, the garden, kitchen, refectory, cloisters, and dormitory. The restoration
was under the skilful superintendance and direction of John Claridge, Exq. who
resides near the spot, that this object was so successfully accomplished. In order
to preserve this ancient site, it has been enclosed by a sunk fence, in part, or by
a wall ; and over the entyance is the following inscription, viz.
YOREVALE-ABBEY,
Founded Anno Domini 1141,
Demolished Anno Domini 1537.
These ancicnt Ruins were traced out and cleared by order of
The Right Hon. Thomas, Earl of Ailesbury,
Anno Domini 1807.

JOHN, ST. STANWICK, see Stanmwick.
JOLBY, f. A. and M:ll, in the township and parish of Croft; 2 miles
from Croft, 3 from Darlington, (Dur.)
JULY-PARK-HOUSES, a few h. in the townsbip and parish of -
Egton; 8 miles from Whitby, 15 from Pickering.

“ Here are the traces of an ancient large building, which had been moated
round. ’—BuaTtoy. It was the reat of Lord Mauley; a church or chapel stood
near it, and the field is still called Kirkfleld. Az.mt 40 vards west, may be
:;aced the remains of an ancient Roman Military Road, called /Pude’s Causeway.—

RAVES,

K A
KEARTON, in the township of Melbecks, and parish of Grinton, wa-
pentake of Gilling-West; 3 miles from Reeth, 7 from Askrigg.
KELD, ham. in the township of Muker, and parish of @Grinton; 9
mwiles from Askrigg, 13 from Reeth.

On the site of the ancient Chapel, said to have been demolished in a riot of
the inhabitants, previous to 1580, and which Bacon states to be in ruins, is
now a dissenting Chapel of the independent connection.

KELDHOLME, in the township and parish of Kirbymoorside; 1
mile from Kirbymoorside.

In the time of King Henry I. a nunnery, for Monks of the cistercian order,
was founded here by Robert de Stuteville, and dedicated to the Virgin, At the
dissolution here wasa Prioress and eight Nuns, who had a yearly revenue of 291,
6s. 1d. The site was granted to Ralph Earl of Westmorland.—Buaren., Not a
wvestige of this house is now remainiog ; and on thesite is erected an oil and flax
mill.—In 1813, when partof the foundatiens was cleared awny, several tomb-
stones and stone coffins were discovered.

KELTON, f. A. in the township of Mickleton, and parish of Ro-
maldkirk; 10 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.)
KEMPSWIDDEN, f. A. in the township and parish of Kildale; 7
miles from Guisbrongh.
KEPWICK, in the parishes of Leak, Cewsby, and Over-Silton,
wapentake of Birdforth; 8 miles from Northallerton, 9 from
Thirsk, 11 from Helmsley.—Pop. 107.

H
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KBTTLENESS, in the township and parish of Lythe ; east-division
of ;3 7 miles from Whitby, 15 from Gu

Here is an_extensive Alum Work, begun about 1728. It has been the pro-
of Lord Mulgrave, ever since 1767, and produces annually about 455 tons.

" KIDSTONES, £. hs. in the township of Bishopdale, and parish of
Aysgerth ; 5 miles from Askrigg, 12} from Leyburn. '

KILBURN, HIGH. in the township and parish of Low-Kilburn,
wapeniake of Birdforth, liberty of Ripon; 6 miles from Thirsk, 7
from Easingwold, 8 from Helmsley.

KILBURN, LOW, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Birdforth,
liverty of Ripon ; 6 miles from Thirsk, 7 from Easingwold, 8 from
Heimsley, 20 from York.—Pop. §30. The Charch is a perpetual
ouracy, dedicated to 8t. Mary, in the deanry of Bulmer, valae,

x{. r. 1651, Patron, the Archbishop of York.

LDALE, » parish-town, in the west-division of Langbarugh ;
(the seat of Robert Bell Livesey, Esq.) 6 miles from Stokesley and
Guisbrough, 14 from Yarm, 49 from York.—Pop. 209. The
Church is » rectory, dedicated to St. Cuthbert, in the deanry of
Cleveland, value, $10L 3s. 4d. p. r. 150/, Patron, Robert Bell
Livesey, Esq.

Here was formerly & Castle, which to the Earls of Northumberiand,
—Caxpex., In the l’ynrk of Sir Arnold de e«:{, within this parish, about the

1312, the Friars of the Holy Croes began to build anoratoryand other offices

their settlement here; but the place was interdicted by Archbishop Grenfield,
il it should be made appear that this sort of mendicants was allowed by the
Pope.—Tanner, No traces of the foundations sppear at present.

KILGRAM-BRIDGE, £.A. in the township of East-W itton-without,
and perish of East-Witton ; 4 miles from Masham. -

KILLERBY, d township, in the parish of Catterick, wapentake of
Hang-East ; (the seat of John Booth, Esq.) 1} mile from Catterick,
6 from Bedale, 63 from Richmond.—Pop. 48.

In the 19th Edward I. Brian Fitz-Alan of Bedale, obtained license to
make & Castle of his house at Kisoardedy.—Duapare. The Castle which stood
here, was in ruins in Leland’s time, who says * Killarby Castil Ruine in Ripa
citer Swalse, about a ii mile south from Keterick.”

KILLERBY-HALL, f. % in the township and parish of Cayton; -
4 miles from h.

KILLERBY-GRANGE, . & in the same township and parish. _

KILMONT-WOOD, f. A. in the township and parish of Bowes; 3

. spiles from Gretabridge, 4 from Barnardcastle, (Dur.)

KILTON, in the parish of Skelton, east-division of Langbarugh ; 7
miles from Guisbrough, 15 from Stokesley.—Pop. 100.

Formerly there wasa Castle here which belonged to the ancient family of the
Thwengs. pex. This edifice i9 now in 80 ruinous a state, as to renderit im-
possible to form any idea of its former strength and magnificence.—Graves. Itis
nowdise  of John Wharton, Esq. of Skelton-Castle.

xmmﬁ?ﬁ%nm, f- k. in the township of Kilton, and parish of
8kelton ; 6 miles from Guisbrongh.

In ¥his farm are two ancient Manors, which at the geueral survey were held
iﬁmﬁg under the names of Chiltune and Torp.

KILVINGTON, NORTH, in the parish of Thornton-le-sireet, wa-

pentaké of Allertonshire; 24 mileg from Thirsk, 6} from North-
allerton.—Pop. 68.




NORTH-NIDING. 8

‘KILVINGTON, SOUTH, = n, in the wapeniske of
Birdforth ; 1} mile from Thirsk, 8 from Northellerton, 24} from
York.—Pop. 260. The Church is a rectory, dedicated to St
Wilfrid, in the deanry of Bulmer, value, 174 10s. }0d. Patron
Sidney-College, Cambridge. ;

In this Church is a Baptismal Font, made about the time of Edward IV. on
which is engraved the arms of the Scropes of Bolton and Upsal. The constant
tradition of the neighbourhood has been, that it was removed to its present sitva-
honﬁomthoehpelolUmCuﬂe,indhpﬁhh.—FwMVM

" Font, see ia, vol.

kma'rnonp::‘, in the parish of Pickering, wapentake of Pick-
ering-Lythe; (the seat of John Fothergill, Esq.) 3 miles from
Pickering, 12 from Malton, 18 from Whitby.—Pop. 52.

KIPLIN, a township, in the perish of Catierick, wapentake of
Gilling-East ; (Kiplin-Hall, the seat of the Right Hon. Earl Tyr-
connel) § miles from Catterick, 7} from Northallerton, 8} from
Richmond.—Pop 100. . el

The title of Earl Tyrconnel. Ge Carpenter, the first Lo
Baron Clt;peen:er of Killaghy, in 1719 s aad Geg:gne éarpenu?tbe &d’mm and
first Earl, advaiced to the dignij of Viscount Carlingford, and Eard Tyr-
connel, iu 1761.—Dzsrerr. John Delaval nter, the fourth and present
Earl, born Dec. 16, 1790, married the ounly daughter and heirgss of late

" Robert Crowe, Esq. of Kiplin. .

Here in 1582, was born George Calvert, the first Lord Baltimore. He was
educated at Trinity-College, Oxford, after which he went abroad, and at his
return entered into the service of Robert Cecil, Secretary of State to James J.
In 1605 he was created M. A. in 1617 he received the honour of Knighthood ;

_and in 1619 he was appointed to be one of the pﬁn&&l Secretaries of State :
In 1625 be was (by the name of 8ir George Calvert, of Danby-wiske,
in Yorkshire, Knight) Baron of Baltimore, in the county of Longford, in Ireland.
He wrote “ Carmen funebre in D. Hen. Untonum, and many other pleces.”
There are some of his letters in the Harleian M. 8. collection, and some in
Hearne’s collection, 4to.—Maiona Brrr. :

KIRKBRIDGE, f. k. in the township and parish of 8t. John Stan-.
wick ; 8 miles from Richmond. b
KIRKBY, COLD, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Birdforths
§ miles from Helmsley, 8 from Thirsk, 23 from York.—Pop. 185,
The Charch is a perpetuel curacy, and peculiar, in the deanry of
Rydale ; value, p. r. +563L 5s. Patron, Thomes Duncombe, Esq.
KIRKBY-ON-THE-MOOR, or KIRKBY-HILL, a pari y
in the wapenttke of Hallikeld ; 1 mile from Boroughbridge, § from
Ripon, 18 from York.—Pop. 190.. The Church is a vicarage,
icated to Al-Saints, in the deanry of Boroughbridge, diocess
of Chester, valwe, 27/ 13s. 6}d. Patron, the King.
KIRKBY-FLEETHAM, sce Fleetham, Kirkby.
KIRKBY-HALL, (the seal of Mra Lawrence) in the township ol
Fleetham, and perish of Kirkby-Fleethem ; § miles from Bedale,
lemm take of Bird-
KIRBY-KNOWLE, a perish-town, in the wapentake
forth ; 6 wiles from Thirsk, 9 from Northallerton, 29 from York.«
Pop. 138. The Churchis a rectory, in the ‘deanry of Bulmer,
value, 8l. 2s. 1d. Patron, Sir Thomas Frankland, Bart,
KIRBY-MILLS, in the township snd parish of Kirbymoorside,

wapentake of Rydale ; 1 mile from Kirbymooiside.
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KIRKBY-MISPERTON, or KIRKBY-OVERCARR, & parish-
town, in the wapentake of Pickering-Lythe; (the seat of the Rev,
F. W. Blomberg) ¢ wiles from Pickering, 6 from Malton, 8 from
Kirbymoorside, 24 from York.—Pop. 170. The Church is a rec-
tory, dedicated to St. Lawrence, in the deanry of Rydale, value,

25l. 1s. 103d. Patron, Charles Duncombe, Esq.

Here was born, in 1703, the Rev. John Clarke, M. A. whose life has been
given to the public by the late Dr. Zouch, under the title of “ the Good School-
master exemplified, in the character of the Rev. John Clarke, M. A.” He was
the son of an t and industrious mechanic, whose extreme anxiety to give him
a liberal education deserves every encomium. The Rector of the parish, (Mr
Peter Dubordieu, M. A.) quick to discern and willing to encon merit, placed
him in the school at Thornton, a village in the neighbourhood, w! be subse-

uently obtained a small exhibition to assist him at the University. He died at
gcarborough, in the house of his brother Mr Francis Clarke. He was buried at
the Church of Kirkby-Misperton, Feb. 11,1761, where an elegant Monument has
been erccted to his memory, at the expense of not less than 143 of the sons of the
principal gentry in the county of York, as well as those of other counties, all his pu-
pils. A plain marble tablet is also placed in each of the schools aver which he
resided, with inscriptions by Dr. Zouch.
KgRBYMOORS]DE, a parish and market-town, in the wapentake
of Rydale; 6 miles from Helmsley, 8 from Pickering, 14 from
Malton, 24 from Guisbrongh, 26 from York, 228 from London.—
Market, Wednesday.— Fuirs, Wednesday in Whitsun-week, and
September 18, for horned catile, sheep and linen.—Principal Inn,
White Horse.—Pop. 1,878. The Charch is a vicarage, dedicated
to All-Saints, in the deanry of Rydale, value, 3144 Os. 10d.

Patron, the King.

The church is an ancient edifice, in which * is a enrions marble monnment,
with a brass plate, gi't, on which are carved figures of a Lady Braoke and her six
sons and five daughters, all knceling.”’— History of Whitky. Here died on the
15th of April, 1687, in a miserable house in the market-place, in extreme want
and misery, the gay, the witty, and profligate George Villiers, recond Duke of
Buckingham, of that name. The house has since undergone considerable repairs,
and is now in the possession of Mr Atkinson. His extensive possessions at
Helmsley and Kirbymuorside passed into the Duncombe family. In the follows
ing description Pope seems to have taken a poetioal license, or been misinformed,
ai there is no tradition of the house ever having been an an, and the floor of the
room is of old deal, and shewn to the curious.

In the worst inn’s worst room, with mat half-hung,
The floors of plaister and the walls of dung,

On once a flock hed, but repair’d with straw,

‘With tape-ty’d curtaing, never meant to draw,

The George and Garter dangling from that bed,
Where tawdry yellow strove with dirty red,

Great Villiers lies—alas! how chang’d from him,
That life of pleasure and that soul of whim !
Gallantand gay, in Cliefden’s proud aleove,

The bow’r of wanton Shrewsbury and love ;

Or just as gay, at Council, in a ring

Of mimick’d Statesinen, and their merry King.

No Wit to flatter, left of all his store!

No fool to laugh at, which he valu’d more;

There, Victor of his health, of fortune, friends,
And fame, this lord of useless thousands ends.—Porg,

From a letter to his intimate friend, Doctor Barrow, which the Duke wrote
a few days before his death, it scems that he died in the utmost possible penitenec,
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* afficted,” a8 he mys # with , haunted with remore, desi
countyy, and, 1 fear, n byp‘:;r&d.” The parish register si:n‘.y‘ m
his burial in the following manner :—¢1687—April 17th, Gorges Vilaus Lord,
dooke of bookingam.”

KIRBY-WISKE, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Gilling-East ;
4 miles from Thirsk, 7 from Northallerton, 12 from Borough-
bridge, 10 from Ripon, 27 from York.—Pop. 197. The Charch
is a rectory, dedicated to St. John Baptist, in the deanry of Rich-
mond, diocese of Chester, value, 27l. 16s. 53jd. Patron, the
Dauke of Northumberiand.

Near this village are traces of an ancient encampment and a tumulus in which
human bones have been found. 1t is famous for being the birth-place’of the ce-
lebrated Roger Ascham, third son of John Ascham, steward to the ancient famil
of Scrope, born 1515, and died in 1568. He wae Greek Professor of 8t. Jobm
College, Cambridge; instructor in Latin and Greek o Prince Edward and Princess
Flisaheth ; Latin Secretary to Queen Mary, and afterwards Latin Secretary
and private Tutor to Queen Elizabeth, in the Greek tongue.—His principal works
are 'f" hilus, published in 1544, and the Schoolmaster, compored in , and
publi after his death by his widow.—His works were published in 1 vol. 4t0.
1761, by Bennett, with a Life and remarks upon him hy Dr. Johnson.—Biog. Dict.
—Life by Johneon.

It also gnve birth to Dr. Palliser, Archhishop of Cashill, and Dr. Hickes,
Dean of Worcester, both men of eminent abilitics.—Nicnows. Dr. Hickes was
born at a farm-house, called Moorkouse, in the village of Newsham, in this parish,
June 20, 1640, and educated under M’r Thomas Smelt, in the Free Grammar-
School at Nerthallerton. He was admitted Servitor of St. John’s College, Oxford,
thence removed to Magdalen College, and afterwards to Magdalen Hall; and in
1664, was chosen Fellow of Lincoln College. He was made Chaplain to the Duke
of Lauderdale, in 1676 ; who took him next year into Scotland, where he received
the degree of D. D. from Sharpe, Archhishop of 8t. Andrews. He took the same
dégree at Oxford, and was promoted to & Prebend of Worcester, in March 1679-
80 ; made Chaplain to the King in 1681 ; and Dean of Worcester in August 1683,
Atthe Revolution, refusing with others to take the oaths, was deprived of his
deanry in February following.—He continued in possession, howexer, till May ;
whean mdilg in the Gazette that his deanry was granted to Mr William Talbot,
(afterwards Bishop of Durbam) he immediately drew up in his own band-writing,
a claim of right to it, directed to gl the members of that Church, and in 1691
affixed it over the entrance into the choir. From this time he was under the ne-
cessity of absconding, till May 18, 1699, when Lord Somers, out of respect to his
Jiterary character, obtained an order in Council directing the Attorncy-General
to enter a Writ of Noli prosegui, to all proceedings against him. He was 8 manof
universal learning, deeply read in the primitive Fathers of the Church, and par-
ticularly skilful in the old northern languages and antiquities. His chief works
are, Linguarum veterum Septentrionalium Thesaurus, folio; and Grammatica
Anglo-Saxonica, 4to. He died in 1715—See Nichols’ Literary Anecdotes —
Biog. Dict.—Zouch’s Sketches of Biogr.—Maa. Brrr. .

John Hickes, Dr. Hickes’ brother, was alro born here, but of different prin-
ciples. He became a presbyterian, and was deprived of the living of Stoke, in
Devonshire, in 1662, for non-conformity. In 1685, he joined the Duke of Mon-
mouth’s army, for which he was executed.—CaLany.—~ PAuNER.

KIRKBY, a parish-town, in the west-division of Langbarugh: 2}
miles from Btokesley, 10 from Guisbrough and Yerm, 4} from
York.—Pop. 168. The Church, devoid of taste, and rebuilt in
1816, is a rectory, dedicated to St. Augustine, in the deanry of
Cleveland, value. 21/. 8s. 6}d. Patron. the Archbishop of York.
According to Torr, it contisted both of a rectory and a vieurage ;
the patronage of the latter belongs to the Rector, and is valued at

" 45l 6s. 3d.
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Not far from the Chtireh, there Is a Free-Sehsol, with a honse and gardeti for
the use of the master, built in 1683, by Henry Edmunds, Esq. who endowed the
saxue with lands here, that prodnee an aunual income of about 40/ —Gsaves,

'KIRKBY-BRIDGE, Aam. in the township of Crakehall, and parish
of Bedale, wapentake of Hang-last; 2 -lles from Bedale, 5 from
Catterick, 9 from Leyburn.

KIRKBY-RAVENSWORTH, or KIRKBY.ON.THE-HILL, a
pevish-town, in the wapentake of Gilling-West; 4 miles from
Richnond, 7 from Catterick, 8 from Gretabridge, 48 from York.—
Pop. 161. The Church is a perpetual curacy, dedicated to 8t
Peter and 8t. Felix, in the deanry of Richmond, diocese of Chester.
It was formerly a rectory, valued at 250, §e. 2'd belonged to the
Monastery of 8t. Mary's, at York, and was one of the rectories
unexed to the see of Chester, in 1541, the 33rd. Henry VIIL

K! resent Church was built in 1891 —Nmtbe church-yard is the Hos-
ms-house, of St. John the Baptist, and School, founded John
L L. D. (last Rector of the Chumh:ndAnhdemoftheht

who had been concerned as Commissioner in the reign of Henry VII1. to take
an sccount of the religions houses in Richmondehire) by a license granted to him
for that dated Oct. 26th, in second and third of Philip and Mary, 1566.
The toandation of the Hnspiul or Alms-house consisted of two guardians,
wne preceptor, and four poor persons.—The revenue aries from certain lands
and tument: near Richmond, and others in the parish of Eut-camn !ts
Row estimated, rays Dr. Whinlrer, at 1300/ per annum.

KIRKDALE, a parish, in the wapentake of Rydale; 2 miles fmm
Klrbymoomde, 4} from Helmsley, 27§ from York.

The Church is & perpetual curacy, in the deanry of Rydale, value,
p. . 1971, Patron, the University of Oxford.

The parish is very extensive, but there is no village bearing its name, ﬂ

contains one of thoee curioeities rarely to be met with in this country, a
snscription, at once recording the name of the founder, and the date of ith erection,
Ebr to the Norman Congquest, over an original Saxon Arch, within the of
Clmn:ll, although no other part of the original is in existence. The Church is
sitasted in a sequestered but beantiful spot, inveloped with woods, but there is
mothing i the hnilding worth notice, except the inseription, which is engraved
on one entire free-stone, 7 feet 5 inches long, and 1 foot 10 inches high. The
dnseription was first discovered in 1771, by the Rev. William Dade, of Barmston,
uﬂll.mho-JCBmh,Fﬁ to Mr ,ruibebntbe&metyot
Antiquaries in 1777, foll particulars of which, wllh & view of the Chaurch, and
» fac simile of the inscription may be found in the 5th vol. of the Archmologia .

the fac simile is also given in Young’s History of Whitby.

Kirkdale is not more remarkable for its Saxon inscription than for a Cave
recently discovered, in which were some of those wonderful pheenomena not
ndlyamnnt«!brviz :—a large eollection of bones of hitherto un-
k-mhlusmtry,mngwh!elwenmwh cularly of the

Elephaat and Hyena.

KIRKLEATHAM, a parish-town, in the east-division of Lang-
barugh ; (the seat qf Henry Vansittart, Esq.) 2} miles from Redcar,
43 miles from Guisbrough, 12 from Yarm and Stockton, (Dwr.)
lziflonsmkdey 56 from York . 086, TlleChmdil
& vicarage, dedicated to St. Cuthbert, in the deanry of Cleveland,
value, $13L 6:. 8d. p. r. 50/, Patron, Heury Vausittart, Esq.

Thenm situations in the north which srvest move hduythnhn-
ﬁonofmmnuumhﬂam,mmhmq elegance, in
every branch of building mhppﬂymhud,mdﬂnnndmmdﬁlﬂ-
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Zhe Church isa very handseme stons suppoviad by Tusesn sslumus,
sad at the west end is & well.toned organ. the enst window of the
Charch is & mausolenm, erected by Cholmiey Turner, Esq. in 1740, undernesth
which ts the family-vauit. Here is & very superb Hospital, and which reminds
one of the expression ased by King William on his visiting Greenwich, “ There
are in England, Cottages for Princes, and Palaces for Peasants.” 1t isa large
sad commodions building, inclosing three sides of & square, the fourth orna-
mented with large iron gates, This benevolent eharity was founded in 167
by Sir William mm,nkﬂ:?ht, Lord Mayor of London in 1669, who, at his

among the poor of his hospital, and in the chancel of
the Church is a monument to his memory. He endowed it with lands, said to
be worth 1500/. per anmum, for the support of & master and misiress, ten boys
and ten girls, ten old men and ten old women, &c. The latter are admitted at
the of 63, and have each & salary of 8. per annum, & good dinner provided
for them every day, by the master aud mistress of the hospital, and are wall

front ‘of the building is & neat chapel, bailt in a style of superior
From the centre of it is suspended a large chandelier, richly gilt
with gold and burnished ; and above the altar is a beantiful window of pain|

.glass, much superior to any similar work in the kingdom. In the centre of -
it is represcated the offarings of the Magi at the birth of our Saviour; oa ane
side & full Jength fignre of Sir William Turner, the founder, in his rohes
@s Lord Mayor of London ; and on the other, John Turner, Esq. Serjennt at Law.

THE LisRaARY Occupies a spacious roorn within the hospital, in which
theve is & choice collection of scarce and valuable books, and in it are nume-
rous nataral and artificial curiosities.—One singularly curicus is e represents-
tion of 8i. George and the Dragen, cut out of a piecs of box and finely carved.

8ir Willlam Turner, also by his will bequeathed 5,000/ for found-
ing a Free Grammar-School here, which was erected in 1709 by Chol
Turner, Esq. his nephew : it is a large and handsome quadrangular building
mear the hospital. e master’s salary is 100/. and that of the usher, 50 ; but
the school has been discoutinued many years. Thehnldﬂ*eonnimd.m,.

. ments for the master and usher, as well as the school-room. Lord or u{
of the manor of Kirkleatbam, who is sole Governor or Governess of the hospi
is sole trustee of the school. .

At the entrance 10 the Hospital, a stately oak points out the spot where stood the
cottage that gave birth to Tom Brewn, the hero of Dettengen, which took place
about 1715. He was born of obecure but honest parents, and served his time as
am apprentice to a shoemaker in Yaym. Early in life he served as a private
in brigadier Bland’s regiment of deagoons. This regiment being ordered for

2

him, and two fingsrs from his right band were severed by a sabre; motwith-
standing which, upon the loss of their standard, Brown rushed into the
thickest of tbe fight, determined to

the Gens who were in possession , and made his

njsepid
of education, and a hahit of drinking which he had contracted,

gmmt.AmuWhMbrm,benﬁredhﬂwtowno!
arm, oma pension of 30! per annum, which de did not long enjoy, but died
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and was buried thers, January 19, 1746 ; and to perpetuste the remembrance
of his undaunted courage, a sign was erected in that town, which remains to
this day, representing our hero covered with wounds, and bearing the
standurd he had taken from the enemy. :

KIRKLEVINGTON, a purish-town, in the west-division of Lang-
barogh; 2 miles from Yarm, 6 from Stokesley, and Tontine-Inn,
10 from Northallerton. 40 from York.—Pop. 282. The Chirch
is a perpetual curacy, dedicated to St. Martin, in the deanry of
Cleveland, value, p. r. 30{. Patron the Archbishop of York.

KIRKLINGTON, a parish-town, in the wupentake of Hallikeld ; 6
miles from Thirsk and Bedale, 7 from Ripon, 7} from Masham,
27 from York.—Pop. 337. 'The Church ix a rectory, in the deanry
of Catterick, diocese of Chester, value, 25/, 7s. 3id. Patroness,
Lady Ormond, .

The old Hall here of the ancient family of the Wandesfords is still in exist:
ence, and used as a farm-house.

KNAYTON, in the parish of Leak, wapentake of Allertonshire ; 3}
miles from Thirsk, 6 from Northallerton, 17 from Stokesiey.—
Pop. including Brawith, 377.

KNEETON-HALL, and ? 2f. k. in the township and parish of Mid-

KNEETON, UNDER, §dleton-Tyas; 5 miles from Richmond,
7 from Darlington, (Dur.)

Kneeton Hall, now reduced 1o a single /. A. appears to have been at some
time of much more importance, and had a Chapel. vide WHiTARER’s Yonrxs.

L

LACKENBY, kam. in the township and parish of Wilton, east-di-
vision of Langbarugh ; 4; miles from Guisbrough.

LAISTHORPE, f. 4. in the township of Kast-Newton, and parish
of Stonegrave, 3 miles from Helmsley, 7 from Kirbymoorside,

LAITHKIRK, f. k. in the township of Lunedale, and parish of Ro-
maldkirk ; 9 miles'from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) 13 from Gretabridge.
Here is a Chapel to Romaldkirk, vatued at p. r. 227, :

This chapel, according to Dr. WHITAKER, appears to bave originally beenat.
Thorngarth, which had probably been delapidated, wheu the family of the Fits-
bughs gave a barn or laith for public worship, which denominates the present
chapel Laithkirk.—The rector of Romeldkirk allows a stipend of 30£ per
annum to the curate..~Bacox.

LAMB-HILL, f. k. in the township of Barton-upon-Ure, and parish
of Masham ; 2 miles from Masham, 6 from Bedale.

LAMB-HILL, f£. A. in the township and parish of Bowes; 4 miles
from Gretabridge, and Barnardcastle, (Dur.)

LANDMOTH, a township, in the parish of Leak, wapentake of
Allertonsbire; 4 miles from Northallerton, 6} from Thirsk.—Pop.
including Catto, 59.

LANE-HEAD, in the township of Hutton-Longvilliers, and
of Gilling, wapentake of Gilling-West ; 3 miles from Gretabridge,
9 from Richmond.

LANE-HOUSE, f.A. in the township of Kast- Witton-without, and
parish of East-Witton ; 6 miles from Middleham, -

LANGBARUGH, 2 f. A. (which gives name to the wapentake) in
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the township and parish of Great-Ayton; 3 miles from Stokesley,

- § from Guisbrough.

LANGBARUGH, a wapentake, which comprehends the whole of
that district called Clevelund, bounded on the east and north-east
by the German Ocean, on the west by Allertonshire, and on the
north-west by the River Tees. The Rev. George Marwood is
Lord and Chief Bailiff The wapentake and liberty are co-exten-
sive. It contains three merket-towns, Guisbrough, Stokesley,
and Yarm, 83 townships, 31 of which are parishes, 6,298 inhabited
houses, occupied by 29,753 inhabitants.

LANGTHORNE, in the parish of Bedale, wapentake of Hallikeld 3
3 miles from Bedale, 9 from Masham.—Pop. 135.

LANGTHORPE, in the parish of Kirkby-on-the-Moor, wapentake
of Hallikeld ; § a mile from Boronghbridge, 5} from Ripon, 7}
from Knaresbrough.—Pop. 143. '

LANGTON, GREAT, or LANGTON-UPON-SWALE, a parish,
in the wapentake of Gilling-East; 6 miles from Northallerton, 9
from Richmond, 38 from York.—Pop, 116. The Church is a
rectory, in the deanry of Richmond, diocese of Chester, value,
-46!. 10s. 10d. Patron, the Duke of Leeds.

The few houses here that give name to the perish are sitoated so near the
brink of the river Swale, that they are frequently in danger of being swept away,
The church stands about a quarter of a mile from the village.

LANGTON, LITTLE, a township, in the parish of Great-Langton,
wapentake of Gilling-East ; 5 miles from Northallerton, 10 from

. Richmond.-—Pop. 86. In this township is

LANGTON-LODGE, (ke seat of Francis Redfearn, Esq.)

LANGWITH, f. & in the township of Snape, and parish of Well;
3 miles from Bedale, 5 from Masham.

LARPOOL-HALL, (the seat of Edmund Turton, Esq.) in the
township of Hawsker-with-Stainsacre, and parish of Whitby ; 1 mile
from Whitby.

LARTINGTON, in the parish of Romaldkirk, wapentake of Gil-
ling-West s (the seat of Mrs Silve:top Maire) 2 miles from Bar-
nardcastle, (Dur.) 6 from Gretabridge,—Pop..243.

At Lartington was formerly a chantry of our Lady, probably founded by the
Fitz-hughes from whom the Maire family can trace their descent, although this
manor appears, from Whitaker’s Yorkshire, to bave come to them by purchase.
The chantry was valued (37, Henry V1I1.) at 5.. 6s. 84. per annum.

LASKILL, or LASKILL-PASTURLE, in the township of Rivalx,
and parish of Helmsley, wapentake of Rydale; 6 miles from
Helnsley, 12 from Kirbymoorside. (scattered farms)

LASTINGHAM, a parish-lown, in the wapentake of Rydale; 4
miles from Kirbymoorside, 6 from Pickering, 10 from Helmsley,
30 from York.—Pop. 225. The Church is a vicarage, dedicated
to St. Mary, ix the deanry of Rydale, value, £17. 7. 6d. Patron,
the King.

In 645, Edilwald, son of Oswald, King of Northurbria, gave to Cedde, bishop
of the East-Saxons, a piece of ground, called Lestinguy, for building a monastery,
He instituted here the same discipline as at Lindisfarn, where he had been edu-
cited. Jn this &nuwry hic died about the year 664—Ducpare. This picnps-

I
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te? was destroyed in 870, restored in 1078, and in 1088 the fraternity removed

to York. Underneath the choir of the present church, and of the same dimensions,
is a vaulted erypt, 13 paces by 8, the massy cylindrical columns of which, with
their va.n'ousl?' sculptured colurans and arches, are all in great preservation, and

exhibit excellent specimens of Saxon architecture. The entrance is through a

trap-door from the west-end of the choir, and consists of a centre and two side

wiles, lighted by a small window at the east-end of each aile, and being situated

on the brow of a steep hill, admit light. The cast-end is circular, resembling the
pt or bone-house at Ripon minster, which was built about the same time.

LAYTON, EAST, in the parishes of Melsonby and St. John Stan-
wick, wapentake of Gilling-West ; (the seat of Thomas Barker, Esq.)
6 miles from Richmond, T from Gretabridge, 8 from Catterick.—
Pop. 137.

LAYTON, WEST, in the parish of Gilling, wapentake of Gilling-
West ; (the seat of Lord Rokeby) 6 miles from Richmond and Gre-
tabridge.—Pop. 69.

Morris Robinson, the present Baron Rokeby, of Armagh, and an English
baronet, is descended from a long line of an illustrious family, the Robinsons of
Rokeby and West-Layton, who have, at different times, filled various im; t
offices in the state. They appear to have come into possession of the Layton
estate in 1644, by marriage with a daughter of the Laytons.—Richard Layton, a
gmmger son of Laytons, of West-Layton, was of York in Henry the

th’s time, and was one of the persons whose authority that monarch
made use of in dissolving the monasteries. The first Lord Rokeby was Ric
Robinson, created a baron in 1777, Sir Leonard Robinson being knighted by
ll»{i Williﬁm TII.—Heir presumptive, Matthew Montague, Esq. his Lordship’s
er.— L EBRETT.

LAZENBY, ham. in the township and parish of Wilton, east-divi-
eion of Langbarogh ; 5 miles from Guisbrough, 10 from Stokesley.

LAZENBY-HALL, f.A. in the township and parish of Northaller.
ton; 4 miles from Northallerton.

LEAK, a parish and township, in the wapentake of Allertonshire ;
5 miles from Northallerton, 6 from Thirsk, 29 from York.—Pop.
11. The Church, peculiar, is a vicarage, dedicated to St. Mary,
in the deanry of Cleveland, value, 15/, Patron, the Bishop of
Durham,

LEALHOLME, Aam. in the township of Glaisdale, and perish of
Danby, east-division of Langbarugh; 9 miles from Whitby, 13
from Guisbrough, 18 from Stekesley.

LEALHOLME-HALL, f. A in the township of Glaisdale, and
parish of Danby ; 8} miles from Whitby.

LEASE-CAR, f. k. in the township of Brompton, and parish of
Northallerton ; 3 miles from Northallerton.

LEABES, (the seat of Mrs Arden) in the township of Aiskew, and
parish of Bedale; 2} miles from Bedale, 4} from Catterick, 6}

" from Northallerton.

LEASEHEAD, f. A. in the township of Ugglebarnby, and parish of
Whithy ; 7 miles from Whitby. -

LEBBERSTON, in the parish of Filey, wapentake of Pickering-
Lythe ; 4 miles from Hunmanby, § from Scarborough.—Pop. 143.

LECKBY, 3f. A. in the township and parish of Cundall, wapentake
of Hallikeld ; 5 miles from Boroughbridge, 8 from Thirsk.

LEEMING, in the township of Exilby, Leeming, and Newton,
and parish of Burneston, wapentake of Hallikeld; 2 miles from
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Bedale, 6} from Catterick, 7 from Northallerton.—Pop. incloded
in Exilby. The Church is a perpetnal curacy, dedicated to St.
John, valne, p.r. 43l 6s. 2d. Patron, the Vicar of Burneston.
Leeming-Lane, hence the name of this village, is a Roman road, called the
Ermine-Street. It is called Leeming-Lane from its stony composure, Lie sig-
-nifying a way, and Mean, in British, a stone.— Stukeléy’s Itiner. Curics.
LEEMING, LITTLE, f. b in the township of Aiskew, and parish
of Bedale ; 2 miles from Bedale.
LEIGHTON, 2 f. k. in the township of Healey-with-Satton, and
parish of Masham ; 5 miles from Masham, 10 from Middleham.
LEVEN-BRIDGE. ham. in the townships of Ingleby-Berwick,
and Hilton, and parishes of Stainton and Hilton, west-division of
Langbarugh ; 4 miles fiom Stockton, (Dur.)

LEVEN-GROVE, (the seat of the Dowager Lady Amberst) in the
township of Skutterskelfe, and parish of Rudby; 2 miles from

" Btokesely, 6 from Yarm.

LEVEN, HIGH, or NEW-TOWN, see New-Town.

LEVINGTON, CASTLE, a township, in the parish of Kirkleving-
ton, west-division of Langharagh; 3} miles from Yarm, 5 from
Stokesley.—Pop. 14. :

Here is a large steep hill, called the Castle-Hill, from which Castle-

Levington probably derives its name. 1t is situated on the banke of the Leven, is
of a circular form, characteristic of a Danish fortification, but no vestiges of any
building have ever been discovered.— GRAVES.

LEVINGTON, KIRK, see Kirklevington. .

LEVISHAM, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Pickering-Lythe;
6 miles from Pickering, 15 from Malton, 16 from Whitby, 33 from
York.—Pop. 152.. The Church is a rectory, in the deanry of
Rky;dale, value, 70. 8s. 1}d. p.r. +110. Patron, the Rev. Robert
Skelton. -

LEYBURN, a market-town, in the parish of Wensley, wapentako
of Hang-West; 2 miles from Middleham, 8 from Reeth, and
Ricbmond, 10 from Masham, 12 from Askrigg and Bedale, 45
from York, 235 from London.—Market, Friday.—Fairs, second
Fridays in February, May, October, and December, for horned
caitle, sheep, &c.— Bankers, Wensleydale-Bank, Messrs Hution,
Other, & Simpson, draw on Messrs Sir Peter Pole, Thornton, &
Co. 1, Bartholomew-Lane.—Principal Inns, Bolton’s Arms, and
King’s Arms.—Pop. 810.

LILLING, EAST and WEST, which being united, form the
township of Lillings-Ambo, in the parish of Sheriff-Hutton, wa-
pentake of Bulmer; 9 miles from York, 10 from Easingwold,
and Malton.—Pop. 208,

LILLY-JOCKS, sce Plantation. .

LIMBER-HILL, 2 A. in the township and parish of Fgton ; 8 miles
from Whitby, 15 from Guisbrough. .

LIMEKILN-HOUSE, s. A. in the township of Arden, and parish of
Hawnby ; 9 miles from Northallerton, 10 from Thirsk.

LINGYMOOR, f. ks. in the township of Mealion, and parish of
Middleton-Tyas ; 5 miles from Catterick snd Richmond.
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LINGYMOOR, 2f. 4. in the township of Spaunton, and parish of
Lastingham ; 3 miles from Kirbymoorside. ,
LINTHORPE, or LEVENTHORPE, in the parish of AckMm,
west-division of Langbarugh; 4 miles from Stockton, (Dxr.) 7

from Stokesley.—Pop. 196.

LINTON, in the parish of Newton-upon-Ouse, wapentake of Bulmer;
6 miles from Easingwold, 8 from Boroughbridge, 10 from York.—
Pop. 268.

LITEERSKF.W, in the township of High-Abbotside, and parish of
Aysgarth; ] mile from Hawes, 4 from Askrigg.

LITTLE-ASHES, f. &, in the township of Appleton-le-moor, and
parish of Lastingbam ; 3} miles from Kirbymoorside.

LITTLE-BECK, ham. in the townships of Ugglebarnby and Esk-

. daleside, and parish of Whithy ; 7 miles from Whitby.

LITTLE-BURN-HOUSE, (a residence of Lord Rokeby) in the
township of Thoraldby, and parish of Aysgarth; 10 miles from
Leyburn.

LITTLE-MOOR-HOUSE, f. 4. in the township and parish of Spen-
nythorne ; 3 miles from Middleham.

LIVERTON, in the parish of Kasington, east-division of Lang-.

_ barugh; 9 miles from Guisbrough, 15 from Stokesley, 16 from
Whitby.—Pop. 251,
It is an ancient chapelry dependent on the church of Easington. The chapel
l(a}u parochial rights, but the inhabitants pay no acknowledgment to Easington.—
RAVES, .

LOBSTER-HOUSBE, an Inn, in the township of Claxton, and
perish of Bossall; 73 miles from York, 104 from Malton, 12 from
KEasingwold. Here the Magistrates for the wapentake of Bulmer
hold their Meetings. ,

LOCKTON, in the parish of Middleton, wapentake of Pickering-
Lythe; 6 miles from Pickering, 15 from Malton and Whitby,—
Pop. 324. Here is a Chapel of ease to Middieton.

LODGE-GREEN, ham. in the township of Melbecks, and parish of
Grinton, wapentake of Gilling-West ; 6 miles from Reeth.

LOFTHOUSE, a parish-lown, in the east-division of Langbarugh
(the seat of Sir Robert Lawrence Dundas, Bart.) 8 miles from Guis-
brough, 14 from Whitby, 16 from Stokesley, 59 from Ycrk.s—
Pop. 1,178. The Church is a rectory, dedicated 1o St. Leonard,
in the deanry of Cleveland, value, I0L 112, 0}d. Patron, the King.

1t was given by William ds Saucey, to the prior and convent of Guishreugh,
. and, continued a rectory under their patropage till the dissojution of that mo-
nastery, when it came to the crown. :
fthouse was, in the last century, the seat of the well known Zachary Her-
nage Moore, Esq. who having expended, with unbounded liberality, a very princely.
fertune, was reduced to the pecessity of accepting an ensigney at Gib’raltar, in the
ATth year of his age. In Crazy Tales we have the following monumental inscription
to his memory.
Z. M. Esq.
A living Monument
Of the friendship and generosity of the great ;
After an intimacy of thirty years,
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With most of the great personages of these Kingdoms,
Who did him the honour to assist him,
In the laborious work,
Of getting to the far end of a great fortune,
These his noble friends,
From gratitude, for the many happy days and nights,
Enjoy’d by his means,
Exalted him, through their influence,
* In the 47th year of his age,
To an insigney 3
Which he actually enjoys at present
In GIB’RALTAR.

LONDONDERRY, in the township of Exelby, Leeming, and
Newton, and parish of Burneston, wapentake of Hallikeld; (the
seat of the Rev. John Raper Hunton) 3 miles from Bedale, 8 from
Northallerton. 124 from Ripon.

LONG-HULL, (the seat of Robert Chaloner, Esq.) in the township
and perish of Guisbrough ; } mile from Guishrough.

LONGTHWAITE, in the township and parish of Arkengarthdale,
wapeniake of Gilling-West; 3 miles from Reeth, 10 from Rich-
mond .

LONTON, f. k. in the township of Holwick, and parish of Romald-
kirk ; 8 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) 11 from Gretabridge.

LOUPS, f. h. in the township of Lartington, aud parish of Romald-
kirk; 4 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) 7 from Gretabridge.

LOUSEY-CROSS, p. 4. in the parish of 8t. John Stanwick; 7
miles from Richmond and Darlingon, (Dur.)

LOVESOME-HILL, ham, in the township of Hutton-Bonville, and
perish of Birkby, 3} miles from Northalierton, 12} from Darling-

ton, (Dur.)

LOW.FIELD, see Field, Low.

LOW.-FIELDS, 3. h. in the township and perich of Bowes, 4 miles
from Gretabridge, 5 from Barmard castle, (Dur.)

LOW-MOOR, 4f. & in the township of West-Harlsey, and parish
of Osmotherley ; 3} miles from Northallerton,

LOW-MOORS, see Lund Forest.

LOW-.NESS and HIGH-NESS, 2 f. A in the iownship and parish
of Pickhill; 54 miles from Bedale, 8 from Thirsk.

LOW-ROW, 3 k. in the township of Melbecks, and parish of Grin-
ton, wapentake of Gilling-West ; (tAe seat of Ralph Parke, Esg.) §
wiles from Reeth, 6 from Askrigg.

LUNDS, in the township of High-Abbotside, and parish or Aysgarth;
wapentake of Hang-West; 6 miles from Hawes, 10} from Ask-
rigg. The Church is & perpetual curacy, value, p. r. 172/, 7s. 6d.
‘Patron, the Vicar of A

LUND-HOUSE, f. & in the township of Spaunton, and perish of
Lastingham ; 3} miles from Kirbymoorside, )

LUND-FOREST, or LOW-MOORS, 4 f. A. in the township of Ry-
ton, and perish of Kirkby-Misperton; 4 miles from Malton, 5 from
Pickering, 12 from Kirbymoorside.

LUNE-DALE, a township, in the parish of Roinaldkirk, wapentake
of Gilling-West ; 7 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) 10 from Gre-
tabridge.—Pop. 265.

’
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LYTHE, a perish-town, in the east-division of Langbarugh ; 4 miles
from Whitby, 17 from Guisbrough, 52 from York.—Pop. 1,134,
The Charch is a vicarage, dedicated to St. Oswald, in the deanry
of Cleveland, value, $10L 12s. 6d. p. r. 185(. Patron, the Arch-
bishop of York.

M

MAINS, HIGH and LOW, 2 f. h. in the township and parish of
Masham ; the former 2 miles and the latter | mile from Masham,
MALTRY, in the parish of Stainton, west-division of Langbaragh ;
4 wiles from Yarm, 6 from Stokesley, 11 from Guisbrough.—

Pop. 168. .

MALTON, NEW, a market-town, in the parishes of St. Leonard
and 8t. Michael, wapentake of Rydale, a part in the liberty of St.
Peter; 9 miles from Pickering and Yeddingham, 12 from Sled-

. mere and Snainton New-Inn, 14 from Kirbymoorside, 16 from
Helmsley, 18 from York and Bainton, 20 from Easingwold, 22
from Searborough, 27 from Thirsk, 23 from Beverley 30 from

- Bridlington, 217 from London.—Market, Saturday.— Fairs, Satur-
day before Palm-Sunday, for horned cattle, and that day, and the
week preceding for horses ; Saturday before Whit-Sunday, & July
15, and Sagurday before Nov. 11, for cattle, sheep, &c.—Bankers,
Messrs. Bower, Brown, Dewsbury, aud Thompson, draw on

* Messrs. Curries, Raikes, & Co. 29, Corphill; North-Riding
Bank, Messrs. Hague, Strickland, & Allen, draw on Mesars.
Barclay, Tritton, & Co. 54, Lombard-Street.—Principal Inns,
New-Talbot, and White-Horse.—Pop. St. Leonard, 2,339—St.
Michael, 1,666—Total, 4,005. The Churches areperpetzal cura-
cies, in the deanry of Rydale, value, together with St. Mary,
at old Malton, p. r. 117/. Patron, the Archbishop of York,

The entrance to Maiton from Scarborough, is over a spacious stone bridge
crosging the river in three directions, on the right-hand of which are some remains
of the once large castle, for thus Leland describes it, *“ The castel of Malton hath
been larg, as it epperith by the ruine. There is at this’tyme no habitation yn it,

* hut a mene house for a farmer.” This castle and manor, soon after the conquest,
was given to Gilbert Tyson, from -whose son, William, the Vescies descended,
and in whose hands it continued till William de Vesci (slain in the battle of
Striveling) left no heirs, John de Mowbray was coustituted governor by Edward
II. In the reign of Stephen, Thurston, Archhishop of York, took ion of
this castle, and burnt the town. In the same reign, Eustace Fitz-J father of
William de Vesci, was taken into favour again, and rebuilt the tower ; from this
period it was called New-Malton.

Malton has long been considered the camulodunum of Ptolemy; where vast
quantities of roman coins of various emperors, some as old as Trajan and Hadrian
have been found—and a sepulchral inscription was found in the Pye-Pits, oppo-

site to the castle, ip 1753, vis.:—
D. M. Dis Manibus
AUR. MA i Aurelius Ma-
CRINUS EX crinus ex
EQ SING AUG. . equitibus singularibus Augusti.
Gough’s Camden.

Mr Young, in his history of Whitby, labours with great ingenuity to prove
that Malton is the Roman Derventio, ag::mst the opinions of Camden \yvho places
itat Aldby, Horsley at Kexby, and Drake at Stamford-Bridge. .
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Malton made two returns of members to Parliament, the 23rd and 25th Edw.,
1. and was restored to send members again to Parliament in 1640. The last cone
test was in 1807, when Lord Headley was returned, butonagziﬁm being pre-
sented by Brian Cooke, Esq. against such return, the house declaved the latter
duly elected.—OuprizLp.

John Topham, a learned antiquary, was a native of this place; and in an
humble situation nnder the late Philip Carteret Wehb, Esq. solicitor to the trea=
sury, acquired such a knowledge of ancient hands and monuments, as raised him
to a place in the State Pa ice. His publications in the Archeologis are
numerous. He was elected F. S. A. in 1767, and treasurer in 1785, also F. R. 8,
in 1779. He died at Cheltenham, Aug.19, 1803.— Gent. Biog. Dict.— Nichols’
Lit. Anecdotes vol. I1.

MALTON, OLD, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Rydale, a
In the liberty of 8t. Peter, about a mile distant from New-Malfon,
Pop. 1,064. The Church is a perpetual curacy, dedicated to St,
Ma;y, in the dvanry of Rydale. Patron, Earl Fitzwilliam.

n Leland’s time, it appears to have been the mother-church to St. Michael
and 8t Leonard, at New-Maiton ; and has been built where stood the priory, found-
ed by Eustachius, or Eustace Fitz-John, for cancns of the order of St. Gilbert. In
1200, William Laceles, Knight, granted them two bovates of land in Old-Malton,
in lieu of certain tithes,—valued at the dissolution at 1971, 19s. 24,—DvapaLe.

In 1546, Robert Holgate, D. D. Archbishop of York, founded a free gram-
mar-schoo! here, and endowed it with lands and tenements, of the value of $0L

annum. # The master is appointed by the Archbishop of York.—Anciently,

appears, there were lands belonging to this school ; but now instead of them,
there are certain money payments amounting to about 100/. per annum, with a
good house and garden attached to it.””—Carlisle’s Gram. Schools.

MANFIELD, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Gilling-East; §
miles from Darlington, (Dur). 9 from Richmond, 47 from York.
Pop. 440. The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to All-Saints, in
the deanry of Richmond, diocese of Chester, value, 6l 1s. 3d.
Patron, the King.

¢ Manfield,” says Cade, “ is now an insignificant village, but anciently a
very considerable place of great extent, on an elevated situation, and pmhgly
once a British Oppidum, being every where strewed with emall hillocks, re-
nembling tumuli, and the neighbouring fields lined with the foundations of build~
fxgi and other vestigia; but nothing can be gleaned of its origine or downfall.—

BCHAOLOGYA.

MARDERBY, 2 f. A. in the township and parish of Feliskirk, liberty
of Ripon ; 3 miles from Thirsk,

MARISHES, EAST, a few f. h. in the township and parish of
Thomton, wapentake of Pickering-Lythe; 4 miles from Pickering.

MARISHES, WEST, a township, in the parish of Pickering, wa-
pentake of Pickering-Lythe; 4 miles from Pickering, § from
Malton.—Pop. 210.

MARRICK, or MARWICK, a parish-town, in the wapentake of
Gilling-West ; 3 miles from Reeth, 8 from Richmond, 52 from
York.—Pop. 621. The Church is a perpetual curacy, dedicated
to St. Andrew, in the deanry of Richmond, diocese of Chester,
valae, p. r. 441, 15s. Patron, Josiah M , Esq.

Marrick is sitnated on the northern banksofthe Swale, below which is the
charch, being the nave of the chapel that belonged a Nunnery of Beunedictine
Nuns, founded here in the latier end of the reign to king Stephen, by Roger
de Ask. 1t was, according to Dugdale, dedicated to the Virgin Mary, bat
according to M 8 8 in the Bodleian Library, to St. Andrew.  This house had
the king’s license to continue after the dissolution of lesser houses. It was
surrendered by Christabella Cowper, the Prioress and sixteen Nuns, November
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17th, 1540, the 3ist. Heary VI[I. The site was granted to Jobn Uvedale.
The yearly revenues were rated by Speed at €64 8s. 6d. The Hospital on
Stanemore belonged to these Nuns.—BurToN, BurneTT.

MARRICK-ABBEY, f. A, in the township and perish of Marriek ;
3 miles from Reeth.

MARRICK-PARKS, (the seat of Josiah Morley, Esq.) in the town-
ship and parish of Marrick, 4 miles from Reeth, 9 from Richmond,

MARRIFIRTH, s. A. in the township and parish of Thornton-
Steward ; 5 miles from Bedale, Masham, and Middleham.

MARSETT, kam. in the township of Bainbridge, and parish of Ays-
garth, wapeniake of Hang-West; 4 miles from Hawes, 4} from
Askrigg, 15 from Leyburn. ..

MARSKE,a parish-town, in the east-division of Langharugh ; (Marske-
Hall, the seat of the Right Hon. Lord Dundas) 3 miles from .
Redcar, 6 miles from Guisbrough, 14 from Stokesley, 20 from
Whitby, 57 from York.—Pop. §76. The Church is & vicarage,
dedicated to 8t. Germain, in the deanry of Cleveland, value, $10L
114 10id. p. r. 72/. Patron, Lord Dundas.

The Church, which is very ancient, stands at a little distance from the
village, and withina few of the cliff washed by the sen ; the spire of which
affords a conspicuous land-mark to mariners that frequent the coast.

MARSKE, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Gilling-West; (the
seat of John Huiton, Esg.) 5 miles from Richmond, Reeth, and
Leyburn, 49 from York.—Pop. 290. The Church is a rectory,

" dedicated to St. Cutbert, in the deanry of Richmond, diocese of

Chester, value, 12/, 6s. 5id. Patron, John Hutton, Esq.

' The patronage of this church has been in the family of Hutton ever since 1598,
when Matthew Huiton, archbishop of York, purchased this estate.—In the
gonnda of J. Hutton, esq. is an obelisk, which covers the body of Matthew

utton, formerly a captain in the army, whe dying in the year 1813 at Mac-

clesfield, requested his executors to bury him in this place, where, whea a

. I():oy, be had often sai, enchanted with the beauties of this mountainons
'ountry. .

At Marske, was born, January 5, 1692—3, Dr. Matthew Huiton, arch-
bishop of Canterbury.—He went to school at Kirkby-Hill, near Richmasd, in
1702, under the care of the Rev. Mr. Lloyd, ( of Jesus College, Cambridge,)
whom be accompanied to Ripon, on his being appointed Master there in 1704,
and vemained under his tuition 6 years.—He was admitted at Jesus College,
Cambridge, in 1710, took his degree of B. A. at that College, 1713, and in
the same year was made chaplain to the Duke of Somerset. At a preper age
he was ordained Deacon, by Bishop Fleetwood ; and elected Fellow of Christ»
College, in 1717, and in the same year M. A.—In 1726 he was rector of
Trowbridge in Wiltshire.—In 1729 beame rector of Spofforth in this Connty.
He was madePrebendary of York, by archbishop Blackburn, was appointed one
of the chaplains to George 11. and went with hin Majesty to Hamover, in
1736.—He obtained a Canonry of Windsar in 1737; exchanged May 18, 1739
for a Prebend of Westminster ; which be resigned in 1745, when he became
Bishop of Bangor.—In December 1745, he was {ranslated to the archbishoprick
of York ; and April 1757 to that of Canterbury : He died at Duke Street, West-
minster in 1758, aged 65, and lies buried at Lambeth, near the communion Table.

¢ The Family of Hutton of Marske is the only one in this kingdom who cam
be sajd to have yielded to the chnrch two English archbishops, who both
appear to have been great and good Prelates,” and that within a century of
each other—Matthew archbisbop of York dyipg in 1735, and Matthew of Can-
lorhm'-ﬁ'wu translated to the same see in 1745.—NicuoLs.
. GOM; l;w of York leRt a Son, Sir Timothy, who was High Sheriff in
— DBaKE.
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MARTIN’S, ST. ABBEY, in the township of Hipswell, ind piirisht
of Catterick, wapentake of Hang-Hest; 13 mile from Rich-
mond, 5 from Catterick.—Pop included in Hipswell.

Here was a Priory of Benedictine Monke, founded about the yeéar 1100 by
yomar, lord of Aske, chief steward to Allan, ear]l of Richmond. It was
Yalued at the dissdlution int 1528, clear rentsl, at 43/ 16s. 8. and surrendered
by John Matthew; the last Prior, and nine Monke. The site was granted in the
4th of Edward VI. to Edward, lord Climton, lord high adaiiral of England, whe
sold it the same year to William Pepper, of 8t. Martin’s, Esq., and to Cuthbert
and Williaui Walker, of Richmond.” The walls of the chapel, a tower, and somd
other fragnitents are all that femnin of this Ptiory, and dre fitst ouldering dway.
—Bunrrox. .

MARTON, in the paristi of Simtington, wapentake of Pickdringy
Lythe, a part in the liberty of St. Peter; 4 miles from Pickering,

- & from Kirbymoorside.—Pop. 255. .

MARTON, a parish-town, in the west-division of Langbaragh §
- (Marton-Lodge, the seat of Bartholomew Rudd, Esq.) 5 miles front
- Stockton, (Dur.) 7 from Guisbrough and Stokesley, 8 from Yarm,

&0 from York.—Pop. 397. -The village is sinall, and divided intoy
East and West-Marton; in the latter stands the Church, a vicaragey
dedicated to St. Cuthbert, in the deanry of Cleveland; value; 4l
18s. 9d. p.r. 120/, Patron, the Archbishop of York. )
Here was born November 3, 1728, that celebrated nivigator, Captain Jamdd
Cook. His parents being Inbourérs, Ne reccived €lie rudintents of his educationt
from a echool fifistress of tHe village. His father being afterwards in the servicd
of Thomas Scottowe, Esq., young Cobk, &t eight yedrs of age was sent to a day
school at Ayton, wherd he was educated at Mr. Scottowe’s expence. At the age
of thirteer, He was bound dpprentice to Mr. Sanderson, a shopkeeper at Staithess
but from some disagreement with Nis mastef, the contruct was dissolved, and he
bound himselfapprentice for seven years to Messrs. Walker, of WHith¥/, owners of
ships in the cohl trade.  After serving his apprenticeship faithfully, bre, in 1755,
volunteered on board the Eagle; a sixty gun ship, eommanded by Sir Hugh Pa)«
liser, who_soon marked him as an able and diligent seaman: I 1759, he obs
-tained & warrant as master of the Mercury, in which ship he' wats at the taking of
.Quebec. Tt was here, on the recommmiendation of Sir Hugh Palliser, that he was
employed in thie difficult ahd dangerous service of taling soundings in the river
St. Lawrence, which he did in the night in front of the French lort&éd campq
After making innuttierable discoveries in almost évery part of tHe globe, and hav-
ing enlarged the bounds of human knowledge in various ways, he fell by the hands
of the savage people of Owh{hEe; one of the Sandwich islands, February 14, 1779
Actuated by that ardent zeal, which Jmows no difficulty, and that davmtless spirit
which fears no danger, he went on shore for the purpose of rescuing some of hig
crew from the danger of an unfortunate quarrel withr the Indians, when he was
*shockingly murdered by some, of the barbarians. Captain Cook left & widow and
family ; on the former a pension of 200/. a year was settled by the king, and 254
on each of the chfldren, )

MARTON, a perish, in the wapetitake of Bultder, liberty of pr()d ]
5 miles from Eastngwold, 11 from York, 14 from Malton.—Pop.’
including Moxby. 164. The Church is a perpetual curacy, in the

*deanry of Bulmer, value. p.r. +52/. Patron, the Archbiskop of
York: ) .
~  Bertram de Bulmier, in the tinfe of king Stephen, founde¥ here d Mortdstéry
@edicated to 8t. Mary, for men and women of the order of St. Austin ; bet the
guns not long after, were removed to Molesby. It was valued at 1614 Jo: 4dy
ugdale. 1831, 2s. 4d. Speed. , . .
The little that remains of tifis house is only to be found in and near tif &
farm house, bearing the name of Marton-Abbey. In 34 Henry VII1. 1543, the
tite was granted to the Archbishop of York, in exchange for other lands,—Bunrons

| 4
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MARTON-LE-MOOR, in the pariches of Topeliffo and Kirkby-on-
the-Moor, wapentake of Hallikeld ; 3 miles from Boroughbridge,
4 from Ripon.—Pop. 201. TheChmhuaperpehalclmy
value, p. 1. 58 17s 4d. Patron, the Vicar of Topeliffo.

MARTON-LORDSHIP, f. % in the township of Marton-cum-
Moxby; 5mlesfnnEnngwold, 12 from York.

MASHAM, a market and parish-town, in the wapentake of Hang-
East, aporhnthelibertyof St. Peter; 6 miles from Bedale, 10
from Ripon, Middlcham, and Leyburn, 14 from Thirsk, 15
from Pateleybndge, 18 from Richmond, 33 from York, 222
from London.—Market, Wednesday —Faan, September 17, 18,
and 19, for horned cattle, sheep, pedlary-ware, &o.-—Pmmpal
Inn, King’s Head.—Pop. 1,171. 'The Church, poculiar, is a vica-

- Yage, dedicated to St.llary,m the deanry oECauenek diocese of
- Chester, value, 30L in the patromege of Trinity College, Cam-
bridge, under which Loord Grantly, as leassee, holds the impropriate
rectory. William Danby, of Swinton, Esq. is lord of the manor

Mashamshire, which comprises the whele parish, except tlle

nehip of Bum-upon-Um.

Mubmbrmerl; to the family of the Scropes, whohduelthue,
© distinguish them from anotheriumly of the Scropes of Bolton, from whom
they descended, they were styled in writing Scropes of Masham. (thm
was Jefferey, lord Scrope, twice chief justice of the King’s Bench ; he pi
a charter ﬁre warren for all his demesne lands in this town, 3 Edmdlll also,

hrmm'eekl y market and fairs. He died possessed of this manor Lb of

Ric 1. leaving Stephen his son and heir. This manor and estates continned

in this family §ll 7 of Heary VIL., when Thomas, lord Scrope, dying without male

issue, they were carried into the family of Scropes of Bolton, Ky of bis

daughter Alice with Henry, lord Scrope ; but afterwards came m.

Sir Christopher Disby marrying Mary, the sister of Thomas, lord Scrope.—
M.mBmAm:m ! ’ pe

MAUNBY, in the parish of Kirby-Wiske, wapentake of Gilling-
East; (the seat of Thomas Stubbs Walker, Esg,) 6 miles from North-
allerton and Thtrsk.—Pop. 206.

MAULEY-CROSS, in the township of Pwkenng, and parish of
Middleton.

* This is one of théee anclent stume pillars in the form of a cross, the super-

lﬁ‘tliomueofwunhnda;e;yt;:l‘{m| hg:usmmtedn the:aghlmon,
and most w name it bears, who former
residzdatm.u,,mr%uby y l;

. MELBECKS, a township, in tbe parish of Grinton, wapentake of
Gilling-West.—Pop. 1,726. It is a mountainous district, on the
north-side of the Swale, near to Reeth,
MELMIERBY, in the parish of Wath, wapentake of Hallikeld ; 4}
miles from Ripon, 7 from Thirsk, 4} from Bedale.—Pop. 258,
MELMERBY, in the parish of Coverham, wapentake of Hang-
West; {4 miles from Middleham, 5 from Leybnm.—Pop. 112.

MELSONBY a parish town, in the wapentake of Gilling-West; 6
milesfrom Richmond, 6 from Gretabridge, 44 from York.—Pop. 440,
The Church is a rectory dedicated to St. James, in the deanry of
Richmond, diocese of Chester, value 10/, 2:, 11d. in the patron-
age of Umverlﬂy College, Oxford.
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MELWATERS, £ & in the township and parish of Bowes; 61
miles from Barnardesstle, (Dur.) 7 from G

MICKLEBY, in the parish of Lythe, east-division of Langbarugh ;
7 wiles from Whithy, 15 from Guisbrough, 21 from Stokesley.
—Pop. 147.

MICKLETON, in the parish of Romaldkirk, wapeatake of Gilling-
West ; 7 miles from Bamardcastie, (Dur.) 11 from Grembridge,
22 from Richmond.—Pop. 356.

MIDDLEHAM, a parish town in the wapentake of Hang-West ;
3 miles from Leyburn, 10 from Masham, Bedalo, Reeth, and
-Richmond, 18 from Hawes, 15 from Kettlewell, 43 from York,
and 232 frem London.—Market, Monday.—Fairs, Nov. § and 6
for born cattleand sheep.— Principal Inn, White S8wan.—Pop. 880.
‘The Church is a rectory dedicated to 8t. Mary, value 154 9s. 4}d.
Patron, the King. It is a deanry and ruyal peculiar.

It is & small market town, situated about half a mile from the river Ure, .in
in a rich, fertile country, irregular and ill built, though Leland says it in. »
¢ praty market towne, and standeth on a rocky hill.”

Robert Pitz-Ralph had all Wenaleydale bestowed upon him, by Conatus, earl
of Britayne and Richmond, and built here a very strong castle. It was long
afterwards the seat of the earl of Salisbury, sor of Ralph Nevile, earl of Westmor-
l1and, and father of the greatearlof Warwick. It came to the Neviles by Mary,
daughter of Ralph Fitz Randolph, who was married to Relph de Nevile, one of
the ancestors of the earl of Salisbury. -* This castel, » says Leland, “is the
Gairest castel in Richmonntshire, next Bolton. ”” King Edward the 1V. licenned -
his brother, Richard, duke of Gloucester, to erect & college here of 8 dean, six
chaplains, four clerks, and six choiristers, to celebrate divine service in the
chureh, and to be incorporated by the name of dean and chaplains of the college
of Richard, duke of Gloucester, of Middleham ; “yet before amy buildings were
erected, or provisions made nr the support of the chaplains or choir, Richard
left the work imperfect, being prevented by the troubles in which be was involved,
or by death. In 1467 Edward the IV. was committed prisener to this castle by
the earl of Warwick, from whence be had the good fortune to .- Having
been committed to the charge of archhishop Neville,and being with the

x:i;ilege of huating, and having probably bribed his keepers, he escaped on a

horse to York, themce to Lancaster, where he resumed the government,

Richard the II1. frequently resided here, and in this fortress, his only legitimate

son, Edward, was born: and here the father, “ green in years, bu old in craff

and crueity,”’ says Dr. Whitaker, “amid the sportsof the field, or the appearanced
of devonon’,’ probably meditated some of these tragedies, which he afterwards

The Bastard Fauconbridge, according to Stow, was bebeaded ia this castle in
1741 .— Campex. —DuapaLE. L

The Dacres, earls of Holderness, have long held the constableship of the
castle from the crown, and in consequence that office is vested in the duke of
Leeds.—As it i, majestic in decay, Middieham castle is, says Dr.Whismker, 2
an object, the noblest work of man in the county of Richmond. The views up
and down Wensleydale, from the windows of this castle are delightful and pie-~
tumne.

The rectory of this church was converted into a eoflege by Richard, duke of
Gloucester, sf\erwards Richard II1. but sfter his death, the design was given up, .
but the incumbent still retains the stile of dean, the probate of wills and «t&
ecclesiastieal jurisdiction, &c. . . .

MIDDLESBURGH, in the parish of Acklam, west-division of
Langbaragh, part in the liberty of St. Peter; 5 miles from

Stockton, (Dur.) 10 from Stokesley, and 12 from Guisbrough.—
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Pop. 40. The Chuorch is a perpetual cirecy, dedicated to 8t,
Hilda, value p. r. +75L 6s. 0. Patron, ———Hustler, Ksq.

The chapel has long beea in ruins; the site of which, together with the
ghapel-ygrd uninclosed, is gccasionally used as a hurial-ground.

Here was a cell subordinate to the ahbey of Whitby.  In 1120, Robert de
Brus gave the church of St. Hilda, at Middlesburgh, with 2 curacates, and 2
pxgangs of 1and st Newham, to the monks of St. Peter and St. Hilda, at Whithy,
By the valuationtaken 36, Henry VIIL. its revenues amounted to 21/. 3s. 8d. per
annum T’ and its site was granted 1546 to Thqmas Reeve, Esq.— Dyapaie.—Bur~

N-— 1 ANNXER.
?-I'l the Dunum ABatuarium of Feolemy, he the estuary of the Tees, Middles-
burgh, op the Yorkshire coast, says Cade, inay have been the Roman town.

MIDDLETON-UPON-LEVEN, in the parish of Rudby, west-divi.
sion of Langbarugh; 4 miles from Yarm, § from Stokeslay,—Pop,
111, The Church is a perpetual curacy, dedicated to St. Cuth-
bert, value p. r. 43/, 13s. 6d. Patroness, Dawager Lady Amberst.

MIDDLY¥T3!, a parish town, in the wapentake of Pickering-
iLythe ; 1 mile from Pickering, 10 irom Malton, 28 from York.
—Pop. 247. The Chyrch is a vicarage, in the deanry of Rydale,

_value $10L lls. 84, p, T, 150/ Patrons. Rev. Arthur Clayley.
Rev, Francis Wrangham, and T. Smith, Esq.

MIDDLETON-QUERNHOW, in the parish of Wath, wapentake
of ‘Hallikeld, 5 miles from Ripon, 7 from Bedale, 7} from Thirsk
and Boroughbridge.—Pop. 102,

MIDDLETON-TY AS, aparish town, inthe Wapentake of Gilling-
East, 4} miles from Catterick, 6 from Richmond, 9 from Darling-
ton, (Dur.) 10 from Gretabridge, 42 from York.—Pop. 52%,
The Church is a vicarage, in the deanry of Richmond,- diocese of
Chester, value 15/, 10s. Od. Patron, the King.

Middleton was once famous for its copper-mines, but they have not now been
workec for nearly half a century. '

In the same township and parish is

MIDDLETON-LODGE, (the seat of George Hartley, Rasq.)

MILBY, in the {ownship of Humbertop, and’parishes of Kirkby-on-
the-Moor and Aldborough, wapentake of Hallikeld; 1 mile from
Boroughbridge, 7 from Ripon. The Roman military way passes
through this village from Aldborough tq Catterick.

MITTON-HILL, 's. 4. in the township of Hawsker-with-Stainsacre ;

- 4 miles from Whitby.

M@OR-COTE, f. k. in the township of East-Witton-without, and
parish of East-Witlon; 5 miles from Masham, 6 from Middleham.

MOOR.HOUSE, f. k. in the township and parish of Brignall; 2
miles from Gretabridge. ’

MOOR-HOUSE, or CRANSWICK-MOOR-HOUSE. f. . in the
township of Snape, and parish of Well; 2 miles from Masham.

- MOOR-HOUSES, in the township of Hinderskelf; 6 miles from

' Malton. N :
MOOR-HOUSE, LITTLE, see Little Moor-Housé,
MOOR-ROW, f. k. in the township and parish of St. John, Stan-
. wick ; 9 miles from Richmond.

MOORSOME, or MOORSOME GREAT, in the parish of Skelton,
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eat-division of Langbarugh ; 5 miles from Guisbrough, 12 from
Stokesley, 17 from Whitby.—Pep. 444.

MOORSOME, LITTLLE, f. A in the township of Great-Moorsome ;
4} miles from Guisbrough.

MORTHAM-TOWER, in the township and parish of Rokeby; 1
wile from Gretabridge, 3 from Barnardcastle, (Dur.)

It is an embattled house, probably built sbout the reign of Henry V1I.; o
true border-mansion, with all the peculiar features of that era ; a thorough lobby,
kitchens, butteries, a hall en the right up to the roof, and an handsome tower be-

the hall. At one end is & barnekyn inclosure for the nightly protection of
the cattle from depredators, strongly walled ahout. To a field near it has been
remoyed, the immensc tomb-stone of Greta or Tecs-marble, mentioned by
Leland, and removed within memory from Eggleston-Abbey.”—WHITAKER.

This place and Rokeby were, in very distant ages, in the possession of the
Rokebies; Robert de Rokeby lived in the time of the conqueror. By the arms
and date on Mortham Tower, it appenrs that it was built in 1166 by the Roke-
bies.””— Hultchinson’s Twwer.

MORTON, a township in the parish of Ormesby, east-division of
Lungbarugh ; 3; miles from Guisbrough, 4 [rom Stokesley. It .
contains only 3 farm houses, and 26 inhabitants.

MORTON, a few f. k. (extraparochial,) in the township of New-
brough-cum-Morton ; 5 miles from Helmsley, 8; from Thirsk,
MORTON-UPON-SWALE, in the parish of Ainderby-Steeple,
wapentake of Gilling-East; 4 miles from Northallerton and Bedale,

8 from Catterick.—Pop. 240.

MOSS.DALE, 2 or 3 f. h in the township of Hawes, and parish
of Aysgarth ; 4 miles [rom Hawes,

MOULTON, in the parish of Middleton-Tyas, wapentake of Gilling-
Fast; 3 miles from Catterick, 6 from Richmond, 10 from Durling.

tan, (Dur.)—Pop. 236,

. In this village was horn, in 1743, Mr George Cuitt, an ingenious artist,
and a worthy man. At an eerly period be shewed a strong inclination for
drawing, and some of his early pieces having attracted the notice of the late Siy
Lawrence Dundas, who knew how to reward merit, he became his patron and
benefactor, and seant him to ltaly in 1769, for improvement. In 1775, he rve-
turned to England, and was employed by many of the nobility and gentlemen
jn this county. Five of his best paintings are in possession of S8awuel Crompton,
Feq. of Woodend. He djed at Richmond Feb, 3, 1818, much lamented.

MOUNT-GRACE, in the township and parich of Kast-Harlsey,
wapentake of Birdforth; 7 miles from Northallerton, 9 from

Stokesley, 11 from Thirsk.

Tbe remains of a priory, founded by Thomas Holland, duke of Surrey, for
monks of the Carthusian order, dedicated to the Virgin Mary, about the year
1396, who pot only endowed it with his own manor of rdelhy, but obtained of
king Richarg 11, the lands of three alien prioriea for it ; but dying soon after, the
work was at a stand, and the right of the monks to their possessions questioned,
till Henry VI. confirmed in parliament the duke’s grants to them. After this the
buildings were soon completed, and the monastery flourished till the general disso~
lution. The revenues were valued at 3324 5s. 11d. per annum, Speed; and at
3231. 2s. 10d. Dugdale. The site was granted to James Stangwaies, knight,—
TANNER. i

-From the Stangwaies, it descended to the Lascelles, and was sold by the late
Rev. Robert Lacelles, to the Mauleverers, the present proprietors.

The Church was in the form of a cross, the walls of which are standing; the
roof is gone, the tower is perfect and beautiful. The outer walls inclose sbout
three acres of ground, and are ¢till rtanding fantastically covered with ivy. On
the summit of the woody mountain which shelters this place on the east, are the
fuins of a building called the Lady Chapel, founded in the year 1515.
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MOUNT S8T.-JOHN, (the seat of the Rev. Hencage Elsley,) in the
township and parish of Feliskirk, wapeniake of Birdforth, liberty
of Ripon ; 3} miles from Thirsk, 10 from Helmsley.

Here was a Emeptory of the knights hospitaliers of 8t. John.—It came to
the crown st the dissolution, and was by Henry VIII. for other lands
with the archbishap of York, in which see it now continues. It was valuedatthe
suppression at 102/. 13s. 104 —Sreep and Levanp.

MOWTHORPE, f. % in the townsbip of Terrington-with-Wiggin-
thorpe, and parish of Terrington; 8 miles from Malton. .

MOXBY, f. h. in the township of Marton-with-Moxby, and parish
of Marton, liberty of Ripon ; § miles from Easingwold.

MUKER, in the parish of Grinton, wapentake of Gilling West;
6 miles from Askrigg and Hawes, 9 from Reeth.— Pop- 1,426.

MULGRAVE-CASTLE, (the seat of the Earl of Mulgrave,) in the
township and parish of Lythe, east-division of Langbarugh; 4
miles from Whitby, 17 from Guisbrough.

The late lord Mulgrave, (hon. Constantine John) entered very young into the
mnaval service, under the auspices of his uncle, Augustus John. Soon after he
was of age, he came into parliament for Lincoln ; and early in life, was an able
parliamentary speaker. In his own profession he was justly admired, and may
well be claseed with our most eminent naval commanders. His ¢ to the
North Pole,” published in 1774, will immortalize his memory. He left behind
him a library the most perfect in England, as to all works of naval science, with
many unpublished charts and notes of soundings.— Nickol's Lit. Anee.

At no great distance from the present elegant mansion, upon a steep hill
stand the ruins of an ancient castle, built, according to Camden, years before -
the conquest.—Leland thus notices it; * Mougrave castel standeth on a craggy
hille, and on eche side of itis a hille, far higher than that whereon the castel stand-
eth. The north hille on the topp of it bath certain stones communely caulid
Wadde’s Grave, whom the people there say to have bene a gigant, and owner of
Mougrave.” This castle and barony in the reign of Richard 1. belonged to Robt.
de Turnham,. whose daughter Isabel, was giveh by king Johu in marriage to
Peter de Mauley, a native of Pictou, as a reward for that execrable fact in mur-
dering Arthur, his elder brother’s son, to clear his own title to the crown.

Edmund, ford Sheffield, of Butterwick, lord president of the north, who was
ereated earl of Mulgrave, by king Charles 1. in 1648, in which family it continued
till failing of male issue in 1736.—Maaxa Brrr.—GRravrs, .

MURTON, in the parish of Osbaldwick, wupentake of Bulmer,
liberty of St. Peter; (Murton Hall, the seat of Burnard Smitk, Esq.)
3 miles from York, 15 from Kasingwold.—Pop. 134. Heére isa

_thapel of ease to Oshaldwick, dedicated to St. James; but no
service performed therein,

MUSCOATEKS. in the parish of Kirkdale, wapentake of Rydale; 4
miles from Kirbymoorside, 7 from Helmsley, 8 from Malton.
—Pop. 65.

MYTON, a parish town in the wapentake of Bulmer; (Myton-Hall,
the seat of Martin Staplyton, Esq.) 3 miles from Boroughbridge, 7
from Easingwold, 15 from York. 'Pop. 185 The Church is a
vicarage, dedicated to St. Mary, in the deanry of Bulmer, value’
$6.. Patron. the Archbishop of York.

The fantily of Stapylton is of great note and antiquity, having been in the
carliest times mmmon'e,z among the barons to parliament, and been honoured
with that most noble order of knighthood, the garter, at and soon after the insti-
Ytution thereof. They take their name from Stapylton upon the Tees; Sir Miles
Beac Vs have had rensdences st Carieurt and Fgpans o e T eY 2
‘peatr ve e an i \
wp;’eei‘gnorcmlesl.— 's Baronetage. "6hil, and settled at Myton In tha
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lnﬂ:eegurlm. the Scots, under the command of Randolph, edr! of Mur-
y, ente and wasted all with fire and sword till he came to the very
of York. burnt and destroyed the suburbs of the city, when he drew
off his men and marched back towards his own country. The archbishop of
York, William de Melton, took up arms, and assembled such forces as he could,
composed of clergymen, monks, artificers, and tradesmen, in all to the amount
of 10,000, These able soldiers had an emperienced coinmanders, the archbishop
and bishop of Ely, lord chancellor, being the leadere of these warlike troops ;
much fitter to pray for the suceess of a battle than to fight it. This formidable
army followed the Scotch, aud overtook them at Myton. The Scotch fnding
themselves pursued, drew up on the other sideof the river in battallia. A battle
ensued, tlmPYorkism were defeated, and above 2,000 of the English, with Nicholas

Heming, the lord mayor, were slain and drowned.—Dmraxe.

N

NABY, f. k. in the township of Lartington, and parish of Romald-
kirk ; 3 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) 6 from Gretabridge.
NAPPA-HALL, (a Shooting-box of the Right Hon. Lord Grantham)

in the township of Askrigg, and parish of Aysgarth ; 1} mile from
Askrigg, 6} from Hawes.

This is an old tower-built house, situated on the brow of a hill, sheltered on
the north by a hill ‘{eet higher, commanding a fine view of Wensleydale ;—it was
i 2t el S i D

ies . r er y C »
being high sheriff in 1555, was attended with 300 horse, all of tl:is ﬁ\milysn{l
name, and all in the same habit, to receive the justices of the agsize, and conduct
them to York.— WaITAKER.

NAPPA-SCAR, Aam. in the township of Askrigg, and parish of
Aysgarth ; 1} mile from Askrigg.

NAWTON, in the parish of Kirkdale, wapentake of Rydale, liberty
of 8t. Peter ; (the seat of Thomas Whytehead, Esq.) 3 miles from
Helmsley and Kirbymoorside, 17} from Malton.—Pop, 542." -

NAWTON-LODGE, (a Shooting-box of Thomas Duncombe, Eeg.)
in the township of Nawton, and parish of Kirkdale; 4 miles from
Helmsley. ‘

NESS, EAST, in the parish of Hovingham, wapentake of Rydale ;
(the seat of Thomas Kendall, Esq.) 6 wmiles from Kirbymoorside,
7 from Helmsley, 10 from Malton.—Pop. 59.

In a plonghed fleld, near this village, in 1616, was found, the following
sepulehral fnscription, on a sarcophagus, which contained human banes. .
TITIA’ PINTA? VIX’ ANN’ XXXVHI?
ET’ VAL’ ADIVTORP VIX’ ANN’ XX?
ET’ VARIOLO’ VIX’ ANN’ XV’ VAL’
VINDICIANVS? CONCIVGI’ ET’ FILLIS’

F. C.
NES8, HIGH and LOW, see Low-Ness. )
NESS, WEST, in the parich of Stonegrave, wapentake of Rydale;
§ miles from Kirbymoorside, 7 from Helmsley.—Pop. 5.
NETTLEPOT, 2 f. A. in the township of Lunedale, and parish of
Romaldkirk ; 7 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.)
NEWBIGGIN, (in Bishopdale) in the perish of Aysgarth, wapen.
take of Hang-West ; 5 miles from Askrigg, 6 from Leybarn, 10
from Middleham.—Pop. 128-
NEWBIGGIN, Aam. in the township of Askrigg, and parish of
Aysgarth ; 1 mile from Askrigg, 14 from Middlebam.
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NEWBIGGIN, 2 f. . in the township of Gristhorpe, and patish of
Filey, 2; miles from Hunmanby, 3 from Scarborough.

NEWEBIGGIN-HALL, (a seat of Henry Walker Yeoman, Esq.) in
the township and parish of Egton ; 5 miles from W bitby.

Newbiggia was an ancient manor belonging to the Manieys, lords of Mul-
grave, and with Egton and other possessions descended to the ilvins, by mar-
ringe. This ancient seat had long been in rnins; on the site of which, the present
more modern mansion bas been ereclied. —GRavEs.

NEWBROUGH, or NEWBURGH, in the township of New-

- brough-cum-Morton, and parish of Coxwold. wapentake of Bird-
forth ; (Newbrough-Park, the seat of Thomas Edward Wynn Belasyse
Esq.) 5 wiles from Kasingwold, 10 from Thirsk, 8 from Helmsley,
Pop. including Morion, 162,

In 1145, Roger de Mowbray founded and éndowed & priory here for can-
nons regular of the order of 8t. Austin, valued at the dissolution at £367. 8s. 34,
Dugdale } 4571. 13s. 5d. Speed. Here that learned and diligent historian, Wil-
liam of Newborough, was educated, and who took his name from this place.—
DucoaLe. After the dissolution it came into the possession of the Belasyses,
viscounts, afterwards earls of Fauconberg.

Princess Margaret, daughtcr of Heary VII. bonoured Newburgh with a
visit, in 1503, on her road to Scotland, in order to consummate her marriage
with James IV, of Scotland, which had been solemnized by proxy.—Dgaxe.

NEWBY, in the parish of Scalby, wapentake of Pickering-Lythe ;
3 miles from Scarborongh, 17 from Pickering, 18 from Whitby.—
Pop. 40.

NEWRBY, in the parishes of Seamer and Stokesley, west-division of

; 3 miles from Stokesley, 8 from Yarm.—Pop. 152.

Here is a small school for 10 poor children, born within the townships of
Newby and Seamer, founded and endowed, 1640, by Christopher Coulson, citi-
zen and dyer of London, a native of this place.

NEWBY-PARK, (the residence of John Charles Ramsden, Esq.) in
the township of Rainton, and parish of Topcliffe; 5 miles from
Ripon, 5} from Thirsk, 6 from Boroughbridge.

NEWBY-WISKE, in the perish of Kirby-Wiske, wapentake of
Gilling-Fast ; (Newby-Hall, the property of Colonel Mitford, author
of the Hist. of Greece, and residence of William Armitage, Esq.y
& miles from Northallerton, 6 from Thirsk, 12} from Ripon.«
Pop. 265. :

NEW-BUILDING, (the seat of the widow of the late Francis Smyth,

"Esqg. F. A. 8. a gentleman deeply read in the antiquities of this
county) in the township and parish of Kirbj-Knowle ; 6 miles fromr
Thirsk, 9 from Northallerton.

NEW-FOREST, a township, in the parish of Arkengarthdale, wa-
pentake of Gilling-West ; 4 miles from Reeth, 8 from Richmond.—
Pop. 73,

NEWHAM, %am. in the township and parish of Marton, west-divi-

- sionof Langbarugh; 5 miles from Stokesley and Stockton, (Dur.)

This place with the cell of 8t. Hilda, at Middlesburgb, was given in the reign
of Heury 1. by Robert de Brus, to the abbot and convent of Whitby.—Gaaves.

NEW-INN, (Leeming-Lane) in the township and parish of Burnes-
ton; 6 miles from Bedale, 9 from Thirsk, 10 from Ripon, 10
from Northallerton, 11 from Catterick and Boroughbridge. It is
u respectable Inn and Posting-House. The Magistrates for Hallir
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Lield bold their meetings here, and at York-Gate Inn, alternately.
NEWHOLME, in the township of Newholme-with-Dunsley, and

parish of Whitby, wapentake of Whitby-Strand ; 2} miles from

Whitby, 18} from Guisbrough.—Pop. including Dunsley, 259,

NEW-HOUSES, (the seat of Robert Lodge, Ksq.) in the township
of Thoralby, and parish of Aysgarth, wapentake of Hang-Weéet ;
7 miles from Askrigg, 12 from burn,

NEWPORT, in the township of Linthorpe, and parish of Acklawm,
west-division of Langbarugh; 4} miles from Stockton, (Dur.) 8}
from Stokesley. '

This is a modern village situated upon the banks of the river Tees, 1.1 heing
an out-port belonging to Stockton, containg a commodious quay and granaries, for
the reception of corn and other articles, which are shipped coastwise to London,
Newecastle, &c.— Graves’ Cleveland.

NEWSAM, a few f. k. in the township of Butterwick-cum-Newsaw,
and parish of Appleton-le-Street, wapentake of Rydale; 4 miles
from Malton.— Pop. included in Butterwick.

NEWSHAM, in the parishes of Kirkby-Ravensworth and Barning-
ham, wapentake of Gilling-West ; 4 miles from Gretabridge, 8
from Richmond, 11 from Catterick.—Pop. 511.

NEWSHAM, in the parish of Kirby-Wiske, wapentake of Bird-
forth ; 3} miles from Thirsk, 6} from Northallerton, 10} from
Ripon.—Pop. including Breckenbrough, 173.

This place gave birth 1o Dr. Geo. Hickes, whose greatgrandfather, was lord of
the manor of Nunnington. In Thoresby’s Leod. p. 136, is a pedigree of the
family.— For further account, see Kirby-Wiske.

NEWSTEAD, kam. in the township of East-Witton-without, and
parish of East-Witton, wapentake of Hang-West; 5 miles from
Middleham, 6 from Masham, 6} from Leybarn.

NEWSTEAD-GRANGE, f A in the township and parish of
Thornton ; 5 miles from Pickering and Malton.

NEWTON, a parish-town, in the west-division of Langbarugh; 4
miles from Stokesley and Guisbrough, 12 from Yarm, 47 from
York.—Pop. 119. The Church is a perpetual curacy, in the dean-
ry of Cleveland, value, p. r. +46/. Patron, T. K. Staveley, Esq.

NEWTON, a township. in the parish of Pickering, wapentake of
Pickering-Lythe ; 4 miles from Pickering, 13 from Malton, 17
from Whitby.—Pop. 212. 1t is a dale-town.

NEWTON, or EAST-NEWTON, in the township of Newton-with-
Laysthorpe, and parish of Stonegrave, wapentake of Rydale, liber-
ty of St. Peter; 4 miles from Helmsley, 6} from Kirbymoorside,
13 from Malton,—Pop. inclading Laysthorpe, 72. .

Of this place was the Rev. Thomas Comber, eldest son of Thomsas Comber,
¢3q. of East-Newton, and grandson of the pious aud learned Dr. Comber, dean of
Durham. Dr. Comber died at Baekworth, in 1778; and was buried at Stone-

ve.— Nichols’ Lit. Anecdotes.
EWTON-DALE, the west-side of this dale is in the township of
Newton, and perish of Pickering ; the east-side, in the township
gnd parish of Leavisham; 7 miles from Pickering, 14 from
L
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NEWTON-GRANGE, WEST, ham. in the township and parish of
Oswaldkirk, wapentake of Rydale; 3 miles from Helmsley,
Here was born, July 24, 15835, that indefatigable collector, and eminent anti-
quary, Roger Dudsworth, son of Matthew Dodsworth, registrar of York Cathe-
dml, and chancellor to archbishop Matthews.- He states himself to have been
born in the houre of Ralph Sandwith, esq. father of Eleanor, wife of M. Dods-
worth, esq. his father. He died in August, 1654; and was buried at Rufford,
Lancashire. Anthony Wood says, “ he was a mau of wonderful industry, but
. lesa judgment ; always collecting, but never published any thing.”” And Mr
Goughadds, ®one cannot approachthe bordersof this county, without paying respect
to the memory of the indefatigable collector of its antiguities, Roger Dodsworth,
who undertook and executed a work, which, tp the antiquaries of the present day,
" would have becn thre stone of Tydides.” One hundred and twenty volumes of
‘his own writing, besides original MSS. which he had obtained from several hands,
making all together 162 volx, folio, now loéged in the Bodleian library, are last-
ing memorials what this county owes to him, a4 the volumes of the Monasticon,
(which, though published under his and Dugdale’s names conjointly, wee both
collected and written totally by him) will immortalize that extensive industry
which has laid the whole kingdom under obligatioh. The patronage of general
Fairfax preserved this treasure, and bequeathed it to the library where it is now
lodged. Fairfax allowed Dodsworth a yearly salary to preserve the inscriptions
in churches. —Gen. Biog. Dict.—DRAKE.

NEWTON-HOUSE, (a seat of the Earl of Darlington) in the
township of Exelby, Leeming, and Newton, and parish of Bur-
neston ; 3 miles from Bedale, 8 from Catterick and Northallerton,
14 from Boroughbridge.

NEWTON-HOUSE, (the seat of Moss, Esq.)in the township of
Ugglebarnby, and parish of Whitby ; 7 miles from Whitby.

This house was built by the late Jonas Brown, esq. On an obelisk near the
‘ouse is a latin inscription, to commemorate his industry and perseverance, in
converting wild moors into pleasure grounds.— Young’s /hitby.

NEWTON-LE-WILLOWS, in the parish of Patrick-Brompton,
wapentake of Hang-East; 3 miles from Bedale, 9} from Rich-
mond.—Pop. 250. ’

NEWTON-MURRELL, in the parish of St. John Stanwick, wa-
pentake of Gilling-Eas{; 6 miles from Darlington, (Dur.) 9
from Richmond,—Pop. 31.

NEWTON-MULGRAVE, in the parish of Lythe, east-division of
Langbarugh ; 8 miles from Whitby, 14 from Guisbrongh, 21 from
Stokesiey.—Pop. 134.

NEWTON, orf SCAB-NEWTON, 2 f. . in the township of Exel-

. by, Leeming, and Newton, and parish of Burneston ; 4 miles from
Bedale, 8 from Northallerton, 13 from Ripon.—Pop. included in
Exelby.

NEW’[‘(%NCUPON-O USE, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Bul-
mer; 6 miles from Easingwold, 9 from York and Boroughbridge.
Pop. 495. The Church is a perpetual curacy, in the deanry of Bal-
mer, value, p. r. +90/. Patroness, Mrs Margaret Earle,

NEW.TOWN, or HIGH-LEVEN, ham. in the townshipe of Ingle.

. by-Berwick and Hilton, and parish of Stainton; 2} miles from
Yarm, 5} from Stokesley.

NICHOLAS, ST. f. A. in the township and parish of Richmond; } a
mile from Richmond.

In this farm-house arc to be seen, (particularly the balcony in front, along the
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Sop of whieb Tuns & parapet of open stone fret-work, still very perfect, supportad
by stone pillars,) the remains of an ancient hospital dedicated to St. Nicholus,
in which was ondy one chaplain in the patronage of the king, hy reason of the
honour of Richmond. The founder unknown. It having fullen very much into
deeay, both in buildings and revenues. The king, in 1448, granted it to Willian
Ayscogh, one of the justices of the common pleas, who repaired ic and added
another chantry chaplain, on which consideration, and that he was become a se-
cond founder, prince, Henry VI. 26th, granting him the patronage. In this
state it continued to the genemn!riiuolution of colleges and hoepitals, when it be-
came vested in the crown, and was valued at 10/, per ann.—DuapALE.—~MaanNa
Brir. It is now the property of the Right Hon. Lord Dundas.

NORMANBY, a parish-fown, in the wapentzke of Rydale; 4 miles
from Kirbymoorside and Pickering, 12 from Malton, 23 from
York.—Pop. 191. The Church is a rectory, in the deaury of Ry-
dale, value, $9/. 125. 6d. Patron, Richard Hill, Ksq.

At Normanby is a suiphur spaw, which affords 60 gatlons an hour, winter and
.summer.—It is very strong of the sulphur and mineral spirit, but weak of the
fixed parts. The Lgrivium of its salt set by to chrystalize, affords about two parts
nitre, and a third part common salt.—Dr. Short an mineral waters.

‘NORMANBY, in the parish of Ormesby, eest-division of Lang-
barugh, (tke seat of William Ward Jackson, Esq.) 4} miles from
Guisbrongh, 7 from Stokesley.—Pop. 122.

NORMANBY, in the township and pavish of Fylingdale, wapentake
of Whitby-Strand ; 4 miles from Whitby, 17 from Scarborofigh.
It is a stragyling place.

NORTHALLERTON, a market and parish-town, in the wapentake.
of Allertonshire ; 8 miles from Bedale, 9 from 'U'hirsk, 13 from
Catterick, 16 from Richmond, Darlington, (ur.) Yarm, and
Stokesley, 17 from Ripon, 19 from Boroughbridge, 20 from
Helmsley, 32 from York, 226 from London, by Boroughbridge; 231
by Yorl:.~—Market, Wednesday.—Fuirs, Feb. 14, for horses and
horned cattle, &c. and a week preceding, for horses only; May
5 and 6, for horses, hormed cattle, sheep, leather, woollen-cioth,
&c. Sept. 5 and 6, for horned cattle, sheep, leather, &c. October
3and 4, for horned cattle, sheep, &c. second Wednesday in Octobor
for cheeses.—Principal Inns, Golden Lion, and King's Head.—
Pop. 2,626. The Church, pecaliar, is a vicarage, dedicated to All-
Saints, in the deanry of Cleveland, value, 17/, 10s. Patrons, the
Dean and Chapter of Durham.,

The church is a very ancient and elegant structure, and was huilt, decording
to Dr. Stukeley’s opinion, by the Northumbrian Apostle Paulinus, about the
yeer 630. The name of this place is in Doomesday hook, written Alvertune and
Alreton, and probably derives its name from this spot, and the adjacent couatry,
sbounding in alders, a tree of which one specics is said to aflect dry and e!evale“
situations, and the other is 8 most faithful lover of watery and boggy places.

Crassisque paludibus Adni
Nasountwr. Vinaie.
¢ It appears,” says Mr Gale, ‘ to have been a Saxon borough, and like many
others to have risen out of the ashes of some old Roman station, whose name we
have lost,” which he thinks the adjacent hamlet of Romanby, ( Romanorum habi-
tatio) sufficiently denotes ; and this is confirmed, he supposes, hy the ancient in~
trenchments near the town, called the castle-hills. On the west side of the town
stood a castle, built by Rufus, bishop of Durham, in the time of Henry L. ~butin
Leland’s time there was not a vestige of the walls remaining.—The bishop of
Purham had here a palace, strong of building and well m as Leland says,
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which stood about 200 yards west of the church, but the late gothic proprietors
have not left one atone upon another.

This palace, which had become ruinous in Lambard’s timse, seems to be the
weather-beaten castle deseribed by a singular traveller, Richard Frank, who re-
presents it as demolished hy age and ruins of time, and serving as a receptacle
for bats, buzzards, ‘owls, and jackdaws.

_ William de Alverton, in the 14th year of Edward I]. gave the Austin
friars 8 acres of ground in this town, to huild them a church and habitation
thereon.—T ANNER.

On the east side of the town stood a house of Carmelites, founded by Thomas
Hatfield, bishop of Durham, or according to some, by king Edward III. about
the year 1354, dedicated to St. Mary. It was surrendered ly{,Will. Wommefraye

,and nine brethren. The site was granted (7th of Edward V1.) to Richard and

H. Vavasour—TanNer Here was a grammar andsinging school, when in 1327
the Prior of Durhamr. presented J. Podesay to be master of it,—The present school
to which the dean smf chapter of that church nominate a master, is undoubtedly
by the rame. It appears, however, to be of royal foundation.—Garz.

Near this place, that is about a mile on the road to York, wae an hospital,
dedieated to 8t. James, founded by Hugh Pudsey, bishop of Durham, or by
Philip Poictou, his succeseor, in the reign of Richard 1.—Gatz. -

Here is the Register-office for the North-Riding of this county, builtin 1736;
and the house of correction and court room, built not many years since, &c. where
the general quarter sessions of the peace for the North-Riding are held.

NORTH-COTE, f. A. in the township of Burton-upon-Ure, and.
sish of Masham ; } mile from Masham, 6 from Bedale.
NORTH-FIELDS, 3 f. k. in the township of Boldron, and parish
of Startforth ; 2 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.)
NORTH-HOLME, (extraparochial) in the wapentake of Rydale
4 miles from Kirbymoorside, 5; from Helmsley.—Pop. 24.
NORTH-INGS. 2 f. h. in the township and parish of Sheriif-Hutton ;
_ 8 miles from Easingwold, 11 from York. ‘
NORTON-CONYERS, a township, in the parish of Wath, wapen-
take of Allertonshire; (the seat of Sir Bellingham Reginald Graham,
Bart. oceupied by Mr Askwith) 4 miles from Ripon, 9 from Bedale

‘and Boroughbridge.—~Pop. 87.

~ This place had been the property of the venerable Richard Norton. who with
three sons, engaged in 1569, in the religious rebellion of the earls of Northumber-
fand and Woestmoriand, against Queen Elizabeth. To inspire their followers
with fit enthusiasm, they put into the hands of Norton, a flag, painted with the
five wounds of vur Sayiour. It seews to have been a second Pilgrimage of Grace,
like the insurrection under Aske. This was soon suppressed. Mr Norton and
his sons were executed among multitudes of others, and his estate gronted to &
Musgrave, who dispesed of it wo an ancestor of the present owner. From one of
the younger Nortons, Sir Fletcher issaid to derive his descent.—PENnanT.

The founder of this family was Sir Richard Graham, a borderer of the east
Marches, near the banks of the Eske. He was made master of the horse, under
the favourite duke of Buckingham. When Charles I., then Prince of Wales,
took his remantie journey to visit the Infanta, Sir Richard was one of his slender
train. At the battle of Marston-moor he distingunished himseif by acts of deter-
mined bravery ; and closed his life in a faithfol attachment io his master., When
the day was irretrievably lest, and nothing remained but for every man to seek
the best means of security, Sir Richard fled with 26 bleeding wouuds upon him
to his own house at Koytou Conyers, about 15 miles from the field. Here he
arrived in the evening, and being spent with loss of blood and fatigue, he was
'r;anieq 'i:dto his chamber, where taking a last farewell of his disconsolate lady,

e expired.

Cromwell, who had ever expressed a peculiar invete inst this gen-
tleman, and thought victory only half obtained, if he u:;zdﬁ:nud him in
person with- a troop of horse, {Vhen, he arrived at Norton, his galiant enemy
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was dead ; having scaree lived an hour afier he was carried into his chamber j
and Cromwell found his wretched lady weeping over the mangled corps of her
busband, yet scarce cold. Such a sight, one would have imagined, might have
fhiven bim—not indeed an emotion of pity, but at least a satiety of revenge ; on
e contrary, he still feit the vengeance of his soml unsatisfied ; and turning
around to his troopers, who had statked after hiin into the sacred recesses of sor-
r0w, he gave thesign of bavoc, and in a few moments the whole house was torn
to pieces ; not even the bed was spared on which the mangled body was extended,
and every thing was destroyed which the hand of rapine could not carry off.
Sir R. B. Graham, the present bart. was born 1789, married in 1510, Hen-
rvietts, the third daughter of the late George Hatch, of West-Hatch.—.4ddiven’s

Anecdotes.

NORTON-LE-CLAY, in the parish of Cundall, wapentake of
Hallikeld ; 3 miles from Boroaghbridge, 6 from Ripon.—Pop. 142.

NOSTERFIELD, in the township and parish of West-Tanfield,
wapentake of Hallikeld ; 4 miles from Masham, 63 from Bedale, 7
from Ripon.

NUN-HOUSE, f. 4. in the township of Thimbleby, and parish of
Osmotherley ; 8 miles from Northallerton.

NUNNINGTON, a parish-town, in the parishes of Nunnington and
Stonegrave, wapentake of Rydale; (a seat of Sir Bellingham
Reginald Graham, Bart. now occupied by a Farmer) 4; miles fram
Helmsley, 5§ from Kirbymoorside, 12 from Malton, 20 frem
York.—Pop. 418. The Church is a rectory, dedicated to All-
Saints, in the deanry of Rydale, value $13/. 6s. 84. Patron, the
King.

S;‘r R. Bellingham Graham, Bart. is lord of the manor, whose ancestors pos~
seased a fine baronial mansiop and residence here ; the late baronet died hore in
1796. It was once the residence of the celebrated lord Preston, who made & dis-
tinguished figure in the time of the 2nd Charles and James; and was comumitted
to the tower for plotting the return of the latter prince, in the reign of William III.

In 1678, Reginald Grabam founded and endowed a school here for & naster
and 6 poor persons—here is also an hospital eontaining 5 tenements, dependant
on the bounty of Sir B. Graham, bart.

NUNTHORPE, in the parish of Great Ayton, west-division of Lang-
barugh; (Nunthorpe-Hall, the seat of Thomas Simpson, Esq.) 8}
miles from Stokesley, 6 from Guisbrough, 10 from Yarm.—Pop.
110. The Church is a perpetual curacy, dedicated to St. Mary,
value, 36/, Patrons, Thomas Simpson and William Richardson,

Esqrs.

In this chapel, situated within a few yards of the manor house, there was a
chantry founded in the time of king Edward III. It appears to have been origis
nally private, built and endowed by tbe lord of the manor, for the convenience of
his tenants and domestics ; the patronage of whieh is still appendant to the manpr.
It dees not enjoy rights of baptisns, marriages, or.burials.— Graves.

A small cistercian nunnery was founded here in the latter part of the reign of
Henry 1I. by Ralph de Nevile; but afterwards removed to Basedale. _After the
suppression of the priory, 27th Henry VIII. the premises called Nunhouse
Grange, were leased by the king to William® Snowball, for 21 ye#trs, at the yearly
pental of 6/. 13s. 4d. and afterwards granted by king Henry VIIl. in estate fail,
to King’s college, Cambridge.—Burrox.

NUTWITH-COTE, f. k. in the township of Burton-npon-Ure, and

parish of Masham ; | mile from Masham,

: o
OAK-TREE-INN, (Leeming-Lane) in the township and parish of
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Burneston ; 5 miles from Bedale, 10 from Thirsk and Nerthaller.
ton.—Some few years ago a good Posting-House, now only a
Pablic-House. . :

OLAVE, ST. (8t. Mary's-gate, York) a parish, in the wapentake of
Bulmers in the suburbs of the north side of York,—Pop., 966.
The Church is & perpetual curacy, value p. r. :50/. Patron, Lord
Grantham.

OLDBROUGH, sece Aldbrough,

OLDSTEAD, in the township of Byland-Membris, and parish of
Low-Kilbarn, wapentake of Birdforth ; (Oldstead-Grange, the seat
of Thomas Paul, Esq.) 6 miles from Helmsley, 7 from Easingwold.

OLLIVER, f. k. in the townsbip of Aske, and parish of LKasby;
1 mile from Richmond.

ORAN, (the seat of Jonathan Walker, Esq.) in the township and
parish of Catterick; 1} mile from Catterick.

ORGATE, f. k. in the township and parish of Marske ; 5 miles from

Reeth, 7 from Richmond.
RMESBY, a parish-town, in the west-division of Langbarugh ;
(Ormesby-Hall, the seat of Sir William Pennyman, Bart.) 6 miles
from Guisbrough, 7 from Stokesley and Stockton, (Dur.) 50 from
York.—Pop. 365. The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to St.
Cathbert, in the diocese of York, value, 6/ 18s. 63d. p. r. +140L
Patren, the Archbishop of York.

The family jof the Pennymans it is said, came from Saxony, before the con-
quest, and first settled in Kent. Sir William Pennyman of Mask, was the first
‘baronet, so created by Charles I. but we don’t find them settled at Ormesby till
the latter part of the reign of queen Elizabeth, when it appears they were in
possemsion of the manors and principal estates here,

James Pennyman, esq in the time of Charles I. raised a troop of horse in
support of the royal cause ; and to defray the sum of 700l levied on him for his
loyalty by the sequestrators in the civil wars, he was obliged to dispo<e of a part
of his estate at Ormesby, wlx'ich was sold w Mr. Elwes, for 3,600/, It was re-pur-~
gmned after divers alienations by the late Sir James Pennyman for 47,6004 —

RAVES,
The hall is 2 modern mansion, built by Mrs Pennyman, daughter of arch-
bishop Wake. 1t is situated on an eminence, and commands a pleasing prospect
of the mouth of the Tees, and the Sca. .

OSBALDWICK, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Bulmer, liberty
of St. Peter; (the residence of Mr Hotham) 2 miles from York;
15 from Ensingwold, 18 from Maiton,—Pop. 176. The Charch,
peculiar, is a vicarage, dedicated to St. Thomas, in the deanry of
Bulmer, value, $4l. Patron, the Prebendary of Strensall,

OSGOODBY, 3 f. A. in the sownship and parish of Thirkleby, liberty
of Ripon ; 5 miles from Thirsk, 8 from Easingwold. »

OSGODBY, in the parish of Cayton, wapentake of Pickering-
Lythe ; 3 miles from Scarborough, 15 from Bridlingion.—Pop. 72.

OSMOTHERLKLY, a perish-town, in the wapentake of Allerton-
shire; 7 miles from Northallerton, 10 from Stokesley, 114 from,
Thirsk, 35 from York., Pop. 755. The Church, peculiar, is a
vicarage, dedicated to St. Peter, in the deanry of Cleveland, value,
$8L 10s, p.r. +51L Patron, the Bishop of Durham. )

The prebendaries of OsmBtberly being mentioned on the secords in the téye
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of Edward 1. some have thought this to have heen a colleglate church ; but iy
weems rather to have heen a rectory, divided into three distinct parts or pomonn,
and it isso rated in the Lincoln taxation. But it wasafterwards of three sinecure
portions, and a vicar endowed. Yet in the archbishop’s certificate of all hospitals,
cqlleges, &c.anno 37, Henry VIIL. there is ¢ the three prebends simpters within
the parish church of Osmotherley, the yearly value 18L.”—Taxwes.

OSWALDKIRK, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Rydale;
( O:waldkzrk-Hall the residence of the Rev. Francis Simpson) 3}
miles from Helmsley, 71 from Klrbymoorslde, 13 from Maiten, -
193 from York.—Pop. 212. The Church is rectory, dedicated
to St. Oswald, in the deanry of Rydale; value, 10.L ls. 8d,
Patron, the Rev. Thomas Comber, the present rector.

0SWALDKIRK-QUARTER, in the township of Ampleforth, and
parish of Oswaldkirk, wapentake of Rydale—consists of 9 farm
and cottage-houses, and lands intermixed through the township
and parish of Ampleforth.

OTTFRINGTON NORTH, a parish and township, ip the wapen-
take of Allertonshire 3 3 miles from Northallerton, 8 from Thirsk,
14 from Ripon, 31 from York.—Pop. 44, The Church is a vica-
rage, dedicated to 8t. Michael, in the deanry of Cleveland, value,

4L p. r. 104/, in the Patronage of Christ-College, Oxford. -

OTTERINGTON, SOUTH, a parish-town, in the wapentike of
Birdforth ; 5 miles from Northallerton, 6 from Thirsk, 14 from
Ripon, 29 from York.— —Pop. 201. The Chusch iz a rectory, de-
dicated to St. Andrew, in the deanry of Bulmer, value, in two
medietates of 7L 11s. 4}d. each, Patron, the Rev. Joshua Sampeon,
the present incnmbent.

OULSTON, in the parish of Coxwald, wapentake of Birdforth; 3}
wiles from Easingwold, 1] from Thirsk.—Pop. 225.

OVERTON, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Bulmer; 5 miles
from York, 8 from Easingwold, 20 from Malton.—Pop. 59. The
Church is a vicarage, dedicated to St. Cathbert, in the deanry of
Bulmer, value, $4.. 8s. 113d. p. r. +135L Patroness, Mrs Eurle.

At Overton, the abbots of York had their chicf country residence. The old
bouse, says Drake was standing here of late years, in the parlour of which,in 1661,
Dr. Hutton read the following inscription on the wood work, pest temebras
lucem, &c. The house called Hall, continued in the crown till the 5th of Eliag~
beth, when it was sold to one John Herbert. But the site of the house, with the
pad: at Benmgbmgh &c. i3 now part of the poesessions of John Bouchler, esq

OVIVGTON in the township of Thorpe, and parish of Wyecliffe,
wapentake of Gilling-West; 4 miles from Gretabridge, 6 from
Barnardcastle, (Dur.) 10 from Richmond.—Pop. 166. '

OXCLOSE-HOUSE, f. . in the township and parish of West—Roun-
ton; 6 miles from Yarm, 9 from Northallerton.

OXCLOSE S, 2 f. k. in the township of Hutton-le-hole, lmd prish
of Lastmgham 3 miles from Kirbymoorside.

OXNUP, HIGH and LOW, 3 f. k. each, in the township ¢
Muker, and parish of Grmton, wapentake of Glllmg-West" 5
‘miles from Askrigg, 8 from Reeth.

In 1764 died, in the 125th year of his age, George Kirton, of Oxnup-Hall,

+ near Reeth, eeq. 2 genﬂgm more remarkable for foxhunungmnthcfamun
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. He followed the chase till he was upwards of 80, and so great was his
desire for the diversion of hunting, that he regularly attended unkennelling the
fox, in his single horse chaise till he was 100 years old. He made_free with his
bottle until within 10 years of his death.—Annual Register, 1764.

OXSKEW, or OXGUE, 2 f. A in the township and parish of Mar-
rick ; 5 miles from Reeth, 7 from Richmond.

¥ o

PARADISE, %am. in the township of Melbecks, and parish of Grin-
ton; 4 miles from Reeth, 9 from Askrigg.

PARK-GATE. f. A in the township-and parish of Fylingdales; 5
miles from Whitby.

PARK-HALL, f. A. in the township of Melbecks, and parish of
Grinton ; 2 miles from Reeth.

Formerly the residence of the Duke of Wharton ; and where that family had
apark; the hall was built by Thomas, Marquis of Wharton in 1700.— WHITAKER.
PARK-HALL, f. k. in the township and parich of Guisbrongh; 2

miles from Guisbrough, 9 from Stokesley. ’

PARK-HOUSE, f. k. in the township of Winton, and perish of
Sigston; 4 miles from Northallerton.

PARK-HOUSE, f. k. in the township and parish of Kirkleatham ; 3
miles from Guisbreugh.

PASTURE-HOUSE, f. h. in the township and parish of Thornton-
Watlas ; 3 miles from Bedale.

PASTURE-HOUSE, f. A. in the township of Thornton-le-beans, and
perish of North-Otterington ; 5 miles from Northallerton.

ATRICK-BROMPTON, a parish-town, in the wapentake of

- Hang-East; (the seat of Gregory Elsley, Esq.) 3 miles from Be-
dale, 9 from Richwend, 37 from York.—Pop. 158, The Charch
is a perpetwal caracy, dedicated to St. Patrick, in the deanry of
Catteriok, diocese of Chester, value, 34L. 13s. 13d. p. r. $471
Patron, the Bishop of Chester.

PEAK, in the township and parish of Seamer, wapentake of Pic-
kering-Lythe ; (the seat of Sunderland Cook, Esq.) 8 miles from
Whitby, 12 from Scarborough. ‘

i Here bas been a Roman fort; where a stone was found in 1774, bearing an
inscription in good preservation, for which see— Young’s Whitdy,

'he manufactyre of alum is carried on here to a great extent; the works of
Peak and Stoupe Brow producingannually about 300 tons. They appear to have
been first worked about 1616-18.— Jdid.

PEN-HILL, in the parishes of West-Witton and Coverham; 4
miles from Middlebam, It is a hill sitaated on the south-side of
‘Wensleydale.

PEEP-O'DAY, f. h. in the township and parish of Hustwaite; 1k
mile from Easingwold.

PEPPER-HALL, (the seat of John Arden, Esq.) in the township

~ of South-Cowton, and parish of Gilling ; 6 miles from Northaller-
ton, 7 from Richmond, 11 from Darlington, (Dur.)

PICKERING, (which gives name io the wapentake) a market and
rridi-bwn, in the wapentake of Pickering-Lythe ; 8 miles from

irtbymoerside, 9 from Malion, 19 from Scarborough, 21 from
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Whithy, 27 from York, 2256 from London.«Market, Monday,
Fairs, Monday before February 14, Monday before May 13,
September 25, Monday before November 23, for borned cattle)
horses, sbeep, and pigs.— Principal Inns, Black Swan, and W hite
Swan.—Pop. 2,746. The Church, peculiar, is a vicarage, dedis
- cated to 8t. Peter, in the deanry of Rydale, value, 18(, 3s 94,

p. 1. 1404 ‘Patron, the Dean of York.
The town of Pickering, which is said by Fabian, to have been bailt 270
r¢ before Christ, covers a large extent of grouynd, irregularly builts
t sent members to parliament 23rd of Edward I. but was discoutinued in the
same reign. 1t belongs to the Duchy of Lancaster, and has a jurisdiction over
several adjacent villages. Richard Hill, Esq. of Thornton, is lord of the ma-
nor, and also Jord of the honour of Pickering- Lythe.

The castle here, which has been of much importance to the town, is situated
pear. the, western extremity of it, and is thus described by Leland,  The
castelle stondith in an end of the towne not far from the paroch chirch, on the brow
of the hille, under which the broke rennith. In the first court ofit, be a 4 tou;
of the which one is caullid Rosamonde’s tour. In the ynner court be also
toares, whereof the keep is one. The castelle waulles and the toures be meatly
welle. The loggings yn the ynner court that be of tembre be is ruine. In this
toner courtis a chappelle, and a cantuaire Prest. The castelle hath, of a good
continuance with the towne and lotdship, longid to the Lancaster bloode } whe
made the castelle, or who was owner of it afore the Laneasters, I could not lerne
there. The castelle waulles now remaining seme to be of no very old buildisgy

[As | remember I bard say that Ricbard III. lay sumtvme at this castelle snd
sumtyme at Scardeburgh castelle.”

i‘he form of the castle is irregular; its buildlng extremely ruinous. The
keep stood on 2 mount, surrounded by a deep ditch, which crossed the outer
court, over which was a bridge. The chapel was a smalt incan building ; some
old pews are still’ remaining in it.—Part of the ground within the wall of this

' e is converted into a garden.— GRosE.

According to Hardyng’s Chrenicle, King Richard II. was confined in thiy
castle, previous to his removal to Knaresbrough and Pontefract.

By whom this castle was founded is not now known ; it appears from Doomres«
day book, that, in the time of King Edward the confessgr, it belouged, with the
manor, to Morcar, Earl of Northumberland. To whom it was given after the

uest is uncertain. King Heury II1. in the 32nd year of his reign constituted
Lord William Dacre, high sﬁeﬁﬂ' of the county, and assigned to him the custody
of this castle. Towards the end of bis reign, Henry gave it with the lordship to
his son Edmund. He was succeeded by his son Thomas, Earl of Launcaster, vho
was beheaded at Pontefract in 1322, for entering into & conspiracy against Piery
Gavestone, the King’s favourite, and others. nft afterwards passed to the Lady
Blanche, wife of John of Gaunt, Duke of Richmond. In the reign of Qncen
Elizabeth it was in the hands of the crown.—1It has now for many years belooged
to the family of the present owner, Richard Hill, Esq. In the civil wars, in the
reign of Charles I. it stood a siege against the forces of the parliament.—It has &

- eourt for actions under 40¢. arising within the honour of Pickeriug.—~ Gross—
Caupgn—Maana BriT.

PICKERING-LYTHE, a wapentake, situate north-east of York,
of which Richard Hill of Thornton, Esq. is Lord and Chief Baiiff.
1t is bounded on the east by the Sca: on the south by the River

. Derwent or East-Riding ; on the west by the wapentake of Rydale;
and on the nortb by those of Langbarugh and Whitby-Strand,
The wapentake and liberty are co-extensive, 1t is a mountaihons

. district, and formerly had its Forest, and commonly styled the
liberty or Forest of Pickering-Lythe ; which was given by Hewry
IIL to his son Edmund, Karl of Lancaster. It containg two
macket-towns, Pickering and Scarborough ; 46 townshi,s, 16 of

M ' .
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which arc parishes, 4,736 inbabited houses, occapied by 23,763
inhubitants. . .
"PICKHILL, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Hallikeld ; 7 mile}

from Bedule and Thirsk, 8 from Northatlerton, 9 from Ripen, 31
from York.—Pop. including Roxby, 334. The Church is a vica-
rage, dedicated to All-Saints, in the deanry of Catterick, dicoesd
of Richmond, value, %5l 13s. 4d. p. r. 85l in the patronage
of Trinity College, Combridge. . 4
_ The nyrsery grounds of Mr Thonpson here, which are very extensive, hdve
been cultivated as such for above a century by his ancestors and himself.

PICKHILL. f. & in the township of Carlton-high-dale, and parish
of Coverham ; 8} miles from Middleham.

PICKTON, in the parish of Kirklevington, west-division of
Langbarugh; 4 miles from Yarm, 8 from Siokesley, 9 from
Northallerton.—Pop. 94.

PINCHINGTHORPE, in the parish of Guisbrough, east-division
of Langbarugh s (the sent of James Lee, Esq.) 3 miles from Guis-
brough, 5 from Stokestey.—Pop. 80.

PLAINVILLE-FARM, (the seat of Charles Smith, Esq.) in the
township und parish of Wigginton ; 5} miles from York,

PLANTATION, or TOCKETS. a township, in the parish of Guis-
brough ; east-division of Langbarugh ; 1} mile from Guisbrough.—
Pop. 46.

P‘l.'his place gnve name to a family called Tocketss, who resided here for many
nerations, and only assumed the name of Plantation on its coming into the
hands of the present family. There was an ancient chapel here, dedicated to 8t.
James, founded by the Tockett’s family; not a vestige of which is now to be

. found.—Graves,
PLANTATION., p. A. in the township of Dalton, and parish of

Croft 3 6 miles from Darlington, (Dur.) 10 from Northalierton.

PLANTATION, or LILLY-JOCKS, s. . in the township and
parigh of Arkengarthdale ; 3 miles from Reeth.

PLUMTREE-HOUSE. f. 4. in the township of Borrowby, and
parish of Lythe ; 10 miles from Whitby. .

POCKLEY, in the parish of Helmsley, wapentake of Rygdale; 2
miles from Helmsley, 5} from Kirbymoorside.—Pop. 227,

POND-HOUSE, f. A. in the township and parish of Thornton-Wat-
las ; 4 miles from Bedale, 5 from Masham,

POT-ING, ham. in the township of Melbecks, and parish of Grip-
ton, wapentakes of Hang and Gilling-West ; 5 miles from Reeth,
6 from Leyburn.

POT and POT-GRANGE, 2 f. k. in the township of Ilton-with-
Pot. and parish of Masham ; 6 miles from Masham.

POTTO or POTTOWE, in the parish of Whorlton, west-division
of Langbarugh ; 6 miles from Stokesley, 8 from Yarm, 10 from
Northallerton.—Pop. 207, .

PRESTON-UNDER-SCAR, in the parish of Wensley, wapentake
of Hang-West; 3 miles from Leyburn, 4} from Middleham, 10
from Richmond.—Pop. 378.

R
RAINTON, in the parish of Topcliffe, wapentake of Hallikeld ; 4}
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wiles from Ripon, § from Boroughbridge, 6} from Thirsk.—Pop.
inclnding Newby-Park, 331.

RALPH'S CROSS, or WESTERDALE-BEACON, in the township
:!' Westerdale, and parish of Stokesley ; 124 miles from Guis-

RAISDALE-GRAIN, a considerable part of Biledale, branching:
westward.

RAND-GRANGE, . 4. in the township of Crakeball, and purish of
Bedale; } mile from Bedile.

RASH, 3 A. in_the township of Muker, and parish of Grinton; 7
miles from Askrigg, 9 from Reeth.

RASKELF, in the parish of Easingwold. wapentake of Bulmer; 2
miles from Kusingwold, 8 from Boroughbridge, 14 from York.—
Pop. 440. The Church is a perpetual curacy, dedicuted to St.
Mary, valune, p. r. 140. Patron, the Bishop of Chester.

The windows of this church, exhibit in rich painted glass the arms of Nevile,
Lord Dacre, Scropes of Masham and Bolton, &c.

RAITHWALTE, (the seat of Israel Hunter, Esq.) in the township
of Newholme-with-Dunsley, and parish of Whitby ¢ 3 miles from
Whitby.

RAVEN’S SEAT, 5. A. in the township of Muker, and parish of Grin-
ton; 12 miles from Askrigg, 15 from Reeth.

RAVENSWORTH, in the parish of Kirkby-Ravensworth, wapen-
take of Gilling-Wests 5§ miles from Richmond, 7 from Greta-
bridge.—Pop. 313.

Here are the remains of a castle, which has long been in ruina. Camden
naz:, “ it belonged to the Barons called Fitzhugh, (descended from those Saxons
who were Lords of this place before the conquest) who flourished till the tiwe of
Henry VIL” In Leland’s time it belonged to Lord Parre; who says * The
castle, excepting two or threc towers, and a faire stable, with a conduct
coming to the haulle side, hath no thing memorable. It is three miles
by north-west fro.n Richmonrd, and thereby is a pratty village.”

From Whitaker’s Yorkshire, it appears that this castle and cstate were ip
the hands of the erown from 1571 to 1629, when by letters patent, they were
granted to Edward Ditchficld, and other trustees. In 1677, they were in the
possession of Sir Thomas Wharton, by whose daughter they passed to Robt.
Byerley, Fsq. They were sold a few years since to Mr Humphrey Fletcher,
of Minskip, the present owner.

Here was born about 1738, Cuthbert Shaw, a poet of some celcbrity. He
was educated at the free-achool of Scorton, where he became usher. In 1766
be published a poem called “ Liberty.” On leaving the north he joined a
company of Commedians ; but he relinquished the stage in 1762, and hecame a
professional writer. In 1766 he published the * Race* a satire, against many
living poets ; and in 1768, * a monody on the death of bis wife,”” who, with her
child, fell into an untimely grave by his debauchery. This wretched man,
bowever, still continued to lampoon his superiors in a sgtire entitled “ Corrup-
tion ;”” and an elegy on the death of Mr Charles York, He died in 177).~

RAVENTHORPE-MILL, and £, 4. in the township of Bolthy, and
. parish of Feliskirk ; 4} miles from Thirgk,
RAW. in the township and parish of Fylingdales, wapentake of
- Whitby-Strand ; 5 miles from Whithy.
RAWCLIFFE, in the -parishes of Si. Michael-le-Belfrey, and 8t.
Olave, (York) ntake of Bulmer, Jiberty of St Peter; 24 milgy
from York, 11 from Kasingwold, }§ from Malton.—Pop, §7,
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RAYDALE, o dale, comprising several hamlets, in the township of
Bainbridge, and parish of Aysgarth, wapentake of Gilling-West ;
(Raydale-House, a shooting-box of Henry Peirse, Esq.) 5 miles
from Hawes, 6 {rom Askrigg.

"REDCAR, in the parish of Marske, east-divizion of Langbarugh; 7
miles from Guishrough, 15 from Stokesley and Stockton, (Dur.)
16 from Yarm, 22 from Whitby.—Pop, 673. Principal Inns,
Red Lion, and Black Swan.

Redcar is a conziderable fishing town, which formerly consisted of a few
misergble huts, inhabited only by fishermen and their families; but it is now a
place of fashionable resort during the summer months, and crowded by per-

____sons of the first distinction, ’

REDDINGS, in the township of Melbecks, and perish of Grinton;
6 miles from Reeth. A4 few scattered houses.

RED-HALL, f. 4. in the township of Castle Levington, and parich
of Kirk Levington ; 2 miles from Yarm.

In 1600, this was the residence of George Meryton, D. D. chaplain to
Queen Aupe, Dean of Peterborough and York. He died in 1624.—Graves,
EDHURST, or HURST, see Iurst in the parish of Marrick.

REDMIRE, in the parish of Wensley, wapentake of Hang-West ;
4} miles from Leyburn, 5} from Middleham, 10 from Richmond.—
Pop. 399. The Church isa perpotual curacy, dedicated to St.
Mary, value, 132/, 2s. Patron, the Rector of Wensley.

REETH, in the parish of Grintor, wapentake of Gilling-West; 8
mileg from Leyborn, 10 from Richmond, 11 from Askrigg, 13
from Gretabridge 14 from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) 17 from Brough,
(Westm.) 54 from York, by Richmond, 245 from London.—
Market, Friday.— Fairs Fridays before Good-Friday, old May-day,
old Midsummer-day, S$t. Bartholomew, old Martinmas-day, St
Thomas’ day, for woollen-cloth, pedlary-ware, &e.—~Principal Inn,

- Buck.—Pop. 1,460.

A free-school was erected here in 1877, the endowment of which was
left by Mr Raw, a quaker, with the proviso that the school shomnld be bujlt in
sight of Marrick Abbey, and that part of the Swale where he used to bathe.

RICHMOND, a market and parish-town, in the wapentake of Gil-
ling-West; 5 miles from Catterick, 8 from Leyburn, 10 from
Middleham, Croft, and Reeth, 12 from Darlington, (Dur.) by
Croft. 14; 12 from Gretabridge and Bedale, 15 from Staindrop,
(Dur.) 16 from Northallerton, 18 from Askrigg, 2! from Yarm,
44 from York, 234 from London.— Markei, Saturduy.— Fairs,
Saturday before Palm-Sunday, last Saetarday in June, (Rake Fair)
September 26, (Holyrood Day) for horned cattle, sheep, horses,
woollen-cloth, &c. Bankers, Messts. Stapleion, Robinson, &
Kay, draw on .Messts, Barelhy & Co. 54, Lombard-Street ;
W ensleydale-Bank, Messrs. Hutton, Other, & Simpson, draw on
Mesars. 8ir Peter Pols, Thornton, & Co. 1, Bartholomew-Lane.—
Principal Inn, King’s Head.—Pop. 3,546. S8ends two Mem.
bers to Parliament, a privilege first granted 27th of Elizabeth.
‘The Church is a rectory, dedicated to St. Mary, in the deanry of
Richmond, diocese of Ckester, value, 15/ 5s 7}d. Patron, the

King.
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Richmoad is a borough-town, and first iscorporated n 18th of Elixabeth,
snd by charter granted in the reizn of Charles 11. A mayor, 12 aldérmen, 24
common-councilmen, a recorder, town clerk, and 2 serjeants at mace, constitute
the body corporate.

In the centre of the town is the chapel of the Holy Trinity, formerly be-
longing to St. Mary’s, York, but now in the patronage of thc corporation,
In the north aisle is held the consistory court, where matters ecclesiastical o¢
spiritual, relating to the archdeaconry of Richinond are transacted.

The castle was built by Alan, Earl of Bretryne, nepbew of the conquerer,
as a reward for bie serviees at the hattle of Hastings. Leland thms describes
Richmond ; “ Richemonte towne is waulled, and the castie on the river side of
Swale is as the kneot of the cumpace of the waulle. In the waalle be three gntes,
Rrench: on the north parte of the towne, is the most occupied gate of the
towne, Finkle-street gate, and Bargate ; all these be downe: vestiges yet re-
main. In the market-place is a large chapel of the Trinitie. The cumpace of ,
‘the ruinus waules is not half a mile abont it, and gardens brhind them,
There is a suburb without French gate almost as bigx as bothe the other suburbe.
Finkle-street suburb stiaite west from the market-place, and Barynte suburh.
The French-gate suburh is the paroche chirche of all the hole towne. A litel
beyonde the end of French-gate atreet i or was of late a chapel of a woman an-
chorite. Bargate suburh cummith downe to the bridge end of Swale, the whieh
bridge is suin tyme chaynid. At this side the bridge is no buildinge:s In this

* enburb is & chapel of St. James. All the towne and suburbs be on the farther
side of Swale.”

- The keep, which s nearly eatire, appears to have been baikt in 1146, by
Conan, 73 years after the first ereetion. Itis 99 feet high, and 11 thick, and has
pinnacles at the four corners, connected by a battlement. The ruins of maw
parts of the eastie yet remain. In one corer is a tower 14 feet deep, whi
seems to have been used as a d . - )

On the north part of the town is the lofty tower of the Grey friars, of
-finest gothic architecture. This honse was founded by Ralph Fits- Réndoiph,
Lord of Middieham, in 1258.— It wa« surrendered by Robert Sanderson anc 14
brethren, in 1539, and the site granted to John Banyster and Willinm Meteaife.
The site, and the premises within the walls, are the property of John Robin-
son, Baq,

OI?the wast of she friary was a nunnery, but of what erder docs not appesr,
nor by whom founded, In the Pipe Roll, 18th Henry 1I. mention is made of
the nans of Richmond, :

The grammar-schoo} at this place has long been im the bighest estimation
for elassical fiteratnre and talent of its swcerssive masters. 1t was founded and
endowed by the burgesses, who petitioned Queen Elisabeth for her reyal license
to erect a grammar-acheol at Richmond. The letters patent are dnted March 14,
1568. The right of nominating the master, and being guardians and governore of
the school and its revennes, devolved upon the mayor and aldermen in 1668, whe
are indisputably the successors of the bailiffs mentioned in the letters patens.
What the original endowment was, is not known, but the present amount is full
3301 per annum. There are three acholarships at Cambridge, and two exhibi-
tions at Oxford.—The Rev. James Tate is the preseut master, whose selary is
3101 clear.—No house of resid for the master..— Ceavlisle’s Gram. Schools.

Here was horn in 1705, Archdeacon Frencis Blackburne. He received his
education at the schools of Hawleshend and Sedburgh, and was entered of
Catherine-Hall, Cambridge, in 1722 ; and about 1739 obtained the rectory of his
native place. He was eome time charlnin to Dr. Hutton, Archbishop of Yerk,
who gave him the Archdeaconry of Cleveland, and a prebend in the Cathedral,
He wrote * The {Confeesional,”’ and “ a short historical view of the contro-
versy concerning the intermediate state, &c.*’ in which he maintained the notiep
of the souls sleeping in an unconscious state during the interval between death
and the resurrection. His works have been collected and priuted in 6 vols. 8va.
He dieil in 1787.

RICHMONDSHIRE, a district, comprehending the present five
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wapentakes of Hallikeld, Gifling-East, Hang-East, Gilling-West,
and Hang-West ; being the north-west corner of Yorkshire, and
over which His Grace the Duke of Leeds is Lord and Chief Bailiff.
It has the Tees for- its northern boundary, the Wiske and Swale
- chiefly for the east ; and the Ure and the wapentakes of Claro and
Staincliffe for the sonthern, and Westmorland for the western
. boundary.
1t derives its name, says Camden, “ from a castle bunilt by Alan Ear] of
Bretayne, in Armerica,” to whom William the comqueror gave this shire,
which belonged at that time to Earl Edwin.
" RIDDINGS, Aam. in the township of Reeth, and parish of Grinton;
* 1 mile from Reeth.
RIGG-HOUSE, in the township of High-Abbotside, and parish of
Aysgarth ; 2 miles from Hawes. )
RIVAULX, or RIEVALX, in the parish of Helmeley, wapentake
of Rydale; 2 milcs from Helmsley, 12 from Thirsk, 19 from

Malton.—-Pop. 212.

Here was founded in 1131, the first abhey of the Cistercian order in York-
shire, by Walter D’Espec, and dedicated to the Virgin Mary. It was valued at
the dissolution at 378L. 10s. 2d. Dugdale, and 351L. 14s. 6d. Speed, per amnam.
The site was granted to Thomas, ] of Rutland, a descendant of Walter D?

. Catharine, danghter of Francis, Earl of Rutland, married George
Villiers, Duke of Buckingham ; and his son, the second Duke of Buckingham
sold it to Sir Charles Duncombe, whose grand nephew, Thomas Duncombe,
Esq. in 1758, made one of the finest {erraces in England upon the brink of the
hill which overiooks the ruins. Ailved, celebrated for his learning and piety,
was abbot here, and wrote an historical account of the battle of the standard.
X Scrirrores.—Dvuepare.—Tannen. At one end of the terrace is a circular
Tuscan temple ; ai the other (that nearest the abbey) a porticoed Ionic one.
The latter, both within and withoul, is marked by a chaste simplicity. It con-
sists of a single room, the ceilings and cones of which are ornamented with
puintings by Borgnis, an Italian artist; some original, and others from the
mogt admired works of Gaido, dec,

‘This abbey owes its foundation to the following circamstance. “ Walter
D’Espec, equally remarkable as a bero (for he commanded at the battle of the
standard,) as founder of religions houses, had a son, who was fond of swift
horses and hard riding, and one day rode with such violence that his steed fell
down, and broke his riders meck. His father, affected by his death, found no

' comsolation but in religion ; and in the extremity of griel had rescourse to his
mnele, rector of Gartom, who recommended to bhim the foundation of three
monasteries, which he accomplished, viz. Kirkham, Rivaulx, and Wardon,
Walter lived thirty years after the foundation of Rivaulx, and before his death
beeame a monk of this house, and was buried here in 1163. After the dissolu.
tion, the lead and belle were removed, and part of the church, chapter house,
and the abbofs lodge destroyed.”” “ The ruins afford,” says Whitaker,  one of
-the finest existing subjects in the kingdom for the pencil and the graver.

The elegance and magnificence of this abbey, has seldom been equalled
in this county. The principal remsins are those of the church dnd refectory.
The former consists of Lhe choir and part of its two side ailes, the transept and
itte commencement of the tower. The nave is demolished, but its site is visibla.
‘The transept and tower form an exact eroes in the centre of the building. The
chief part of the buildings are in the early pointed style, with lancet windows.
The pillars of the choir, with their arches, and a double tier of correspondent
ASnishings above, are in good preservation. The refectory is a spacions building,
emd it is preceded by a large hall, to which wasattached a neat circularly irchs
ed entrance, but ribbed, and in the early pointed style— Gex. Ma‘. :

RISEBROUGH, see Thornion-Risebrough,
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‘ROXBY, or ROAKSBY, in the parish of Pickhill, to whioch it
adjoins and forms part of the township, and is united as snch.

ROBIN HOOD'S BAY, in the township and parish of Fylingdale,
wapentake of Whitby-Strand ; 7 miles from Whithy, 13 from
8carborough. '

In the north-west part of this bay is a fishing town of the samse name, both of
which areso named from heingthe retreat of the famous outlaw Robin Hood, who

-fourished in the reign of Richard I. where he and his followers eluded the vigilance
. of their pursuers, by having the command of small fishing boats, in which they put
off to sea in case of danger.—Caupen. On the heights sbove, are sowe butts for
archers, which still go by hisname. This place is trequu::)lg visited by strangers,
attracted by the fame of the alum works in its neighbourhood, and the peculi
of its grotesque appearance. The quantity of fish which is dried here, as well for
home consumption as exportation, s surprising.

ROKEBY, a parish, in the wapentake of Gilling-West3 (Kokeby-
Park, the seat of Jokn Bacon Sawrey Morritt, .) 1 mile from
Gretabridge, 3 from Barnardcastle, (Dyr.) 13 from Richmond,
54 from York.—Pop. including Eggleston-Abbey, 222. 'The
Charch is a rectory, dedicated to St. Mary, in the deanry of Rich-
mond, diocese of Chester, value, }4l. 3s. 9d. p. r. +100{. Patwon,
the Knig.

“ Rokeby,” says Pennant, “ isan €legant house in the Italian style, bullt by

. §ir Thomas inson, Bart. well known in his day by the name of Long Tom,
from a design of /. id, Esg.in 1724, diverted me a litle from my road.

‘The frontextends 96 feet; it has a rustic basement, and in the centre four columns
and two pilasters support Corinthian ordonance The entrance is through a low
vestibule on the ground floor, in which are several low apartments; more suitable
o the warmer climate of Italy, than to our chilly vapory regions, when the sun
should meet the fullest welcome. In the principal story is a gallery 67 foet long ;
in this, as well as throughout the house, is a profusion of statues, busts, seuip-
tures, and most elegant sepulchral urns, collected from abroad ; and in » room,
called the museum, are piled in disorder, multitudes of altars, inscriptions,
sculptors, &c. found either at the adjoining station and burying ground near
Gretahridge, and at Bowes Castle, or brought here from the castle of Naworth, in
Cuamberland, and gathered from the neighbouring stations on the wall.” Tour
Jfrom Alston Moor. .

To these curiosities, may be addedsomeof the finest needle work in the kingdow,;
in which the paintings of the greatest masters are rivalled ; the threads are. dis-
posed in such a mode, that at a little distance, even human figures shew all the
graces, the tints and beauties of the finest paintings.”—Huvrcuivson.

“ Thia little parish,”” says Dr. Whitaker, * rieh in natural sce , adorned
by modern elegance, distingnished by the site of 8 Roman station, and the remaina
of « religious house, but still more distiuguished by a line of patriots and soldiers
in its lords, has in latter days been the retirement and the theme of great poets.”
—Magsow and Scorr.

ROMALDKIRK, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Gilling-West;

6 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) 9 from Gretabridge, 20 from

-Richmond, 64 from York.—FPop. 377, 'The Charch is a rectory,

dedicated to St. Romsld, in the deanry of Richmond, diocese of

Chester, value, 58/. 14s. 2d. Patron, Lord Strathmore.

In the north transept is the recumbent efligy of a croes legged knight, in
1ink mall, his right hand on the hilt of his sword. This is supposed to be the
tom) of Sir Pitshugh, whodied in 1304, most probably at Cotherston castle. :

The saiut to which this church is dedicated, from Dr. Whitaker’s acconat,
appears (o siand alone in this conntry; nor is it known who this 5t. Ronald
was, although there can be no donbt of his being & popular saint at the time of
its erection. This parish extends in one direcjion at least 30 miles,
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High up the Tees in this parish, but not till afier the river has become wider, .
is one of the finest cataracts in the island, whose roar is audible at a great dis-
tance. Its character is that of Aysgarth, but more magnificent, the projee-
tion deeper, the waters more entire, and cqually precipitons.—WriTaxen,

ROMANBY, in the purish of Northallerion, wapentake of AMerton-
shire; § a mile from Northallerton, 75 from Bedale, 9} from
Thirsk.—Pop. 294.

ROOK, BARUGH, 2 f. k. in the township and parish of Normanhy,
wapentake of Rydule: 4 miles from Kirbymoorside,

BOOKWITH, in the parish of Thorton Watlas, wapentake of Hang-
East; 4 miles from Bedale and Masham.—Pop. 76. '

-ROOMER, hum. in the township of Swinton, and parish of Masham,
wapentake of Hang-Kast; 2 miles from Mashcwm, 8 from Ripon.

ROSEBERRY-TOPPING, (a Hill) in the parish of Newton, west-
division of Langharagh'; 3 miles from Guisbrough, 5 from Stokes-
ley.—8ce Newton.

ROSEDALE, EAST-SIDE, in the parish of Middleton, wapentake
of Pickering-Lythe; 7 miles from Kirbywoorside, 9 from Pic-
kering, 18 from Whithy.——Pop. 339. The Chureb is a perpetual
curacy, dedicated to St. Lawrence, value, p. r. 1564 14e. 0d.
Patrons, the Inbabitants.

‘This church is part of the ruins of a priory fonnded in the time of Richard

1.1190, for Benedictines or Cistercians, by Robert de Sinteville, and dedicat-
ed to St. Lawrence and St. Mary. The site was granted 30th Henry VIIL teo
Ralph Nevile, Earl of Westmorland. About the time of the dissolution, a
prioress and 8 or 9 religious belonged to this haiise, whose yearly revenue was
41L 13s. 8d. Speed, and 371, 12s. 3d. Dugdale—~BurToN, '
_ Of the ruins that remain is the square of the cloister, which is almost
entire; the buildings baving heen converted into dwelling houses, &c. In
this square, are some of the tomb stones that have been placed over the nuns,
with crosses, &c. carved on them.— See Young’s Hhitby. :

ROSEDALE, WEST-SIDE, in the parish of Lastingham, wapen-
take of Rydale; 6 miles from Kirbymoorside, 9 from Pickering,
12 from Helmsley.—Pop. 179.

ROSKEL-BOUSKE, f. A in the township of Snape, and parish of
Well ; 2} miles from Masham, 4 from Bedale.

ROUNDFIELD-HILL, f. h. in the township of Hackforth, and
parish of Hornby ; 3 miles from Catteriek, 4 from Bedale,

ROUNTON, EAST, in the parish of Rudby, west-division of
Langharugh ; (Rounton-Grange, the seat of John Wailes, Lsg.) 7
miles from Northallerton, 8 from Yarm, 9 from Stokesley.—Peop,
185. The Chapel here is a perpetual curacy under Rudby, value,
p- r. 37L. 7s. 6d. Patroness, Dowager Lady Amherst. ‘

ROUNTON, WEST, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Allerion-
shire; 7 miles from Nerthallerton, 7} from Yarm, 9 from Stokes-
ley, 38 frem York.—Pop. 217. The Church is a rectory, dedi-
cated to 8t. James, in the deanry of Cleveland, value, 6/. Patron
the King. '

ROUSB;‘% or ROXBY, in the parish of Hinderwell, east-division
of Langbarugh; 11 miles from Guisbrough, 11; frem Whithy.—
Pap. 236. 1t is a Chapelry dependant on the Mother-Charch.

it was founded and endowed in the reign of Henry the V. by the Boynton
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Samily; tn (He enst window are effigivs in painted glaes, bearing the ayms of
Boynton, and probably the foander.—Graves.

AL Roxhy wam born July 22, 1600, Sir Hugh Cholmley, Bart. an activé

and iatelligent royalist in the time of Charles 1. He had tlie command of Scar«
castle at the time it surrendered in 1645. He died at Peckham, Nov.
1667.—Fide Hist. of Whitby and Bearborosigh, and the memaoirs of his life;

. voritien by himsdlf. .

ROW, ham. in the tawnship of Reeth, and parish of Griuton; 1
wile from Reeth.

ROW, or RAW, Fylingdale, sce Raw.

RUDBY, a parish-town. in the west-division of Langbarugh; 4
miles from Stokesley, 6 frem Yarm, 11} from Northallerion, 38
from York.—Pop. 76. The Church is a vicarage, dedicated o
All-Saints, in the deanry of Cleveland, value, 30l p.r. +88L
Patroness, Dowager Lady Amberst.

Adjolning the charch yard, is s school bouse, founded and endowed sbout
the year 1740, by Charles Bathurst, Esq. of Skutterskelf, for the purpose
educating the children of the poor of the parish. The master's salary arised,
vt of a rent of 10 and the interest of 1004, left by the founder—GRravas]

RUD-HALL, f. k. in the township of East-Appleton, and parish of
Catterick i 2 miles from Catierick, 5 from Bedale,

RUNSWICK, in the township and parish of Hinderwell, east-divii
sion of Langbarugh; 7 miles from Whitby, 15 from Redcar, 18
from Guisbrough.

: A fishing village aboiit & mile east of Staithes, sitigularly situated on the
inargin of the sea, which bere forrs an immense inlet, cnlleg Runswick Bay;
capable of containing several hundred dail of ships: About 150 years ago Rume«
wick was sitaated in the front of the bay, facing the sed, when one night as somé
of thé inhabitants were; what is called waking a corps, the ground on which it
stood suddenly gave way, which they providentially perceiving, alarmed the rest
of the inhabitants, so that fewy if any, perished by this catastrophe. ‘The houses
were soon after buried uader masses of earth, amd gradually sunk down to the

ses. ,

RUSTON, kasi. in the township and parish of Wykeham ; 7 miles#
{rom Scarborough.

RUSWARP, in the parisk of Whitby, wapentake of Whitby:
Strand ; (the seat of Miss Pennyman) 2 miles from Whitby, 18}

~from Pickering, 19 from Guisbrough.— Pop. 1,918,

RUSWICK,J. A. in the township of Newton-le-W illows, and parislt .
of Fingall ; 5 miles from Leyburn and Bedale.

RYDALE, a wapentake, north-cast of York, so called from thie
River Rye, which runs througl it, and affords fine diversion for
the lovers of trout-fishing. It is bounded on the east by Pickering-
Lyﬂ:e, on the sonth by the wapentake of Bulmer, on the west by
Birdforth, and on the north by Langbaragh. It containg three
market-towns, Malton, Helmsley, and Kirbymoorsides; 56 town-
ships, 18 of which are parishes, 3,666 inhabited houses, and
17,015 inhabitants. Rydale, like Pickering-Lythe, is mounain:

_ots, a large portion of it being moor land. .

RYTON,; in the parish of Kirby-misperton, wapentake of Pickering-
Lythe; 3 wiles from Malton, 7 from Pickering, 11 from Kirby«
‘moorside.—Pop: 212, ‘ :

N
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" SADDLEBOW, in the township of Lunedale, #nd parish of Ro~ -

maldkirk ; 10 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.)

SALTBURN, in the township of Brotton, east-division of Lang-
barugh ; 6 miles from Redcar and Guisbrough, 16 from Whitby,

A small village, the inhabitants of which live chiefly hy fishing. The
romantic walks, picturesque rocks, and enchanting scenery with which this
place abounds, render it admirubly calculated for a bathing place.

SALTERSGATE-INN, in the township of Lockton, and parish of
Middleton; 9 miles from Pickering, 12 from Whitby. +

SALTON, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Rydale, liberty of St.
Peter, (the seat of George Woodcock Dowker, Esq,) § miles from
Kirbymoorside, 6 from Pickering, 10} from Malton, 21 from
York.—Pop. 148. 'The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to St, -
John Beverley, in the deanry of Rydale, value, $4/ 10s. 11d. p. r.
+75.. Patron, G. W, Dowker, Ksq.

‘SATRON, or SATTURN, kam. in the township of Muker, and
parish of Grinton ; 8 miles from Reeth.

SALUTATION, HIGH, p. k. in the township and parish of Kirkby
Fleetham ; 3 miles from Bedale, 4 from Catterick.

SALUTATION, LOW, p. k. in the same township and parish; 4
miles from Bedale. Thishouse adjoins Fencoat.

SALUTATION-INN, in the township of Little-Smeaton, and
parish of Birkby ; 6 miles from Northallerion.

SANDBECK, ham..in the township of Hipswell, and parish of
Catterick ; 1} mile from Richmond, 7 from Leyburn.

SANDBURN, kam. in the township and parish of Stockton-on-the

-, - Forest, wapentake of Balmer; 4 miles from York.

. SANDHOLMES, f. A in the township and parish of Pickhill; 6

miles from Thirsk, 7 from Ripon.

SANDHUTTON, in the parish of Thirsk, wapentake of Birdforth;

" 3 miles from Thirsk, 8 from Northallerton, 11 from Borough-
bridge.-~—Pop. 273. Here is a chapel dedicated to St. Mary, and
united to Carlton-Miniott.

SANDHUTTON, in the parish of Bossall, wapentakesof Bulmer;
(the seat of the Rev. Thomas Cutler Rudston Read.) 7 miles from

“York, 12 from Malton, 13 from Easingwold.—Pop. 202. The .
Church is a perpetual caracy under Bossall, value, p. r. 1221 17s. 2d.

SANDSEND, in the township and parish of Lythe, east-division of
Langbarugh ; 3 miles from Whitby, 18 from Guisbroagh.

Here are very extensive Alum works, the property of Lord Mulgrave; the

" quantity manufactured annually is about 400 toms.

SAVEY-GREEN, f. k. in the township and parish of Lythe; 6
miles from Whitby.

SAWDON, in the parish of Brompton, wapentake of Pickering-
Lythe ; 10 miles from Scarborough, 12 from Pickering, 16 from-
Malton,—Pop. 139. ) . ,

SCACKLETON, in the parish of Hovingham, wapentake of Bul-
mer ; 7 miles from Kasingwold, 10 from Malton, 15 from York.—
Pop. 171,
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S8CALBY, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Pickering-Lythe ; 3
miles from Scarborough, 18 from Pickering and Whitby, 40 from
York.—Pop. 4146. The Chaurch is a vicarage, dedicated to St.
Lawrence, in the deanry of Dickering, value, 16/. 13s. 1d.
Patrons, the Dean and Chapter of Norwich.

Here is a small hospital for widows or widowers, containing four rooms or
apartments, founded by one Christopher Kelde; butthe time is noton record.

SCALBY-MILL, 3f. k. in the township and parish of Scalby; 2
miles from Scarborough, :

SCALING, in the parish of Hinderwell, east-division of Lang-
barugh ; 10 miles from Guisbrough, 12 from Whitby. )

SCALING-DAM, p. h. in the township and parish of Eagington;
9 miles from Guisbrough, 11} from Whitby. . ]

SCALING, LITTLE, or FAR, ham. in the township of Easingtion,
-and parish of Hinderwell; 12 miles from Whitby.

SCAR-HOUSE, (Manor-House) in the townshipand parish of Arken-
garthdale ; 3 miles from Reeth. .

SCAR-HOUSES, 4 4. in the township of Muker, and parish .of

" Grinton; 10 miles from Reeth.

SCARO-HOUSE, f. k. in the township of Moulton, and parish of

) Middleton-Tyas ; 3 miles from Richmond. .

SCARBOROUGH, a parish and market-town, in the wapentake of

Pickering-Lythe, liberty of Scarborough; 18 miles from Brid-

lington, (the Quay 19,) 19 from Pickering, 20 from Whitby and

Sledmere, 22 from Malton, 23 from Driffield, 40 from York,

217 from London, by Lincoln 5 by York, 239.—Markets, Thurs-

day and Saturday.—Fuirs, Holy-Thursday, and November 23, for

Toys, &c.—Bankers, Messrs. W oodall, 'T'indall, Taylar, & Cook,

draw on Messrs. Sir Peter Pole, Thornton, & Co. 1, Bartholomew-

Lane.— Principal Inns, George, Blacksmiths’ Arms, Blue-Bell,

New-Inn, Pied-Bull, Talbot, London-Inn.—Pop. 8,188. The

Church is a vicarage, dedicated to St. Mary, in the deanry of

Dickering, value, $13/. 6s. 8d. p.r. 60/, Patron, Loord Hotham,

as lord of the manor of Noribstead.

This church was originally a convent for white or carmelite friars, founded by
king Edward I1. 1320, and suppressed in the reign of Henry V. It is now con-
verted into a parish church. During the siege of the castle, a lodgement was
made in this church, by the troops of Sir John Meldrum. The Church was adorned,
eays Leland, “ with thrde auncient towres for belles. There were in the toune

three howsis of freres, gray, ‘black, and white.”

Scarborough is a seaport and borough town, governed by two bailiffs, cho-
sen annually, two corouers, four chamberlains, and & common council of thint
siX members, a recorder and town clerk. It was chartered by king Henry I
about the year 118]. It returns two members to parliament, a privilege granted
as.early as the 23rd of Edward 1. the only place, except York and Hull in this
county, that constantly returned before the time of Edward V1. since which it
has constantly returned. The right of election is in the corporation alome.
Number of votes é4—the returning officers, the bailiffs.~OuprizLp.

Scarborongh, long celebrated as a sea bathing place and for its mineral
waters, is sitnated on the edge of a beautiful and extensive hay, from which it
rises in the form of a cresent, on the siope of a hold and rocky shore,

The castle, (extraparochial) stands upon & rock of stupendons height snd
magpitnde, almost surrounded by the sea. It was built in the reign of king
Stephen, by William de Gross, Earl of Albermerle,“who commanded the Eaug--



100 XORTH-RIDING,

}ish aymy at the baitle of the standard, in 1138. ﬂ: this impregnable fortregy
he governed with princely authority, till Henry II. in order to reduce the exor-
bitant power of his nobles, commanded all the castles erected during the pre-
ceding reign to be demolished.

Edward the 1I and his favourite Gaveston took refuge in this castle, which
was esteemed the strongest in the kingdom. Here the king left Gaveston, as in
a place of security ; but the castle being besieged by the Earls of Pembroke and
Warren, he waa compelled to surrender, which he did on condition that be should
be conducted to the king, and tried by his peers—This was dishonourably
yiolated.—Rarin,

In 1553, Thomas Strafford, son of lord Strafford, with omly 32 attendants
obtained possession of Scarborough castle, which gave rise to the proverdb of
¢ Scarborough warning, a word and a blow, but the bjow first.” Haviag dis.
guised bis men, he came to Scarhorough on 8 market day, and easily gained
admittance into the castle, where he strolled about in a careless manner without
‘exciting the least suspicion. Hit little troop soon afterwards made their ap-
pearance, under the disguise of peasants, who, perceiving a favourable opportunity
secured the sentinels, took posseasion of the gate, and admitted the remlmdero}
their companions.— Scarborough Guide.

In the beginning of the civil wars, Sir Hugh Cholmley gallantly defended
this casile against the parliamentary forcesfor twelve months, but at length
surrendered on honourable terms in 1645. It sustained a second siege which
commenced, Sept. 1648.—For particulars of sieges and othar interesiing matier,
see Hindarwell’s Hist. of Scarborough. The stealing hand of time and the injury
sustained by various sieges red this fortress to a mass-of ruins, when govern-~
ment, in the rebellion 1745, gave it a temporary repair, and deposited within
its walls a large quantity of military stores, The castle stands on a lofty pro-
montary, more than 300 feet above the level of the spa; and within the area,
(19 acres), under an arched vault, is a reseryoir of water called the Lady’s
‘Well, supposed to have been dedicated to the Virgin Mary.

* The spaw, consisting of two distinct wells, the one distinguished by the
name of ¥ the Chalgbeate," the other,  the Salt-spring,” with the spaw house
adjoining, is sitnated on the sea shore. A superintendant resides here during
the bathing season, to whom the visitors who drink the waters, pay 7s. 6d.
each. The present building wae erected in 1739, the former ene, or warf on
which it was built, being destroyed by a mass of earth from behind sinking in.
‘The medical powers of these waters, according to Dr. Wittie, were first acei-
dentally discovered in 1627, by a Mrs. Farrow, a gentlewoman of Scarborough, for.
account of which, see Scarborough Guide. The following authors have treated
on these waters, Drs. Wittie, Simpson, Tunstall, Short, Shaw, and latterly,
Dr. Belcombe, by whom the waters have been analyzed.—See Hinderwell’s
Hist, of Scarborough, and Scarborough Guide, which no person who visits, or
4ntends to visit, Scarborough ought to omit méing. ’

A Life Boat was built here in 180}, which has been the means of preserving
the lives of many crews of vessels on this part of the coast. ’

In 1811, a Sea Bathing Infirmary, eupported by subscription, was institated
for the use of the poor. * - '

S8CARGILL, 3 f. k. atownship, in the parish of Barningham, wa.
peutske of Gilling-West; 2 miles from Gretabridge, 4 from
Barmardoastle, (Dur.)—Pop. 136.

SCARTHNECK, in the township of Preston, and parish of Wen.
sley ; 3 miles from Leyburn, 9 from AskriggT An eminence,
north of Wensleydale, over which the yoad from Richmend ta
Lanoaster passes.

SCARTHNICK, in the parish of Whorlton, west-division of
Langharagh ; 7 miles from Stokesley, 11 from Northallerton.

Here was a religious house founded by Stephes Meinil, nen. tempt. Henry

. }.and afterwayds aunaxed to Guisborn, (Gui ) and made a cell of Canong

of the. of 8t. Austin, to that monastery. There are no remgains nor any
tesoseof the bujiding vow lefk, - Tansa, . o T
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SCAWTON, & parish-town, in the wapentake of Rydale; 5 miles
Trom Helmsley, 9 from Thirsk, 23 from York.—Pop. 154. The
Charch is a revtory, dedicated to St. Mary, in the deanry of Ry-
dale, walue, 120. 19s. 2d. p. r. *79L 2s. 7d. Patron, Edward
Worsley, Esq. Scawton is situated upon Hambleton.

S8CORTON, in the parish of Catterick, wapentake of Gilling-East ;
3 miles from Catterick, 7 from Richmond, 9 from Northullerton.—
Pop. 496. ‘

‘ l;;m is & free grammar-achool founded by Mr Leonard Robinson, of Scorton,
18 1720, who encowed it with a furm in the same township, now producing up-
‘wards of 200/. per annam, together with a dwelling-house and gardens. Itis -
open to all free of expense, for the classics ; but for the stipend of the usher, re-

r of buildings, writing, arithmetic, a quarterly charge is made. There ara
n0 boys on the foundation. The Rev. John Noble, who was educated at Queen’s.
College, Oxford, after quitting the University, became the first master of
this school, which he opened in June 1736, and had the tuition of several young
gentlemen, who testified their regard to him, by placing a handsome monument
to his memory in the ¢hurch of Bolton-upon-Swale, the expense of which was
defrayed by Subscription. Mr Noble died in 1767, aged 67.— Carlisie’s Gram.
Schools.— Nichols* Lit. Anec.

SCOTCH-CORNER, in the townslﬁi: and parish of Middleton-Tyas;
4} miles from Richmond, 5 from Catterick, 10 from Gretabridge.
A Pablic-House, the Three Tuns.

SCOTTON, in the parishes of Catterick and Patrick-Brompton,
wapentake of Hang-East; 4 miles from Catterick, 5 from Rich-

. mond, -8 from Bedale.—Pop. 128,

SCRAFTON, LITTLE, ham. in the township of Caldberg, and
perish of Caverbam ; 4} miles from Middleham, 6 from Leyburn,

BCRAFTON, WEST, in the parish of Coverbam, wapentake of
Hang-West; 5 miles from Middleham and Leyburn, 15 from
Richmond.—Pop. 146.

SCRUTON, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Hang-East;
(Scruton Hall, the seat of the late Henry Gale, Eeq.) 4 miles from
Bedale, 4} from Northallerton, 6 from Catterick, 35 from York.—
Pop. 411. The Church is a rectory, dedicated to St. Radegund,
.in the deanry of Catterick, diocese of Chegter, value, 14/, Qs
6d. Patran, Foster Lechmere Coore, Es%

Here that eminent critic and antiquary, Dr. Thomas Gale, dean of York
as born in 1636. He was educated at Weerminster school, and being admitted
ing’s acholar there,. was elected in 1655 to Trinity-College, Cambridge, and

became fellow of that society. Having taken his first degree in arts in 1656, he
sommenced M. A. in 1662—Regius professor of Greek in 1666—In 1672, he was.
appointed to the head mastership of St. Paul’s school, in London, soon after
which, by his Majesty’s directions, he drew up those inscriptions ¥hich are to
‘be seen mpon the monument in memory of the dreadful conflagration in 1566.
He taok the degree of doctor of divinity in 1676,-and in 1697 was promoted to
the deanry of York, which dignity he possessed little more than four years and a
half; he dying April 8, 1702, in the 67th year of his age. ' His publications
rere numerous, a list of which is given in Nickols’ Lit. Anee. vol, IV. p. 540.—
Dr. Gale married Barbava, daughter of Thomas Pepys, Esq. of Trumpington,
Cambridgeshire, who died in 1689 ; by whom he had three sons and a danghter.
My Drake says,  The loes of- this great man would have been irreparable, did
met the father’s genina still exist in his son,” alluding to his eldest son Ro,

Gale, F, R.8.and A. 8. 8. equally famous asan antiquary. He was educated under
hin fother at 8t. Paul’s scheoi, admitted at Tyinity Cor,ﬁggf, Cambridge, in 1691 ;
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made scholar of that honse 1693, and afterwards fellow in 1697. He was the
first vice-president to the society of antiquaries, and treasurer to the
royal society. He published bis father’s Comment on Antoninus’e Itinerary
in 1709, and the ‘ Begistrum Honoris de Richmond’’ in 1722. His * Dis-
course on the four Roman Roads in Britain” is printed in the 6th
vol. of Leland’s Itinerary. Other valuable papers of his on antiquities are to
be met with in the Philosophical Transactions— Horsley’s Britun. Romans—
Archeologia— Gent. Mag. &c.—He left all his MSS. to Trinity College, Cam-
bridge, and his cabinet of Roman coins to the public library there. He mar-
ried Henrietta, daughter of Henry Raper, Esq. of Cowling, who died in 1720,
by whom be had one son, Roger Henry, who married Catharine, daughter of

* Christopher Crowe, of Kiplin, Esq. and had issue, Henry, (died May 27,
1821) Sumuel, and two danghters. He died at Scruton in 1744, and was buried
in the church-yard obscurely, by his own desire. His estates at that place
were very considerable, and are now in the possession of F. L. Coore, Esq.
who married Harriet, eldest daughter of the above Henry Gale. He represent-
ed Northallerion in parliament for several years.

Samuel Gale, the dean’s youngest son, bornin London, and educated by his
father at St. Puul’s school, was also eminent for his knowledge of antignities §
he left many viluable collections behind him relating to the antiquities of Eng-
land, hut published nothing in his life-time. He died in 1754, in the 73rd year
of hisage. His very valuable library and fine collection of prints, were sold by
auction in 1754.—NicHoLs.

The family of Gale, was of eminence in the North and East-Ridings, in the
16th century; the earliest of the name thut occurs, was James Gale, scated at
Thrintoft, in the parish of Ainderby-Steeple.—Is1p. .

SCUGDALZE, a narrow dule, in the township and parish of Whorlton ;
6 miles from Stokesley, 11} from Northallerton.

SEAMER, a parish-town, in the west-division of Langbarugh; 2
miles from Stokesley, 8 from Yarm, 45 from York.—Pop. 226.
The Charch is a perpetnal curacy, dedicated to St. Martin, in the
deanry of Cleveland, value, p. r. +541. 6s. 8d. Patron, Robert
Greenhill, Esq.

SEAMER, or SKAMOR, a paish-town, in the wapentake of Pic-

- kering-Lythe ; 4 miles from Scarborough, 15 from Pickering, 18
from Bridlington, 39 from York.—A Market entirely for live
cattle, on the first Monday in every month,—Fairs, July 15, for
boots, shoes, pedlary-ware, &c.—Pop. 596. 'The Church is a vicar
age, dedicated to St. Martin, in the deanry of Dickering, .value
181. 6s. 5:id. Patron. William James Dennison, Esq.

A new school for boys and girls, with a dwelling-house, was built and
liberally endowed by the Lord of the Manor, in 1614. !
SEAL-HOUSKS, ham. in the township and parish of Arkengarth-

dale ; 6 miles from' Reeth.

SEATON-HALL, in the township and parish of Hinderwell, 2 miles
from Whitby.

SEDBURY-HALL, (the residence of Colonel Tower) in the town-
ship and parish of Gilling, wapentake of Gilling-West; 4 miles .
from Richmond, 6 from Catterick, 10 from Gretabridge,

Within the angle where the Ermine-street and High-street meet, is Sed-
bury, where, it is supposed, was a palace of King Oswins.— Archaologia.

The manor-house, with the estate at Sedbury, was, for many generations, the
regidence of the Boyntons, and probably built by them, * which from an ordi--
nary lower-built honse,- has gradually increased to a large and magnificent

_ manaion.”

In 1650, James D’ Arcy, 6th son of Conyers Lord D’Arcy, of Hornby-Castle,
purchased Sedbury, which passed by marriage, in 1738, to Sir Robert Hilyard,
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Bart. of Winsicad, E. R. father of the late Sir Robert, who died in 1814, without
fesue, when it came to the present owner, James Hasey D’Arcy Hutton, Esq.
SEDBUSK, kam. in the township of High-Abbotside, and parish of

Aysgarth ; 1 mile from Hawes, 4 from Askrigg, 16 from Leyburn,
SEMERWATER, (a small beautiful Lake) which covers about 105
acres of land, in the townsbip of Bainbridge, and parish of Ays-
arth ; 3 miles from Hawes, near to which is
SEMERDALE-HOUSE, f.A. in the sume township and parish,
SESSAY, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Allertonshire ; (Sessay-
Hall,  the seat of the Hon. and Rev. William Henry Dawnay) 5
miles from Easingwold, 6 from Thirek, 18 from York.—Pop:
864. The Charch is a rectory, dedicated to St. Cuthbert, in the
deanry of Bulwmer, value, 17/, 0s. 2d} Patron, Lord Viscount
Downe,
Here was born in 1688, John Jackson, an English divine, eldest son of the
Rev. John Jackson, (first rector of this place and vicarof Rossington, W. R.)
He was educated at Doncaster school, under the famous Dr. Bland, and at
Jesus College, Cambridge. His best work is his Chronological Antiquities, 3
vols. 4to. 1752. - He died at Lelcester in 1763.— Nichols> Lit. Anecdotes.— Bio.

Dictionary.

SEXHOW, 6 f. A. atownship, in the parish of Rudby, west-division
of Langbarugh ; 4} miles fiom Stokesley, 6 from Yarm.—DPop. 38.

SHAW, 3 or 4 f. h. in the township of Hurst, and parish of Marrick;
3 miles from Reeth, 7 from Richmond.

SHAW, and SHAW-COTE, 2 f. A. in the township of Low-
Abbotside, and parish of Aysgarth; 2} miles from Hawes, 3 from

Askrigg.
SHEPH%RDS-HILL‘, ham. in the township and parish of Whorlton;
" 7 miles from Stokesley, 9 from Northallerton and Yarm.
SHERFITT-HALL, f. A. in the township of Reeth, and parish
of Grinton ; 3 miles from Reeth. ' .
BHERIFF-HUTTON, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Balmer;
" 8 miles from Easingwold, 10 from York and Malton.—Pop. 756.
The Charch is a vicarage, dedicated to St. Helen, in the deanry-
of Bulmer, value, $10L p. r. 140l 18s. Patron, the Archbishop

of York.

Bertrand de Bulmer, in the reign of king Stephen, built here a neat castle,
which was afterwards repaired by Ralph Nevile, first Earl of Westmorland,
who died 1389. It continued in the possession of the noble family of the
Neviles, until the death of Richard Nevile, Earl of Warwick, who was slain
at the battle of Bamnett, when his lands being-seized by Edward IV. this castie
and- the manor were given to Richard, Duke of Gloucester, the king’s hrother.
Princess Elisabeth, heiress of the house of York, (afterwards married to king
Henry VII.) was kept a prisoner here by Richard 11I. In the same castle was
confined Edward Plantagenet, Earl of Warwick, only eon of George, Duke of
Clarence, elder brother of Richard 1II. This Earl of Warwick was publickl
executed by Henry VIL. 1499.—Campey, Draxe, Hums, &c. The castie nnz
manor became the property of Henry VII. aad seem to have continved in the
hands of the crown, until they were granted to Charles, Prince of Wales,
sfterwards Charles 1. The late Lady Irwin, of Temple-Newsham, died seized
.of the same, and are now in saion of the Marquis of Hertford, in right of
his wife, Isabella Anne, daughter of the late Lady Irwin, who took the title and
sirname of Ingram, in 1807. The venerable ruins of this castle, consisting of -
seven siately towers, (one of which contains two spacious rooms,) are situated
wpon an eminence, commanding very extensive prospects. Jobn, the som of
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. Ralph Nevile, Lord of Raby, obtained a charter in 1377, for a market 6n Monday,
and a fair annually on the eve of the exaltation of the Holy Cross, (September
14, and two following days,) which are now discontinued.

SHERIFF-HUTTON-PARK, (the seat of George Lowther Thom+
peon, Esq.)similarly situated.

SHIPTON, in the parish of Overton, wapentake of Bulmer, a
part in the liberty of St, Peter; 6 miles from York, 7 from Easing-
wold, 19 from Malton.—Pop. 377.

A school was here endowed, by Mrs Ann Middleton, of York, with 407 for

the education of the ehildren of the freeholders, only~Her Will bears date,
Avnguat 24, 1665.

SHIPTON-SMITHY, s. 4. in the township of Overton-with-Shipton,
and parish of Overion, wapentake of Balmer; 6 wmiles from York.
SIGSTON, or KIRKBY-SIGSTON, a parish and township, in the
wapentake of Allertonshire; 3 miles from Northallerton, 8 from

Thirsk, 13 from Yarm, 31 from York.—Pop. 131.  The Churclr _

isa rectory, dedicated to St. Lawrenoe, in the deanry of Cleve-

land, value, 121 13s. 4d. Patwon, Sir Thomas Slingsby, Bart.
Here was formerly a castle, smrounded by a deep moat, but when, or by

whom built, we have no accoun .

t,

SIGSTON-SMITHY, ham. in the township aud parish of Sigsten ;
3} miles from Northallerton. |

SILTON, HIGH, or OVER, in the parish of Cowesby, wapentake
of Birdforth; 8 miles from Northallerton, 9 from Thirsk.—Pep.
94, The Church is a perpetual curacy. value, p.r. 38l Patron;
Sir George Wombwell, Bart. As Leassee of the Tithes under
Trinity College Cambridge.

SILTON, LOW, or NETHER, in the parish of Leak. wapentake
of Birdforth ; 7 miles from Northallerton, 8 from Thirsk, 13 frem
Stokesley.—Pop. 202. Here is a Chapel of ease to Leak.

S81MONSTONE, in the township of High-Abbotside, and parish of
Aysgarth, wapeniake of Hang-West; (the seat of James Archi-
bald Stuart Wortley, Esq.) 15 mile from Hawes, 54 from Askrigg.

SIMON’S, SAINT, CHAPEL or WELL, in the township of
Little-Scrafton, and parish of Coverham, wapentake of 4
West; 4% miles from Middlebam.

SINDERRY, in the parish of Pickhill, wapentake of Hallikeld ; &
miles from Thirsk, 7 from Ripon, 8 from Bedale.—Pop. 86.

SINNINGTON, a parish-town, in the wepentake of Pickering-
Lythe ; (Sinnington-Lodge, the seat of Pudsay Dawson, Esq) 4
miles from Pickering and Kirbymoorside, 10 from Helmsley, 27
from York.—Pop. 343. The Church is a perpetual ci , il the
deanry of Rydale, value, p. r. +80/. Patron, Masier of Hems-
ww}?;usc:m’ (‘Yé.n') ildren of for read

a aehool for the ehi of Simmi. jor i it 5
whieh is a branch of the Th:rnhl gnm-f:mm -achoel, and was metedm" ':i“&m‘_&ﬂ
of the too distanee from Thornton. .

SINNINGTON-GRANGE, 2 f. h. in the township and parish «f
Sinnin?on; 4 miles from Pickering, & from Kirbymoorside.

SION-HILL, (the seat of Joshua Crompton, Esq.) in the town-

- ship and parish of Kirby-Wiske ; 4 miles from Thirsk, 73 from
. Northalleston. - .
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SREEBY, in the parish of Eashy, wapentake of Gilling-West : 2
miles from Richmond, 4 from Catterick, 10 from Darlington,
(Bur.)—Pop. -163.

Here 8t. Osyth had a chaniry, and from her is the nsime of the plaice derived;

though » ly corrupted.—WHITAXER. .

BKELGILL, f. k. in the township of Leow-Abbotside, and parish
of Aysgarth; 1} mile from Askrigg, 4 from Hawes.

SKELTON-COTE, f. A. in the township of Bellerby, and parish of

_ Spennythorne; 6 miles from Middleham,

SKELDERSKEW.GRANGE, ham. in the township of Cortnions
dale, and parish of Guisbrough ; 5 miles from Guisbrongh.

This Grange formerly belonged to the priory of Basedale. )
AKELTON, a parish-town, (a partbeing in the parish of Overton)
wapentake of Bulmer, and liberty of St. Peter; (Skelton-Grangeg
the seat of Edward Pluce, £sq. Skelton-Cotluge, Mrs Thompsony
and Rose-Cottage, G. V. Drury, Esg:) 4 milesirom York, 9 from

Easingwold, 18 from Malton.—Pop. 187.—St. Peter’s, 86; totaly
273. ' The Chareh, peculier, is a rectory, dedicated to St. Peter,
in the deanry of Bulmer, value, $5.. p. r. +130/. Patron, Joehud

Hepworth, Esq. . ' )

This Chureh is of considerable antiquity, and satd fo have been bufft wit
the stones that remained after the south cross of York minster had been finis
by the archbishop, Walter Gray. Indeed the south door seems to resemble
the cathedral ; alike adorned with ourious marble pillars, though now simost
demolished <G,

SKELTON, in the township and parish of Marske, wapentake of
Gilling-West; 5 miles from Reeth, 6 from Richmond,

SKELTON, a parish-town, in the east-division of Langbarugh s
(Skelton-Castle, the seat of Jokn Wharton, Esq.) 3} miles from
Gaisbrough, 6 from Redcar, 11} from Stokesley, 17 from Whitby
16 from Stockton, (Dur.) 55 from.York.—Pop. 791. The Charch,
is'a perpetual curacy; dedicated to All-Saimts, in the deanry of
Cleveland, value, p, r. 79/, Patron, the Archbishop of York. )

Skelton Castle was built by Robert de Brus, a Norman Knight, who cardd.
into England with William the conqueror ; and who haviug possessed by conquesty
and other titles of various acquisition, the manor and castle of Skelton, soont
Increased his estates in Yorkshire so mch, that before the end of the eom<
queror’s reign, he became owner of no less thau 93 Lordships in this county,; but
the castle of Skelton seems to have been his great baronial residence. From thi
noblemas the royal line of Scotland, and the Earl of Ailesbury are descended.—
?;agdak’: Baronage. After being i possession of the Fasconbergs, the Nevilsy
and the Conyers, it st length hecame the property of Lawson Trotter, Eﬁ;hcj
#old it to Joseph Hall, Esq. of Durham, in 1727 ; and from him it desce 1]
John Hall Stevenson, Esq. grandfather of the present possessor.

. Few tracep of the ancienf edifice remain, considerable aiterations huving
beett nmade since 1794. The front of the present building is 270 feet in lengths
It is situated on the brink of a large sheet of watér, in many places 50 feet deepy
which nearly surronnds the castle, except am opening to the south. . )

Tt was till 1785, the seat of John Hall Stevenson, Esq. the Eugenfus of
8terne, whose festive board was frequented by many of the Litevati of the age irf
which he lived, and enlivened by none more than the celebrated My Sternes  Mr/
Hall was an excellent classicat scholar, and the vigoros extent and versatility of
his genius, shew him i a welk of swperior excellence :  His poetry exhibits bight,

owers of imagination, and he was well acquninted with the Belles Lettrés of
Europe. After his death, his wurks were published in 3 vols. 12mey ke died
i 1785,
(-4 .
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In the time of Edward 1. the Lords of Skelton had the privilege of & market
heve, which, however singular it may appear, was held weekly on Sunday;

* when the pepple, according to the custom of that age, generally assembled in’
the morning to attend divine worship, and in the afternoon transacted their busi-
ness, and regaled themselves with oaé-ale, the homely beverage of our ancestors.
This mariet continued to be thus held, till the 13th Edward 1].— Graves.

SKELTON-SMITHY, s k. in the township and parish of Skelton ;
4 niles from York.

SKEWSBY, in the parish of Dalby, wapentake of Bulmer; 9 miles
ffom Easingwold, 13 from Malton, 15 from York.—Pop. inclu.
ded in Dalby.

SKINNINGRAVE, in the parish of Slkelton, east-division of
Langbarugh ; (the seat of John Easterby, Esq.) 7 miles from Guis-
brough, 9 from Redcar, 14 from Whitby.—Pop. 60.

SKIPLAM, in the parish of Kirkdale, wapentake of Rydale; 3
miles from Kirbymoorside, 4 from Helmsley, 17 from Malton,—
Pop. including Bransdale, West-side, 170.

SKIPSTER-HAGG, f. A. in the township of A ppleton-le-moors, and
parish of Lastingham ; 3 miles from Kirbymoorside.

SKIPTON, and SKIPTON-BRIDGE, in the parish of Topcliffe,
wapentake of Birdforth ; (the residence of Thomas Barstow, Esq,)
4 miles from Thirsk, 7 from Ripon.—Pop. 110.

SKUTTERSKELFE, in the parish of Rudby, west-division of
Langbarugh; 2 miles from Stokesley, 6 from Yarm.—Pop. 32.

SLEDDALE, in the township and parish of Guisbrough ; 3 miles
from Guisbrough. A small dale, surrounded by moors,

SLEDSHOW, in the township of Rosedale, West-side, and parish
of Lastingham ; 7 miles from Kirbymoorside. A public-house on

' the moors,

SLEETHOLME, f. k. in the township and parish of Bowes; 7
miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) 8 from Gretabridge.

SLEGILL, ham. in the township of Hipswell, and parish of Cat-
terick, wapentake of Hang-East; it is separated from Richmond

- by the River Swale.

SLEIGHTHOLME-DALE, kam. in the township of Fadmoor, and
ish of Kirbymoorside ; 3 miles from Kirbymoorside.

SLEIGHTS, in the township of Eskdaleside, and parish of Whitby,
wapentake of Whitby-Strand ; (Sleights-Hall, the seat of Mrs
Bateman, and Esk-Hall, the seat of Jokn Campion Coates, Esq.)
4 miles from Whithy, 17 from Pickering. The Chapel here (built
about 1762) is a perpetual curacy under Whitby, value, p. r.
934 -9s. 4d.

SLINGSBY, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Rydale; 7 miles
from Malton, 9 from Kirbymoorside and Helmsley, 23 fram
York.—Pop. 548. The Church is a rectory, dedicated to All-
Saints, in the deanry of Rydale, value, 12/, 1s. 10;d. Patron,

. the Earl of Carlisle. : .

The ancient family of the Mowbrays had, for many generations, a castle.
here, the ruins of which are still visible.—Campex.

SMALLWAYS, 3 k. in the township of Newsham, and parish of
Kirkby-Ravensworth; 2 miles from Gretabridge.
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SMARBER, hawm. in the township of Melbecks, and parish of
Grinton; § miles from Reeth, 9 from Askrigg.

SMEARHOLMES, s. A. in the township and parish of Burneston ;-
4 miles from Bedale. ‘

SMEATON, GREAT, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Gilling-
East; 7 miles from Northallerton, 9 from Darlington, (Dur.) and
Yarm, 13 from Richmond, 39 from,York.—Pop. 250. The
Church is a rectory, in the deanry of Richmond, diocese of
Chester, value, 134 13s. 4d. Patron, Henry Hewgill, Esq.

SMEATON, LITTLE, a township, in the parish of Birkby, wa-
pentake of Allertonshire; 6 miles from Northallerton, 10 from
Yarm' and Darlington, (Dur.)—Pop. 64.

SMELTER, f. k. in the township of Bishopdale, and parish of Ays-

. garth; 5 miles from Askrigg, 12} from Leyburn.
SNAINTON, in the parishes of Brompton and Ebberston. wapen-
" take of Pickering-Lythe; (the seat of William Moorsom, Esq.)
7} miles from Pickering, 10 irom Scarborough, 12 from Malton.—
Pop. 603. The Chapel here is a perpetual curacy under Brompton,
value, p. r. 33.. About a } of a mile west of the village is

SNAINTON NEW-INN, a large Posting-House.

SNAPE, in the parish of Well, wapentake of Hang-East; (Snape-
Hall, the residence of Miss Clarkes) 3 miles from Masham, 3§
from Bedale.—Pop. 699. :

In 1605, Thomas, Earl of Exeter, and Dorothy his wife, founded and en-
dowed a house called Nevile’s work house, for the maintenance and education
of a master and mistress and eight poor giris of the townships of Well and Snape.
In 1788, this house was changed into four free schools, fur a boy and a girk
out of every house in each township, shove the age of five, and under the age
of thirteen. The master’s salary 30/. mistress’s, 16. Snape Hall, in Leland’s
time, was “ a goodly ca’te], in a valley belonging tv the Lord Latbmer,andiioe
tii parkes well wodded.”

SNAYSHOLME, ham. in the township of Hawes, and parish of
Aysgarth; 2} miles from Hawes, 7} from Askrigg.

SNEATON, a perish-town, in the wapentake of Whitby-Strand; 3
miles from Whitby, 18 from Pickering and Scarborough, 46 from
York.—Pop. 257. The Church is a rectory, in the deanry of
Cleveland, value, 13l. 2s, 6d. Patron, the King.

SNEATON-CASTLE, (the seat of James Wilson, Esq.) in the town-
ship of Ruswarp, and parish of Whitby ; 1} mile from Whithy.

SNEATON-THORPE, 6 few f.h. in the township and parish of
Sneaton ; 4 miles from Whitby.

SNILESWORTH, a vale, in the townships of Arden and Bilsdale,
Woest-side, and parish of Hawnby; 10 miles from Heimsley, 11
from Northallerton. : : .

SOBER-GATE, in the township of Newby-Wiske, and parish of
Kirby-Wiske ; 4 miles from Northallerton, . .

SOBER-HILL, 2f. k. in the same township and parish ; 3} miles
from Northallerton. o '

S8OBER, LOW, s, k. and extensive Nursery-Grounds, the property

» of Mr. Meek, in the township of Warlaby, and parish of Ainderby-
Steeple; 4 miles from Nogghallerton. )
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BOUR-LEYS, 2 f. 4. in the township of Rivaulx, and parish of
Helmsley ; 3} miles'from Helmsley. ]

SOUTH-FIELD, f. & in the township of Welburn, and parish of
Kirbymoorside { 3 miles from Kirbymoorside, _

BOUTH-HOLME, a township, in the parish of Hovinghem, wa-
pentake of Rydale ; 7 miles from Kirhymoorside, 8 from Helmsley,
9 from Malton,—Pop. 66.

BOWERBY, in the parish of Thirsk, wapentake of Birdforth; (ths
seats of Robert.Bell Livesy, and Cornelius Cayley, Esqrs.) 1 mile
from ‘Thirsk.—Pop. 748, The Church is a perpetual cnracy,
value, p. r, 120l. Patron, the Archbishop of York.

BOWERBY-UNDER-CO{CLIFFE, a township, in the parish of

~ Sigston, wapentake of Allertonshire ; 8 miles from Northellerton,
7 from Thirsk.—Pop. 53. .

Here was lately discovered, by some workmen throwing up & new road

in Mr. Hirst’s estate, part of the old Roman strata, leading from Thornton-le-
street to Sockburn.—En. -

BOWERSKETT. f. k. in the township of Carlton-high-dale, and parish
of Coverham, 7} miles from Middlebam.:

SPANHAM, f. k. in the township of Scargill, and parish of Barn.
ingbam: 4 miles from Gretabridge.

SPARROW-HALL, f. 4. in the township and patish of Salton; &§

_ miles from Kirbymoorside.

SPAUNTON, in the parish of Lastingham, wapentake of Rydale ;
{ wiles from Kirbymoorside, 6 from Pickering, 9; from Helmsley,
13 from Malton.—Pop. 109.

BPAUNTON-LODGE, (a Skooting-box of Henry Darley, Esq.) in
the townshiig of Hutton-le-Hole, and parish of Lastingham; §
miles from irbgmoorside.

SPENNYTHORNE, a parish-town, inr the wapentake of Hang-
West; (the seats of Mrs Chaytor, and Turner Straubenzie, Esq.)
1 mile from Middleham, 2 from Leyburn, 9 from Richmond, 43
from York.—Pop. 249. The Church is a rectory, dedicated to

« 8t. Michael, in the deanry of Catterick, diocese of Chester, value,
20l 10s. 5d. Patron, Marmaduke Wyville, Ksq. .

Here was born in 1674, John Hatchinson, Esq. a man of considerable ability
and learning. He received a private education which was liberal and excellent,
Having great taste for natural history and mineralogy, he made large collections
of fossils. In 1724, he published the first parf of that curious work, his Moses’s
Principia, in which he ridiculed Dr. Woodward’s natural history of the earth,
and attempted to explode the doctrine of gravitation, established in Sir lsaac
Newton’s Principia ; and maintained in the second part of that wurk in oppasi-
tion to the Newtonian system, that a plenum is the principle of the scripture
pbilosophy. Long before his death he published a volume every year; anda
correct and elegant edition of his works, including the M B 8 which he left,
were published in 1748, intitled the Philosophical and Theological works of the
late truly learned John Hutchinson, Esq. On Monday before his death, Dr.
Mead urged him tobe bled, saying pleasantly, “I will soon send you to Moses,”
imeaning his studies, which Mr. H. undersiood in the literal sense, answered,
¢ T believe Dr. you will,” and he was s0 much. displeased, that he dismissed
him for another physician, but be died » few days allerwards, in 1727. After
his death, his followers were called Hutchinsonians, .
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SPITAL, in the township of Romenby, and parish of Northallerton ;
1 mile from Northallerton.

. For an account of the hospital, see Northallerton.

SPITAL-BRIDGK INN, in the township of Barton-le-Willows,

. and parish of Crambe ; 74 miles from Maiton, 10} from York, 14
from Fasingwold. .

SPITAL-HOUSE, in the township and parish of Bowes; 7} miles
from Brough, (Westm.) 93 from Barpardcestle, (Dur.) 113 from
Gretabridge. .

This house stands on the Roman military way, behind which Stainmore

, rises; the hills, and all around, form: a scene of barrenness and deformity. Here
is a Roman camp, 300 yards square, with an intrenchment, supposed to bave
been occupied by the 6th Legion, whose station was at.York. Two on the
north side are entire. The mrupike road leading from Bowes to Brough, was
the Roman road. Rey-cross stands within the camp by the edge of the road,
and seems to have been a Roman mile-stone, baving a square tamulus fronting it
o the opposite side of the way.— Gen. Roy’s Military Antiguities.

Ralph de Multon founded here, before the year 1171, an bospital, called

- Rere-Cross Hospital, which was given to the Nunnery of Marrick, and continued

. parvel of their possessions till the dissolntion~-Burrar.

It was granted 7th Edward V1. to William Buchton and Roger Marsball.~
Mon. Anglia.— Gale’s Appen. )

For a great nymber of years there was but one solitary Inn, Spital-house,
to cheer the lonely traveller over the Stainmore’s Wintry Waste, bat within
these last 20 years another Inn has sprung vp. - .

SPITAL-HOUSE, NEW, in the township and parish of Bowes;
81 miles from Brough, (Westm.) 10 from Gretabridge.

SPRING-END, 2 A. in the township of Muker, and parish of Grin-
ton; 6 miles from Reeth and Askrigg.

SPRING-HOUSE, f. A. in the township and parish of Raskelf; 2
miles from Easingwold.

SPROXTON, in the parish of Helmsley, wapentake of Rydale; 1
mile from Helmsley, 7 from Kirbymoorside, 16 from Malton.—
Pop. 167. )

SPROXTON-COTE, f. 4. in the township of Sproxton, and parish
of Helmsley ; 2 miles from Helmsley.

STADDLE-BRIDGE HOUSE, f. . in the township and parish
of East-Harlsey ; 7 miles from Northallerton, 9 from Stokesley.
STAINSACRE, in the township of Hawsker-with-8tainsacre, and
parieh of Whitby, wapentake of Whitby-8trand; (the seat of
Jonathan Sanders) 2 miles from Whitby, 19 from Scarborough.—

Pop. included in Hawsker.

STAINSBY, 2 or 3 f. 4 in the township and parish of Stsinton; 3
miles from Stockton, (Dur.) -

STAINTON, a parish-town, in the west-division of Langbarugh ;
(the residence of the Rev. Jokn Gilpin) 4 wiles from Stokesley and
Stockton, (Dur.) 5 from Yarm, 47 from York.—Pop. 356. The
Church is a vicarage, dedicated to St. Peter, in the d of
Cleveland, value, 5. 14s 2d. Patron, the Archbishop of York.

STAINTON, kam. in the township of Ellerton-with-Stainton, and

ish of Downholme, wapentake of Hang-West ; 5 miles from
Eeybuu rn, 7 from Middleham and Riclimond.-—Pop. included in

erton.
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STAINTON-DALE, a township, in the parish of Scalby, wapentake
of Pickering-Lythe ; 8 miles from Scarborough, 13 from W hitby,—
Pop. 294,

!!‘; this dale was an hospital for knights hospitallers of St. John Baptist of
Jerusalem, founded in the reign of King Stephen. Part of the dale, if not the
whole, was the gift of one Henry, the son of Ralph. The grant was confirmed
by the charter of Richard I. It-was diseolved in 1540, and surrendered in 1541.
The site of the chantry, where carved stones were lately found, is called Old

{; and the adjoining farm house, where the hospital has stood, is called
Old Hall— Young’s Whitby. .

STAINTON-GRANGL, f. k. in the township and parish of Stainton ;
4 miles from Stokesley. -

STAITHES, in the township and parish of Hinderwell, east-dividion
of Langbaragh ; 10 miles from Redcar, 11 from Whitby, 13 from
Guisbrough.

Staithes is a considerable fishing town, surrounded on all sides, except an
opening to the sea, with immense hills and cliffs. In high tides, when accom-

nied with strong northerly winds, the sea set so furiously in here, ag to threaten
) ction to the lower part of the town ; and it has, within a few years, swept
away several houses. Fishing is the chief support of a great part of the inhabj-
tants, for which purpase about fourteen five-men boats "and fifty cobles are
employed, and during the summer months, 150 tons of cod and ling are dried
here every year; and in the herring season fifteen flve-men boats are fitted out
at this p for Yarmouth.

STAKESBY, HIGH, in the township of Ruswarp, and parich of
Whitby ;3 (the seat of John Blackburn, Esqg.) 1 mile from Whitby.
In the same township and parish is

STAKESBY, LOW, (the seat of Abel Chapman, Esq.) }-a mile
from Whitby.

STALLING, or STALLION-BUSK, Aam. in the township of
of Bainbridge, and parish of Aysgarth, wapentake of Hang-
West ; 4 miles from Hawes, 5 from Askrigg, 18 from Middleham.
The Church is a perpetual curacy, value, p.r. 94/ Patron, the
Vicar of Aysgarth.

STAMFORD-BRIDGE, in the parish of Gate-Helmsley, wapen-

" take of Bulmer.—S8ee East-Riding for further account,

STANDARD-HILL, f. h. in the township of Brompton, and parish
of Northallerton ; 3 miles from Northallerton. '

Here was fought in 1138, a bloody battle between the Scots, nnder the
eommand of their king, David, and the English, commanded by Thurstan,
Archbishop of York, (who, however, was left sick at Thirsk.) and many
};owerful northern barons. This has since becn called the battle of the standard,

rom a long pole being erected upon a carriage, having on the top of it a silver -
erucifix, under which was suspended the banners of St. Peter, and St. Wilfred of

Ripon, and above all, in & silver box was the consecrated wafer—R. Haawr,

J. Haour, X. Scxrprores. L.

STANGHOW, in the parish of Skelton, east-division of Lang-

" barugh; 4} miles from Gunisbrough, 12} from Stokesley, 17 from
Whitby.— Pop. included in Great-Moorsome. . ‘

STANK-HALL, f. k. in the township of Winton, and parish of
Sigston; 2} miles from Northallerton. :

This was anclently the  seat of the Lacelles, ancestors of the present Earl
of Harewood. Francis Lacelles died seizéd of Stank Hall, in 1624, Hiseldesy
#on William resided bere in 1613, and died in his father’s life time,
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STANWICK, ST. JOHN, a perish and towmship, in the wapen.
take of GiUin‘g-West; (the seat of Lord Prudhoe) 8 miles from
Richmond, 9 from Darlington, (Dur.) 48 from York.—Pop. 59,
The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to 8t. John, in the deanry of
Richmond, diocese of Chester, valne, 6/, 13s. 4d. p.r. *108.
11s. 4d. Patron, John Wharton, Esq.

There is a singularity attending this church, of which it would be difficult
to find a similar instance in England ; vig. there is neither glebe nor parsonage,
nor site to build one on, even the frechold and right of herbage of the churchyard
belongs to Lord Prudhoe, in right of his Kirkbridge estate; and the inhabitants
of Stanwick bave merely the right of burial. At Stanwick are the remains of
soge very extensive intrenchments called the Jack Dike Arches, the ramparts
of which, in the field adjoining the church, cannot be less than five feet high. At
no great distance from the parish church, is Stanwick Hall, for many generations
the residence of the Smithsons, now of Lord Prudhoe ; Sir Hugh Smitheon, the
last of that name, having married the heiress of the house of Northumberland, by

. which marriage this estate-came into that family.

STAPLETON, in the parishes of St. John Stanwick and Croft,
wapentake of Gilling-East ; 24 miles from Darlington, (Dur.) 11
from Richmond.—Pop. 113.

STAPE, 2 f. h. inthe township of Pickering, and parish of Middle-
ton ; 8 miles from Pickering.

STARTFORTH, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Gilling-West;
(the seat of T. H. Hill, Esq.) 1 mile from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) 3
from Gretabridge, 15 from Richmond, 56 from York.—Pop. 460.
The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to the Holy Trinity, in the
deanry of Richmond, diocese of Chester, valune, 14l 0s. 10d, p. r.
#1281, 19¢, 8d. "Patron, Sir John Rameden, Bart.

STEARSBY, in the parish of Bransdby, wapentake of Bulmer; 6
miles from Easingwold, 13 from Malton.—Pop. included in
Bransdby.

STEPNEY, in the township of Ruswarp,- and parish of Whitby ; }

. of a mile from Whitby. ‘

STILLINGTON, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Balmer, liberty
of 8t. Peter ; (the seat of William Croft, Esq. and Stillington-Hall,
the seat of Harry Croft, Esq.) 4 wiles from Easingwold, 10 from
York, 12 from Malton.—Pop. 698. The Church, peculiar, isa
vicarage, dedicated to St. Nicholas, in the deanry of Bulmer, valoe,
$4l. 158. 5d. Patron, the Prebendary of Stillington.

STETTENHAM, in the perish of Sheriff-Hutton, wapentake of Bul-
mer; 9 miles from Malton and Easingwold, 12 from York.—Po-

, pulation 81.
The knightly family of Gower had anciently a seat here. Sir Allen Gowar
wras sheriff for this county at the conquest, and from whom the present Marquis
of Stafford, Earl Gower, Viscount Trentham, Baron Gower of Stettenham, is
lineally descended. The present Baron Gower was created a Marquis in 1786
The family of the Gowers has produced many persons of eminénce, amongst
whom, was the celebrated Sir .}:)lm Gower, the poet, and cotemporary with

Chancer.
STOCKTON-ON-THE-FOREST, & parish-town, in the wapentake

of Bulmer, a part in the liberty of St. Peter; 4 miles from York,

11 from Easingwold, 14 from Malton.—Pop. 357, “The Churoh,
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peculiar, is a perpetaal curacy, in the deanry of Bulmer, value, p. r,
1140L Patron, the Prebendury of Bugthorpe. '
STOKESLEY, a market and parish-town, in the west-division of
Langbarugh s (the seat of the very Rev, the Dean of York, and
the Rev. Henry Hilyard.) 8 miles from Guisbroagh, 9 from
Tontine-Inn and Yarm, 10 from Stockton, (Dur.) 16 from North-
allerton and Helmsley, 20 from Thirsk, 43 from York, 242
from London.— Market, Saturday.—Fairs, Palm-sun-eve, Trinity
Saturday, for horses, horned ocattle, sheep, linen cloth, &e. first
Satarday after Old Lamas-Day, for linen eloth. Principal Inn, Black
Swan.—-Pop. 1897. The Church is a rectory, dedicated to St.
Peter, in the deanry of Cleveland, value, 30L 62z 10}d. Patron,
the Archbishop of York.
Stokesley is a small and handsome town, but like Thirsk and Northaller«
ton, the market place is disgraced in the centre, with old and wretchied buildings:

-~ Hyrron. :

STONEGILL-GATE, in the township of Glasedale, and -parich of
Danby ; 8 miles from Whitby. A few scattered houses. :

STONEGRAVE, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Rydale; 5§
miles from Helmsley, 7} from Kirbymoorside, 10} from Malton,
18 from York.—Pop. 177. The Churoch is a rectory, in the deanry
of Rydale, value, 23.. 6s. 84. Patron, the King.

In this church are three inscriptions, illustrative of the déscendant of that
learned divine Thomas Comber, D. D. dean of Durham, whose son Thomeas,

resided at East Ne in this parish.—7/ i ith &
e L E wton, parish.: Mpa-fmhr:mqkmtwcﬁa
STONESDALE, EAST, f. k. in the township of Muker, and parish
of Grinton; 13} miles from Reeth.
STONESDALE, WEST, Aam. in the township of Muker, and
parish of Grinton ; 12 miles from Askrigg, 13 from Reeth.
STONEY-CLOSE-HOUSE, f. &. in the township of Thirn, and
parieh of Thornton- Watlas ; 3 miles from Masham, 4 from Bedale.
STONKYKELD, :. A. in the township and parish of Bowes ; 5}
miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) 6 from Gretabridge.
STORTHWAITE, 3 cots, in the township and parish of Egton;
8 miles from Whitby. ' .
STORTHWAITE-HALL, kam. in the township of Reeth, and
parish of Grinton, wapentake of Gilling-West ; 2 miles from Reeth.
STOUPE-BROW, ‘ham. in the township and parish of Fylingdale,
8 miles from Whitby, 12 from Scarborough.
STOUP-BROW-COTTAGE, (the seat of Sunderland Cook, Esq.y
similarly situated.
STREET-HOUSES, 8 f. 4. in the township and parish of Loftus ;
9 miles from Guisbrough.
STREET-BOUSE, f. A.in the township of Ainderby-Myers, and
parish of Horuiby ; 3} miles from Catterick. ) '
STRENSALL, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Bulmer, liberty
of St. Peter; 6 miles from York, 9 from Easingwold, 13 fromr
Malton.—Pop. 378. The Church, peculiar, is a vicarage dedicated
to St. Mary, in the deanry of Bulmer, value, 34/ 13¢. 4d, Patron,
the Prebendary of Strensall.
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STUDDOW, f. k. in the township of Burton-Constable, ahd parish
of Fingall ; 2} miles from Leyburn.

STUBRDY-WOOD, f. h. in the township of Whaston, and parish-of

. Kirkby-Ravensworth. :

SUETT-CARR, a few f, k. in the township and parish of Satton-on+
the-Forest ; 6 miles from York, 8 from Kasingwold.

SUFFIELD, in thé township of Sufficld-with-Lverley, and parisit
of Hackness, wapentake of Whitby-Strand ; 4 miles from Scar-
borough, 18 from Whitby.—Pop. including Everley, 97.

SUMMER-LODGE, f. h. in the township and parish of Grinton §

~ 1 a mile from Reeth. )

SUNLEY-HILL, f. A. in the township of Welburn, and parish of .

. Kirkdale ; 3 miles from Kirbymoorside, 6 from Helmsley.

SUTTON, in the parish of Kirklington, wapentake of Hellikeld $
53 miles from Ripon, 8 from Bedale, Thirsk, and Masham.— Pop:

. including Howgrave, 122, .

SUTTON-ON-THE-FOREST, a parish-town, in the wapentake of -
Balmer ; (the seat of Lady Harland,) 6 miles from Easingwoid, 8}
from York, 15 from Malton.—Pop. 443. The Charch is a viears
age, dedicated to All-Saints, in the deanrywof Bulmer, valne, 174

. 3s. 4d. Patron, the Archbishop of York.

- SUTTON-UNDER-WHITESTONECLIFF, in the parisk of
Feliskirk, wapentake of Birdforth, liberty of Ripon ; (the seat of
Capt. Thrush, R. N.)3} miles from Thirsk, 10} from Helmsley, 14}
from Ripon.—Pop. 325. . :

This place appearsto have beconte part of the See of York in 1542, whedt

- the manors of Beverley, Southwell, &c. were exchanged with the crown for
the dissolved priory of Marton-cum-Membris; Kilburn, Sutton, &c.—Draxm

SUTTON-PEN, 3 f. k. in the township of Healey-with-Sutton, and
parish of Masham, wapentake of Hang-East ; 3 miles from Masham,

SWAINBY, in the township and parish of Whorlton, west-divisiont
of Langbdaragh; 6 miles from -Stokesley; 10 from Northallertont
and Yarm. , _

SWAINBY, a township, in tbe-parish of Pickhill, wapentake of
Hallikeld ; 63 miles from Bedale, 8 from Norihallerton, 10} front
Ripon.—Pop. including Allerthorpe, 33. : )

Here Helewise, daughter of Ranelph de Glanville; founded, in the mn of
Henry II. a religious house for canons of the Premonstatentian order ; she -

. marrying Ralph de Ranuiph, Lord of Middlelam, it was removed in 1215, to
Coverham, near his manor hounse of Middleham; he died fx 1251, and was
buried at Coverham.—DvepaLe.—BurtoN. Not & vestige of the building id
il:wmt: be met with, though the unevennessof the ground points out very clearly

BWALE-HALL, f. A in thé township and parish of Grinton§ }}
mile from Reeth. :

Here was formerly a seat, for many generations, of the family of Swale § thd
Iast of whoin was Sir Solomon Swale, Bart. who died 1733, Sir Solomon Swale
was created a haronet by Charles II. I 1660, and the yeat following, be eat int

iament for Aldborough, but was expelled as a popish recusent convick:

SWALE-FIELD, f. . in the township of Morton-upon-Swale, stid
pavishof Ainderby-Steeple; 4 miles from Northallertonand Bedale,

. » . -
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SWINESIDE, kam. in the township of Carlion-high-dale, amd
parish of Coverbam; 6 miles from Middleham, 7} from Leyburn.
SWINETHWAITE, or SWYINGTHWAITE, Aam. in the town-
ship and parish of West-Witton, wapentake of Hang-West; (the
seat of Wm. Jokn Anderson, Esq.) 5 miles from Leyburn, 6 frem
Middleham, :
SWINTON, in the parish of Masham, wapentake of Hang-East; (ke
seat of Wimn. Danby, Esq.) 1 mile from Musham, 10 from Ripon.—
-Pop. 177, .
l'l‘)m house at Swinton, which boasts a fine colleetion of pictures, hoth by
ancient and modern masters, an excellent assortment of ores, minerals, &c.
erly classified, has attached to it a beautiful park and pleasure grounds,
inferior to none in this part of the country
With much trouble and expence the worthy proprietor has brought from
a distancc of several miles, a small stream through his gardens and park, which
in sofne places breaks into very fine lakes ; in others, contracts into the size of &
" little rill, which winds through the woods in a most pleasing manner ; bere
falling inte cascades, it enlivens the whole scene; then withdraws from the
cye, aud hides itselfin the dark bosom of tufied groves. The rosy bower, and
regular garden adjoining the house, will afford to many visitors the greatest treat,
but.to those who are fond of the picturesque and romantic Quarry Gill, will
be found to posscss the most striking beauties, particularly when it is full of
water. These grounds are Jxen for public accommodation. Mr Danby bas
recently made considerable additions to his collection of paintings. The house
- is andergoing some material alterations, and a gallery is to be erected purposely
‘for the pictures. ’
SWINTON, in the parish of Appleton-le-Street, wapentake of Ry-
" dale; 2} miles from Malton, 11} from Kirbymoorside.—Pop. 334.
Here is a- Chapel of Ease to Appleton-le-Street.
SYKE-BRIDGE and HOUSES, in the township of Newsham-cum-
. Brackenbrongh, and parish of Kirby-Wiske; 3} miles from Thirsk.
A few cottages. .
SYLPHO, a township. in the parish of Whitby, wapentake of Whit-
by-Strand ; 5 miles from Scarborough, 16 from Whitby.—Pop. 96

A few scattered farms,
T ‘

TAMETON, 3 f. A. in the township and parish of Stokesley, west-
divisien of Langbarugh ; 3 miles from Stokesley.

TANFIELD, EAST, a township, in the parish of Kirklington, wa-

" pentake of Hallikeld; 6 miles from Ripon, 7 from Bedale.«—
Pop. 32,

TANFIELD, WEST, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Hallikeld ;
3} miles from Masham, 6} from Ripon and Bedale, 29; from York.
—Pop. 709. The Church is a rectory, dedicated to St. Nicholas,
in the deanry of Catterick, diocese of Chester, value, 13.. 0s. 5d.
Patron, the Marquis of Ailesbury. :

In this church are wany curious monuments of its ancient lords; and
adjoining to which is the chantry called Maud Marion, founded in the
reign of Henry III. in which were a master, warden, and two brothers,
who were to pray for the souls of John, lord Marmion, his wife, and their
son; and for the health of Avice Grey, lord Marmion, her son and heir,
sad his wife Elizabeth, and for the sounls of their progenitors and successors.
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Al this place on the banks of the river, are the remains of Tanfield Casule,
but by whom built does not appear to be known. At a very early period, this
castle and manor, together with the nej hbouring estates of large extent, were

- the property of the family of Fitzhugh, an heiress of which, (Amice, datigh-
ter of Jernegan Fitzhugh) they were carried by marrisge, early in the 13th

- ocentury to Robert, Lord Marmion, (he giving to the king 350 marks and5 paifreys,
for leave to marry the maid Amice,) whose grandson John, obtained "from
Edward [. a license to convert Lis house, calied the Hermilage, in Tanfield
wood, Intoa castle. Robert Marmion, the son of that John, and Inst of his lige,
gave the castle and manor to his sister Avice, on her marriage with Sir John
Grey, of Rotherfleld, on condition that thelr issue shonld assume the sirname
of Marmion. Robert, their son, left an only daughter, Elizabeth, who marrying

. "Henry, Lord Fitzshugh of Ravensworth, carried them once more into that fami-
}y, frem which they pasged, in the 4th of ilenry VIIL. by the marriage of an
heiress, into that of the Parrs. By the attainder of William Parr, Marquis of
Northampton, they escheated to the crown, where they remained until the
reign of James I. who granted them, with other estates, to his fivourite, Ed--
waié, Lord Bruce of Kinross, in right of descent, from whom they are now eajoy- .
ed, by Charles Bruce Brudenell, Marquis of Ailesbury, who had a mansion i
the parish, called Tanfield- Hatl, but which was pulled down in the year 1816.

Little now remains of Tanfleld-Castle, except a lofty gateway, (a faithful’
drawing of which i given in Grose’s Antiquities) divided only by a road, which
runs through the village. Of the time of its demolition, Little or nothing is
known. Grose informs us, that tradition says, ¢ when Tanfield-Castle wa< de-
stroyed, the materials were purchased by several of the neighbouring gentry, snd
that the Earl of Exeter’s house at Snape, and the geat of Wandisfords at Kirk-
lington, were bmilt with them.’? On a part of the site a new parsonage hounse
has been erected, by the Rev. Williama Baines, the present rector.

TELPHIT, . k. in the township and parish of Marske ; 7 miles from
Richmond. )

TEMPLE, f. k. in the township of South-Cowton, and parish of
Gilling ; 8 miles from Northallerton, 9 from Richmond.

TEMPLE-HOUSE, f. A. in the township and parish of West-Wit-
ton: 6 miles from Leyburn, 7 from Middleham. ‘

TERRINGTON, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Bulmer; 8
miles from Malton and Easingwold, 14 from York.—Pop. inclu-
ding Wigginthorpe, 617. The Church is a rectory, dedicated to
Al-Saints, in the deanry of Bulmer, value, 23/. 18s. 6id. Patron,
the Rev, Robert Darley Waddilove, D. D. )

THACKBER-HIOUSE, f. k. in the township of Borrowby, and

" parish of Lythe ; 10 miles from Whitby,

THEAKSTONKE, in the parish of Burneston. wapemntake of Halli-
kelds” (the seat of Edward Carter, Esq.) 3 miles from Bedale,
8 from Masham, 10 from Ripon.—Pop, 87. :

THEAKSTONE-GRANGULE, f. 4. in the township of Theakstone,
and parish of Burneston; 3} miles from Bedale.

THIMBLEBY, in the parich of Osmotherley, wapentake of Aller-
tonshire ; 6 miles from Northallerton, 9 from Thirsk, 11 from
Stokesley.—Pop. 200, About } a mile above is

THIMBLEBY-LODGE, (the seat of Richard William Christopher
Peirse, Esq.)

THIRKLEBY, HIGH, e parish-town, in the wapentake of Bird-
forth ; (Thirkleby-Hall, the seat of 8ir Thomas Frankland, Bart.)
4 miles from Thirsk, 7 from Easingwold, 20 from York.—Pop.
including Low-Thirkleby, 293, which together, form the town.
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ship of Thirklebys-Ambo. The Church, (rebuilt by the late

Sir Thomas Frankland, in 1722) is a vicarage, dedicated to All-
Saipts, in the deanry of Bulmer, value, 6. p.r. *148L 8s. 3d.
Patron, the Archbishop of York. -

The family of the Franklands is of great antiquity, end probably came over
writh the conqueror. Their first settlement appears to have been at lokeringill,
in the parish of Skipton. In the early part of the Zear 1600, we find William
Frankland, Esq. settled at Thirkleby. He wasthe first of the family that was
advanced to the dignity of s baronet, in the year 1660. He married Arabella,
daughter of Henry Belasyse, Esq. and gnnd-daughter of Thomas, Viscount
Pauconberg. The present Baronet, the bth, is lineally descended from Oliver
Cromwell. He was brought up at Merton College, Oxford, and was High She-
riff of this county in 1792. He married Dorothy, daughter of Sjr Wiltiam
Smelt, by whom he had Heury, Robert, (Member of Parliament for Thirsk,)
Sarah, Amelia, and Mariane.

THIRKLEBY, LOW, in the parish of High-Thirkleby.
THIRLBY, in the parisb of Feliskirk, wapentake of Birdforth; §}
miles from Thirsk, 10 from Helmsley.—Pop. 167. .

- TTHIRN. in the parish of Thornton-Watlas, wapentake of Hang-

" Esst; 3 miles from Masham, 4} from Bedale, 7 from Middleham,
--Pop. 126. )

THIRSK, a market and parish-town, in the wapentake of Birdforth;
9 miles frum Northallerton, 10 from Easingwold, 11 from Borough-
bridge & Ripon, 12 from Tontine Inn, 14 from Masham, Bedale, &
Helmsley, 20 from Stokesley and Yarm, 23 from York, 222 from
London.—Market, Monday.—Fairs, Shrove-Monday, April 4 and
5, for horned cattle, sheep, lesther, &c. Easter-Monday and Whit-
Monday, for woollen cloth, toys, &c. August 4 and 5, Oct. 23 and
29, for sheep, horned cattle, and leather ; first Tuesday after Dec,
11, for horned catile, leather, &c.—Principal Inns, Three-Tuns
and Fleece,—Pop. 2,533, The Church, a handsome gothic edi-
fice, is a perpetual curacy, dedicated to St, Mary, in the deanry of
Bulmer, value, p.r. 198/. Patron, the Archbishop of York—
It is generally supposed to bave been built-out of the ryins of the
custle here, built by Roger de Mowbray.

Thirsk is & borough by presription, and sent membests to parliament, 23rd
Edward 1. but made no other return till the last parliament of Edward VI,
‘The'Jast contest, (there being only an accoant of two on record) was in 1672.
The right of election is vested in the Burgage-holders of old Thirsk—number
of votes, 50-—49 of which are in the hands of Sir Thomas Frankland, Bart.
-who returns both Members.—The returning officer is the Bailiff. The election
took place on St. James’s Green, till 1818. . .

Thirsk, which probably derives its name from the British words Tre, a town,
and Isk, a river or brook, is sitnated upon & small brook called Cod-beck, or
rather Cot-beck, from the British word Cotte, signifying woody, which separates
the old from the mew town. That part called the new town, stands near
the site of an old castle, which formerly belonged to the powerful family
of the Mowbrays. The moat and ramparis are siill te be seen, at the
west side of the town, but no vestige of the building remains. It was here that
Roger de Mowbray began his rebellion against Henry 1I. and confederated with
the King of Scotland, againat his own sovereign ; the revolt bowever was sup-
Ppressed, and this castle, with many others, was demolished.

In old Thirtk was an ancient chantry, dedicated to St. James, and
founded by William de Mowbray, in the reign of Henry I but no appearance

of iws site is visible.
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THOLTHORPE in the parish of Alne, wapentake of Bulmer,
liberty of St. Peter; 5 miles from Easingwold and Borough-
bridge, 13 from York .—Pop. 238.

THORALBY, in the parish of Aysgarth, wapentake of Hang-
- West; 44 miles from Askngg, 74 from Leybarn, 9 from Mld-

- dleham.—Pop. 342,

THORALDBY, f. h. in the township of Skutterskelfe, and parish
of Stokesley ; 2 miles from Stokesley.

THORESBY, in the towmship of Carperby, and parish of Aysgarth,

wapentake ‘of Hang-West; 5} miles from Leyburn, 6 from
Middleham, 11} from Richmond.

Here was formeriy-a seat of the ancient family of Thoresby, and where §t
is said John Thoresby, Archbishop of York, was horn ; he was gnnd.on to Sir
Hugh Thoresby of Thoresby, Kuight, by llabel daughter of Sir Thomas le
Grose of Suffolk, Knight. Jobn Thoresby received his education chiefly at
Qxford. He was made keeper of the great seal, by Edward I11.in 1347, in which
year he was created Btshop of St. Davids, From thence ha was transiated ta
Woroeuter, and in 1352 was elected to York. He died at Bishopthorpe, in
1373. It wasin this Archbishop’s time that the nice distinction was invented,
of Primate of England and all gl«md, between the sees of Canterbury and
York.—Drake’s .

THORMANBY, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Bulwer; 4
miles from Easingwold, 6 from Thirsk, 17 from York.-—-Pop.
118. The Church is a xectory, dedicated to St. Mary, in the
deanry of Bulmer, value, $8/. 2s. 1ld. Patrons, Lord Viscount
Downe and Sir George Cayley, Bart. alternately,

THORNABY, in the parish of Stainton, west-division of Lang~
baraghs 2 mlles from Stockton, (Dur,) 4 from Yarm, 7} from
Stokesley, 12 from Guisbrough.—Pop. 197. The Chapel here is

a perpetnal curacy under Stainton.

THORNBROUGH, in the township and parish of West-Tanfield,
wapentake of Hnlhkeld 6 miles from Masham and Rlpon, 7 from
Bedale,

At Thornherough, upon Thornborongh Moor, (now encloscd) are three of '
those circular enclosures, which are attributed to the Danes'and called camps.
They lie in a line passing from north-west to sonth-east, about nine hundred
yards distant from each other. The first thing observable is the outermost ring,
which consists of a very small ditch; about twenty-four from thatis o
mound of earth, not less than twelwe or fourteen feet high, covered with sod,
and sloping both outwardly and inwardly. At the footal thu,a terrace, fourteen
paces broad, surronnds & very deep tcb at least sixteen paces broad at top ;
this encloses a circular area, smooth and even as could be formed, about one
hundred and thirty-two yards in diameter. To this are two entrances
in the middle, and opposite to each other.” These are. cut throngh the dyke,
and fill the ditch in that part to the level of the area. One of these sircles is
very eatire, the other bas been injured by the plough ; the third, mentioned bK
Pennant, is now only to be discovered from the unevenness of the fleld in whi
it has been situated. The perfect one must bave been that wlneh Pennant has so
accurately described as above, and which was some years upos by
the Earl of Ailesbury, by way of preserving it. It is mmnerbld. These
rings, Pennant calls Tilting. Circles, and were used for the purpose of tilting
or fighting duels in, a custom very prgvalent amon; the nosthern mations.—
Spe Pennant’s Tour from Alston Moor to Harrogate

THORNBROUGH, f. 4. in the township of .Brougb and parish of
_ Catterick; 13 lmle from Catterick,
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. Many Roman ooins have at different times been found here ; one 67 gold,
with this inscription, “ NERO IMP. CESAR,” on the reverse, *“ JUPITER
QUSTOS ;”” and bases of old pillars, and brass pots full of Roman ¢oins, mostly
copper, but some ofsilver, have likewiee been discovered here. —CaMpEeN.

THORNBROUGH, 3 f. A4, a township, in the parish of South-Kil.
vington ; 3 miles from Thirsk, 8 from Northallerton.—Pop. 27.

THORNEY-BROW, ham. in the township and parish of Fyling-
dale; 8 miles from Whitby, 12 from Scarborough.

THORN-PARK, s. . in the township of East-Ayton, and parish of
Seamer; § miles from Scarborough. , .

THORNS, ham. in the township of Muker, and parish of Grinton ;
7 miles from Askrigg, 12 from Reeth. .

THORNTON, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Pickering-Lythe;
(the seat of Richard Hill, Esq.) 2} miles from Pickering, 9 from
Malton, 16} from Scarborough, 27 from York.—Pop. 879. The
Church is a rectory, dedicated to All-Seints, in the deanry of

‘Rydale, value, 20{. Patron. Richard Hill, Ksq.

- Here is an hospital, founded by Lady Viscount Lumley, in 1657 for 12 poor
people, generally widows, each having a neat house of two apartments, with 10%
or wpards, yearly. Lady Lum!ey also founded here at the same time, a Gram-
mar-School, and endowed it with 30/. per annum, for a master *in holy orders”
to teach in the school, and to read prayers in the Chapel. The amonntof the en-

ment is now 60/, a year, consisting of 10 acres of land at Fhornton, and a
stipulated salary of 45/. together With a house, garden, and schoel-houge.

THORNTON, kam. in the township and parish of Stainton ; 4 miles
from Stockton, (Dur.) 4} from Yarm.

THORNTON-BRIDGE, a township, in the parjsh of Brafferton ;
wapentake of Hallikeld; 6 miles from kasingwold, 8 from
Ripon,.—Pop. 43.

Here stood, till 1ately, a very ancient mansion of brick, lofty and spacious,
successively the residence of the anci families of Courtney, Nevile, and
Strickland, of whom Sir Thomas Strickland was one of the Privy Council to King
James I{. whose fortunes he followed into France, and died there.— Hargrove.
It is now, with seme extensive farms adjoining, in the hands of the crown.

. About 6 or 7 years ago, a quantity of silver coins was found here, in remov-
ing an old wall, chiefly of the reign of William and Mary, in 5. and 2s. 64.
pieses. Mr Paley, the present tenant, sent them to government—value upwards of

_ 401 as old silver.

Thornton-Bridge came to the Stricklands, by the marriage of Sir Walter

* Strickland, Knight, with Catharine, daughter of Sir Ralph Nevile, descended
from & 8ir Ralph, a ron of Ralph Lo\:f Raby.” ¢ The Swicklands forfeited
Thornton-Bridge by being concerned in the rebellion of 1715.”—Tunstal’a

Remarks.

THORNTON-LE-BEANS, in the parish of North-Ottetington,
wapentake of Allertonshire; 3} miles from Nortballerion, 6§}
from Thirsk.—Pop. 247. :

"THORNTON-LE-MOOR, in the parish of North-Otterington,
wapentake of Birdforth; (the seat of Thomas Beckett, Esq.) 5
miles from Northallerton and Thirsk, 3} from Bedale.—Pop. 294.

On the north side of this village are the remains of a chapel, built long be-
fore 1652, when the moor-lands were enclosed. :

THORNTON-LE-STREKT, a.perish-town, in the wapentake of
Allertonshire ; 3 miles from Thtrsk, 6 from Northallerton, 26
from York.—Pop. 131, The Church is a vicarage, dedioated to
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St. Leonard. in the deanry of Cleveland, value, 24L p.r. 78
Patrons, the Dean and Chapter of Christ’s Church, Oxford.

Here the Rycknild street separated from the road leading to Catterick, and
stretching in a direct line by Sowerby, crossed the Tees at Sockburn.—Cipe.

THORNTON, f. k. in the township of Thornton-with-Baxby. and
parish of Cexwold, wapentake of Birdforth ; 3 miles from Kasing-
wold, 10 fronr Thirsk.—Pop. including Baxby, 70.

THORNTON-RISEBROUGH, in the parish of Normanby, wa-
pentake of Rydale; 4 miles from Pickering, 5 from Kirbymoor-
side.—Pop. 32.

THORNTON-RUST, in the parish of Aysgarth, wapentake of
Hang-West; 2 miles from Askrigg, 7 from Hawes, 11 from
Middleham.—Pop. 133.

THORNTON-STEWARD, a parish-town, in the wapentake of
Hang-West; 6 miles from Leyburn, 7 from Bedale, 36 from
York.—Pop. 265. The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to St.
Oswald, in the deanry of Catterick, diocese of Chester, value,
361 13s. 11}d. Patron, the Bishop of Chester.

In 1815, Mr. George Home, a native of this place, built a achool house here,
and endowed it with 10/, per annum, for ever.

THORNTON-ON-THE-CLAY, in the parish of Foston, wapen-
take of Balmer ; 8 miles from Malton, 1] from York, 12 from
Easingwold.—Pop. 173.

THORNTON-WATLAS, a parish-town, in the wapentake of
Heng-East; (Thornton-Hall, the seat of Sir Edward Smith Dods-
worth, Bart.) 3 miles from Bedale, 3} from Masham, 37 from
York.—Pop. 180, The Church is a rectory, dedicated to St.
Mary, in the deanry of Catterick, diocese of Chester, value, 6/,
10s. 10d. FPatron, Mark Milbank, Esq.

About half way up the church sieeple, a door on the right opens into a
room with stone floor, four spaces square, in which is a fire-place and other
couveniences. For what purpose this room has been unsed, the records of the

) church are silent, Probably as a watch tower, it having small windows in the

sides.
THORPE, in the township and parish of Fylingdale, wapentake of
Whitby-Strand ; 6 miles from Whitby, 16 frcm Scarborough,
THORRE, in the parish of Wycliffe, wapentake of Gilling-W esé;
2 miles from Gretabridge, 4 from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) 9 from
Reeth, 11 from Richmond.
THORPE-FIELD-HOUSES, 2 f. k. in the townships and parishes
- of Topeliffe and Thirsk ; 1} mile from Thirsk, 9} from Borough-
. bridge and Ripon.
THORPE-PERROW, or THORPE-HALL, (the seat of Mark
Mlbank, Esq.) in the township of Snape, and parish of Well ; 2
. miles from Bedale, 5 from Masham.
THORPE-UNDER-STONE, in the parish of Catlerick ; 4 miles
from Richmond, 8} from Leyburn, 10} from Middieham.
THRINTOFT, in the parish of Ainderby-Steeple, wapentake of
Gilling-East ; 3 miles from Nortballerton, 5} from Bedale, 14
from Richmond.—Pop. 165.
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THROXENBY, or THROSTENBY, in the parish of Scalby, wa-
pentake-of Pickering-Lythe; 2 miles from Scarborough, 19 from
W hitby.—Pop. 66. . }

THUNDERBUSH, s. 4. in the township of Commondale, and
parish of Kildale ; 4 miles from Guisbreugh. :

THURLSOE, f. & in the township and parish of Hackmess; 4}
mites from Scarborough.

THWAITE, ham. in the township of Muker, and parish of Grine
ton; 6 miles from Askrigg, 9 from Reeth. ¢

THWAITE-BRIDGE, f. k. in the township of High-Abbotside,
and parish of Aysgarth; 4 miles from Hawes. .

THWAITE'S-HALL, f. k. in the township of Hunderthwaite, and
parish of Romaldkirk ; 6 wiles from Barnardeastle, (Dur.)

THERNG-GARTH, f. k. in the township of Lunedale, and parish
of Romaldkirk ; 10 miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.)

TITHE-HOUSE, f. A. in the township and parish-of Sinnington ;
24 miles from Kirbymoorside. :

TOCKETTS, see Plantation.

TOLESBY, Aam. in the township and parish of Marton, westdivi-
sion of Langbarugh; (Tolesby-Hell, the seat of the late Thomae
Rudd, Esg.) 6 miles from Stokesley and Yarm.

TOLLERTON, in the parish of Alne, wapentake of Bulmer, liberty

- of St. Peter; 4 miles from Easingwold, 7 from Boroughbridge,
10 from York.—No Market,—Fair, August 15, for horned cattle
and sheep.—Pop. 481. ‘

TONTINE-INN, in the township and parish of Arncliffe, west-
division of Langbarugh; 7 miles from Northallerton, 8 from
Yarm, 9 from Stokesley, 12 from Thirsk.

The foundation of thie Inn, which was designed on an exieniive and
elegant plan, was laid on the 13th day of July, 1804, for the purpose of
establishing a daily postbetween Thirsk, Guisbrough,Yarm, &¢. fot theaccommoda~
tion of the inhabitants of Cleveland, and which commenced on the 5th of Sep-

tember following, Was raised by subs¢ripton in the nature of a Tontine, called
the Cleveland Tontine-Inn.— s> Cleveland. :

TOPCLIFFE, a perish-town, in the wapentake of Birdforth, &
part in the liberty of St. Peter ; 4 miles from Thirsk. 7 from Bo-
‘roughbridge and Ripon, 12 from Northallerton, 24 from York.—
No Market.—Fairs, July 17 and 18, for sheep, horses, horned
cattle, &c.—Pop. 659. The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to
St. Colomb, in the deanry of Bulmer, valoe, 19/. 19s. 2d. Patrons,
the Dean and Chapter of York,

Topcliffe formerly denominated the Jordan of England, because. in the year
690, Agustin And Paul baptized in this river 10,000 men in one day, besides
women and children. ‘This took place somewhere between Topcliffe and Hel-
perby. Leland calls Topeliffe “ a preity uplandish town.”- 1t is most remark-
able for having been, in the olden time, the chief residence of the Percies, Earls
of Northumberland. Their honse was situated about half g mile south of the town,
the ruing of which are yet visible, and called “ Maiden-bower.” The following
events appear to have taken place in this house and at Topcliffe. In 948, the
states of Northumberland aesenibled bere and took the oath of alleginnce to King
Edred, the west Saxon. In 1489, Henry, the 4th Earl of Northumberland, then
Lord Lieutewant of the county, was murdered im his mension here, by the
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populsce, whose' minds were liumgghmﬁcqumé of & hesvy tax befnig
- lavitd Wy the pasiiament. - Thémas Perdy; the succeeding Earl,-in 1568, wok
arms against Queen Elizabeth, and was neaxly.jaken in this honse ; he was
executedin 1572. In 1646, the Scoich army were gnaricred here and
" in theneighbourhood. €harles I. was & privoner’ i this houst; and s treaty
‘was oiizried on for the sale of the King, hotwesn the Scots commissioners and &
ecommittee :ﬁpomted by parlisment, whle he was kept a prisoner. It was
agreed that the parliament should give 100,000 which should be paid at Top-
cliffe sind the King delivered np, which was performed ; thus, it would scem, ag if
this was the only market in Eng’and for the sdle of Kings.— Horron. The
Chureh was granted in 1208, by one of the Percy family to the See of York.
Hege is a free salwol well endowed, but by whom or when founded is ¢t
. kmown. Ytisfree for the parish, and the master’s salary upwards of 80/ per

aAmpum. . .
TOWTHORPE, int the township of Huntingion, and perishes of
‘Strensall and- Huntington, wapentake of Baimer, & part in the;
. iberty of St. Peler; 4 miles-from York,. 10 from Easingwold, -
Pop. 58. . e . 4
TRE%HOIJME,- kim. in the .towiship .and parishof Whorlton; 8
miles from Stokesley, 10 from Yarm. : :
TRINIAN; ST. s, . in the township anid parish of Easby; 1 milte
. fromRichmond, . 4 from Catterick. - . . ‘
TROUTS-DALE, a township, in the parish of Brompton, wm
~tgke of Pickering-Lythe; 8' inile$ from Searborough, 10’ fro
** Pickering, 17 fromp Whitby.—Pop. 45. . B
TUNSTALLS, in the patish of Catterick, wapentake of Haxrig-Easf;
%’mﬂes from Catferick, 5 from Richmoud, 7 from Bedale.—~
op. 253. ’
TU]}IETALL, ham. in the fownship of Nuntliorpe, apd parish of
Great-Ayton; 3 miles from Stokesley, 8 from Stockton, (Dur,) '
TUPGILL, s A. in the township of Coverham-with-Agglethorpe,
and parish of Coverham; 2 miles from Middlehpm. Treining.
Ground for Race Horaes. A o S
v

UCKEHBY, in the parish of Catterick, wapentake of Gilling-Esst .
‘{} miles from Cafterick, 6 from Richmond.—Pop. 52.
UGGLEBARNBY, in the parish of Whitby, wapentake of Whitby«
Strand; 3} miles from Whitby, 17} from Picketing, 18} from
Scarborough.—Pop. 428. The Church is a_perpetnal curacy,
aﬂue,' p. r. 481 2. Patron, the Archbishop of York. o
UGTHORPE. ip the parish of Lythe, east-division of Langbarugh §
7 il from Whitby, 13 from Guishrough, }8 from Stokesley.~<
op. 275. . .
UGT‘!)iORPE-RAILS and LODGE, £ f. A in the fownship of
Ugthorpe, and parish of Lythe ; 8 miles from Whitby.
ULSHAW-GRANGE and BRIDGE, kam. in the towi and
parish of Esst-Wifton-within, wapehtake of Hang-West 3 miles
from Middleham, 3 from Leyburn. .
UNION-HOUSE, f. A, in the township and parish of Pickhffl; 7
miles from Ripon and Bedale, 8 from Mashem, .
q



122 NORTH-RIDING.

UNTHANK, . b in the ‘ovnh:ofﬁolwks and pavish of Ro-
wmaldkirk ; 9 miles from Gretabridge, 11.from Barnardoustle, (Dwr.)
UPLEATHAM, a parish-fown, in the east-division of Langbarugh ;
(Upleatham-Hall the aeat of the Dowager Kady Dundas,) 3 miles
from Guisbrough, 6 from Redcar, 14 from Stackten, 18: from
~ Whitby, 54 from York.—Pop.-239. The Church, which stendsata
" little distance from the village, is a perpetnal curacy, in the deanry
. of Cleveland, value, p. r. 65, Pgtr:,n, the Archbishop of l}::\rk.
. ¥t was anciently a 1 upder Gui
) ii!l its nulmnmy hymn‘;‘nu ’s M;:,shﬂwmp‘m: memﬂm
racy. Robert de Brus gave it to the priory there
UPSALL EAST and WEST, 2 Aam. in the township and parish of
Ormesby 4 miles from Gmsbmugh 6 from Stokaley
UPSALL, and. UPSALL-CASTLE, in the purish of Sowth-Kil-
vmgton,wqtenhkeofmldfoﬂh 4 miles from Thirsk, 8 from
Nor'!u'h:lmnaen v ofSuopuus. hdlanuﬂ eantle ﬂrw
t s
. .- Scrope, Chief Ju&::l of of Ednn\h;‘l‘snd Edward llll.
Deing Lord thereof. Thelast brallch of the S8cropes who held this manor .:3.
- catle, was the second Thomas, Lord Scrope, whose sister, Et , marrk
Sir Ralph Pitsrandolph, and with ber went the eastie of UpsaR.— Srckwol. vol. avr,
“Whatlittje remaina here, bave been converted into a faun bouse and out-ofices.
In 1814 sowe remains of a round tower at the north-west corner were to he soen.
1t is now the p rt;oer Peten,hequuthedtohmbylhlﬂel)nm
UPSLAND, f A in the township and parish of Kirklington ; 7
* soileg from Ripon and Bedale, 8 from Masham.
UPTON, 2. A. in the townslnp of Easington, and perish of Loftus,
enqt-dmuon of Langbarugh ; 8} miles fromesbrongh.
URE, or YOREHEAD, the source of the river, in the parish of Ays-
h; 10 miles from Hawes. Seoan account of its course uader
e head rivers and canals,
VIEWLY HILL, f. A. in the township and parish of Thornton-le-
street ; 4 miles l‘mm Thirsk, 55 from Northallerton.

w

WAITWITH s. A, in the township of Hipswell, and parish of Caf-
terick ; miles from Richmond.

WALBURN 7- k. in the township of Downholme-with-Wilburn,
‘dnd pansh of Downholme ; 3} miles from Leybuin, '54 from Mid-
dlebam,’ 6 from Rlchmond.-Pop. included in Downbolme.

WALDEN in the township of Burton-with-Walden, and parish of

: Aysgartb, wapentake of -West; 7 miles from Askrigg, 9
from Middleham, 1} from Leyburn.—-Pop. included in Burton.

" WALSGRAVE or FALSGRAV E.—See Falsgrave. :

. WARNFORD-COTTAGE, in the township oﬁ'honlby, and parish

" _of Aysgarth; 10 miles from Leyburn.

WANLASS 2 £- k. in the townshipand parish of West-Witton* 34
wiles from Leyburn, § from Middleham.

WARDERMARSK, o the township of Swinton, and parish of

Masham, wapentake omengast,aphrtmthelibeﬂ of 8,
Peter; 2mlesfnom Mashem, 4fromBe(h!e. v
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WARLABY, in fhe parlish of Aiderby-Steeple, wapmitake of

Gilling-East; 2} miles from Northallerton, 8{ from Bedale.—
7. R e . )
WARREN HOUSE, f. A in the township of Ellington, and parish
of Misham ; 3 mifes from Misham. o pert
WARTHILL, s parish town in the wapentake of Bulmer, s part in
. the liberty of St. Peter, .(lke seat of Benjamin Agar, Esq.) 5 wiles
from York, 12 from Kasingwold, 14} from Malton.—Pop. 38.
8t. Peter, 115, total 153. The Church, peculiar, is a vicarage,
dedicated to 8t. Mary, in the deanry of Bulmer, value $3L ls. 8d.
p r. 120L Patron, the Probe of Warthill.
WASHFOLD, £. A.in the township of Hurst, and parish ef Marrick;
7 wtiles from Leybtm, 8 from Richmond. : e
WASS, in the township of Byland-Membris, and parishes of Low-
Kilburn and Coxwold ; 6 miles from Helmsley, 10 from Thirsk.
WATH, a parish-town, in the wapeniake of Hallikeld; 4] miles
from Ripon, 8 from Thirsk and Boroughbridge, 9 from Mazhamg
25 from York.—Pop, 186. The Church isa rectory, dedicated
to 8t. Mary, in thed -of Catterick, diocese of Chester, valog
174 17s. 1d. Patron, the Marquis of Ajlesbury. )
JHeve is a school founded in 1690, by Peter Samwaise, who endowed it with
latyls 2t Bellerby, value 70/, per annum, Five pounds per sunum ie also paid td
the’'master by Trinity College, Cambyridge, out of 4n estate at Middleton-Quern-
how; ﬂm-hopp‘dommonm.mum Hexe is aleo an alms
house, built 1698, and endowed by the above r Samwaist, containing rooms
for two poor persons, who receive 2/. 144, per annum, the interest of 60/

WATH, atownship, in the parish of Hovingbam, wapentake of
Rydale; 8 miles from Malton and Helmsley, 8} from Fi;ym_oor.
side.—Pop. 22, ’ ot

WATLAS, sce Thornton-Watlas. .

WAUPLEY, in the township and parish of Loftos; east-division of

gh; 10} miles from Guisbrough, 12 from Whitby: -

WAUPLEY NEW.INN, in the townsbip and parish of Loftus;
9} mileg from Guisbrongh, 11} from Whithy. o

WAYWORTH, f. 4. in the township of Commondale, and parish
of Kildale ; § miles from Guisbrough, 8 from oy. -

WELBURN, in the parish and wapentake of Bulnter; 5} miles
from Malton, 14 from Easingwold and York.—Pop. 352. - -

WELBURN, in the parish of Kirkdale, wapentake of Rydalé;
(Welburn-Hall, the seat of the late Rev, Jokn Robinson) 1} mile
from Kirbymoorside, 4} from Heimsley.—Pop. 112, - -

WELBURY, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Birdforth ;' 7,
miles from Northallerton, 9 from Yarm, 39 from York.—Pojp.
257. 'The Church is a rectory, dedicated to 8t. Leonard, in the
deanry of Cleveland, valne, 7L 2¢. 11d. Patron, the King.

WELDALE, . A. in the township and parish of Ebberston ; 7 miles
from Pickering, 11 from Scarborough, 13 from Malton. o

WELL, a pmgtovn, in the wapentake of Hang-Eust; (the segt
of Richard Strangways, Esq.) 3 miles from Masham, 1 from

) 9 from Ripon, 31 from York.—Pop, 370. The.Church

\
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vh?, dedionted to'5t. James, in the deanry of Catterick!
Chester, value, 181 13:9 7d. p. r. 63k 6s, Pn!ron,
ﬂm Master of Well Hosp\tal Charles Chaplin,

. Ralph Nevile, Lord, of Middieham, founded Sere, in. 1363, ‘a8
hopml, and established :imem, s

lp.-—DyppaLE,
ﬁSLEY a parish-town, in the ‘whpentake of  Hahg-West; ¥}
mile from Leybum, 3 from Middleham, 46 from igork.—!’?)p.
817. The Church is a rectory, dedicated to the Holy-Trinity, in
* the deanry of Catterick, dloeese of Chester, vilue, 491, 9s, 9ld.
Patron, Lord Bolton. Cet
King Richard H. licerwed Richard leScmpodeBoRm to erect the parteh
churcli hers into s gallege,ita nansiat of one; mastex, aad as many follow; chaplaing
%ﬁﬁ?wm as he should.think fit, and ta endow it with 150L. per uuq;m
WESTENBY, iif the towns:simd purish of Egton,
WEST. FIELD "in the township of Mickleton, and parish of Ro~
" moaldkirk miles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.)

WEST-LEES 'k in the townshipand parish of Wherlton’; 5}

wiles from S k
WETRAIN ‘or WI{FATRAIN J- A in the township of Smpe
rish of Well ;" 2 miles from Bedale.

ER.DALE in the parish of Stokesley, east-division of Lavg-
burugh 3 0 miles from. Guisbrough, 1] from Stokesley, .16.fram
Whitby,—Pop. 281. Here is a Chapel under- Stokcsle’ wﬁh
" parochial rights and served by a stipendigry curate.

WEST-HOUSE, { k. in the township and parish of Knldale 4;
mjles from Gpisbrough, 74 from Stokesley. .

WHASHTON, in the parish of Kirkby-Ravensworth, wapentake of
Guhng-West 4 miles from Richmond, 8 from GretAhrpdgq,, 12

wfwm le, ¢(Dur.)—Pap. 140.
HASHTO -SPRING, f. k. in the township of Whasbton, ;md
ish of Kirkby-Ravensworth ; 3 miles from Richmond.

wgu W, in the township and pansh of Arkengartbdale, wapenmke
of Gilling-West ; ‘5 miles from Reeth,

WHEA CRO , 2 f.h. in the township and parish of Scarborough;
I milg from chborou b. -

WHENBY, s pnnsh-town, in the wapentake of BuFmer; 7 ;mles
from Eagingwold, 12 from Malton, 13 from York. —Pop, 129,
' The Chprch is a vicarage, dedicated to St. Martin, in the deanry
of Bulmer, vqlue, 340 8s. 4d. p.r. t120L Patron, William
Garforth, E

WHITBY’ a market and pansh-town in the wapentake of Whithy-
Strand ; (Wlnlbt/ Abbey, the seat of George Cholmley, Esq.) within
ja mile of Whitby are the following seats; Airy-Hill, Rickard
Moorsom, Esq Meadow-Field, Henry Simpson, Esq. Field-House, -
Christopher Richardson, Esq. 20 miles from Scarborough, 21 from’
Pickering and Guisbrough, 22 from Redcar, 28 from Stokesl
48 from York, 245 from London.—Market, Saturday. —-—Fmrc,
" Angust 25, (St Hile’ s-day) and Martmmas-day, for pedlary-
ware, &o. -—Bankm, Messrs. Simpson, Chapman, & Co. draw on

_ome majter, {wo_ prigsts, and uwenty-four -

— Y

———r
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Measrs. Berolay, Txitton, & Co. §4, Lombard:Strect; Mewrs,
J. & J. Sanders, draw on Mesars. Mastermap, Peiers, &Co.. 2,
White-hart Court, Lombard-Street; Messrs: Richardson,: Holt,
& Co. draw .on Memrs. Curtis, Roberis, & Co. 15, Liombard-
. treet.—Principal Inns, Angel, Golden-Lion, and King's. Hend.
~wa—Pop, 8,667. The Church, a specimen of the early Norman
" architecture. which intervened between the Saxon and Gethic, is a
. perpetup] eyracy, dedicated to St. Mary, in the deanry of Clevaland,

. valog, pn'50, Patron, the Archbishop of York.

The opulent town of Whitby, aaciently called Strenstall, ox Streanshalle,
owes jts origin to a_famous abbey, which was begun here in 6567, for men and
wonien of the Benedictine order, and endowed by Oswy, King of Northumber-
land, though the bonour is geaerally given to 8t. Hilds, the firet priorese, and
dedieated to St. Peter.

. 'Fhis abbey flourished till 867, whea a party of Dsnes landed at Duuprley-
. Bay, the Duwus Sinus of Ptolemy, plundered the country around ; snd amongnt
other depredations, entinw destyoyed the monastery, which laid in ruine till
after the conquest; whgn illiamx the Conqueror gave a large tract of land in
the county to Hngfx, Ea#l of Chester, who granted all or most of it to William
de‘Percy, who re-edified and restored the priory; in which state it remained
till the reign of Henry I. when it was advanced to the dignity of anabbey fur

B.nfmipmhg-hm :Gussavi Maras—Buston. .
n the 26th of Heory VIUL. the yearly revenues of this house were estimgted

at 4371 2. Dugdale, and 5054. 9s. 1d. Speed. The site was granted 1.
John, Earl of Warwick, by whom, in 1651, it was sold to John York, and vy
fim to Sir Richard Cholmiey,” Knight, ancestor of the preeeat proprietor. Th-
situstion is on a bigh clific, washed by the ocean, and the remains of this apc-
maguificent abbey show it to have been, when complste, 3 large and magnificent

* strueture.
The abbey appears, says Grose, ** 10 have bren built when the peinted arches

.were firet introduced, and before the round ones were entirely left off.> ‘'
B For an accountt of the Jegend of the murder of the Hermit of Eskedalexide,
by some gentlemen hunting the wild boar, and the penance enjoimed them. —
Ste Historyof Whitly: _ S
. The ammotite, or snake: stones, with many otber pelrifaétions have been
found here; the most remarkable on record are, a eoinpiete sheleton of & man,
found by Mr. Berwick, abont the year 1743. In 1758, the petrified hones of
& crocodile were taken out of the cliff, which were sent to the: Royal Society +—
Fide Philes. Transactions, volume 50, part 2. The petrified boaes of & hores at
.the depth of 30 yards under gronud, sent to the University of Abardeen in1762.
—CAarlton’s History of Whitby. ) e
Whithy, in 1540, according to Chariton’s account, eonfained pot more than’
200 inbabitants; and dqrini reign of Queen Elizabeth, there does mot
appear to have bepn either ship or vessel belonging to this port, except fishingy
boats, 1n a commercial point of view, Whitby now exhibits mueh importance.
In/A811, there were 21) ships belonging to his port, messuring 36,98 ton ;
snd the whole number of vesaels built here frqm 1800 to 1816, appears to heva
been 331. The success of its whale fishery, in which many large ships are
employed, has been of immense benefit not only to the owners, but to the inhahi-
1ants at large. In 1753, only two vessels employed in this lucrative trade sailed
from this port for Greenland, In some sinoe that time, from 20 to 25 ebips
have been fitted out for Greenland and Davis’ Straits fisheries; and within the”
last 14 years, upwards of 1,440 whales have bgen obtainéd.—For more minute
aceonnt of this place, see Young’s Hist, of WP hitby. '
WHITBY-STRAND, a wapentake, is bounded on the eest by the
German-Ocean, on the south and west by Pickering-Lythe, and
on the north by Langbarugh and the S8ea.—The liberty and wapen-
tdke are co-extensive, of which George Cholmley, Es:. of Howsham,

is Lord aud Chief Beiliff It contains only one market-town,
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Wiitby, which gives namé to. the wapentake, 13 townships, 4 of
wH:’m parishes, 2,6 71 inhabited henses, and 14,916 inhabitants.
WHH'ASIDE in the township and parish of Grinten; 3} nifles
from Reeth, 7 fromLoyhm. ‘A few scattered hom!es.
WHITFIELD-GILL, which divides the townships of Low-Abbot-.
side and Askrigg, wapenhke of Hang-West, - remarkable “for
its beentiful Waterfall, called < Whitfield- Force.” ’
WHITWELL, in the parish of Catterick, wapentake of Gilling-
East; 5 miles from Catterick, 8 from Richmond, 9 from Nortbal-
lerton ~—Pop. 8
WHITWELL, extmparochlal in'the wapentake of Bulmer; (Whit-
well-House, the residence of the Rev. -Danson Richardaon. me)
6 miles from Malton, 12 from York.—Pop. 182. -

The inbabitants generally attend Crambe chureh,
and haptize thete. In the pleasare grounds near Whib:e‘iﬁm, ‘is s &

remarkably clear water, from ‘which the town derives its nare.

WHITCLIFFE-SCAR, in the townahip and perish of Rlchlnoml

WHI’IE-TKORN-HOUSE, J- k. in the wwndup and parish. of
Salton.

WHITE-HOUSES, 2 p. 4. in the township and prishof Eulng-
woM ; 1 mile from Easingwold.

WHORLTON ; & parish-town, in tlie west-division of nghrugh
§ milelfmmStokesley, 11 from Northallerton and anm,37fmm ‘

York.—Pop. 583. The Church is e perpetual curacy, dedicated

to the Holy-Cross, in the deanry of Cleveland, value, p. r. 52£ 95,
Patron, the Marqpis of Ailesbury.

Here are (he ruins of a castle, which formerly be! mthelhm
Meinill ; Leland eays, ¥ this was the principal house of the Lord Menell ; which
-leaeunelo master Strangways in particion.” Within the church, 6n-the

* north side ol the chamcel, in an arch of the wall, is an nixcient moniment of
Sir Nicholas de Meynill.— Guaves. At what time this castlc wis residered
untesable is met know ; in Camden’s time it was old aml ruinous.” Nichalas de
lleylillhld the manor of Wharltan, &c. of'the Archbishop of Canterbity, by

eaid Arckbishop mthe(il of his consecration, with the ey out
waﬂellﬁDAnhm‘nlmﬁhk tl\lthy.—Bmm It to.
of Bruce, ancestors of the Marquis of ﬁury,
reign of Chnhs 1.—Gaavss.
WIDDA LE, or WIDDALE-FOQT, . }. in the township of Hawes,
and parish ofAylgarth 2milelfrom Hawes, 7 from Askrigg.
" WIDDALE, (west-part).2 f. k. in the township of Snainton, and
parish of Bmpton 10 miles from Pickering and Scarbo! :
WIGGINTHORPE, (the seat of William Garforth, Eiq.) in the -
Mndnip of Terringtommth-Wiggmthorpe, and’ perish of Ter-
ntake of Bulmer; 8 miles from Fasingwold, 9 from
Nalton, 15 En York.—Pop. | included in Temz?m :
WIGGINTON, a parish-tows, in the wapentake of Bulmer, hher!y‘
of 8t Peter; (the residence of the Rev. William Dealtry,) . 4mh|
from York, 9 from Kasingwold, 18 frumMalton.—P :
'I‘Iio()mmh peculiar, is a recto , mthedeanry of
nlue, 140 l& 4d. Patron, the
The ecclesiastical jurisdiction of this mhkhtbepeeulmd Alne and
Tellerton ; the mmmy of wiich institutes to the living.
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WILDEN-GRANGE, 8 £. k. s townskip in She parish of Cokwold,
mamke of Birdforth, liberty of Ripen;-7 miles from Thirsk
Easingwold, 8 from Hoeflmsley Pop. 29.
WILTON, in the parish of Ellerburn, wapentake of Pickering-
Lyihe; 4mlu£mquckenng 10 from Malton.—Pop:-308.
WI TON, a parish-town, in the esst-division of
 (Wikton-Castle, the seat oftbcHoaJol;aLowMer)4mlelfran
mngb, 101 from Stokesley and Stockton, (Dur.) 54 from
York. 405. The Church is & perpetual curacy, dedicated
to St. Cnthbert, in the deanry of Cleveland. Patmn, the Hon.
John Lowther,
The Charch was anciently a chapelry within the parish of erkludnm,
but the ehpelmmnonohvebeendependmton that church. —~Graves,
The castls bere belonged formerly to lhesnuenthmnlyoftbe Bala
and in which it continted till Sir John Balmer, Knight, the last_possessor
that family, i mthnnoﬂhemlmmotbn,mnedthe? e of
Grace, was attain brhlghtrelm, when this and other estates were
to the erown. Till within theee few years, there were somre remsins of ite for-
mer grandeur, but the tower being in & yery ruinous state, it mhhndwn,

INTON in the wnﬂenhkeof Anertoﬂxm,
8 miles from N lemmSto esley.-~Pop. 138.

E-HILL, 2 kinthetomepoanedala,andprﬁof
wnlzmldkul" {muaﬁm&mdm?ma)ufmnem

%N EAST, a Qown,inthownpumkeof ests
"2 wiles from Mlddm 4 from Leyburn, 8 Immnnmu
from York.—No lfarket.—Fatn, May 3, and November 20,
(established in 1819) for horned caitle, p, and hosses, Novem-
. ber 23, for pedlary-ware. . ThoChnmh,ahndﬁomemodemstmo-
ture, hﬂtbyﬁe&dofm;y in 1809, is a vicamge, desdi-
: pited to 8t. Ella, in the deanry of Catterick, diccese of Chester,
value, 1. 3s. 6id. p.r. 111, Patron, tbeMarqnilof Aihlhury
. lhwmt:a: piry Mvivnto s to.h popumv:}“&:
wi itton without 3 g )
balna,usd and tbohtter,m : . :
WITTON parish-town, in the wapentake -of H
West ; 4miluﬁouLoyblm, § from Middlehaw, 12 from
- mond, 48 from York.—Pop. 519." The Chareh, peculiar, ik a
: petpetllll , in the deanry of Catterick, dideeseolehener
" value, p. r. 751, Pnhbn, Lord Bolten. -
'!'hemreluf'ut-wm muﬂybutowedonlhetonudlmaix,
but nower appropristed. In an ancicat taxation of the srchdeaconry of .
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mmomd, 8. D. it is. Mm&e chapels, and uﬁodvnlytoﬁt yheﬂ

, of i iia. for Peter pence. It wus,hewaver, dependaaton nootherchwp:b.

:lvl'ou‘h now endowed as a perpetaal curacy only, u amctly parochial,—
HITAKE R.

WOODEN-CROFT, (an Academy) in the township'of Hunderth!
waite, and parish of Romaldkirk ; 6 miles fronr: &nmardwstle,

. (Dur) 9 from Grelabridge.

WOODALE, or WOOD-DALE, iuzm in the townshfp‘of&rndna

- high-dale, and parish of Coverham ; 9} wiles from Middieham. '
WOODALE-HOUSE, Jfo A inthe township of Ugthorpe, and pansb
of Lythe ; 9 miles from Whitby, 12 from Guisbrough,

WOOD-HALL in the township of Askrigg, aud parish bf Ays-
garth; (the seat of Christupher Alderson, Esq) 1} nhle frop
Askngg, -12} from Middlebam.

WOOD.END, (the seat of Samuel Crompton, Esg.) in the townslnp

" and' perish of Thornton-l¢-Street ; 4 miles from Thirsk, 6 from
Northallerton,

WOOD-END-LODGE, f. 4. in the township of Bainbridge, and
parich of Aysgerth; 3} miles from Hawes.

WOQDLANDS (the seat of Henry Waulker Ymman Esg.) in ﬂw

nship of Aldlaby, end parish of Whitby ; 4 miles, from ‘Whitby.

WOO hOWLE,f h. in the township. .andpamhsof Hovmg-
- ham 3. 8 miles from Helmsley and Kirbymoorssde:

WOMBLETON, in the parish of Kirkdale, wapentakk dn!e
" @ part in the hberty of §1. Peter; 2} miles from Kirhyih mdé
4 frlom Helmsley, 14 from Malton.—Pop. 265; St Peter, 225,
total, 287.

\VOMMERGILL-HALL (a ‘Shooting-box of the Earl of‘S’tra{&
tnore) in the fownship of Luncdale, arid parish of Rdmaldldr
14 mtles from Barnardcastle, (Dur.) 17 from Gretabyid "

WORSALL, HIGH, in the purish of Northalleiton, apedtaize J{
Al!ertbmbnrgh 4 miles from Yarm, 12 from Northallerton.—Pop

The Church lsnperpetualcurac ,valne, p. 1. 1'401. P;uqn,,
"'the ,er of Northallerton.* - ¥

WORSALL, LOW, or PETRSEBORGH, in the anéh of Rirk-
levington, west-division of Langbarugh § '3 miles rom fm‘m IJ
‘from Northallerton.—Pop. 217.

*  Heré was an ancietit fishery on ‘the river Tees, Whiéh was given by Gifbert
Hansard 3o the abbey of Rivaidi § this with »cottage-and paroel bf grembd
adjoiging, calied Balt Ings, came aftor inlo the posgession ol Major Ner-
tan, who sold the same 33rd Charles IL to George, Marwood Esq.—Gravas..

WORI‘ON ham: in the township of Bainbridige, aud parizh of Aysd
ﬁuﬂ: 1 mile frour Askrigg. 4 from Hawes, 12 from ,Leyhum'.

WREL'TON, in the parish of Middietan, wapentake o P,\qlkenpg
&@h ;3 mﬂes]f;gm Pickering, 5 from Kubymoomde, 2 x‘;vn,

Po, .
le a parish, in the townshiip ‘of Thor 56
G’ﬂ'uy-Welt (Wycliffe-Hall, the geat of Mrb onstable, andt e
Rectory, ke residenbeof the Rew, Jokn Headlam)2} wiles Irom rel
§{Jdge, $ from Barnardcastle, (Dur.j 10 from Ricbmdnd, 33 from
osk.—The Chusch is-a reolory, in. tha deansy.af, Ridmohd.
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tivbese of Chester, value, 141, 122, 1d.  Patron, Franolis Gonstablé,
M . B B .,
Hare was born in 1324, that celebrated Emglish divine, John de Wye
-or Wickliffe, the first champion of protestanism. He bravely withstood the
encroachments of the Meudicant orders, at length attacked the tenets of the
church'of Rome, and had the good fortune to die in peace, in 1384, leaving his
bones for his adversaries to wreak their revenge on, twenty-eight years after; by
taking thets up and buring them to ashes.—PeNNaNT. .o
land eays, that ¢ John Wiclife, Aereticus, was horme at Spreswell, d
poore village a good myle from Rich moat,” probasly Hipswell, as there is
‘mo such pluce now as Spreswell in the neighbourho.d. ..
In the parsonage house is a flue portrait of Wickliffe, by Sir Antonio More,
given by Dr. Zouch, when rector of this parish, to his successors, the rectors of -
Wyeliffe, who are requested Lo preserve it as an heir-loom to the mc{gry house;
. HITAKER,
_ On'the 11th October, 1790, died at Wycliffe Hall, Marmaduke Tynstall,
Eeq.F. R.and A. 8. 8. Ia the privacy of an élegant retirement, he was g
most munificent patron of learning, being ever ready to encourage anil reward
weyit, His knowledge was uncommonly extensive. He correspopded. With
most of the learned men of his country, and with many foreigners of distingujshed
character in the republic of letters. Great as His Tit-rary abilitiés were, he
possossed more valuable accomplishments ; a sweet affability of digpbsition, an
engaging urbanity of manners, an enlarged liberality of thouglit; he [
Ei.ldlieu and benev::lence. His deeds of charity were many; he Wi literglly
man’s friend. " 5 e
WYCOMB, 3 or 4 A in the townsbip and parish of Old-Maltih,
wapentake of Rydale; 2} miles from New Malton, . e
WYKEHAM, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Pickering-Lythe
*7 miles from Scarborough, 11 from Pickering, 15 from Malton;*83
from York.—Pop. 582. The Church, a donativé, is a rectory,
(Bacon styles it a curacy, of the certified value of 20..) dedicated-to
All-Seints, in the deanry of Rydale. Patroness, the Hon. Mrs
ley. ’ R
About } = mile from Wykeham, and in the same township * *
and parish is oo,
WYREHAM-ABBEY, (the seat of the Hon. Mre Langley): « i, . {
Here Pain Fits-oebert de Wickham, about the year 1153, buiit asd-epdowdd
a priory of Cistercian Nuns, to the honour of the Virgin Mary and St. Hejen: .
At the dissolution there were in it nine religious. Valued at 251 174 6d. per *
aamum.—DuopaLke—Spregp. Nothing remains of this venerabie Gothic étructure
e_xceﬁ part of its north-end wall and its chapel.—HINDER¥ELL. T R
- to Wykeham is a fine large sheét of water, contuinidg gtiindunse of
fish, over which is an irom bri erected by Ricbard Langley, Esq. jn 8%2
WYKEHAM-GRANGE, ; A. in the township and parish of Wyke r
bam ; 8 miles from Searborough, 11 from Pickering. .

Y' '...~:‘{

. F
YAFFORTH, in the parish of Danby-Wiske, wapentake of Gillings
Eeast; 1} mile from Northallerton, 15 from'Richmond.—AEop.

-149. Here is a Chapel of ease to Danby. ..
YARM, a market and parish-town, in the west-division of Lang-
barugh, (2 small pgrt in Allertonshire) (the PFriarage, the seat of
Thomas Meynell, Eeq.) 4 miles from Stockton, (Dur.) 8 from
Tontine-1nn, 9 from Stokesley, 10 from Darlington, (Dur.) 14 from

R
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Gui 16 from Nortballerton, 20 from Thirsk, 21 from

Ri , 43 from York, 242 from London.—Market, Thurs-

day.—Fairs, Thursday before April 6 ; Holy-Thursday ; August
2, Ootober 19and 20, for horned eattle, horses, sheep, and
cheeses.—Principal Inn, George and Dragon.—Pop. 1,504. The
Charch is. 2 perpetual curacy, dedicated to St. Mary Magdalen,
in. the d of Cleveland, valae, 38L 3s, 6d. Patron, the

Archbishop of York, B

The Church is a neat modern structare, rebuilt in 1730; the east window,
erected in 1796, is composed of stained glass, executed by the late Mr William

Peckett of York ; the principal figure in this beautiful window, is a full lengtly

Tepr of deliverihg the Law from Mount-Sinai.

- ‘Here was an hospital dedicated to Saint Nicholas, founded by ome of the
Saqily of Brus, before the year 1185. It continued till the time of Henry VIII.
when it was valued at 52 perannum. Alan de Wilton was a benefactor to this
hospt and granted them lands at Hooton, (Hution-juxta-Rudby,) and
b , t0hold at & yearly rent of two marks.—DvenaLs—TANNER, ’

Here was also a house of Black Frirs, said to bave heen founded by Petel
de Brus, who dled in 1940, It was suyrendesed by Miles Wilcoek, the Prior, in
) mber, 1539.—WiLus.

A Free Grammar-School was founded at this place, by letiers patent of Queen
Elispbeth, bearing date July 7, 1688; and endowed by Thomas Conyers of
eliffe, Durbham, Gent. with 9L 4¢. payable out of his lands and houses at Yarm
and Dadlington. In addition to the original endowment, the late William Cha-
Yoner, a nativé of this place, left in 1801, fo the schoolmaster, for ever, the
sam of 400.. 3 cent. comsuls, for edueating, &e. eight poor children of the
parish, He ﬁun:m. in trust te the Minister and Churchwardens fox the:
vepair of the Grammar School, which was expended in 1803.— Corlisie’s

wmmasr Schools. .

ér The’;li bridge ever the Teee al Yarm, having, in 1802 become dangerous
0 passengers, it was ordeved to be taken down, and a new one to be evested
wpon or nesr its site, of one ivon arch, which formed a segnient circle of 18V feet
span. The work was let by proposal for 8,000/. but in 1805, when nearly com-
pleted, the abutments gave way, and it fell with a tremendouscrash. ‘Soon after-
wardsaa elegant stone bridge was erected, which will most probably ountlive any
dlh_cirmbridg-»iutheki;;dom, . . =

YEARBY, or YERBY, ham. in the towns!np and parish of

Kirkicatham; 3-miles from Redcar, 4 from Guishrough.. )

YEARSLEY, in the parish of Coxwold, wapeniake of Birdforthy

4 miles from Easingwold, 8 from Helwsley, 14 from Thirsk.—

170.
YEARSLEY-BURTON, f. A in the township of Yeamley, and
ish of Coxwold ; § miles from Easingwold.
YOADWATH, in the township of Hutton-le-Hole, and parish of
i ; 2 miles from Kirbymoorside. A Mill and two houses.
Ym[;, and YORES-BRIDGE, in the township and parish
of Aysgarth, wapentake of Hang-West ; 4 miles from Askrigg, T
from , 84 from Middleham. : K
_In 1681, & Free Grammar School was founded and endowed here by An-
thony Besson, with a bouse itmated at York. This school is open indednitely
. toghe children of the four small villages in its vicinity, free of expence, for the
* elsnsics only. Yoresbridge sehool is g‘l’mmtl Mu;rum banks of the
siver Ure, neasly in the cemtre of Wens 80 justly celebrated for the
beauty of its scenery. the fertility of its soil, and the saldbrity ofite aie,—Boys,
2008 80, ravely under 50.— Cariisie’s Grammar 8cliools. :
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YORK-GATE INN, in the township of Melmerby, and perish of
“Wath, wapentake of Hallikeld; § miles from Ripon, 6 frem
Thirsk, 7 from Boroughbridge, 9 from Bedale. The Magisirates
for the wapentake hold their meetings bere, and at the New-Inn,
alternately. :

YOROSCOTE, £. k. in the township of Low-Abbotside, and parish
of Aysgarth ; 1 mile from Askrigg, 6 from Hawes.

YOULTON, in the parish of Alne, wapentake of Bulmer ; 5. miles
from GEasingwold, .7 from Boroughbbridge, 12 from York.—
Pop. 36.
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Lotd Liaitenant and Custos Rotulorum,
GEORGE WILLIAM FREDERICK, DUKE OF LEEDS,

- Fice-Lieutenant,
TURNER STRAUBENZEE, EsQ. SPENNITHORNR.

ACTING MAGISTRATBS.

Right Hon. Lawrence Lord Dundas, . ....... Marske Hall, Guisbrangh
Right Hon. Earl Tyrconnel, -ccceveeuennes Kiplin, Catterick

Hon. and Rev. Thomas Lawrence Dundas, . Aske Hall, Richmond
Hon. and Rev. Thomas Monsou, .......... Bedale

Hon. Thomas Dundas, .......- . . Marske Hall, Gunisbrongh
Sir William Strickland, Bart. Boynton, Bridlington

Sir William Foulis, Bart. ...,.. Ingleby Manor, Stokesley

., The Rev. Dr.Markham, ........ Stokesley
The Rev. Dr. Waddilove, «.-coeeeenne Ripon
The Rev. Dr. Scott, «vveevevesccersnasces Catterick
Agar, Benjamin, Q. «.ovvvnvnnnnncacnees Brockfield, York
Anderson, Will'am John, E<q. ..ocvvvennn. Swinethwaite, Bedale
Atkinson, the Rev. Richard Mosley, ....... Gilling, Richmond
Aylmer, Arthur, E<q. e.coveeeennseninnaee Walworth Castle, Darlington
Barrett, Samuel B. M. Esq. cocovevnnennnn. Carlton, Ricbmoud
Barstow, Thomas,Esq. .ceecneveeennnnnnn Skipton Bridge, Thirsk
Bell, John, Exq. ..... ereenssannans eeenen Thirsk
Bell, John, Exq. venvvvneninnennnnieinens Scarborough
Belasyse, Thomas Edward Wynn, Esq. .... Newburgh Park, Easingwald
Blanshard, Richard, Eeg. +.c.ccecvennanss Northallerton .
Bowes, the Rev. Timothy F. F...ocvvnnn.n Wold Cottage, Sledmere
Bouyer, the Rev. R ‘yno'd Gi'leon, ........ Northallerton
Brewster, the Rev. John, vovveviverieenens Egglescliffe, Stockton
Candler, Thomas, E2q. «..covvninene on.. We-t Ayton, Malton
Cayley, the Rev. Arthur, ...........- Norn.anty, kirbymourside
Cayley, Cornelius, Esq. . «e-  Sowerby, Thirsk
Chaloner, Robert, Eaq. «.ceceonnsconnneees Y .4
Chaytor, William, Esq. «c.occvneecacncnes Crofr, Dar ington
Chaytor, Jobu Clervaux, E<q. «eveececenes . Cliiton L~dge, Bedale
Collins, the Rev. Thomas, ......... ceeeaes Barninghum, Gretabridge
Comber, the Rev. Thomas, ..ccceceeeee +=« Oswaldkirk, Helmaley
Consett, Warcor, Beq. ........ tesssasasans B~wiih Hall, Thirsé
Croft, Harry, FAQ. eeccncicnnccaanannen ... Stillington, York
Crompton, Samuel, Baq. «cvocueeenee.. v..+ Wood End, Thir:k
Currer, the Rev. Daneon Richardson, «..... Whitwe 1, York
Coore, Foster L. Esq. ..ccvvnvvnennnaennn, Hawxwell, Leyburn
Dealtry, the Rev. William, «ccocervacnen.. Wigginm, York
Dent, the Rev. William, .cccevvevenes «e-. Crosby Hall, Northallerton
Duncombe, Charles, E8q. coecveencannnss . Duncowbe Park, Helmeley
Duncombe, William, Esq. .ccvoevenennnes Duncombe Park, Helmsley
Fllis, the Rev.John, ccoeeceanaenn cesanene %nnmll, Y%rk ghbrid
Elsley, Gregory, Esq. . «evsses.. Burneston, Boroughbridge
l-':w:lyl, Jamge:, E:fq ..... . Faceby, Stokesley
Flounders, Benjamin, Eeq. ... .es Yarm
Foulis, John Robinron, Esq. +.cc.coevnenes _Heslerton, Malton
Fowle, the Rev. Thomas Hartland, ......... North Otterington, Northallerton
Fowler, David Bartou,Esq. ......... S Yarm
Gilby, the Rev. Jobn, «co.vniennnnianenss Beverley

Gilpin, the Rev. Jokn, «civiavaccneescnss . Stainton, Stockton
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Crake, Easingwold
Guisbrough

Hartley, , Esq. ... Middleton Tyas, Richmond
Headlam, the Rev. John, . Wyecliffe, Gretabridge
Hewgill, Heary, Esq. .. Hornby Grange, Northallerton
Hill, Richard, Esq. ... Thornton, Pickering
Hotham, William, E<q. .... Highthorne, 1d
Jackeon, Willism Ward, Esy. Normanby, Guisbrough
Lawson, Marmaduke, Eeoq. .. Boroughbridge
Mitchelson, Thomas, Evq. .. Pickering
gomon, “l.':ie'l‘l:& Jobn J. T. Bedale

oorsom, , EsqQ. o... Whitby
Moorsom, Williaw, E:i]. cee
Moorsom, Richard, Jun. Esq. ‘Whitby
Morley, the Rev. Thomas “’ilson, Kirklington, Borvughbridge
Morley, Josias R. Esq. <coeeeeen Marrick Park, Richmond
Morritt, Jobn Bacon Sawrey, Esq. ..., Robb{‘ Gretabri
Newton, the Rev. T esevesstebessse Coxwold, Easiagwold
Newton, the Rev. Benjamin, .ccceeveence.. Wath, Ripon
Peirse, Ricbard W, Christopher, Eeq. -;.. Thimbleby Lodge, Tontine Inn
Pulleine; Henry Percy, Eoq. +vcvoececesass Crakeball, Bedale
Bead, the Rev. Thomas Cutler Rudston, .... Sandhatton, York
Readshaw, the Rev. Caleb, ............... Richmond
Richardson, Christopher, Esq. ............ Whithy
Serjeantson, W. Rookes Leeds, Esg.......... Camphill, Boroughbridge
Sleigh, William. E#q. «cceeseeceonscsecane Stockton on Tees
Smith, the Rev. Sydney, yec.ecceceeose... Fouton, York
Smith, Charles, Eaq. +eceeevann eesessasss Phainville Farm, York
Stapyiton, Martin, Eeq. «ccoveeireenieannn. Myton Hall, Boroughhridge
Straubenzee, Turner, Esq. «ccveoeecceannse nithorne, Bedale
Stricklend, George, E8q. es.cseecescseness \denley, Malton
Sykes, the Rev. Christopher, ccecceceees... Westow, Malton
‘Thompson, George Lowther, Bsq, «........ Sheriff Hutton, Park, York
Trofter, John, E6G. <ceveenecsaeseeeesnar Staindrop, Darlington
Vansittart, Heory, Eog. ccceceaneaccecnnns Ki am, Guisbrough
Wharton, Jobu, E¢qe ecceeeenennn.. ciecen Skelton Castle, Guishrough
Wharton, James, Esq. <.oecececeeere.c... Melburn Lodge, Pocklington
‘Wiiarton, the Rev. William, ..... secsceeso Gilling, Rithmond
Williameon, the Rey. Thomas Pym, ....... Guisbron,
Wileon, James, Esqe - ceecernsnsonancncas Mon&dz, Whitby
Wolley, the Rev. Godfrey, ...cocoveeen. +ese Hutton Bushell, Malton
Woodall, John, Esq. -cceveeccacieancese.s Scarborough
Wyvill, Marmaduke, E4q ....c..0ccoceveeee Leybum
Wyvill, the Rev. Edward.......0c00000... Fingall, Leyburn

Yeoman, Heury Walker, E8g. -cvciavageens

Woodlands, Whitby

DEPUTY LIEUTENANTS.

Right Hon. Lawrence,

Lord Dundas, } Hon. Thomas Dundas, Marske Hall
Hon, Thomas ipm Fermor

Marske Hall . . Will
Right Hon. Thomag P. Weddle, Lord | Sir Geotge Cayley, Bart. Brompton
Grantham, Newby Park Sir Thomas Prankiand, Bart. Thirkieby:
Righbt Hon. Earl Tyrconuel, Kiplin Hall | Sir F. Boynton, Bart. Burfon Agnes
Right Hoh. George Earl Porofret Sir M. M. Sykes, Bart, Sledmere
Right Hon. Viscoutit Normanby, Mul- | Arden, John, Eeq. Pepper Hall
Right Hon, Lord Bolto P wnmm ﬁm 1d
ight Hon. Lord Bolton Agar, Benjamin, . e
Hon, Frederick Robinson Butterwick, Mattheer, Eeq. Thirsk .
Breare, Jehin, Exq. Middieham

Hon. Thomas Orde Powlett, Bolton Hall
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Bell, John, Esq. Thirsk
Bamt.t, Samuel B. M. Esq. Cariton
Barstow, Thomas, Esq. Skipton Bridge
Belasyse, Thomas Edward Wynn, Esq.
Newburgh Park
Blanshard, Richard, Esq. Nulhallerton
Beswick, George, Esq
Bethell, Wllllam, Euq.
Barlow, F. W. Faq. dedlethorpe
Chaloner, Robert, Esq. York
Cradock, Sheldon, Esq. Hartforth
. Chaytor, William, Esq. Croft Hall .
Chaytor, Matt. W. Esq. Spennithorne
Consett, Warcop, Esq. Brawith Hall
Cayley, Cornelms, Esq. Sowerby.
Croft, Harry, Esq. Stillington
Crompwn, Samuel, . Wood End
Coore, Foster L. Esq wxwell
Carfer, Edward, Eaq. Theakstone
Carter, Edward John Erq. ditto
Dti;combe, Clm-lu, Esq. Duncombe
3
Duncompb:. Wnl‘li:‘-m, Esq. ditta
Denys, Peter,
D’Oyly, Edward, Eeq.
Dawson, George, Fsq. Thirsk.
Elsley, Gregory, Esq. Barneston,
Farle, W. Esq. Beningbrough Hall
;‘whc:ra’li’o.l;nbn,&g‘;q Kingthorpe
ot [
Favell SIJamet, Esq. Faceby
Fowler, David B. Esq. Yarm
Flouriders, Benjamin, Esq. Yarm
(I;onr:m! J. bR. &Esqllgwglenon
arthforth, W. . Wigginthorpe
Grabam, Sir B. R. Barlt‘;pﬂonon Con.

> . . .
H:’cekes, Fowler, Esq. Nether Silton
Hill, Richard, Esq. Thorawn
Hartley, George, Esq. Middleton Tyas
Hewgill, Henry, Eesq. Hornby Grange
Hutmn, Timothy, qu. Clifton Castle
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.| Hammond, Anthony, Eeq. Darbam

Hutton, John, Esq, Marske.
Jackson, W‘llmnWml qu Normanby

Moorsom, lchui, Jun. Esq. d{m
Morley, Josias R. Esq. Marrick Park
Morritt, J. B. S. Esq. Rokeby Park
Milbank, Mark, F‘q Thorpe Perrow
Nichal, Samuc!, Feq. York.
Peirse, R. W. C Esq. Thimbleby Lodgs
Pulleine, Henry’ Percy, Esq Crakehall

ll:nlmes, %eorse B Naburn
reston, Darcey, Ruswarp
Rigge, Fletcher, Esq. Northallerton

Richardson, Christopher, Eoq. Whitby

Redfearn, FMdl.i’oq anBhngwn I.«}:dmgel,

Rigge, ) roughton
hnmbiu’ ’ i -

Robeon, Thomas, Esq. Hol

Rudd, Bartholomew, Esqfhihmm

Rudyeard, Rxgwhard

Seqemunn R.L. Campgﬂxll

ihdurd Temck, .

Stnuben:ee, T. Esq. Spennithorne

Thompson, Geo. Lowther, lbq, Sheriff
Hutton Park

" | Tindall, John, Beq. Scarborongh

. ditto

Turton, Edmund, E- . Larpool Hall
Wharton, John, Ksq. Licetton Castis
Wyvill, Marmaduke za.q mm

.| Wilson, James, Enf

1, George, Koq. Oldeyhld

Woodall, John, Fsq.
Wlntel\ud, William, Eeq. Essingwold

Yeoman, Hi Walker, - Woodlands
Yorke, Joha, Hm’o?;im

Lords ami Chief Baxhﬁ': of Liberties.
His Grace the Dunke of Leeds, Hornby-Castle; for Richmondshire.
* The Hon. and Right Rev. the Lord Bishop of Durham ; for Allertonshire,
The Rev. George Marwood, Busby-Hall, Stokesley ; for Langbarugh.
Richard Hill, E¢q. Thornton ; for Pickering-Lythe.
George Cholmley, Bsq. Homlmn; for WhitbrStnndc. .

OFFICERS OF THE RIDING.

Clerk of the Peace, Lupton T
illiam

Deputy ngf of the Peace,

ham, Esq. Middleham.
ailes, Gent. Northaﬂerton,

sputy iff, Thomas Paul, Gent. Malton,"
€lerk of Indictments, Mr. Thomas Wait, Noﬂhlhrton )
. Crier of the Court, Mr. John Leefe, Malton.,
Treasurer, Valentine Kitchingman, Eaq. Carlton Husthwalte, .
Clerk of Gencral Meelings of Lieutenancy, Henry Hirst, Gent. Northallerton,
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Governor of the House of Correction, Northallerton, Mr Thomas Shepherd.
Under Gaoler, Mr Thomas Shepherd, Jun.
Surveyor of Bridges, George Atkinson, Gent. Cottage, Richmond.
- Deputy, Mr Matthew Peacock, Rainton, Boroughbridge.

Rea1sTER-OFFICE, NORTHALLERTON.

Reft'lkr, Matthew Butterwick, Esq. Thirsk.
Deputy, John Sanders Walton, Gentleman, Northallerton,

COoRONERS.
William Dinsdale, Aiskew.

Henry Belcher, Whitby.
’ Thomas Harrison, Kirbymoorside

George Brigham, Rudby.
Samuel Cowling, York.

CHizr CoNSTABLES.
Allertonshive, James Langdale, Northallerton ; Christ. Hudson, Crosby.
Berdforth, Thomas Scott, Oulston ; James Barker, Sowerby.
Bulmer, John Plowman, Haxby ; William Ware, Skirpenbeck.
Gilling- East, George Readman, Langton ; Thomas Meek, Crabiree House,
Qilling-MWaest, Thomas Lax, Ravensworth; Samnel Spedding, Gilling.
Hang-East, George Dryden, Aiskew; John Plews, Colbnrn.
liug-Wat, Thomas Place, Spennithorne ; Ralph Lodge, New Houses.
Hallikeld, Tristram Waltker, Melmerby ; William Fall, Wath.
Langbarugh, George Brigham, Rudby ; Joseph Hickson, Guisbrough.
Pickering-Lythe, Peter Marshall, Wykeham ; Thomas Bointon, Pickering.
Rydale, George Calter, Oswaldkirk ; John Reed, Stonegrave,
W hithy-Strand, Thomes G. Dale, Whitby.

Supsprvision CLERKS.
Allertonshire, James Langdale, Northallerton.
Birdferth, Charles B, Walker, Thirsk.
Bubmer, John Plowman, Haxby.
Gilling-East, William Price, Scorton.
Gilling-#¥est, Thomas Bowman, Richmond.
Hang-East, William Dinsdale, Aiskew, Bedale,
-J¥est, George Emerson, Leyburn.
Hallikeld, Jossph Wright, Burneston, Boroughbridge.
Lengbarugh- East, Henry Clarke, Guisbrough.
darugh-Hest, William Powell, Stokesley. .
Pickering-Lythe East, John Stephenson, Scarborough.
- Pickering-Lythe West, Thomas Seavers, Pickering.
%d:l , George Carter, Oswaldkirk, Helmsley.
itby-Strand, Thomas Waison and Thomas Stephenson, Whitby,

The General Quarter Sessions .

Are keld at Northallerton, on Tuesdays in the first whole week after
Rpiphany ;—Easter ;—St. Thomas the Martyr j—and on the first Tuesday after the
eleventh of October.

CAairmen.—The Right Hon. Lawrence, Lord Dundas, at the Midsummer
and Michaelmas Sessions ; and the Rev, John Headlam, M. A, at the Epipbany
and Easter Sessions, -
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ACKLAM, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Buckrose, l{berty of
St. Peter; 6} miles from Malton, 9 from Pocklington, 13 from
‘York.—Pop. 389, The Charch, petaliar, is a vicarage, dedicated
to St. John the Baptist, in the deanry of Buckrose, value, 5. p.r.
4+130L. Patron, the Chancellor of Yerk Cathedral.

ADDLETHORPE, see Eddlethorpe.

AIKE, see Ayke. ’

ALDBROUGH, a parish-town, in the middle-division of Holdernéss;

. 7.milgs from Hornsea, 8 from Hedon, 12. from Hull, 52 from
York.—Pop. including Carlton and Fosham, 802, which being
united, form a township. The Church is a vicarage, dedicated th

. 8t, Bartholomew, in the deanry of Holderness, value, $13L 15,

- Patron, the King. ’ v ’ .

At Aldborough, is a Saxon inscription engraved on a circular stone, 154
inches in diameter, fixed over a pillar on the south side of the nave, which rmns
round the margin of ‘the stone. It commemorates the time of ifs ‘erection;
-and may be read in English, ¢ UM commanded this church to be erected for
the souls of Hanum and Gunthard.” See particulat acconat of this inscription in
the Archmologis. vol. 6, in a letter from J. C. Brooke, Esq. to the Soclety of
Antiquaries, on the authority of the Rev. Mr Dade of Barmston. The church,
from repairs at various periods, has now & modern appearance. Mr , in
vol. 7, of the same work, assigns very plansible reasons forits not being
evvetion ; ke supposes, “ that Ul hailt a chorch, which in a few. years, and by
some means now unknown, was destroyed, and lay in ruinsin 1080; and when
the present fabric was ereeted, the old “stone,. with its inscription, which bhad
. happlly been preserved, was put up in the new stractare mdhl!;g]»_hceum

) e 'o?dn old castle which, with the Lordship, belonged'to William le Groa,
Earl of Albermarle, who was at the battle of the standard, in 5138, not & vestige
is to be seems  Tradition says, it stood northward of the ¢l , but an enclospre
which tdok place some years ago, Lias quite levelled the founddtions; and the
Well, which was within the castle- and supplied it with water, i¥ now neer the

-~ high read. The Roman road from the Prastorium to the Gabrantovicorum Binwy

. Portaosug vel Salutaris of Ptglemy, runs thmu* Al — Archaol. vol. 6.

ALLERTHORPE, in the parish of Thornton, Wilton-Beacoh
division of Harthill, liberty of St. Peter; (tke seat of Barnard

_ Smyth, Eeg.) 2 wiles from Pocklington, 7} from Market-Weigh-

ton, 12 fromYork.—Pop. 132. Here is a Chapel of case to

Thornton,. value, p. r. 76/ 6s. 3d. .
ANLABY, iun the parishes of Kirk-Ella and Hessle, in Hullshire;
. (the seat of William Poase, Esg.) 4% miles from Hull, 8} from
- South-Cave, 10 from Beverloy.—Pop. 271.

. Anlaby formerly belonged to an ancient family of that name; the heirers
. 11!1 tﬁa,.ltImn‘(um‘rlal it by marriage into the family of thre Legards, in the yedr

~ » . .

K_RGAM,‘ see Ergham.
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ARGLAM, 2 k. in the township and parish of Holme-on-Spalding:
Moor, llolme-Bemn division of Harthill; 7 milee from Mu-ket-
Weighton.

ARNOLD in the parishes of Long-Rlston and Swine, north-divi-
sion of Holderness ; 7 miles from Beverley, 10} from Hull, 14}
from Great-Drifficld.—Pop. inclading Routon and North-Skir-
laugh, 260, which being united form a townsbip.

ARRAM, ham. in the township and parish of Leokonfield, Hunsley-
Bescon disision of Harthill; 4} miles from Beverley, 13 from
Great.Driffield.

ARRAM HALL, f. k in the township and parish of Atwicke, 3
- wiles from Hornsea,

ARRAS, 4. A. in the township and garxsh of Market-Weighton ; 2}
miles from Market-Weighton, 7 from Beverley.

ASSELBY, in tbe parish of Howden, wapentake of Howdemhm
. 2 miles from Howden, 8 from Selby.—Pop. 254.

' Here Nigel Fossard had two extensive ﬂaherieo, which yielded on an

. average, 3,400 eols avnually.

ATWICKE, a parish-town, in the north-division of Holderness;
2} nmiles from Hornsea, 13 from Driffield, 131 from Bridlington,
14 from Beverley, 42 from York.—-Pop. 326. 'The Church is
a viosrage, dedicated to St. Lawrence, in the deaury of Holder-
‘ness, value, $4L 7s, 11d. p.r. 480l Patron, the King.

AUBURN, f. A in the toynship of Fraisthorpe, and parish of
Carnaby ; 3} miles from Bridlington, 12 {rom Hornsea,

AUGHTON, a perish-town, in Holme-Beaoon division of Harthilt ;
8 miles from Howden, 7} from Selby, 13 from York.-— 269.
The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to All-Saints, n the eanry
of Haythill, value, 34l.p. r. #85l. 18s. 3d. Patron, — Flitoroft,

‘!'hu wis the residenoe of Robert Aske, who headed the insurrection called
the “ Piigrimage of Grace” in the reign of Henry VIH, There are no remaing
of the ancient mansion or castle} but the rite ie marked by ditches or mosty, ong
within anotber, with the interior vallam raised to a great Iui‘ht, which devu
it to have been a 8]:1« of considerable atrength.

AUGHTON-RUDDINGS, 2f. 4 in the township and parish nt'
Aughton ; 8 miles from Howden and Pocklington.
AYKE, in the parishes of Lookington and 8t Jobn, Boverley,

Bainton-Beacon division of Hartlnl! 6 miles from Buerley, 3

iromDnmeM —Pop 98,

5 B
BABTHORPE f A in thetownship ofﬂrwkmboh&ﬁﬁ-ww-
. hall, and pnruhof Hemingbrough ; § miles from Selby.

Here the ancient family of the Babthorpes ﬂonnlhd‘lormym
and intermarried with the best families in this mmy. By Kirkby’s inguest,

e

hege was one caracate of land held by Ra.lph Bishop of Dur- - ;

bam, by Knight's service; where 19 caracutes ht'a fee, &Wﬂ,
Bubthorpe, in the reign of James 1. sold this estate ao W Bowes, Beq.~
Burion’s Monast. A father and a son, both of this familys were slain in the,
bmhle of . Albans, fighting for Henrx V1. and lie duried there with this eg;—
taph \—
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Com Raduipho Babthorpe jacet ecce Radglphad
Filius, hoe duro marmore pressas bumo: A

Henvicl Sexti dapifer, pater armiger ¢jus; - !
Mors satis id docvit, idus oterque fait.

The two Ralph Babthorps, father and his son,
Together lie interr’d beneath this stone.

One ’Squire, vne Sew’r, to our Sixth Henry was;
Both died i’ th’ tield, both in thelr master’s enuse.

Canpey.

BAFFAM, f. A in the township and parish of Kirby-Underdale,

8 miles from Pocklingtoa.

BAINTON, (which gives name to the division) a parish-town, in
‘Bainton-Beacon division of Harthill ; 6 miles from Great-Driffleld,
8 from Sledmere, 10 from Beverley and Pocklington, 18 from
Malton, 23 from York.—Pop. 300. The Church is a rectory,
dedicated lo St. Andrew, in the deanry of Harthill, value, 35L
14¢, 91d. Patrons, the Preaident and Scholars of St. John's College,
QXfOId. . -

In the 2ad of Edward I1. Peter de Mauley was found to be seized of the
manor of Bainton, and the advowson of the ehurch by the scrvice of inding two
Knights and four Fsquires, in the King’s srmy for forty days, in time of war,
and to provids a steward 1o do snit for him at the King’s Court at York, from
vix weeks to six weeks. In the church is a monument of Peter do Maaley, a
Kaight Templar, temp. Henry [1I. Tbe Vicar has 602 acres of land, nearly
a sixth of the parish, in lieu of tithes and money }-!mnu of every description,
exeept surplice fees and mortuaries.~—Blownt’s Ancient Tenures. e

BA L&HOLME. in the parish of Howden, wapentake of Howden-
shire ; 2} miles from Howden, 12 from South-Cave, 123" from
.Selby.—Pop. 105.

BARLBY, in the parish of Hemingbrough, wapentske of Ouse and
Derwent, liberty of Howdenshire; 2 miles from Selby, 8 from
Howden, 13 from York.—Pop. 349. The Church is a perpetaal
.oaracy under Hemingbrough, value, p.r. $+78. .

" BARMBY-ON-THE-MARSH, or DERWENT, in the parish of
Howden, wapentake of Howdenshire ; 3% miles from Howdes, 7
from Selby.—~Pop. 525.—The Church is a perpetual curacy andeg

owden, value, p. r. 36/, 10s.

BARMBY-ON-THE-MOOR, a parish-town, in Wilton-Beacon
division of Harthill, liberty of St. Peter; 2 miles from Pockling:
ten, 8 from Market-Weighton, 12 from York.—Pop. 400 The

urch, peculiar, is dedicated to St. Catherine, in thd deunry

Harthill, value, p. r. 55.. 45 . 6d. Patrons, the Dean and Chapter
‘of York, One vicar is ordained in this chapel and that of ‘Fang-
foss, each reckoned a separate parish, yet make but one vicorage,
valaed aocording to Bacon, at 5/, 6s. 8d,

BARMBY-MOOR INN, (Posting-Housr) in the township and
gﬁb of Barmby-on-the-Moor; 2} wiles from Pocklington, 8
: Market-Weighton, 11 from York. )

BARMSTON, a parish-town, .in the north-divizion of Holderness ;
6} miles from Bridlingfon, 41 from Great-Driffieid, 17 from

. Beverley, 40 from York.—Pop. 205. . The Church is a rectory,
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-dedicatdd té AN-Saints, in the deanry of Holderness, value, 134
11s. 104d. Patron, Sir Francis Boynton, Bart,
In 1726, Sir Grifith Boynton founded an Alms-house heve, for four old men,
and endowed it with a small annual stipend for each.—The repairs and sti
were charged by Sir .Griffith apon the manor of Hsisthorpe. The old 1,
anciently the residence of the Boynton family, isnow occupied as a Farp-house.
It is moated round. -
BARNHILL-HALL, f. A in the township of Knedlington, and
rish of Howden 3 1 mile from Howden. .
BARROW, or BARF-HILL, Aam. in the township and parish of
Lockington; 8 miles from Beverley, 9 from Great-Driffield. .
BARTHORPE-BOTTOMS, 2 or 3 f. A. in the township and parish
of Acklam, wapentake of Buckrose, liberty of St. Peter; 8 miles .
from Malton, 10 from Pocklington.
BARTON-DALE, f. 4. in the township and parish of Hunmanby ;
* 3 miles from Hunmanby, 5 from Bridlington. Here was formerly
a chapel to Hunmanby. when it was called Barkerdale.
BASWICK, HIGH and LOW, 2 f. 4. in the township and parish
of Leven ; 6 miles from Great-Driffield, 9 from Beverley. =~ .
BASWICK.STEKR, a coal and lime-wharf, on the river Hull, in
the township and parish of Brandsburton; 10 rhiles from Great-
Driffield dnd Beverley. :
BATTLEBURN, kam. in the township of Eastbvrn, and parish of
Kirkburn; 3} miles from Great-Driffield, 11 from Beverley. -
BEEFORD, a parish-town, in the north-division of Holderness; 8
miles from Great-Driffield, 10 from Bridlington, 13 from Beverley,
37 from York.—Pop. 620. The Church ig a rectory, dedicated to
St, Leonard, in the deanry of Holderness, value, 22! Patron, the
Archbishop of York. At the time the enclosure of the lands with-
in this townsbip {ook place, = field containing 11 acres, was laid
out, in lieu of certain balks, for the repairs of the charch, its
value then 3.. 10s. now 194
BEEFORD, or MOOR-GRANGE (the seat of Sir George Wood,
Knt.) in the township and parish of Beeford; 10 miles from
Great Driffield, 11 from Bridlington .
BEER-HOUSES, see Dunswell. )
. BEILBY, in the parish of Hayton, Holme-Beacon division of Hart-
hill, liberty of St. Peter; 3} miles from Pooklington, 5 from
Market-Weighton, 15 from York.—Pop. 239. Here is a Chapel
to Hayton, dedicated to 8t. Giles, s
BELBY, in the parish of Howden, wapentake of Howdenshire ; I'}
mile from Howden, 10} from South-Cave.—Pop. 49. )
BRLLASIZE, in the parish of Eastrington, wapentake of Howden-
shire; §.miles from Howden, 7 from South-Cave.—Pop. 197.
BELL-HALL, (the seat of Hewby John Baines, Eeg.) in the town-
ship of Naburn, and parish of 8t. Dennis, York, wapentake of
Onse and Derwent; & miles from York. : ‘ e
BELTHORPE, in the township and parish of Biskop-Wilton,
- Wilton-Beacon division of Harthill, libenﬁof St. Peter ; 4 miles
from Pocklington, 12 from York, 13 from Malton.—Pop. included -
in Bishop-Wilton.
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BEMPTON, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Dickering; 3.
miles from Bridlington, 7 from Hunmanby, 45 from York.—
Pop. 231. The Church, a donative, is a perpetual curacy, dedicated
to- 8t. Michael, in the deanry of Dickering, value, p. r. 46l
Patron, Henry Broadley, Esq. .

BENNETLAND, ham. in the township of Bellasize, and.parish of
Eestrington ; 54 miles from Howden, 7 from South-Cave.

BENNINGHOLME, in the parish of Swine, middle-division of
Holderness ; 8 miles from Beverley, 9 from Hull and Hedop.—~—
Pop. 97. : . ‘ :

BENNINGHOLME-GRANGE, f. k. in the tawnship of Benning
holme and parish of Swine, 7 miles from Beverley, 9 from Hull

BENTLEY, in the parish of Rowley, Hunsley Beacon division
of Harthill ; 2} miles from Bevericy, 7 from South-Cave, 8 from
Hull, Pop.

BESSONBY, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Dickering,
- (Bessonby-House the seat of Harrington Hudson, Esq.) 1) mile
from Bridlington, 10 from Great-Driflield. —Pop. 83. The Church
is a perpetual curacy, dedicated to St. Magnus, in the.deanry of
Diockering, value, p. r. 133 Patron, Harringfon Hudson, Ksq.

BESWIC??, in the parish of Kilawick, Bainton-Beacon division
of Harthill; 6} miles from Beverley, and Great-Driffield.—Pop,
192. The Church is a perpetual curacy, in tbe deanry of Harthill.
Patron, John Denison, Esq. . .

Beawick was formerly the residence of that celebrated Foxhunter Williama

Draper, Eaq. .

BEVERLEY, a warket-town, in the several parishes of St. John, -
St. Mary, St. Nicholas, and St. Martin, Hunsley-Beaoon division
of Harthill, and liberty of Beverley ; 9 miles from Hull, 93 from
-Sonth-Cave, 10 from Market-Weighton, 13 from Great-Driffleld;
14 from Hornsee, 24 from Bridlington, 28 from Malton, 29 from
York, from London by Lincoln 183, by York 227.—Market, Safur-
day.—Fuairs, Thursday before Old Valentine-day, Holy Thuraday,
July.‘'5, Wednesday before Sept. 25, November 5 for horned cattld,.
-sheep, herses, &c, every other Wednesday for horned cattle enil:.
*sheép.—Bankers, Kast-Riding Bank, Messrs. Bower and Co. draw
on Messrs. Curries, Raikes and Co, 29, Corn-hbill ; Beverley
Messrs. Machell and Co. draw on Messrs. Sir R. Carr Glynn and
Co. 12, Birchin-Lane.—Principal Inns, the Tiger and
Arms.—Pop. St. Mary, 2918—S8t. Nicholes, 478—St, Martius,
2639—Total, 5035. The Church of St. Jolin with 8t. Martin, pe-
-culiar, is-a perpetuol curacy. Patron, the Corporation of Bever-

“ley. 8t. Mary, a vicarage, value, 144, 2¢. 8}d.-—Patroh, the King.
* $t, Nicholas, (united with St. Mary) a rectory, value, 5l 0. |0d.
The church of St. Nichglas bas long been destroyed. ' o
-+ Beverley.-was sometime called Deir Hold, or the #Vosd of the Deirans; and -
subsequently Beveriac, m;.m.ormunmm,n::nmm

. 'ins the neighbourhood. It owes ity rise to the piety of early tinmes, for'wa find .
that .St. John, Archbfebop of York, a mau of oxm'dh-!uqnm sbd
greatganctity, comverted the parish chuwch in this place, into'a geesastery fac

4 . -~



243 EAST-RIDING, -

Bencdictive Monks. In {he year 860, it Was destroyed by the Danmes, and
lay in ruins three years before it was repuired. King Athelstan, afier he had
overcame the Scots, on his return came to Beverley, and built a'new céllege of
. Secular Canons ; granted and confirmed io the church many great privieges
and liberties ; also a sanciuary, the limits of which were marked by four erosees.
Edward the Confessor and William the Conqueror were both benefactors to
it. Valued at the dissolution, at 109.. 8s. 84.—Dvepaix. In 1710, the
. church peing in & ruinous state, subscriptions were enised at the instigation of
John Moyser, Esq. of this place, for the purpose of repairing and beaatilying the
. . In it are soveral handsome munuments of the Percies,” W g,
oibams, &c. In 1664, the grave of St. John of Beverley, Archbishop of
 York, was discovered, with his bonesand many relice. This chureh of St. Jobu,
usunlly styled the Minster, is now couverted intoa parish church to which that of
. 8t, Martin’e is annexed ; and is, as Dr. Stukely justly observes, * an extraordi-
nary beauty, nothing inferior to York Minster, but somewbat less.” The
north gable end was, abont the year 1739, raiced to its perpendicnlar, from
*whieh it had slipped three fecet, by Mr. Thornion of York. The admirahle
..machine for this purpose, was engraved in the same year and printed by Mr.
Fourdrinier. DBenides the Minster there i« another church, durimted to Saint
Mary, sint built in 1326, to which, in 1667 was annexed St. Nicholas, s large
and handsome strugture. ’ R
Here is an hosptial for aix paor perrone, founded and endowed by William
Temperon, in 1723; and anotber founded in 1636 by Fox Thwaites, for four
r widows, besides other charities. A grammar school of ancient date. but
y whom or when founded is not known, with two fellowships, six scholarships,
and three exhibitions to 8t. John’s College, Cambridge. The school ‘is open to
the sons of burgesses, on the payment of 3/ per annuin, for their instraction in
. the classics, and 2/, 2s. for writing and arithmetic. The master’ssalary is 1004
per sunum, with a dwelling hounse st a trifling quit-rent. . .
Beverley sent Members to all the Parliaments of King Edward-the 1. but
from that time not till the fith of Queen Eligabeth, who in 1573, incorporated
the town. Theright of election ia vested in the freemen of the town, who acquire
this right by birth, servitnde of seven years, or purchase. Number of voters,
.about 1400. Returning officer, the Msyor.- . :
The town is governed by « Mayor, 12 Aldermen, and 13 exihl Burgreses,
¢hosca annually on the Monday before Michaeimas day, astisted by a Recorder
‘and a Town Clerk. The barbarous ocustom ot baiting a bull on the day the
. Mayor is sworn into office, is still retained, and takes place in October. Here
.is the Register Office for this Riding, and tha House of Correction and Conrt
. Room where the Quarter Sessions of the Peace are hold.
% The towne of Beverie,”” says Leland, * is large, and welle buildid of
wood.” It is situated at no great distance from the foot of the Walds, abouta mile
. from the river Hull, and conneoted with it by = navigable canal made in 1737..
{The town is more than a mile in length, its principal street is spacious, and (he
houses remarkably cleaaly in their appearnncs., The markei-place containe
-‘nbont four acres, and is adorned with a beautiful cross, supported by freestome
. culumns, each of an entire stone, erected at the expense ot the late Hon. Sir
* Charles Hotham Bart. and Sir Michsel Warton, Knight, then Members of Par-
liament for the towa. The following eminent men have been bord here.
Jobn Fisher, Bishop of Rocheeter, and a martyr to the religion be profese-
- od was born here, tn 1459, ard received his education in the grammar school
of this place. He took bis degree of B. A.at Cambridge, 1438, and 1491 that
of M. A. He became confentor to Margaret, Countess of Ricbmond, mother, to
Henry VIL who, by bis advice, founded St. John’s ard Christ’s Collegee, -
bridge. Hb was ardy ‘cuosen’ Chancellorof the University; amd iy 3
weas made Bishiop of Rochester, trom which e would never remove to a befter
See. He was a soalous opponent of the reformation, and of the King’s divoroe.
: from Quéen Cathaeime.. He refiibed to acknowledge the King’s supremocy, was
thevefore scat to the tower, where he continued till histriai and exeention which
+ took plede, Jeme 92, 1535. His head, slong with that of Sir Thomas More, not
oy daye. afieiwards, was fixed ona pale upon London bridge. During big
sontinement, the Pope made him a camdinal, on which accoust Henry exelpimed,’
o ? ;
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“ Paul mnay send Lim a hat, hut I will take care that he have never a bead to
wear it'on.” He was 8 man of considerable learning, strict integrity, and fer-
vent piety. He wrote & commentary on the penitential psalms; a defence of
the Kﬁg’s book against Luther, a funeral sermon for the lady Margaret, &ec.—
Bieg, Dict.—— Zooch.

John Aleock, an English Prelate, also received his educatiod in the
grammar school of this place of his nativity. He waa afterwards educated at
Cambridge ; became D¥an of Westminster, and Master of the Rolls, and in
1471, was preferred to the See of Rochester, from whence he was translated
10 Worcester, and finally to Ely. He endowed 2 school at Kingstou-upon-Hul',
built the hall at the palace in Ely, and founded Jesus College, Cambridze.
HQB died gctoher 1, 1500, and was burjed in the chapel at Hull, which he builkt.
—Biog. Dict.

ngm Green, Bisbop of Lineoln, born in 1708 ; afler receiving the rudi-
ments of his edneation at lhegumwﬁehoolhen, he took his degree of Arta
at 8t. John’s College, Cambridge, with great credit as a classical veholar; he
engaged himself as usher to a school at Lichfield, before Dr. Johnuon and Mr.
Garrick had left that city. After obtaining severa! church mfemmm, he was
rajeed w0 the See of Lincoln; and died at Bath in 1779. is elegant scholar
was one of the writers of the celebtated ¢ Athenian Letiers,” published by the
‘Earl of Hardwicke, in 1798, 2 vols. 4to.—Biog. Dict.

Thns we find Beverley has yielded to the world three Bishops, two of

, and one of Lincoln, and all educated at this school.— Magna Brit.

Robert lngram, & worthy English divine, a native of thin place, was born in
1726—7, and educated at the grammar school bere, from which he removed to
Corpus Christi College, Cambridge. He was author of “ A View of the Great
l‘i'vem of the Seventh Plague,’ aud other pieces, He died in 1804.—Monihly
_.‘i{ngi Goes is said, hy Herbert, to have printed at this place, so early as

1509, a broadside, being the picture of 3 man on horseback. “ Emprynted at -
Beverley, in the High-gite, by me Hewe Goes” * : -
BEVERLEY-PARKS, 2 or3f. 4. in the township of Woodman-
sea, and parish of St. Jobn. Beverley; 1} mile from Beverley,
74 from Hull. ’ .
BEWHOLME, in the township of Bewholme-with-Nunkeeling;
and fgarish’of Nunkeeling ; 64 miles from Hornsea, 10 from Great- -
Driffield.—Pop. including Nunkeeling, 243. .
BEWICK, in the township of East-Newton with Bewick, and
rish of Aldbrough, middle:division of Holderness; 7 miles from -
Eornsea, 8) from Hedon, 13 from Hull. .
BILLINGS-HILL, (the seat of James Hopkinsom, Esg.) in the -
township of Bewholme with Nunkeeling, and parish of Nas- -
keeling ; 7 miles from Hornsea, 10 from Beverley. .
BILTON, in the parish of Swine, middle-divison of Holderness;:
4 miles from Hedon, 4} from Hull, 13 from Beverley.—Pop. .
9l. The Church isa perpetual curacy, dedicated to St. Peter, .
valge, p. r. 105l. 13s. Patron, The Hon, and Rev. Williamy -
Henory Dawnsy. . )
BINNING'R)N’, in the parish of Willerby, wapentake of Dick-
ering ; 6 miles from Hunmanby, 9 from Scarborough.— Pop. 50, _
BIRDSALL a parish-town, in the wapentake of Buckrose ; ¢(Bird-
sall-Hall, the seat of the Hon. Lord Middleton,) 4 miles from Mal-
ton, 8 from Sledwere, 16 from York.—Pop. 240. The Church isa
perpetual curacy, dedicated to St. Mary, in the deanry of Buck-
roze, value, p. r. 49/, Patron, the Marquis of Hertford, !
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'Fhis Church was appropriated by Walter de Espec, t6 bts priory st Kirk-

"Here was born Henry Burton, 8 puritan divine; in 1579, and educated at
St. Jobn’s College, Cambridge ; but fook his degree of B. D. at Oxford.. He
was afterwarde clerk of the closet to Prince Henry, and to Prince Charles ; but
was turned out for a libel againet the bishops. After this he obtained the rect-
ery of St. Matthew, Friday-street; but got into tronble by his seditious sermons,
‘was sénfenced to pay a fine of 5000/. to be pilloried, and then imprisoned for
life in Lancaster gaol. The place of his confinement was afterwards altered to
the castle of Guernsey; where he remained till 1640, when the parliament res

* enlled him. He was also restored to his living ; and died in 1648. He wrote
miany pamplilets, chiefly controversial, and very abusive.—Biog. Dict.

BISHOP-WILTON, (which gives name to the division) is a parishd
town, in Wilton-Beacon division of Harthill, libesty of 8t. Peter;
4 miles from Pocklington, 13 from York, 14 from Malton.—Pop.
including Belthorpe, 570. The Church, peculiar, isa perpetual
curacy, (Bacon styles it a vicarage discharged, dedicated to St.
Edith, valued at 7/. 3s. 61d.) dedicated tb St. Michael, in the dean-
ry of Harthill, value, p. r. 1144 10s. Patron, Sir Mark Master-
man Sykes, Bart. : .

« Bishop Neville formerly resided in this parish, which gave.rise ts the
pame 'of Bishop-Wilton. Here is a field moated round, where his palace stood,
to this day, and the Neville’s Arms are, on painted. glass, in one of the windows
of the church, -

BLACKTOFT, e parish-town, in the wapentake of Howdenshire J
. 8 miles from Howder, 9 from South-Cave, 28 from York.—Pop.
. 278. 'The Church, peculiar, is a perpetnal curacy, in the deanry

of Hartbill, value, 38/." Patrons, the Dean and Chapter of Durham,
Blacktoft is sometimes distingnished by east and west. . .

A proposal was made at the latter end of the reign of Charles II. by the then
Duke -of Bolton, to the city. of York, to get an Act of Parliament at his own
charge for cutting a new river or canal from this place; on the Humber, ina
direct line for York. An actual survey was taken, the charge of the ground the

- ¢ut was to be made through, computed, &c. TFhis tredtynnfortunately broke off}

-otherwise, such a flow of tide must necessarily have come up, that we should
now have bad the pleasure of seeing ships of two or three hundred tons hurtben

zin%at Ousbridge.— Drake’s . .

BLA kCH, F. k. in the township and parish of Warter; 7 miles from

- Pocklington. :

BOLTON, in the parish of Bishop-Wilton, Wilton-Beacon division
of Harthill, liberty of St. Peter; (Bolton-Hall, the seat of John
Preston, Esq.) 3} miles from Pocklington, 10 from Market.

. Weighton and York.—Pop. 112. : :

BONW ICK, in the parish of Skipsea, north-division of Holderness ;
4 miles from Hornsea, 9 from Great-Driffield, 12 from Bridling.
ton, 14 from Beverley.—Pop. 30. :

‘BOOTH, or BOOTH-FERRY, ham, in the township of Kned.

lington, and parish of Howden, wapentake of Howdenshire; 2
_roileg from Howden, 8 from Snaith, 10 from Selby, 12 from Thorne,
14 from Market-Weighton. A ferry across the Humber. .
BOREAS-HILL, f. %. in the townshiﬁand parish of Paul, south.
division of Holderness ; 2 miles from Hedon, 10 from Hull. N
BORSEA, kam. in the township and parish of Holme-on-Spelding:
Moot ; -7 miles from Market-Weighton, 8 from Howded.

e ——— gl
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BOWTHQRPE f the township of - Menthorpe-With Bow-
thorpé, and°parish - of Hemingbrough, ‘wepentakelof - Ous md
Derwent, and liberty of Howdenshire ; 6‘mna from Séiby, 6 ﬁ'om
" Héwden. —Pop included in Mehtborpe .

ﬁOYN’l‘ON a- parish-town, in the wapentalle of Dickeiﬁlg ‘
. (Boynton-Hall, the seat of Sir William Strickland, Bart.) 3. tniles
. * from Bri dlmgton, 14 fronr Sledmere, '17 from Driffieid, 28 from
U Yotl.—Pop. 123. The Charch isa perpitnal coracy, dedidated
" to &t. Andrew, in the deanry of Dickering, value, -;71. Mc 24,

wh +140L, Patron Sir Willidh Strickiand, Bart., -
" At “Boynton 1s a small coffection of marble statues, by the'late Sir’ GW
*- Serickland, among which 'are & Juno, 4 feet 10 inches high, earrying a Fewn
+,nder hor lett arm, which is epcircled in a wreath of frait and flowers su<pended
Jmm the .right ghoulder; in the right hand a bunch of flowers: it is in gheag
* Presgrvation, and the drapery excellent.— This fine stattie was found $n. 1771
“‘at the Tourre tre teste, four miies frony Rome, on the Prenestian-way, leid'on a
«-fossclated pavement, probably the tewdple to which it bolonged. A Head of
M Junim Brutus, large as life,. gnd.of perfect and excellent sculptare. —Dzl.-

! Laway.
Inthe famnl) of the Stricklandsthere have heeri several persons olmddnib!e

f.mnnlmw and dithongh the ancient funiily seat appears to bave been at

d-Hall, Westmorland, they have now resided at u for upwards of
:. F ~The first Baropet was-Sir Wm, Striekland, July 30, 1641, the son and
ir of Waljer Strickland, Esq. of Boynton. The second Bart. Sit Thomas
"Strickland, was a ndenble person }n Oliver Crdmwell’s time. Hissen and
-lheeesor, lhe rt. died in 1724. The 4th Bart. Sir William, was elected
. Member in.the first Parliament of Geo I. for the city of Csrhsle he died at
chnlon in 1735; and was succeeded by his son, Sir Georgé Strlddmd the 5th
, High-Sllerlﬂ' for the (-onnty in 1768: he died 1808 ‘and was
) suceeeded mil som, the present Sir Wra. Strickland; the 6th Bm«—kau'.
" Baromet.

At Boynton is preserved, the thlgh -boue of tiie famous out-Jaw, Littls Jobn,

) measnnng 38 mdm, taken out of his grave at Hathérsage,- Derbphu'e sbout
eaje’s Gents. Seats,—Avrticle, Cunnan-Hall.

Bﬂﬁﬂg PE ham. in the township and parish of Foxholes; 10
» miles from Bridlingten, 12 from Scarboroui
BRACKENDALE, f: h. in the township of Fraisthorpe, and pastsh
." of Canaby ; 4} milesfrom Bridlington, 11} from Hornsea:
BRACK.EN-HILL £ h. in the township of Garton; and ‘parishes of
- - Garton and Roos, 9 miles from Hedon.
BRACKEN 3 f. h. and & township, in the perish of Kilnwick-j
. Walton, in Bainton-Beacon division; 7 i milss*fmm Br
~ 8-from Beverley.—Pop. 30,
BRACKENHOLME, in the township of Backenholme-mth-w ood-.
hnll, and parish of Hemingbrongh, hbe &; of Howdenshire, wa-
. or Ouse and Derwent ; 5 wiles from S8elby, 6 ftom How-
_ del, 14 from York.— Pop. mslud\ng Woodhall, 90.
BRAFFORDS, (the seat of Robert Osborne, Esq.). in the fown.lnp
" of Swanland,  and parish of North-Ferriby; 73 miles from Haull.
BRANDSBURTON a parish-town, in the north-division of Hol«
""dﬂmeu; 6 wiles from Homsea, 8 from Beverley, 1)-from Drify
: flad, 15 from Bridlington, 37 from York.—No Market ~Fairs,
,M 14, for horses, horned cattle and sheep; every other Wed-
0533 Io: Iwmed .cattle and sheep.—;Pop 562' "Phe Charoh is
LS 'T ‘! “)} o eei, eum



iis . BABT-RIDING.

mwed 8t. Mary, in ihe deniiey d‘ﬁm»
4. 13 4 Pdmh S5t John's College,

BRA NGHAM, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Howdm-
shire: £ miles from ‘South-Cave, 9 from Beverley, 12 from Hull,
28 from York,—Pop. 128. 'The Charch, peouliar, is a vi
dodidated to All-Seints, inthedulryofnuthll, value, 312/ g:
£4. Patroms, tbeDendehptu Durhaw.<—It was appro-
priated, in 1438, by thie Prior of Dufham, to'them for sustenation
ofqghtMonksin%hmHMq

BREIGHTON, it the parish of Bubwith, Holme-Beacon division of
numn' 5 flies from Howden, 7 (rom Selby, 14} from Yorkow

op. luclading Gunby, )79, which béing unitid, forms towiship.
hnml.mm",b‘ , s ;{}'Mn. in_the wagenitake #f Dicketing;
’i wiles from Hummanby, }2 from Greut-Driffield, 16 from Hotn-

, 17 froth Stedniere, 18 from Scarbedough, 33 from Bev
“.’ib “Trom Hull, 41 from York, from London sy Eieces 808, 3y
!’&iwa—m Satusday .— Faire, Monday before Whitim-
. Hile, Out, 21, for hurned cuttle, linen, &v.— Bankers,
ltmisgma Hofthy , riW ' Mewnrs. Sir Joh Lubbock and Co.
ﬂmaon-houe-shnet.—-l’ﬂmpal Inns, G Dragon axd Biack
© Iion,Pop. invieding the Quay, 4275. ‘Ibe Church isa per-
Petwal ¢ . dediveted to 8. Mary, ia the deunry ol Dickering,
. value, p.x. 1831, 10s. Pattois, Sir Franvls Wobd, Koight, and
O o situated withia & puile of the
. . of Rheb comiimoittous
and mbu-ﬂhlnny, which consists chiefly ohi o;: ﬁm " the side of n
Mlﬂehh; ndutauhbuh’lumtndm clileT Yesttwe
grund remalos of its once magiificent Priory, of which the
dmrcb u almm m vestige. Thin Pnory, altér ﬁ&m,aﬂyh'&e
, for black Canons, of tBe 8t. Austin, andl detli--
nted |ttot.heVl ; and jmve thet all MB emtein thido\n,‘o&ub
rmed {o them al other , which his temants 'whe beld of M, e given,
them,—valoed ‘it the dissclation at S471. 68, 11d. per ann. Pajdale, wnd 663¢..
13, 4. Qed. Wm. Wede or Wolde, the last Prior, -hngcdlﬂ.mdnq
“iim for. high-treason; and the mbelongmgtoﬂmmm
«Friis’ Priory,” uy‘ﬁ Burtoa, “ was pl m dentid
, on the north udnmh-mhymﬁm,hm
" ém, on the least and Soutlieat site ; but althengh the Canons mmy
witages from imnch & situation, , meverthelesa, some tintes red from the
. lhlpl of the enemy, that entered uharbour, ‘Wherefore, onw mﬁﬁm
. Richard 11, in 1388, granted them his m
hv,v,nlls,hﬂ‘home! il of stone wnd Yime, the sanie Lo fortlly for the tiwe
No traces of the Mnﬁnﬂaﬁmmmﬂdﬂe, amﬂm
gateway. The lowerpart contains some dark rooms o
. of confinement for petty delinquents. Above the arch is Ih’l..w
wh aTown’s-hail, mmn.wmmm
Ohlnhvfthel’rb appears by its venerable to have beea,
. & ‘magnificent. fabric. lthdtwotowennthewut-ml, long sifice wasde fevel
with the nave. The enst-cndndthem_rnmm aad what Yeanios ave
oly Teagments of the ancient building west: Wwhich seems todaye-
!suped the wantta Mﬁemdliﬂql’ﬂl.yet
‘wuch . isaguificence, arehitecture is of far mbre florid atyle than any dfher
gort.  The date 1406, preserved ou a stowe placed very consplenously over the
&m,ilnppmeilohrkm ofits formintion. ¥a 1913, & Mtowk o5
fin way discovered, containing itiuumd fmnahumn
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m-mp dhm,d Robert Bml,mm Prior.~ Buaroxn.—
"~ The Register-¥ook of ¢his hhunhwmilﬂf"ﬂhlﬂbh

"‘f'f&o, Henrietta Maria, Queen of Charles 1. 1anded at Burlip, ‘pon
% Yoerd the Princess Royal of Great Britaim, under couvoy of . Adwiral Von

Viee-Admirsl an,th-b@dqndy&m W‘ mb

which entered the very hoyse wherg she sle t.w@ ng huto u ul
seek ahelter in a diteh.—Draxs. # F. ?
Of the men of eminent abilitles, whmdﬂn nativenar have resl
) ih“ou-my.wo“tyﬂh do santive of this
He was twice elacted Prior, and estal m.cmktpbty
he was reputed a saint. He died in | 13, ﬁo
‘ Bidl‘lm lam, ﬁewl:u&uu;:cmu monkish histerian, was alao s matlve of
> m name from the former pinoc, Wheee bowny
Canan reguler, Helindhuumooﬂﬁl‘ abe.
Rebert the Scr!be, the fourth prefect of thy Capops regular, of thip
He took his nswe from his mdexterlly in writing, an art of great impo,
* Before mmon of l:x;;t:ng He was not meml'y’un;:hunbrlmdbor
. warks, MR oy m".m L, Ww
the yepr 1180, SltGewyu Ripley was d:
. & great alchymist, to the study of vrhuh b‘ devowlz&l time, HQ dled .xc
™

1 Somcolhuwodawenpu hed by the late Ashmale, Bsg
Ch ofPu'rndJ kins, is §rown (9
] enl is
&-x. ttm ﬂ& —A l!let
: uNAmmn.b chmb- rwumon, withthjp mmwmw-
’w 53'”

Mhl”l hpm«ntmdedMMgbu
lono! humgn Hfe. -—Hqun.
BrllDLING'I‘ON-QUAY in the township and of Bridling-

‘ton ; ] mile from Bridlington. —pm:za Inns, Britannia, & 8hip.

" Bridlington Quay, is a pleasant healthinl ~“at mnmsher
of genteel peeple reqort during the suma
The streets wmm.
.Mwwitmﬂk&mg“‘h n il
.krete & ponsjde; Yy :
muhvb‘unwmmm.
summer eveniogr is mach tl

amd spn-plyj it ) Ol

Bey § sad the number of cpasting ves
n-rvab. mn..n:ﬂ.ﬂmn

h, s fise herd sapd, du.!lovw
@fminerais and lassils, The genitle declivity
® sea-bathing, for which several machise
*W&Wﬂn
. Which ape pep opyezy conveplance,
hmk-,ﬁ-lmhnmllgzes:m
ance from the y “ it jo o brisk Chalypea ey =
dw mwu

: lm s l-

' hnll ‘elenlby Helt, u‘hbyhﬂnm

F aw.wdrm mwﬁmm.s‘~
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BRIND, in the townshlp of Newshmn-wnth-Bnn& and pnidl of
‘ersle. Holwe-Beucon division of Horthill ; 24 mies from How-
den, 9 from Selby, 12 from Mp,rkethnghton.—Pop. included in

“Wressle, |,

BR]ND-LEYS, extra ial, in Ho!me-Benoon dmnonof Hnrt-
Hill; 3% miles from Howden, 9 from Selby.—~Pop. 7. -
BRINK NORTH, (the seat of Alexander Mather, Esq.) in the toly n.
ship and perish of Elvington ; 6 miles from York, .
BROMFLEET, in the parish of South-Cave, Hnmley-Beaoon divi-
W 'Bion, and hberty of St. Peter; 8 miles from South-Cave, 10 frbm
‘Market-Weighton, 12 from Bevetley.——-Pop 142.
BROMPTON, POTTER, in the township of Ganton, with Potter-
- “Brompton, and perish of Ganton, wapentake of Dwkermg ; S miles
tbtp Hunmanby, 9 from Scarborcagh.—Pop. included in Ganton.
B UGH, or. SKIPSEA-BROUGH, jp the township of Drink-
* hee, Upton, and Brough, and parish of Skipsea, north-division of
Holderness; 5 wiles from Hornsea, - 10 from Driffield, }1 from
Bﬂdhngton, k5 from Beverley.—Pop. included in Drinkboe, : .
BROUGH, or BROUGH-FERRY, in the township apd paris of
Elloughton Hunsley-Beacon dmsxon 3 mxlufron Sonth-Qwe,

11 from Beverley and ‘Hull.

" At this place is a Ferry across the Humber !’o‘Wlhtrlngjmn, Lincolushire,
Here the Roman road runs from Linocoln to York: This place by Horsley and
others, is sapposed to have been the Petvasia of Ptoleiny.— Drake differs from
them, but states,  that it seems to bid fair for being a Roman fortress, dec.

BUBWITH, a parish-town, in Holme-Beacon 8wision, a part in the
_libasty of 8t, Peter ; 6 miles from Howden, 7 from Selby, 11 from
Market-Weighton, 13 from York.—Pop. 540. 'The Churchisa

»  vicarage, dedicated to All 8aints, in the deanry of Harthill, value,

+ 3% 2s. 6d. and 8. 0s. 5d. in two medieties, p.r. *112L 17s. 11d.
Patrons the King and the Dean and Chapter of York; r
‘The chprch bas two medieties, one given by Guarin de Bubwnh to the
Dean and Chapter of York, who are patrons of the vicarage. The othef by
Jo:m dttahM;:‘l_my, Lord of Axholme, t0 the Abbey of Byland, the erown being
atron the :
P This was the birth-place of Nicholag de’ Bubwith, Bhbor of Bath end

_. Wells; one of the English prelates that attended_the Council of Constatice,
whére John Huse and Jerome Ragile were condemned to the-flames fn 1415:

‘BUCKROSE, a wapentake, nortl-est of York, is bounded on the
. enst by the wapentake of Dickering, on the south by the diti Jsxon.
~of Wilton-Beacon, and the west and north, by the North-Riding.
It contains 48 townships, 28 of which are parishes, but no market-
‘iown, coutaining 1,588 inbabited houses, ynd 11,186 inbabitants. -
BUCKTON, in the parish of Bridlington, wapentake of Dxckenqg 5
- 3% miles from Bridlin 6F from Honmanty.— Pop. 147.
PBUCKTON-HALL,'f. 4.'in the townsliip of Bucktdn dnd parisf of
n1 3 miles from Bridlington.
‘BUG:[‘HORPE, a parish-town, in the wapentake. of. Buckipee,
" andl Yberty-Vof §t: . Petor ;- 63 miles from Pocklngbn‘,dzm
York.—Pop, 281.-~The Churéh, goalm, is a vieatage;.sledicated
o St Andrew, in the deanry of Buckrose, value, ;201. p 1 954,
Patron, the Prebendury of Bugthorpe.

’
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"BURDKLE F 4 "R the township of Thixendalé, .‘nmf b’
Wbarram-Percy 3 4 miles from Sledntere, 10 from Malton N
BURLAND, s.°. in the township of Portington-with-Cavll, jnd
" parish of Eastrmgton 2 miles from Howden, 10} from Ma&iet- '

" Weightan, 12 from South-Cave,
BUR NB ULTS, f, A. in the township and parish of Watton Gmglt?
{rom Dnﬂield 9 from Beverley.
URNBY, a p.'msh town, in Wilton-Beacon division; 3 mfles
- .From Pooklington, 5 from Market-Weighton, 16 from York:—
~ Pop. 95. The Church i8 a rectory, dedicated to St. Giles, in {ha
* deanry of Harthill, value,'33.. 15s. p. r. 98L 19s. 6d, Patron, the
" "Duke of Devonshlra —A part of Burnby is in the parish ef Hayton,
BURSALL or BURSHILL, in the township and parish of Bm)?s-
2 .burton ;- 9 wiles from Beverlﬂy, 10 from Driffield. .

‘BURS] l'WICK in the'township and parish of Skeuklmg-cnm«ﬂmst-
" wick, south division of Holderness ; 4 miles from Hedon, 8 frém
Pattrington, 11 from Hull.—Pop. included in Skeckling., ™
BURTON or HORNSEA BURTON, 3 or 4 f. . in thy mwnsm

- and parish-of Haornsea; 13 mile from Hornsey,
BUR PON-AGNES, -a parish town in the wapentake of Dickanag ;
. «(the seat of. Sir Francis Boyntoh, Bart.) 6 miles frou Bndhng}o
and Driffied, 35 from York.—-Pop. 321, .The Church is a vjcar-
age, dedicated to St. Martin, in the denm'y of Dtckermg, yg’lne
:20l, 6s. 3& Patron, Rev,.—— Mills,
The famity of: the Baynlons is of very great antiquity ; Bnrtholomgw §e

Bo , the first mentioned in the pedigree, died seized of the manor.of
taom, mn wheuce the family were denominated ; - He lived in- 1067." 'Thcy
. pear @ have ¢omie Fntd’ possesdion of the ‘manor of Baruuwn,
- sent ini this-Ridiug, by the marrings of Henrg Boyntan, Esq, tcmp enry n,
Fhe fiest Baronet was Sir Matthew Boynton, created i May, 1618,
 merved ip parliamen h; for-the Borojigh of Hedon, in the reign of Clnrler!nnd
marfied Frances, thé daghtér of ‘Str Henry Gnﬂlﬂa, Barton-4gues, Koizht
and Baronet ; by that marriage the manor and estates of Bartop, mlp the
Boyntea hhlly, ‘B Gri lmtb Boyngan, the:third Barpnet being
I #u 1728 the preseat Bayopy begn ll;e g;xth was crén.ted in jsor be hom
- - was doll nizd Jones. - -
dBu?::ﬁﬁwmt ifiiam-Dade, F. A, 8. m«lw:n
the year l7'40,—*b€l'e Ns fhen was then wicar, He bad made a la
wuluable sob: matgrigls. for “the history and antiquities of’ %
ptoposals,. fox b, h-hm;nf which, be Tiad printed in 1783. I} h
wxety of olher perplexing ehgagement § de!aynd the'p! ofitheawork 3 and
"he died al Barmston, a aslwrtmn 2, 1790.: Bee ;,fmheuc--
count of thid.; respeemhb ﬂvimmﬂ:mm;mry. ﬁn—x\quh’ Literary, ,»lumlok:
BURTON, BISHOP, & parish town in Hunsley-Beacon. divisi
Harthill ; (Bishop-Burton Hall, the seat of Richard Wiil, sq.
and nea:ly adjoining, is the seatyof Francia Wall, Esq) 21 miles

_from: Beverley, 6}, frm:'gouth Cave, 74 from Market Weigh-

“ton,” 26} from Yorlk: 589, *~The Chuzclt-ig

“'dedicated tb *Al:Saintd, ‘i lhe deanry of Hewthill, - yNua gl

B¢ 3d. p. 1. m'pz. Patrons, thbmmmm—,dl'otkmq
Christopher

" m‘) ,ugn,‘p w
“*-was born heré)s -um;mmh % " _t‘,ombéf"ﬁ

1778, under the ‘eare’of bds lm '; Sy
t3mma0M &
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BURTON, CHERRY, & parish town in Beacon . divi-
. sion, (the seat of David Foulis, Esq,) 2% miles ‘Beverley,
7 from Market Weighton, 11 from Driffield, 27 from Yotk
Pop, 417, The Church is a rectory, dedicated to 8t. Michael, in.-
the deanry of Harthill, value 23L &s. 84, Pulron, the Rev. Mr.,

Ramaden. . .

BURTON, CONSTABLE, (the seat of Sir Thomes Constable, Bart.)
intheﬁwllln'; of West Newton, and parish of Swine; J wils
from Hedon, 7} from Hull, 14 from Beverley.

Constable Burtos, or Burton Constable is so named,”” says Comden, *“from
the Lords of it, who hy marriages are aillied to very honourable families, and
flourish in splendour at this day. Robert of this fanily, as we find it ia
T e e e e B

X w
Rictard (o the Holy Land. ' Brite T o o sadw Kes

The family had for several genapations the title of Lerds of Donbar. The
mabeion is an ancient and lent fabric; the gallery, 113 feet
furnished with numerous family paintings, and a variety of mathematical in-
struments, Here is also anm extensive library, and & collection of natarsl

curlosities, .
BURTON-FLEMING or NORTH-BURTON, a parish town in
- the wapentake of Dickering; 3 miles [rom Hunmenby, 7} from

Bﬂdl{gﬁn, 36 from York.—Pop. 300. The Church, by Bacen

s styled a vicarage, discharged value 10l 6. 8d. It is now s

ouracy, value 1704 18s. Patron, Humpbrey B. Osbal-

.BURTON%USE, . A. in the township of 8tamford Bridge, Kast,
. “-and parish of Low ; § miles from Pocklington, .
BURTON-PIDSEA, a parish town, in the middle-division of Holler-
. e, liberty of §t. Peter; 4 miles from Hedon, 8 from Pattering.
* tom, 11 from Hull, 49 from York.-—Pop. 378. The Cbulg,_
ma vicarage dedicated to St. Peter, in the deanry of
waloe §6/. p. r. $38/. 2. Patrops. the Dean and
- Chapterof York, ‘
URYTHORPE, n parish town in the wapentake of Buckrose; 4
miles from Malton, 9} from Sledmere, 14 from York.—Pop, 216.
- ‘The Charch is e rectory dedicated to AllSaints, in the desnry of
Backross, valwe 316/ 16s. 34. Patron, the King.
BUTTERWICK, in the parish-of Foxholes, wapstake of Dicker-
oS 1 rom SomboronghePap. 33, Tho Church s » perpoes
fom, 12 — : y 0 a
euracy under Foxholes, in ﬁl:‘dc-q.d Dickering, value p. r.
$60L Patron, the Rev. Richard Sykes.

C

CAMERTON, i the parish of Panl, sonth division of Holdegness ;'
(the weat of Bidward Ombies, Esy.) 3 miles from Hedon, ‘7-from

mw.' 11 from Hall.+-Pop.

CRARL , in the Sowaship:of Aldborongh, Carlion, and Koshaes,
and parish of AMborough, middiedivisien of Holdesness ; 7 miles
fram Horaes, 8 fom Hallon, 18 from Mt —Pop. included i
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QARNA?Y a parish lown, in the of Dickedug ! 2}

from Bridlington, 9} from Dri 4] from Youk.~Pop.

180. The Church is » vicarage, dedicated (o 8¢, Joha the. s

4n the d of Dickering, value 370 82 Mid p r 40
Patron, Sir Williain Strickland, Bart.

CARR HOUSE, f. A. in the tolmﬁp ﬁMm,Mpﬁdof
Howden ; § miles from Howden,

Cﬁhﬁ'ﬁml«fhnbmﬂmdﬁm; 4 miles

CASTLEHOLMES, Aew. in the townehip and perish of Lawthorpe;
"l‘mfm l::!ﬁeld of pnorth di of Holder.

CA in the parish of Sigglethorne, vision -
. mese; ﬂl-duﬁo-Benrhy. 12} from Driffield, 15 from Brid-.
lington, 15} from Hell.——Pop. 49.

CATTON, HIGH, in the parish of Low Catten, Wlllul-Benoon
division of Harlhlll 7 miles from Pocklington apd York, 14
frose -‘Malten.~~Pop. 108

CATTION, LOW, a towa, ia Wilton-Beacon division of
Harthill ; T miles -Pocklington, 7} from York, 15 {rom
Malton.—Pop. 177. The Cburch is a rectory, dadicuted to All-
zn&, h:hedenry of Harthill, value 21/, 124, 8}d. . Pairon,

Earl o

CATWICK, a parish town, in the w&:whmoﬂmﬂ poowi,
(ke scat of Godfrey Park, Bsq.) 14 miles from ]
Dﬂﬂeﬂ,”;ll from Huil, 37 from York.«Pop, 190, The Chnsoh
ina rectory, dedicated to 8t. Michael, in the deanry of Helderness,
value 10L 5s. "Pateon, the King. .. .

CAVE, NORTH, & purith sown, in Huoneley-Beacon division of
Harthill, a part in ¢he liberty of 8t. Peter; (Low dlall,. ﬂco-tof
dhe Rev, Joba Petch,) 2 miles from South-Cave, 7 from: Meziet-
‘Weighton, 10 from Bevericy, 114 from Howden, 14 from Haull,
55 from York.—Pop. 783. The Church isa vicaragé, dedicsted
.%o AlSdints, in the deawry of Harthill, value 310l 7s. 6d.
Patron, Rebert Christie SBarton, Esg.

PAVE, SOUTH, a market and porish towa, in Hunsley-Beacon
-dlivision of Harthill, a part in the liberty of St. Peter; 8 miles
a.-Ma.Wemm, 9} from Beverley, 11} from Howden,
12 from Hull, 27} from Yerk, foom Loudon by Lincoin, 186,
by Vork, 206.—Morket, Menday.—Fairs, Trinity-Mooday, for
borses, homned cettie and sheep.«~Principal Inn, the l?cl.—Pop.

- 385. 'The Chmreb, enuedmiﬁol , is & vieavage, dedi.
tated 4o All-Sgints, in the deanry vd-o:sl.’.r. 140L

/ Patron, Beary GeelenM,Enq ullmﬂn-mmulnp

“«imd pavish; is Cove Castle, the seet of that gentlemen,

Cave South, is a snall market and post-towa, Mhamm
Yt of counwy, “There are in South Cave, a balliwick, and two menoes, vis,
“Sseth Cove Eant-Fl, stherwise Hauflect, asd South Cave Waests
mbwm-ﬂﬂi She Harvlsoms, Danbyys, Vavenours,

~ Waskingtons, Mics, . These maners, nthunounlm
ba"nm a GuMh';. ) i
Kove Sty sl but plassant peri, with 2y Jers gevigns
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.and extensive pleasure-grounds, &e. It is & large and noble structyre, orna-
= mentad with-a numbemu'r’mu, battleménts, buttreescs, &d: which give it am
~uir of mugnificenice. It centadns:a: valnuble Colleetion of pictures by the best
, -masters. Among these.is o pprirait of gengral George Washingtou, the Ameri-
, ean Hero, whose great.grandfathery John Washington, lived here, and possessed

lp;:)t‘ :‘fnfie estatg, but emxgl-al-gi_! hence to Auf‘e.‘nca, about the year 1657‘,_

GA VILE: in the purish of Eastrington, wapentalke of Howdenshires

2 miles from Howden, 12 from Selby and South Cave..—Pep. in-

.- cldding!Portington, 48, which being united form a.township, .
CAWKILL, £. h. in the township and parish of Wattotis 6} miles
: from Driffield; 8! from Beverley,. )3 from Pocklington. - =
CAYTHORPE, HIGH apd LOW, 2 f. k, in the townships and
- parishes of Rudston and Boynton; 3} miles from Bridlington.
CHEAPSBIDES, exiraparochial,- in the wapentake of Howtenshire ;

5} miles from South Cave, 6} from Howden.—Pop. §0.. '

C€LEMENTHORPE, f. k. iu the township and parish of Blacktoft ;

-+ 6 miles from Howden. - e '
CLIFFE LONG, in the parish of Hemingboroungh, ntake of

Ouse and Dérwent, 4iberty of Howdenshire ;- 3 miles from Selby,
©'74 from Howden, 14 from York, 16 from Pocklingtoh.—Peép. 501.

OLNFFE, NORTH, in the parish ‘of Sancton, Hunsley-Beacon

. -division - of  Harthill ;- 3' wiles from Market-Weighton, 5 from
South Cave, 10 from Beverley.—Pop. 89.. . -

‘CLIFFE, SOUTH, in the parish of North Cave, Hunsley-Beacon
~division- of Harthilt; 34 miles from Market-Weighton, 5 from
* South Cave, 10 froni Beverley.—Pop. 126. A Chapel of Ease
--to North Cave, . - - :
CONSTABLE, BURTON.—See Burton-Constable,

OONISTON;, in-the-parish of Swine, middle divieion of Holderness 5
\ 6 miles from Hedon and Hull, 9 from Beverley.—Pop. 137.
CORPS-LANDING, hem. in the township and - of Hutton
--Cratiswick ; 6 miles from Driffield, 12 frem Beverley. ~~ -
GOTHAM  or COTTAM, in the parish of Langtoft, wapentake
-" of Dickering; liberty of St. Peter; &:miles from Driffield, 11

from Bridlington.—Pop. 16. - A Chapelry to Langtoft,. . .

QOTTINGHAM, a parish town, in Hunsley-Bacon division of
- Harthill (Cottinghem Castle, the seats of Thomas Thompson, Esq.
+ ahd William Wiuon Wilkinson, Esq.) § miles from Hull, 6 from
» Beverley, 9 from South Cave, 3§ from York.—Pop. 2,479. The
-~ Chureh i§ a vicarage, dedicated to St. Mary,-in the deanry of
- Harthill, vilue p, r. +102{. Patron the Bishop of Chester.

. -Thumas Lord Wake of Lyddel, in 1322, founded a Monastery here, for black
.*Canoys, .but not being able io procure a perpetual title, the-monastery was re-
. woved in 1324 to Newton, since called Alta Prisa, or Haltemprice, a harlet,
" abéut 4’mile further to‘the south. Not -the smallest vestige of it isto be seen}
the site is occupied by & farmer, and is the property of the family of:the

- " Tllerkers of Risby.—Burrox. . e - B
- Cottingham was formerly the seat and lotdship of Robert de Stuteville, or
_Fstoteirlle; who was descended from -Robert Grundebeofe, a Norman Baren.
William de Stuteville, his heir, ‘being High Sheriff of the county in 1203, enter-
-+ +“fained King John at his honse here, and about the same time obtained #’licenge
{rom the same King to fortify i6. -‘The estates came. by marriage-{o.the Lords do
- POW ity 54 wftdPEads by daoghter of John de: Wake, tp Jylmund, Earlgf Kent,
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from whom doscended Joan, wife to Edward, the warlike Prinice of Wales, who
defeated the French in 00 many engsgements; Thomas de Wake, in the 18tk
Edward I1. obtained from that Prince, a grent for a weekly market, and two fairs
anpually, at Cottingham ; and in the 1st of Edward III. he obiained a grant
froui that King to make a castle of his mmnor-house here, and to fortify
it. Henry VIII. when on s visit at Hull, in 164}, bearing that Lord Wake
of Cottingham, was married to an accomplished Lady, fixed a day for honouring
them with his company; but the amourous monarch was disappointed of his visit
for his Lordship, less ambitious of the honour, than alarmed for the too probable
consequence of such a compliment, on the eve of the visit, set fire to his castle,
and burned it to the ground. This castle, then called Bdysard-Castle, is now
only to be discovered by its moat and ramparts of earth, which are appropriated
to & market gnd private gardén. This ancient castle covered two acree of fmnd,-
upon the site of which the manor-house was afterwards built. The old coupt~
l'i?une is yet standing, and in which the conrt is always calied —Caupmn.—
ICKELL,

COTTINGWITH, EAST, in the parish of Aughton, Holme-Bea-
con-division of Harthill; 8} miles from Pocklington, 9 from
ielg, 10 from Howden.—Pop. 308. A perpetual caracy with

aghton,

COTTINGWITH, WEST, in the township of Thorganby with
West Cottingwith and parish of Thorganby, wapentake of Ounze

"and Derwent; 8 miles from Selby, 10 from Howden, 11 frop
Y ork.—Pop. incladed in Thorganby.

COTTNESS, in the parish of Howden, wapemtake of Howdenshire 5
4 miles from Howden, 12 from South Cave. Pop. 29.

COURTGARTH WATH, £. b.in the township and parish of Etton,
Bainton-Beacon-division of Hartbill; 4 miles from Market-W eigh<

" ton, 7 from Beverley, 10 from Pocklington.

COWDEN or COLDEN GREAT, in the township of Cowdens-
Ambo, and parish of Mappleton, north-division of Holderness; 10
miles from [g:;‘on, 14 from Hull, }5 from Beverley, 17} from
Driffield.—Pop. including Little-Cowden, 149, which being united
are styled the township of Cowdens-Ambo,

OOWDEN or COLDEN LITTLE, in the township of Cowdens-
Ambo, and parish of Aldborough, north-division of Holderness;
9 miles from Hedon, 13 from Hull. The Church, a rectory, int
-the patronage of the King, is swallowed up by the sea, and the
village is reduced to a few farm houses. Little-Cowden formerly
contributed to the church of Mappleton, but is now annaxed to
to Aldborongh. There is a list of the Rectors distinet from the
Vicars of Aldborongh down to 1639. ) ,

COWLAM or COLDHAM, a parish town, in the wapentake of
Buckrose; 2} miles from Sledmere, 6} from Driffield, 26 from
York.—Pop. 33. The Church is a rectory in the deanry of Buck<
vose, value 2111, 1ls 3d. p. r. 30/, Patron, the Rev, Timothy
Fish Foord Bowes.

From the numberless foundations that have been dug up bere, theve is every
Peason to suppose that this viliage has formerly been of mnch greater extent 3

this want of inhabitants and inereased incloeures, bave reduced the living to the'
small sam aflixed.

CRANSWICK, in the township snd parish of Huttow Cranswiek,
Bainton. Beacon-divislon of Harthill; 4 miles from Driffield; 9
from Beverley.

1)
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CROAM or CROOM, Aam. in the township and parish of Sledmere,
wapentake of Buckrose; } a mile from Sledmere, 8 from Drif-

- field. -

CROWGARTH f£. A. in the township of Beeford with Dringhoe,
parish of Beeford ; 7 miles from Driffield, 9 from Bridlington.

D

DALTON, NORTH, a parish-town, in Bainton-Beacon-division
of Harthill; 73 miles from Driffield, 9 from Pocklington, 10}
. from Beverley, 22 from York.—Pop. 398. The Church, is a
perpetual curacy, dedicated to All-Saints, in the deanry of Hart.
hill, value p. r 30L Patrons, N. Micklethwsite, Esq. apd Mrs.
Mary Corthine, ) -
DALTON, SOUTH, a perish-town, in Hunsley-Beacon division of
Harthill ; (Dalton-House, the seat of Lord Hotham,) 6 miles from
Beverley and Market-Weighton, 11 from Driffield, 25 from York.
—Pop. 277. 'The Church is a rectory, dedicated to 8t. Mary, in
_ the deanry of Harthill, value 12/, Patron, Lord Hotham, :
Sometime in 1791, a ring belonging to Lady Dorothea Hotham, and by her °
favour allowed to be exhibited at the Society of Antiquaries, was ploughed up
in a’field near Daiton House. The stone eet in it, is a species of the tri-coloured
sardonyx, and the impression on it, a very beautiful Janus’ head. The charec-
ters round the ring are supposed to be old French.—Archaol. vol. 12, p. 409.
DANES-DALE, in the township and perish of Grent-Driﬁ}:eld; 23
miles from Great-Driffield, 10; from Bridlington.
) Here are several tumuli, which have been distinguished from time immemo-
risd hy the appellation of Danes’ Graves ; Hence the name of the place. Here,

in all probability, the Danes issuing from their fortified carrp at Flamborough
Head, fell vietims to the valour of our ancestors, ~

DANTHORPE, in the parish of Humbleton, middle-division of
Holderness ; (the seat of the late Sir Henry Etherington, Bart.)
6 miles from Hedon, 12 from Hull, 19 from Beverley.—Pop. 52.

DEEPDALE, in the parish of Kirby-Underdale, wapentake of Buck-
rose ; 9 miles from Malton, Sledmere, and Pocklington.,

DEIGHTON, in the parish of Escrick, wapentake of Ouse and Der-
;ent ;l A} miles from York, 10 from Selby, 12 from Pocklington.

'op. 168.

At this place the Abbot of St. Mary’s of York had one of his chief countcy
seats.~Draxe.

DEIGHTON-HILL, f. A. in the township of Deighton, and parish
of Escrick ; 4% miles from York, -

DEMMING, f. A. in the township of Fraisthorpe, and parish of
Carnaby ; 4 miles from Bridlington, 8 from Driffield.

DICKERING, a wapentake, north east of York, is bounded on
€ast by the German ocean, on the south, by the division of Bain-
ton-Beacon and Holderness, on the west, by Buckrose, on the
north, by the North-Riding. It contains one market-town, Brid-
lington, 47 townships, 27 of which sre parishes, occupied by
16,461 inbabitants.

DIMLINGTON, kam. in the township and parish of Easington,
south-division of Holderness ; 6 miles from Pattrington.
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DOTTRELL-COTTAGE, f. A in the township and parish of
Weaverthorpe; 4} miles irom Sledmere.

DOTTRELL-INN, p. A. in the townshipand parish of Reighton ; 5
miles from Bridlington. -

DOWTHORPE-HALL, f. A in the fownship of. Kllerby, and

rish of Swine ; 7 miles from Hedon, 7} from Hall.

DREWTON, in the township ol Drewton-with-Everthorpe, and

parish of North-Cave, Hunsley-Beacon division of Harthill; 1
mile from South-Cave, 7 from Market- Weighton, 3 from Beverley.
~Pop. inoltling Kverthorpe, 177, .

DRIFFIELD, GREAT, a marketand parish-town, in Bainton-Beacon

division of Harthill, a part in the liberty of 8t. Peter ; 8 miles from
-Sledmere, 12 from Bridlington, 13 from Beverley, 17 from Pock-
lington, 23 from Scarborough, 29 from York, from London by
Lincoln, 199, by York, 2275 —Market, Thursday.—Principal Inn,
Red Lion.—Pop. 2,303. The Church, peculiar, is a perpetual cu-
racy, dedicated to All Saints, in the deanry of Harthill, value, p. r,
incleding Little-Driffield, +120/, (Bacon styles it a vicarage dis-
charged, valued at 7/, 10s. 21d.) Patron, the Precentor of York,
as Prebendary of Driffield,

QGreat Driffield isa well-built market towu, situate at the foot of the Wolds,
and noted for the rise of the river Hull, proceeding from several springs which
run in various courres in the town and neighbourhood, and forming some of the
finest trout streams in the kidgdom, and which, in the summer months bring
many sporting nobility and gentry to the place. It bas a navigable canal com-
municating with the port of Hull, which has been 9f great advantage to the

Pm’i‘hé church is partly of Saxon end partly of Gothic architecture, and ex- ~

hibits a very antique appearance. The steeple of more modern date, is a Kght
and elegant structure ; and said to be built by one of the Hotham family. The
work must have been attended with immense labour and expense, as the stone
witl!:‘Ie wm it was built, is not to be fonad at Driffield, nor within several miles
of the place.

DRIFFIELD, LITTLE, in the parish of Great-Driffield, Bainton.
Beacon division of Hartbill, in part the liberty of 8t. Peter; 1 mile
from Great-Driffleld, 7 from Sledmere.—No Market.— Fairs,
Easter-Monday, Whit-Monday, August 26, September 19, for
horses, horned cattle, sheep, &c.—Pap, 75. A chapeiry to Great-
Driffield, dedicated to St. Peter. _ .

Little Driffield is situated about & mile west of Great-Driffield : The parishes °

are now united. This place is famoug for being the burial place of Alfred, king

* of Northumberland, who, after having been wounded in a bloody battle at
Ebberston, near Scarborough, was next day conveyed to Little-Driffield, wherg
he died. The following is a copy of the inscription remaining upon a stone in
the church. ¢ In the chancel of this church lie the remains of- Alfred King of
Northumbris, who departed this life in the year 705, . :

The insgription og the south wall of the chancel is as follows—
Within this church lie the
Body of ALFRED KING,
of NORTHUMBERLAND,
who departed this Life January 19th. Anno
Domini 705 in the xxth year
of his Rmien. .
Statufum est omnibus -
" i}
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- Little-Drifiield is said to have been of sume consideration fri the time of the
Anglo-Saxon Kings of Northumbria, and where they had a royal residence,
though but little of its former grandeur now remains, the place being identified
and united with the parish of Great-Driffield. In the meighbourkood many

__ battles were fought, and several tumuli are now to be seen.

DRINGHOW, or DRINKHOE, in the township of Drinkhkos,
Upton, and Brough, and parish of 8kipsea, north-division of Holder-
ness; 5 miles from Hornsen, 9 from Driffield, 10 from Bridling-

. ton, 14 from Beverley.—Pop. including Upton and Brough, 164,
which, being united, form a township.

DRYPOOL, a parish-town, in the middle-division of Holderness;
adjoins on the east-side of Hull.—Pop. 1409. The Charch isa
perpetual curacy, dedicated to St, Peter, in the deanry of Holder-
ness, value, p. 1. 1100/, Patron, Willirm Wilberfurce, Esq.

DUFFIELD, NORTH, in the parish of Skipwith, wapentake of
Ouse and Derwent; § miles from Selby, 7§ from Howden, 11
from York, 13 from Market-Weighton.—No Market.—Fair, May
4, for horned cattle and sheep—Pop. 433.

PUFFIELD, SOUTH, in the parish of Hominghrough, wapentake
of Ouse and Derwent, liberty of Howdenshire; 4} miles from
Selby, 8 from Howden. Pop, 181.

DUGGLFBY, in the parish of Kirby Grindalyth, wapenteke of
of Buckrose ; 4 miles from Sledmere, 8 from Malton.—Pop. 154.

DUNCOATES, s. k. in the township of Kilpin, and parish of How-
den ; 21 miles from Howden. .

PUNNINGTON, in the parish of Beeford, morthdivision of Hol-
derness; 7 miles from Hornsea, 10 from Driffield, 10} from
Bridlington, 13} from Beverley.—Pop. 76.

.- "Here was formerly & chapel to Beeford : the foyndationisall that at present

ins. The chapel yard is atill a separate inclosnre and a burial ground,

DUNNINGTON, a parish-town, in the wapentake of (guse and

" Derwent, liberty of St. Peter; (the seat of J. Mortimer Baines,
Esq.) 4 miles from York, 9 from Pocklington, 16 from Selby.—
Pop. 551. The Church is a rectory, dedicated to St.. John the

- Baptist, in the deanry of Bulmer, value, 1194 Patron, the Earl of
Egremont.

PUNSWELL or BEER-HOUSES, 2 p. A. in the township snd
-perish of Cottingham ; 4} miles from Hull and Beverley. ‘

E .

EASINGTON, a parish-town in the south-division of Holderness ;
5} ‘miles from Pattrington, 153 from Hedon, 24 from Hull, 62
from York.—Pop. 488. The Charch is a perpetual curacy, dedi-
cated to All-Saints, in the deanry of Holderness, vatue }10%. p. r.
+48L. Patron, the Archbishop of York.

EASTBURN. f. k. a township in the parish of Kirkburn, Bainton-
Beacon-divisiom of Harthill ; 3 miles from Great-Driffield, 12 from
Beverley.—Pop. 12, -

EASTON, 2 f. k. a township In the parish of Bridlington, wapen-
take of Dickering ; 1 mile from Bridlington, 7 from Hunmanby.
—Pop. 21.
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‘EASTRINGTON, a perish-town in the wapentake of Howden-
ghire; 31 miles from Howden, 10 from South-Cave, 14 from
Market-Weighton, 23} from York.—Pop. 375. The Charch,
ﬁcnlia.r, is a vicarage, dedicated te §t. Michael, in the desnry of

arthill, value 12/, 9s. 7d. Patron, the King. <
In 1727, Mr. Joseph Hewsley of thi:;lm, en 8 Free Schoul bere,
with Jand, for teaching the poor children of the parish to read and write ; annnal
value in 1787, 204 .

EAST-THORPE, in the parish of Londesbrough, Holme-Beacon-
division of Harthill; 2 miles from Market-Weighton, 6 from
Pocklington, 10 from Beverley. Pop. included in Londesbrongh.

EASTWOOD, f. k. in the township of Storethwaite, and parish of
Thornton, in Holme-Beacon-divison of Harthill; 6 miles from
Pockljngton.

EDDLETHORPE, in the parish of Westow, wapentake of Bucke
rose; 4 miles from Malion, 11 from Sledmere.—Pop. 62.

EIGHT-and-FORTY-HOUSES, in the township and parish of
Blacktoft; 5 miles from Sonth-Cave, 7 from Howden.

ELLA, WEST, in the parish of Ferriby, county of the town of~
Kingston-upon-Hull; (the seat of the Rev. Rickurd Sykes.) 5} miles

- from Hull, 7} from South Cave.—Pop. in 1811, 103. :

Mr. Sykes’ house is_in the parish of Kirk-Ella. The villpge'of West end
Kirk-Ella being situated on an elevated situation, commands fine viewa of the
and port of Hull, the Humber, aud of the low country of Holderness.

ELLA, SOUTH, (the seat of John Brvadley, Esq.) in the township
and parish of Kirk-Ella; 5 miles from Hull.

ELLERBY, in the parish of Swine, middle-division of Holderness ;
6 miles from Hedon, 8 from Hull and Beverley.—Pop. 233.

ELLERKER, in the parish of Braatingham, wapentake of How-
denshire; 1 mile from South-Cave, 8 trom Market-Weighton, 14
from Hall.—Pop. 249. A Chapel of Ease to Brentingbaws. -~

ELLERTON, a parish-town, in Holme-Beacon division of Hatt-
bill ; 8} miles from Poeklington, 9 from Howden, 12 from York.
Pop. 318. The Chutch is B perpetant curacy, dedieated to St.
Mary, in the deanry of Hurthill, valwe, p. r. +127.. Putron,
Richard Bethell, Esq. :

Wiltiamn Fitz-Peter, founded a Priory here for canoe of 1hie déder bf Semp- .
ringbam or St. Gilbert, dedicated to the Virgin Mary and . Lawrence, abvut
the yesr 1321, valued st the diseolation in 1536, at 621. 8¢, 104. DyanjLE. 78/,
0s. 104. Srxep. It was surrendered by John Golding, the Prior, and four Friars.
The site was graated in exchange to John de Aske, 33rd Heary VIIL. Dvuenaie.
Burron. The remains of this Priary sre nov used a9 u parish church, sid- id

. which are some fiat stones ¢overing the remains of the Monks, as appears by the
inscriptions now nearly ohliternted.

ELLOUGHTON, a parish-town, in Hunsley-Beacon division of
Harthill, a part in the liberty of St..Peter; 2} miles from South-
Cave, |1 from Beverley and Hull, 30 from York.—Pop. 383. 'he
Church is a vicarage, dediosted to St. Mary, in the deanry of
Harthill, value, 35l. Os, 5d. p. - 110L.  Patron, the Prebendary of
Watwang. ,

ELMOTLANDS, 2 f. k. in the township and parish of North-Fred.
ingham ; 5 miles from Driffteld, 10 from Beverley. -
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ELSTERNWICK, in the parish of Hambleton, middle-division of
Holderness; 5 miles from Hedon, 11 from Hull, 19 from Beverley.
Pop. 154. ‘Here is a Chapel to Humbleton, consecrated temp.

___Heary VIIL. and bas right of Sepulture.

-ELVINGTON, a parish-tewn, in the wapentake of Quse and Dey-
went; (Villa-House, the seat of Miss Cheape,) 7 miles from York,
73 from Pocklington, 15 from Selby.—Pop. 405. The Church is

.arectory, dedicated to the Holy-Trinity, in the deanry of Bulmer,
value, $50. 17s. 31d. Patron, the King.

EMSWELL, in the parish of Great-Driffield, Bainton-Beacon divi-
sion of Harthill; 2 miles from Driffield, 6 from Sledmere.—P
inclading Kelleythorpe, 93.

ENTHORPE, f. . in the township and parish of Lund ; 4 miles
from Market-Weighton, 8} from Beverley.

EPPLEWORTH, 2 f. 4. in the township and parish of Cottingham ;
4} mwiles from Beverley, 6 from Haull.

ERGHAM, or ARGAM, extraparochial, in the wapentake of Dick-
ering; 4 miles from Hunmanby, 5 from Bridlington.—Pop. 35.
It is a reclory, in the deanry of Dickering, value, }2/. 13s. 4d.

" Patron, Thomas Grinston, Esq. )

Ergham, given to the Abbey of Bardensey, was ove of the chapels of
Huamanby, but continued a rectory, t h it was endowed as a vicarage.
‘The Charch and living are both gone. The temant of the farm pays tithe for 4%

rannum. No institution since 1605.

Eg.CRICK, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Ouse and Derwent ;
(EBscrick-Hall, the seat of Bielby Thompson, Esq.) 6 miles from
York, 8 from Selby, 12 from Pocklington.—Pop. 548. The
Church is a rectory, dedicated to St. Helen, in the deanry of
Bulmer, value, 23.. 3s. 9d. Patron, Bielby Thompson, Esq.

Escrick gave the title of Baron to Sir Thomas Knivet, who had a seat here,
He was gentleman of the privy chamber to King James I. and the person entrust-
ed to search the vaults under the parliament house, where be discevered the
thir?;:ix barrels of gunpowder, with the person who was to have fired the train:

- Sir mas dying without issue, the title of Lord Howard of Escrick was con-
ferred upon Sir Edward Howard, sou of Thamas Howard, Earl of Suffolk, who
bad married the eldest danghter and co-heir of Sir Henry Knivet.—Campen.

ESKE, inthe parish of St. John Beverley, north-division of Holder-
ness; 4 miles from Beverley, 17 from Driffield.—Pop. 18.

ETHERDWICK, kam. in the township of Aldborough, with Carl-
‘ton and Fosham, and parish of Aldborough, middie-division of
Holderness; 7 miles from Hedon, 11 from Hull.

ETTON, a parish-town, in Hunsléy-Beacon, division of Harthill;
(the seat of Sir Thomas Legard, Hart.) 4 miles from Beverley, 7
from Market-Weighton, 10 from Driffleld, 26 from ‘Y ork.—Pop.
380, The Church is' a rectory, dedicated to St. Mary, in the
deancy of Harthill, value, 20L 9s. 4}d. Patron, the Archbishop
of York.

EVERINGHAM, a parish-town, in Holme-Beacon division of Hart-

" hill'; (Everingham-ParR, the seat of WWm. Constable Mazwell, Esq.)

" § miles from Market-Weighton and Pocklington, 16 from York.

Pop. 271. The Chusch is a rectory, dedicated to St, Emeldis, in
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the deanry of Harthill, valve, 18l 6s. 84. Patron, the Rev. Wm.
Alderson. ' - .

This village appears to have given name to a fawily of the same name, for
we find that this manor was held by the Everinghams of the Archbishops of York,
by the service of performing the office of bater in their house, on the dayof-
the {nthronization. The manor now belongs W. C. Maxwell, Eaq.

Tn the mansion house, which is & large and lofty building of brick, of
modern erection, with three fronts, is an excellent portrait of King Charles I.
on horsebatk, by Vandyke, full size, and valued by cennoisseurs ata thousand
guineas. Adjoining is a Roman Catholic cbapel, nupporled.b the family, -

EVERTHORPE, in the township of Drewton with Everthorpe,
and parish of North-Cave, in Hunsley-Beacon division of Harthitl ;
2 miles from South-Cave, 6} ffom Market-Weighton, 9 fro
Beverley.—Pop. included with Drewton. .

F : .

FAIRHOLME, f. A, in the township and parish of Swine; 7 miles
- from Hedon and Beverley, 8 from Hull.

FALCONER'S-HALL, (the seat of the late Col. Thornton, unoceu-
pied,) in the township of Butterwick, and parish of Foxholes; 10
miles from Bridlington, 12 from Scarborongh.

FANGFOSS, a parish-town, in Wilton-Beacon division of Harthill
(ths seat of Chomney Overend, Esq.) 4 miles from Pocklington, 11
from York and Market-Weighton.—Pop. 154. The Charch is a
perpetual curacy, & peculiar of the Dean and Chapter of York,
in the deanry of Harthill, value, p. r. 44L. 154. 6d. Patron, the’
Dean of York.

FAXFLEET, in the parich of South-Cave, Hunsley-Beacon division

of Harthill, and liberty of St. Peter; 5 miles from South.Cave,
9 from Howden.—Pop. 163. '

FERRIBY, NORTH, a parish-town, in the county of the town
of Kingston-upon-Hull; (the seat of Henry Broadley, Esq.) 43
miles from South-Cave, 8 from Hull, 31 from York.—Pop. in 1811,
315. The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to All-Saints, in the
deenry of Harthill, value, 18/, 13s. 4d. Patron, Wm. Hall, Ksq.

This town was formerly Tamous for a stately and magnificent priory, of the
order of knights templars, founded by Lord Enstace Broomfieet de Vesci, in the
veign of King John, anno 1200, as appears from an ancient manuscript formerly
in the possession of the late Luke Lillingston, Esq. of North Ferriby, the owner
of the priory. It was dissolved along with the lesser monasteries, in 1536, and
valued at 85/ 11s. 7¢d. at the full rent, and 60/ 1s. 2d, clear of all payments.
The sile of this priory is said to have been in the possession of 100 different per-
soms, in the space of no more than 130 years after its dissolution ; which if true,
is a circumstance so extraordinary, as perhapsscarcely tobe parallelled. There .
is nBot the least vestige of this once venerable edifice remaining.—TicxeLL’s Huut
— DURION. :

Here is a school founded in 1778, Wy the late Luke Lillingston, and endowed
with 10/, per annum, for edueating 12 poor children.— T1cKELL.

FILEY.—See North-Riding, p. 37.

FIMBER, in the parish of Wetwang, wapentake of Buckrose,
liberty of St. Peter; 4 miles from Sledmere, 7 from Driffield.—
Pop. 104." Here is a Chapel of Ease to Wetwang.

FIRBY, in the parish of Westow, wapentake of Buckrose; (the sead
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of the Rev. Thomas Harrison,) 6 miles from Malton, 14 from York
and Sledmere.—Pop. 44.

FISHOLME, f. A. in the township of Brigham, and parish of Fosfon ;
51 miles from Driffield.

FITLING, in the parish of Humbleton, middle-division of Holder-
ness; 8 miles from Hedon, 12 from Hull, 20 from Beverley.—
Pop. 119. ‘

- p'-n this village was horn the late Rear Admiral Storr; be was ﬁ?n promoted
to the command of a sloop of war in 1746, and advanced fo be captain of the
.Gloueester, in 1748. He was one of the captains ordered out to the Mediteras
nean, in l'i , to take command of those ships on that station, whose captains
bad been ordered home to England to give evidence on the trinl of Admiral Byng.
The ship allotted him was the Revenge, in which ship he continued for a con-
siderable length of time. He distingnished himeelf extremely in 1758, in the
attack of the Orphee, & large French ship of war, mounting 64 guns; in this
encounter he was wonnded in the leg by a splinter, which tore away his calf.
He again signalised himself in 1759, in the attack and defeat of Couflans.
In 1779, he was advanced to he Rear Admiral of the White, and afterwards to
the same rank in the Red aquadron in 1780. Hedied at Bath in the year 1783.
— Charnock’s Naval Biog. vol. vi.

FIVELIN-NOOK, s. A. in the township of Bewholme, and parish
of Nunkeeling ; 7 miles from Hornses.

FLAMBOROUGHN, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Dickering ;
31 miles from Bridlington, 10 from Hunmanby.—Pop. 917. The
Chureh is a perpetual curacy, dedicated to St. Oswald, in the dean-
ry of Dickering, value, p. r. +85L Patron, Walter 8trickland,

This aneienit village, formerly a place of some note, but now inhabited chiefly
by fishermen, is remarkable for the promontary called Flamborough Head, which
bends into the sea, and forme the bay of Bridlington. Saxon authors called it
Flamburg, who say that Ida, the Saxon, landed here. The cliff is in some places
three hundred feet high; and the whole of iis perpendicular front, in mode-
rate weather, is covered with myriadsof hawkes, gulls, guillimotes, kittywakes,

ne, cormorants, and other sea birds, which afford to the spectator, as Dr.

dsmithsays ' an agreeable entertainment ; and as they sit upon the ledges of
the rocks, one above another, with their white bressts forward, the whole group"
has not unaptly been compared to the view of an apothecary’s shop! In breed-
ing too, they have frequent contests : one bird, who bas no nest of her own,
attempts to d:fmen another, and puts herself in the place. Thie often hap-
ns among atl the gull kind ; and I bave seen the poor bird, thus displaced by
K:r more powerful invetder, sit near the nest in pensive discontent, while the
other seemed quite comfortable in her new habitation! Yet this place of pre~
eminence is Rot easily obtained; for the instant the invader goes to snatoh a
momentary snstenance, the other enters upon her own, and nlways ventures
another battle, before ehe relinquishes the justness of her claim!”’ When a gun
- s fired, all within reach of its {errifying sound, rush from their stations, rise on
the wing, and darken the air to a great extent. At the west end of the town is
» ruin called Danish tower ; and from the mounds of egrth around it, it would
seem as if there had heen some buildings comtiguous to it. The tower, exoept
one apartment, is nearly demolished. On the extreme point of the tary
s the mew light honse. The light is a pevolving one, with three fases of seven
reflectors each, and exbibits a face every two minutes. .
FLINTON, in the parish of Humbleton, middle-division of Holder<
%ess; 6 miles from Hedon, 10 from Hull, 16 from Beverley.—
125. .
FLIXTON, in the parish of Folkton, wapentake of Diekering

4 miles from Hunmanby, 7} from Scarborough,—Pop. 267.
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Ta (he reign of Athelstan, Achorne, Lord of Flixton, built an hospital
for 1 alderman and 14 brothers and sisters, at Flixton, for the preservation
of people travelling that way, that they might not be devoured by wolves and
other wild beasts, then abonnding there, &c.— Duapass. A certain portion of
land in thie vicinity, is still distinguished by the name of Wolfland, snd on the
8pot where the hospital stood, is now & farm house called Spital.

FLOTMANBY, EAST, in the township and parish of Folkior;
2} miles from Hunmanby, 7 from Scarborough..

FLOTMANBY, WEST, in the township and parish of Folkton 3
33 miles from Hunmanby, 6} from Scarborough.

FOGGATHORPE, in the parish of Bubwith, Holme-Beacon divi-
sion of Harthill; 6 miles from Howden, 8 from Market- W eighton,
10 from Selby.—Pop. 137,

FOLKTON, a parigh-town, in the wapentake of Dickering ; 3 miles
from Hunmanby, 8} from Scarborough, 12} from Bridlington,
35 from York.—Pop. 144. The Church is a rectory, dedicated

.to St. John the Evangelist, in the desnry of Dickering, value,
.15l Patron, H. B. Osbaldeston, Esq. 1t contains both a rectory
and vi ; the rector being propriator of the vicarage.

FORDUN, Aam. in the parish of Hunmanby ; 4 miles from Hunman-
by. 9 from Bridlington, 12 from Scarborough.—Pop. 48. Herd
isa Chapel of Ease to Hunmanby.

In this chapel service is only performed twice a year, viz. on Good Friday,
and the feast of St. Stephen.

FOSHAM, or l“OSflOLME, in the township of Aldborough, Carl-
ton, and Fosham, and parish of Aldborough, middle-division of

Holderness; 6 miles from Hedon, 10 from Hull, 14 from Bever.’

ley.—Pop. included in Aldborough. )

FOSTON, a parish-town, in the-wapentake of Dickering} 6 miles
from Driffield, 11 from Bridlingion, 35 from York.—Pop. 300.
The Church is a vicarage. dedicated to St. Andrew, iu the deanry
of Dickering, value, 315/ 8s. 6id. p. r. 36l Patron, W,
Wright, Esq.

FOXHOLES, a parish-town, in the wapentake of DicKering ; (the
"seat of the Rev, Richard Sykes,) 6 miles from Hunmanby, 10 from
‘Driffield, 113 from Scarborough, 32 from York.—Pop. 169. The
Charch is a rectory, in the deanry of Dickering, value, 22/. Ps
tron, the Rev. Richard Sykes. -

FRAISTHORPE, in the parish of Carnaby, wapentake of Dickering 3
4} miles from Bridlington, 9} from Driffield, 11} from Hornses.
Pop. 91. The Church is a perpetnal curacy, value, p. r. 270
"Patron, Walter Strickland, Esq. .

FRIDAYTHORPE, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Backrose,
a part in the liberty of St. Peter; 6} miles from Sledmere, 9 from
Pocklington, 10 from Driffield, 18} from York.—Pop. ‘275,
The - Charch, peculiar, is a vicarage, in the deanry of Buckrose,
valye, 34/, 13s. 4d. p.r. 100, Patron, the Prebendary of Wet.
wang. -

F RODiNG HAM, NORTH, a market and parish-town, in the north-
division of Holderness; 6 miles from Driffield, 12 from Bridling-

X

-
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‘ton, 13 from Beverley, 35 ftom York.—Merket; o
Kairs, July 10, and Qctober 2, for tays, pedlary-w Dop.
675, 'The Ghurch is. & vioarage, dediealed: to St. m, in. the
dotnry of HoMorness, value, 164 Putrom, the Rev. Prawois
Drake, D, D.

FRODINGHAM, SOUTH, a township, in the parish of Owthome,
south-division of” Welderness ; 4 miles fram Pattrington, 10 from
Hedon -—Po P 71,

FULFORD-GATE, a parish-town, in the townshipof Fulfords-Awbe,

ntake of Ouse and Derwent; (e seat of Thomas Wilson, Esq

14 mile from York, 124 from Selby and Pocklington.—Pop. F
ford-Gate, 7 lO—In Barracks, 102—Water-Fulford, 35—Total,
847.—Thetwo Fulfords being nm’ted form the township of * Fu]-
fords-Ambo.” 'The Church isa perpetual curacy,in the deanry of
Bulmer, value,p. r. +115/. Patron, Thomas Key,

Here ih 1066, Harold Husfeger, king of Norway, defcaled tlm Nortbum-
hrians, and took York, communded by Merchar, the goternorof Yerk, and Edwia,

Earl of Chester—D2axx. The Qualeers retreat and ¥onk basragks.avein. tis

FULLSUTTON, see Sutton, Full.

G

GALLY-GAP, f- k. in the township of Howsham, and parich of
rayingham ; 6 miles from Malton.—Pop. 34.

GAN STEAD in the parizh of Swine, middle-division of Holder
ness; 43 miles from edon, 5 from Hull, 12 from Beverley.—
Pop. 61,

GANTON, or GALMPTON, a parish-town, in the wapeniake of
Dickering ; (Ganton-Hall, the seat of Sir Thomas Legard, Bart.)
1 mile from Hunmanby, 10 from Scarborough, 16 from Bridling-
ton, 81 from York. Pop. including Potter-Brompton, 278, which
being united, form a tewnship. The Church is a tualmmcy
in the deanry of Dickering, dedicated to St. Michael ; value, p. T. -
1501 (Bacon etylesita dlbcharged vicarage, valued af &/, 2e. 64.
Patron, Sir Thomas Legard, B

The family of Legards is of Normn extraction, who became. podsessed of

the !qrdslnp o{ Anlnby, near Hull, in 1100, by the marriage of the heiress of

dtestate. The first of the hmily that setiled here, was Jobha, conmmmly

W by the name of John de Ganten, 2 Iongrun of Ralph Ingard pt
Y, Eaq. His.great grandson, John Legard, Esq. wascreated s Baropelin

1660, and died at Ganten in 1678: his family have flourished here eyer since.

In 1% c'l}umh there an several monumentn ands vault belenging to-this fanstly.

GANTON DAL INN in the townsbip and parish of Gandow:; 14
miles from Scarborongh, 12 from DrifHeld, 14 frem Bridlington-
A. posting-lwuse on the roed from Driffield io Searboropgh,

GANWICK, or GANNOCK, f. h..in the tewnship. lndmnll..‘
Hntton-Cranswnck 34 miles from Driffield.

GARRABY, 3&.mthepu|ﬁof Kirby-Undardale; and wapsnakecof-
B_Icltmse, (the seat of. Sir Francis Lindly Weod, Barty) &m
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- from Rocklington, 10 feom Dridfeld, 114§ from Slaimere, 18 from

York.—Pop. included in Kiney- Underdale.

‘GARRABY-NEW-]NN, in the township and payish of Bisbop-
Wilton ; 12 miles frome York and Sledmere.

GARTON-UPON-THE-WQLDS, a perishdowa, in thb wapentake
df Dickeiing, s :part in the libbrty of 'St. Puter ;. miles from
Briffiell, § frem'Stedteere, 15 from Bridlingdon, }é{ from Multon,
29 from York.-—Pep 357. The Churchis a vicarage, ‘dedicated
toSt. Michael, in the deanry of Dickering, value, £5( 6s. 3t p. 1.
+110d, Pairon, the King.

GARTON, a parish-town, in the middle-division of Holderness;
9 miles from Hedan, 9} from Homsea, 13 from Hull, 20 fro
Beverley, 49 from Yark,—Pop. 160. The Church is-a vicsmge,
dedicated to St. Michael, in the deanry of Holderness, velue, %6/,
le, 84d. p. 1. t144L 75. B3d. Pution, the King.

The family of the Lords Dunhar had farmerly & sat beve, calleil -Gairton
G‘Ehe now eonverted into a farm Louse. .
‘GEMBLING, in the parish of Foston, wapeatake of Dickering;

6 miles from Driffield, }1 from Bridlington.—Pep. 82

GILBERDIKE, in the parish of Eastrington, wapentake of How-

~ denshire ; 5} miles from Howden, 6} from South-Cave.—Pap. €40.

GILRIDDING, f. 4. in the township of Nabarn, and parish of S{.
Dennis, York, wapentake of Quse and Derwent; 4 wiles from
York, 9} from Pocklington.

GIVENDALE, GREAT, a parish-town, in Wilton-Beacon ¢ivi-
sion of Harthill, liberty of St. Peter; 3 miles from Pockl;iﬁ-
ton, 10 from Market-Weighton, 14 from Yerk.—Pap. 60. Tho
Church, peculiar, is a viearage, in the deanry of Harthill, walue,
+4l, 18s. 4d, DPatron, the Dean of York. - )

GIVENDALE, LITTLE, 2 f. A in the township and parish of
Groat-Givesdnle ; £} wiles from Pocklington.

'GOOPMANHAM, a parish-town, in Holme-Beacon ditigon of
‘Harthill, 8 part in the liberty of St. Peter; 14 mile from Market-
Weighton, 6 from Pocklington, 20 from York.—Pop. 240. The
Chureh is a rectory, dedicated to AN-Saints, in the deanry of
Havthill, value, 12/ 11¢. 8& Patron, the Rev. John Clark,

Goodmanham, a Saxon village, anciently writtem Godmondingahsim, wes

ouce the us place of idol worship, which was W by Coifi, the high
priest of the Pagan religion at Yerk, when Edwin, King of Northumberland was
eonverted to christianity. The present church, built by RPanlinus, whigh ex-
hikits such exquisite specimens of the architecture prevalént in the Anglo-Sgxen
afes, “ in all probability,” says Drake. “ stands on the very site of the aneient
Pagan temple ; the ground well allow for it, being a fine slopfng dry hill.”’
Particular account of this ancient place is o be met with in Chimdon,
el 7he Antipnavian Itinerany, vol. L. 10 the latier, no logs than five views, ivferiar
and exterior are given. .

. Dr. Stukeley informs its, * that Paulinus built Goodmapham church, (of
Which he sigt, he took & driwing) where the original font is, in Which he
bagitived the heathen high priest, Coifl.——drobwolayia. A pathidular
account of this font is givem in the Antigwarien féinepery, but tda fap our
fhseiion ; we shall therefore content ourselves with observing that this aceount
is at variance with Dr Smkeig;s, and we think upon reasonahle groupds.

GOWTHORPE, £. ). in the township of Goultherpe, and parish-of
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Bishap-Wilton, Wilton-Beacon division of Harthill, liberty of St,
Peter ; 4 miles from Pocklington. ‘

GOWTHORPE, s. A in the township and perish of Blacktoft; 8
miles from Howden, 9 from South-Cave. .

GOXHILL, a parish-town, in the north-division of Holderness; 3
miles from Hornsea, 12 from Beverley, 14 from Driffield, 15 from
Hull, 41 from York.—Pop. 70.. The Church is a rectory, dedi-
cated to 8t. Giles, in the deanry of Holderness, value, 8/, Pa-
tron, the Rev. C. Constable,

GRANGE-HOUSE, f. k. in the township and parish of Humbleton ;
4 miles from Hedon, 9 from Hull.

GRANSMOOR, or GRANSMERE, in the parish of Burton-Agnes,
wapentake of Dickering; 7 miles from Driffield, 8 from Bridling-

GREEN-OAK, kaem. in the township of Bellasize, and parish of

- KEastrington; 4 miles from Howden. )

GREENWICK, s. A.in the township and parish of Bishop-Wilton ;
5 miles from Pocklington, 14 from York and Malton. ’

GRIBTHORPE, in the parish of Bubwith, Holme-Beacon division
of Harthill; § miles from Howden. 9 from Market-Weighton,—
Pop. inclading Willitoft. 146, which being united, form a township.

GRIMSTON, (extraparochial) wapentake of Ouse and Derwent, a

rt in the liberty of St. Peter: 2} miles from York, 10 from
ocklington, 15 from Selby, 15} from Market-Weighton.—
Pop. 72. .

GR!I&STON, in the parish of Garlon and Roose, middle-division of
Holderness ; (Grimston-Garth, the seat of Charles Grimston, Esq.)
10 miles from Hedon, ! 1 from Hull, 21 from Beverley.

This mansion is & superb structure, of a castellated form, and althongh of

modern erection, displaysin its architecture much of the ancient style of baronial
magnificence ; being one of the most elevated situations in Holderness, it is both
a very conspicuous object, and éommands a variety of extensive and magnificent
prospects.—Biraranp. )
" 'The family of Grimstons is one of the few in the county, that reside on the
estate from which theyare denominated. This family is descended from Sylvester
de Grimston, of Grimston, who attended William, Duke of Normandy, in his
expedition to England as his standard bearer, and in that station, valiantly
fonght at the battle of Hastings; and in the year following, on the co:aqueror
seitling his household, he was appointed his chamberlain, and did homage for
Grimston, Hoxton, Tonsted, and other lands, which be held of the Lord Roos,
in Holderness, as of his honour of Roos ; he was sncceeded at Grimston by his
son Daniel. The present Grimstons are descendants.—-Collins’ Peerage.

GRIMSTON-HANGING, ham. in the township and parish of
Kirby-Underdale, wapentake of Buckrose; 8 miles from Pock-
lington, 9 from Sledmere.

GRIMSTON, NORTH, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Buck-
robe, a part in the liberty of St. Peter; 4 miles from Malton, 8 from
8ledmere, 15} from Driffield, 20 from York.—Pop. 139. The
Church, peculiar, is a vicarage, dedicated to 8t. Nicholas, in the
deanry of Buckrose, value, 36/. 6. 8d. Patron, the Prebendary of

GRIMTHORPE, in the perish of-Great-Givendale, Wilton-Beacon
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division of Harthill, and liberty of St. Peter; 3 miles from Pock-
lington, 9 from Market-Weighton, 15 from York.— Pop. 25.
GRINDALL, or GRINDALE, in the parish of Bridlington, we-
ntake of Dickering, and liberty of St, Peter: 4 miles from
ridlington, 4} from Hunmanby.—Pop. 107. The Church is a
perpetual caracy, value, p.r. 95/, Patron, John Greame, Esq.

GROVE-HILL, 2f. A and a will, in the township and parith of St.
Nicholas, Beverley ; 1 mile from Beverley, 9 from Huil,

Grovehill was originally a landing place for goods from-the river Hull,
and 30 used, it is said, durinug the time of the Romans. It has Iately been a ship-
yard, and has become of no use as a landing place since] the Beck was cut from
the river to Beverley.,—Broaoviy,

GUNBY, in the towuship of Breighton with Gunby, and parish of
Bubwith, Holme-Beacon division of Harthill; 7 miles from Selby
and Howden.—Pop. included in Breighton.

This place, forinerly Guneby, was given by William the conqueror to his
standard bearer, Gilbert Ty:on ; it afterwards gave simame to the family, from

it called De Guneby, which resided bere for many generations, in the 13th and
14th centurieés, The old mansion house Wwas taken down sbout 50 years ago.

H

. HAGTHORPE, f. k. in the township of Brackenholme-with-Wend-

" hall, and purish of Hemingbrough, and liberty of Howdenshire ;
5 miles from Selby, 6} from Howden,

HALLITREE-HOLME, f. A in the township of Hempholme, and

- parish of Leven; 9 miles from Driffield. , '

HALSHAM, a parish-town, in the south-division of Holderness; 3}
miles from Patrington, 7 from Hedon, 15 from Hull, 53 from
York.—Pop. 315. The Church is a rectory, dedicated to All-
Saints, in the deanry of Holderness, value, 13L 6¢, 8d. p. r. 30/,
Patron, Sir Thomas Constable, Bart.

Sir John Constable, knight, in 1579, left by will, a rent charge fr a frce

school, &¢. to 8 poor scholars, and for an hospital for 8 poor men and 2 poor

. women ; annual produce, 80/. subject to deductions for repairs. A rent charge of
10/. per annum was also left by Catharine Constable, in 1590, towards main-
taining one poor scholar for seven years, who shall have been brought up in the
free school, at the {ime he shall he sent to Trinity College, Oxford. It has
never been paid, nor was any acholar cver sent previous to 1786. ) .

Here was commenced in 1791, and finished in 1800, by the late William

. Constable, Esq. a superb mausoleum, as a burying place for that family. It
stands on a gently rising gronnd, surrunded with a plantation of beautiful trees
and shrube, and displays in the unadorned, but elegant style of its architecture,
asimple kind of magnificence, which at ence appears striking to the eye, and
appropriate to the u<e for which the stracture is designed.— Biaraxp.

HAETEMPRICE, in the township and parish of Cottingham,; 4}

miles from Hull and Beverley.

Thonms, Lord Wake of Liddel, founded a_monastery here about the year

1324, (originally begun at Cottingham, in 1322) for eanons of the order of Bt.
Austin, orblack canons, and dedicated it in honour of the nativity of our blessed
Saviour, the annunciation of the Virgin Mary, and the exaltation of the Holy
‘Cross, though generally distinguished by the latter. John de Meaux of Ber-
wick, anno 1361, gave to the %’rior and convent of this house, hizx manor ‘of
Willardhy, dec. (conditionally) for six canons to celebrate for the sonls of him

* und his sacestors, mating, mass, vespers, and complin, &c. About the time of
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the dissolution, herein were a Prior and 11 or 12 black ‘mnngs, Who-where
endowed with I78/. 0s. 104d. Seeep. 1004 0s. 24d. Dvapawr. The aite was
granted 32nd Hemry VIII. to Thomas Culpepper,—Busron.—Duenarz.

HARTLETHORPE, in fhe parish of Bubwith, Holme-Beacon ‘di-
vision of Harthill; 7 miles from Howden, 9 from Setdy and
Market-Weighton.—Pep. 53.

HARTHILL, a wapentske, which is divided into four divisions, viz.
Bainton, Holme, Hunsley, and Wilton-Beacon, each of which may
be cousidered a separate wapentake: Harthill is bounded on the
east by HoMerness, on the south by theriver Humber and How-
denshire, on the west by Ouse and ent, and on the notth by

-Buckrose and Dickering. It comprehends a large portion of what
is called the Wolds ; and each division contains the following
mumber of townships, parishes, &o.— Beinion-Beacon, 26 town-
ships, 14 of which are parishes, 1378 inbabited-houses, and 7730 in-
babitants.— Holme-Beacon, 25 townships, 12 of which are parishes,
8570 inbabitants.— Hunsley-Beacon, 34 townships, 19 of which
are parishes, 19,527 inhabitants.— Filton- Beacon, 26 tewnships,
14 of which are parishes, 1202 inhabited-houses, and 6372 inhabi-
tants.

HARPHAM, in the parish of Bnrton-Afgnes, and wapentake of
Dickering ; 6 miles from Driffield, 7} from Bridlington.—Pop.
254. A Chapel of Ease to Burton-Agnes,

In this chapel, the honourable family of the St. Quintins have a vaoft, and
inAare insoriptions commemarative of the chiefs of this house, frem $ir
Herbert St. Quintin, who came from Franee into this ceuntry, at the timme of
the conquest, te 8ir William St. Quintin, Bart. who in his life time erected un
elegant mmonament in this church, where his bones, with thase of his consort
rep He also repaired and embellivhed the chireb.—Brataws.

At this eronll vitlage tradition says, the celebrated St. Jahu of Buwveriey,
Archbishop of York, was born ; but where educated is uncartain, althengh be
is said to have been a student at Oxford. He embraced the tic life, and
was brought up under St. Hilda, the famous Abbers of Whitby, then ubder’
Theodore, the fifth Arcb!ﬁ!h:x of Canterbary, who preferre! him to the:

. bishoprick of Hexham, from whence in 687, he was translated to York. e

fo a cotlege nt Beverley, {where some say he first dreor breath) and was
& grent encourager of learned men.  Having fled the See with honour 34 s
he retired to Wis own eollege st Beverley, where he died, May 7, 721, and was
buried in the porch belo:an to that eoll‘:se,bl)un. A well lof excellent
water, nepr the east end of the village, calied $t. John’s well, cominemorates
the name of that pions prelate. :

HARSWELL, a parish-town, in Holme-Beacon division of Hart
hill; 5 miles from Market-Weighton, 6 from Pooklingten, 17
from York.—Pop. 78. The Church is a rectory, dedicated te 5t.
Peter, in the eanry of Harthill, vatue, 342 p. r. 1034, Patron,
Sir Thomas Slingsby, Bart. '

“HASHOLME, . 4, in the township and parish of Holme-on-Spald-
ing-Moor; 7 miles from Howden, 8 from Market-Weighton.

BATFIELD, GREAT, in the parishes of Mappleton and Siggles-
thorne, north-division of Holdernesss 34 miles from Horsews, 11
from Beverley, 12 from Hulil, 13 from Drifield.—Pop. 127,

The cburch or chapel which was formerly here, is now wholly dilapidated,
giu‘t gtlh;’l,mrinl ground .{i:‘eﬁll used for the inhahitants of both Mappletoy gud

esthorne.

A
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BATHELD, LITTLE, in the parish.of Sigglesthorne, narth-divi-
sion of Holderness 3 miles irom Hornss, 10 fivm Beverley,
134 from Hall, 16 from Driffield.—Pop. 25.

HAY-HOLME, f. A in the township .of Hcmphalno.. and parish of
Lieven ; 7 miles from Driffield, 9 frum Beverle:

HAYSTHORPE, in the parish of Burton-A; and wapentake of
Dickering ;. 3} miles from Bridlington, 8{ frore Driffield.—Pop.
104

HAYTON, a parish-town, in Helwe Beacon Qivision of Harthill ;

2} wiles from Poeklington, 4 from Market-Weighton, 13 from
York.—Pap. 177. The Church, pactliar, is a vicarage, dedicated
to St. Martin, in the deanry ol Harthill, valoe, $70. 115 03d.
Puiron, the:Dean of Yark..

THEDON,; a:perish and markettown; in the midde.division of Fol-
darness, and literties of Hedon and St. Peter ; '8 wiles from Hall,
1Q from. Patrington, 15. from Hosmses, 46 from Yok, 182 from
Liondon,—Market, Seturday.~— Faire, Januery 15, Awgust’2, Septs
2; ‘for-Norses, &c.; Nov. 7, Dee. 6, for Lornedicattte, drapery,
&4:. and. every ofbier Monday for_harned-cattle aud sheep.~
Prinsipal Trnms, Sun, end:Bunning Homsen—Pop. §ee Addend.
“Phie Church is4a perpeteal owracy; Iamdto& Augustin; ier the

of, Holderness, value, p. r. t1] 7l. Patron, 8&b-Dwman of
York. It ls,h:.h‘l with tha vicarage. of’ Preston* -

m iis 8! t Camden makes PeMANRZ
“.the nmmno:m:‘:nmnc-weu Hedan, tht.bu-tm
werkeblone e, Lhol.always magnifies) wis a very considezabie: ploce:far.mer-
chants and olnppmg Poc my-paxt lMeMcmﬁM (thezo bolng
the. remnine. —npdﬂoho, hesides Ll oue shoy still have,) aptwithsmnding it
is, msodecayed, fnrdy hy itswearnees to Hull, sad partly-because the barbour
TodRocked up 4t has not the least shew of the grandeur imteniua have

. had; wlnch my mchus, that the condition of ¢owns and e ioever”ot-
“ﬂ‘hﬁ «of: ean.” ﬁﬁnm to Raldwin, Edelof Abbemaxie

and o his wife Hawis, free lm?z .so.thatihe.
hold in free burgage by the same customs York, &c;—Nuno}.

h& Apstins, ‘the present church, arethe-pictures: ofa Hx
sbbsiaseription, (much the same asthat whith we meet wi

“ AMa'fres mnke I thee,

As hesst yaay think or aigh see.”” )
Apreasnh the sowe-bagias to Sourish agnis, and has couse Hopu.of stininia,
degrees its former greatness. The eld haven uear-the town, behuw-‘b’
thereis.a neav out made on the south-sast, which helps to scone thet port of
baven mow Yeft, but.without any hapes ¢f rendering it so usefnl as forpaprly.
Ievidlie your 3686, a great partof the town was consumed by fire ; xnd not many

. )‘;ﬁ.;lﬂenl houses in the ssarket<pince, suffeved the -sams:fifte ; bet
Dawthe-greatest part is. rebuilt, and the m thereby ‘randared . mash wwte
Dysutifule The iohabitants have a tradition, that the Danes destroyed this.town;;

-mmzre is aclose belonging toit, called Danes field to this day.
The  present-towe- of Hedon-condism yﬁulpny of-one long-ltret andls
nine.aldermen, svsisted ‘vnd ThilifFs,

W dﬂ.mmﬁdﬁlw
uu—nu;wnau-.m:’ i vt ine §t i ceturand:
m T w N Mm: *om
deggont, by sevitude ofseven yopeata s Gtemen-venidingorily ik thebereughy
:-'byu hul-y ayithe ddsstion of the um@wmw
200; returningwiites, the eyos.
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Hedon is sitnated within about a mile and a half of the Humber, wad the
"haven cut from that river extends to within o 4 of a mile of the fown ; but is
navigable only for small craft.

HELPERTHORPE, a parish-town, in the wapeniake of Buckrose ;
4 miles from Siedmere, 9 from Driffield, 24 from Y ork.— Pop. 157, -
The Chburcb, peculiar, i8 a vicarage, dedicated to St. Peter, in the
deanry of Buckrose, value, $4L 19s. 7d. p. r. 120/, Palren, the
Dean and Chapter of York. : :

HEMMINGBROUGH, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Ouse

-and Derwent; 4 miles from Selby, 5 from Howden, 15 from York,
16 from Pocklington.—Pop. 500. The Church, pecaliar, is a -
vicarage, dedicated to St. Mary, in the deanry of Bulmer, value,

-p. 1. 196L.  Patron, the King. .

Hemingbrough is remarkable for its church, which has & beautiful spire,
rising 42 yards above the battlements, and forming a conspicuous object in this
low and level country ; and for there having been, according to Dr. Stukeley,

a Roman fort at this place, which is indeed very probable, if not demonstrable,

from part of an old wall on each side of the great west door of the church, ofa
style and grit different from all the rest.c The sitaation toe, of this wall
contributes to corroborate this assertion; for we find that the Romans were
careful to have their camps and foris placed near a river, upon a nock of land,

to command the passage, or conveyance by water. Such is the situation d}
this place.—Burron. King Edward 1. in anno 1295, granted to the Prior of
8t. Cuthbert, at Durham, a charter for a free market apd fair st Heming-
borough.—Isip. . . . p

Henry VI. in 1426, granted his royal licence to the Prior and Convent of. -

Durham, to erect, or cause this church to be erected into a eollege, consisting of
vne provost or warden, 3 prebendaries, 8 vicarsand 6 clerks, with other minis-
ters, to celebrate divine service for the good estate of himself.—Iarp.

After the dissolution, William Whitehead, the Inst provost, had's pension of

131. 14s. 84. per ann. which he enjoyed in 156563.—Is1p. -

HEMPHOLME, in the parish of Leven, north-division of Holder-
ness; 8} miles from Driffleld, 95 from Beverley, 15 from Bridling-
ton, 17 from Hull.— Pop. 93. . :

HFESLERTON, EAST, in the parish of West-Heslerton, and wa-
‘pentake of Buckrose; 8 miles from Sledmere, 9 from Malton.—
Pop. 196. A Chapel of Ease to West-Heslerton. .

HESLERTON, WEST, a parish-lown, in the wapentake of Bucke
rose; (the seat of John Robinson, Foulis, Esg.) -8 miles from Mal-
ton, 9 from Sledmere, 26 from York.—Pop, 273, The Cburch is
a rectory, dedicated to St. Andrew. in the deanry of Buckrose,
value, 214, 6s. 84. Patron, the King.

HESLINGTON, in the parish of St. Lawrence, York, wapentake
of Ouse-and Derwent, a part in the liberty of St. Peter; (the
seat of Henry ¥Yarburgh; Esq.) 2 miles from York, 11} from Pock-
tington.—Pop. 513. The Chapel, peculiar, is a perpetual curacy,
‘dedicated to St. Peter and $t. Paul, in the deanry of Bulmer,
value, p.r. 481. 25, Patron, the Prebendary of Awpleworth.

This encient seat is situated about two miles south-west from the city of*
Yeork, and above ten miles from the town of Pocklington. As a building, the
Manesion is a remarkably fine specimen of the age of Elizabeth, having remained
with little alteration ; the ornamented Porch, ascended by steps, leads to the
Hall, in length 41 feets width, 21 feet; height, 28 feet ; which has the appear-
sace of mnch antiquity, and greatly resembles the hall of a college. At the
lower end is a screen of onk, handsomely carved. On each side areplaced Lwo




BAST-RIDING. 169

farge oak tables. The rvof is particnlarly admired for its elegant and elaborate
workmanship. There are upwards of 60.different shields arranged on wainacot
pannels round the hall, with the family arms and entermarringes up to the pre-
sent time. The family is of great antiguity, dating its origin im this copntry,
from the period of the Nuorman Conquest, commencing with Enstachius, Lord
of Yarburgh, in the comnty of Lincoln, in the year 1066. Beyond the ball, in
which are several Royal as well as family Portraits, by Fandyke, Kneller, snd
147, dzc. is a drawing-room, 30 feet long, corresponding in style with the
ball, and adjoining are several othét apartments, and formerly a gallery 108
foet in length. All these appear to have been arranged as a saite of state apart-
aents for the reception of Queen Elizabeth, under the direction of ber Chan-
cellor, had her Majesty visited the north.

HESSLESKEW-GRANGE, f. & in the township and parish ot
Sancton 3 4 miles from Market-Weighton.

HESSLE, a perish town in Hullshire; 5 miles from Hull, 7} from
South-Cave, 9 from Beverley, 35 from York.,—Pop. sce Addenda.
The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to All-Saints, in the deanry
of Harthill, value 10/, 7s. 1d, Patron, the King.—In the same
township is .

HESSLEWOOD-HOUSE, (the seat of Josrph Robinson Pease, Esq,
and Hessle-Mount, the seat of James Kiero Watson, Esq.)

RILDERTHORPE, few f. A. in the township of Hildertborpe-withe
Wilsthorpe, and parish of Bridlington ; 14 mile from Bridlington,
13 from Great-Driffield.—Pop. including Wilstborpe, 51.

HILSTON, a perish-town, in the middle-division of Holderness
7 miles from Patrington, 9 from Hedon, 13 from Hornsea, 11
from Hull, 52 from York.—Pop. 39. The Church is a rectory,
dedicated to St. Margaret, in the deanry of Holderness, value,
$5L p. r. 591  Patron, the Rev. Christopher Sykes,

HIVE, formertly HYTHE, ham. in the township of Gilberdike, and
patish of Eastrington; 5 miles from Howden, 8 from Seuth-Cave.

HOLDERNESS, a wapentake and seigniory, over which Sir Thomas
Constable, Bart. is lord and cbief bailiff. It is divided into threo
divisions or chief constableries, middle, north, and south, each of
which may be considered as eeparate wapentakes, and contain the
following number of townships, parishes, &c. vis. Middle Division,
88 townships, 15 of which are parishes, 11,942 inhabitants.—
Nortk Division, 30 townships, IS of which are parishes, 7677

inbabitants.—Sguth Division. 22 townships, 14 of which are |

parishes, including 8ank Island, 7,007 inhabitanis.

Holderness is bounded on the east by the German ocean, on the sodth, by
the Humber; on the west, hy the divisions of Hunsley and Bainton-Beacon ; sod
on the north, by the wapentake of Dickering. Although the general surface of

this district, viewed from the Wolds, appears low and fiat, when esamined apou -

the spot, it is found to possess a surface capable of being made dry, and every
art of it adapted to the purposes of cultivation. The drainages in this
trict eince the year 1762 bave been very extensive, and though eflected at an
immense expense, not less than 180,000/ have proved very beneficial to the
country. The seigniory of Holderness was given by the Conqueror to Drew de
Bruerer, a Fleming, on whom William bestowed his niece in werringe ; it was
afjerwards given to Odo de Campaaia, who had married the King’s sister; at his
death it devolved upon bis sonStephen, whom the King created Earl of Albermarle
and Holderness ; and after passing throngh varipus hands, we find it, in 1683,
y n

Y
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in the family of the Coniers, Lord Darcy and Coniers, created Earl of Holder-
ness by King Charles 11.; in that family it continued many years, and now be-
longs to Sir Thomas Constable, Bart. for whom the town of Hedon is obliged to
find & prisoa for such malefactorn as are taken in this liberty, till they can be
- sent to the castle of York ; and an hall to hold therein a conrt, called the wapen-
gke court for the trial of actions under 40s.—~<Magne Brit. . :
HOLLYM, a parish-town in the south-division of Holderness; 2
miles from Patrington, 12 from Hedon, 20 from Hull, 58 from
York.—Pop. 260. The Church, built in 1488, is a vicarage,
dedicated to St. Nicholes, in the deanry of Holderness, valne $9..
19s. 2d. Patrons, Edward Henry Barker, Esq. and the Rev. C.
Barker. .
HOLME-HOUSE, s. k. in the township and parish of Holme-on-
Spalding-Moor ; 63 miles from Market-Weighton.
HOLME-ON-SPALDING-MOOR, which gives name to the division,
is a parish-town, in Holme-Beacon division of Harthill, liberty of
St. Peter ; (the seat of the Hon. Charles' Langdule.) 4} miles
Market-Weighton, 7 from Howden, 8 from Pocklington, 13%
from Selby, 18 from York.—Pop. 1,318. The Church is both a
rectory and vicarage, dedicated to St. John Baptist, in the deanry
of Harthill; the rectory, value 27!, and the vicarage, value 10/,
Patron, St. John’s College, Cambridge.

Bacon says, ¢ Holme Rectory is an impropriation in St. John’ College, Cam-
bridge, which preseats to the vicarage thereof, and lets out the rectory to the
vicar by lease for his life, ai a pepper-corn rent yearly, if demanded.

Besidas the parish church, there was a chapel at Holme, calied the chapel
of St. Nicholas. In this chapel was founded a chantry by Sir Marmaduke Con-
stable, of Flambhorough, A. D. 1349; and he and his descendants presented
cantarists or chaplains toit, mntil the year 1532 inclusive. He also endowed it
with one messuage and sixty acres of land, in the tows and territories of
Holme.—Torre’s M. S. A messupge is known at this day by the mame of
Chapel-house, and the small ascent on which it stands, is called Chapel-bill.
Near this place wan a Cell, founded by one of the Vavasours or Constables, for
two Monks, whose employment, it should seem, was to guide travellers over
these dreary wastes. This estate was for several centuries possessed by the Con-
stables of Flamborough, of whom it was purchased by the celebrated Sir Mar-
madoke Langdale, one of the bravest generals of King Charles 1.

Sir Marmaduke having distinguished himselfby his loyalty to his sovereign,
‘und by bis military talents during the civil wars, was, afler the restorstion,
created a peer, by the title of Baron Langdale, of Holme, the first Englishman
that was advanced to the dignity of a peer by that prince. On the death of the-.
last Lord Langdale, the male line of the family beeame extinct, and the estate
devolved on his lordship’s daughter, the Consort of the Right Hon. Charles, Lord
Stourten, whose son, the Honotirable Charles Langdale, new males the manor
house his residence.~Canmnen.—Birarann, ; .

HOLME-ON-THE-WOLDS, a parish-town, in Bainton-Beacon .
division of Harthill, liberty of Howdenshire; 6 miles from Bever- "
ley, 7% from Market-Weighton, 27 from York.—Pop. 138
The Church is a perpetual caracy, dedicated to St. Petor, in the
deanry of Harthill, valae p.r. +30/. Patron, the Duke of Devon-
shire. : _

HOLMPTON,, a parish-town, in the south-djvicion of Holderness s
(the seat of Richard Lacey, Ksg.) 4 mwiles from Patrington, 14
from Hedon, 22 from Hull, 60 from York.—Pop. 256. The

S
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€hurch is arectory, in the deanry of Holderness, value +4L. 3s. 4d.
p. r. #135L. 19s. 6d. Patron, the King.

A great part of this village is in the parish of Hollym, the boundarjies of

which are difficult to ascertain.

HOOKS, f. A. in the township and parish of Tunstall, middle-division

. of Holderness ; 8 miles from Hedon.

HORNSEA, a pearish and market town, in the north-division of
Holderness; 14 miles from Beverley, 15 from Hedon and Drifield,
16 from Bridlington and Hull, 20 from Patrington, 33 from Yark,

196 from London.—Market, Monday.—Fairs, August 12 and De-

. ocember 17, for horses, horned cattle, &c.— Principal Inns, Hotel

" and Blacksmith’s Arms.—Pop. 790. The Church is a vicarage,
dedicated to St. Michael, in the deanry of Holderness, value, with
Long Riston, 13/. 3s. 4d.. Patron, the Kiug. .

. Horusea, formerly 13 or 14 miles distant from the sea, now littie more than
& quarter, is famous for its Mere or Lake, the only one ia the county, exeept
Malhdm and Semer water; it covers from 4 to 500 acres of land, and abounds
in pike, perch, carp, eels, &c. The exclusive property of this lake, is vested
in the family ot Constable, of Wassand, by a royal grant, as parcel of the
* manor of East-Greenwich, in Kent, and forms a striking and beaytiful scene
from the grounds of that mansion, being interspersed with several woddy islands,
and animated with water fowl. It is situated on the west side of the town,
from which it is not distant more than 100 yards. -

The town of Horneea is situated in a valley, having rising grounds on the
north and the south. It consists of four straggling streets, and a market place
of considerable breath. It bas of late become a fashionable watering place, and
in which there are four Tnns, forty lodging houses, iet anpually for the accom-
modation of visitors. The church was formerly noted for -its lofty epire or
broach, which wasa well-known sea mark, till about the beginning of the jast
century, when it was blown down by a hurricane. The sea has llsleupid
encroachments on thispart of the coast within these few years past.

HORNSEA-BURTON.,—S8ee Burton, tal

HOTHAM, a parish town in Hunsley-Beacon division of Harthilly
3 miles from South-Cave, 5 from Market-Weighton, 10 from
Beverley, 24 from York.—Pop. 293. The Church is a rectory,
dedicated to St. Oswald. value, 10/. 0s. 73d. Patron, the King.

The house called Hotham-house, the seat of the late Robert Christie Burton,
Eeq. stands in the parish of North-Cave. .-

HOTHAM CARRS, 3or 4 A. in the township and perish of Hotliam ;
5 miles from South-Cave.

HOUGHTON, in the township and parish of Sancton; (a seat of the
Hon, Charles Langdale.) 6 miles from South-Cave, 8 from Market-
Weighton.

HOWDEN, a parish and market town, in the wapentake of How-
denshire ; (the seat of Richard Arthur Ansop, Esg.) 10 miles from
Selby and Snaith, 12 from South-Cave and Market-Weighton,
1331 from Thorne, 16} from Pocklington, 20 from Beverley and-

" York, 25 from Hull; from London, by Thorne, 1813 by Lincpén,
199.—Market, Saturday.—Fairs, second Tuesday in January,
seco:zl Taesday after July 11, for horned cattle and line ;. Qctober
2, and the six precéding days, for horses.—Bankers, Messrs,
Schofield, Foster, and Co. draw on.Messrs. Spooner, Atwood, and
Co, 27, Gragechurch-streely—Principal Inn, Half Moon.—Pop.
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2,080. The Church, peculiar, is & perpetual curacy, commonly
styled a vicarage, in the deanry of Howden, value, p. r. +130L
Patron, the King, who pays an annual stipend of 33, 6s. 8d.

The town of Howden is of great antiquity, but it centains nothing remark-
able, except its church; which we find {rom BurTon, in his acconnt of the
Monastery of Peferborough, with the town, belonged to that Monastery in the
reign of Edward the Confessor; but being wrestéd from it, and iii the King’s
hands, William the Codqueror gave them to the Bishop of Durham, who soon
after conferred the church on the Monks of Durham, but retained the manor.
This church was at first a rectory, but T4NNER says, that Hugb, Prior of Dur- -
ham, obtained a bull from Pope Gregory IX. for appropriating this chureh
towards the maintemance of sixteen Monks; but upon further consideration,

. Robert, the Bishop of Durham, 1266 or 7, caueed it to be divided into five pre-
‘bends, for secular clerks, viz. Howden, Barneby, Skelton, Thorpe, and Salt-
marsh, to these were added, in 1279, a sixth prebend, viz. Skipwith. There
were also six vicars, he-ides chantry priests, in this collegiate church, which
was dedicated to St. Peter and Si. Pavl. It was dissolved by King Edward V1.

.in 1547. The church is in the form of a cross; east part quite in ruin; its
windows superb and elegant, arches pointed, columus adorned with fiutings
between ; tracery of the ride windows various. The tower, which is square,
and finely proportioned, rises from the centre, was built about 1390, under the
nuspices of Walter Skirlaw,’ who built the chapter-huuse, which. is one of the
finest specimens of the pointed arch style of that period now in England, but
in rvios; nay, Mr Hutchinson in his History of Durham, says, * we have
nothing in this island of such elegant work in stone, except at Melross-Abbey,
and in point of symmetry and exact proportion, it excels any part of the
Scotch-Abbey.” .

The church, with allits chapels, lands, and appurtenances, appsarsto have
been given by the Congueror to William Karilepho, Bishop of Durham, who
conferred the same on the Monks of Durham, Yor ever. ‘The manor and its pri-
-wileges, the prelates retained, and they still belong to the See at Durham.— 5
Angl. Hist. Durham.

The Bishops of Durham bad a palace near the esst-end of the church,

. which was once their favourite resid ; and in which some of them ex:
their temporal for an eternal habitation, particularly [Iugh Pudsey, who died
in 1195, Walter de Kirkbam in 1560, and Walter de Skirlaw in 1405. Bishop
YLangley, the successor of Skirlaw, made great improvements ia it, and built the
west-gate, over which are his arws, and some good rooms adjoining, It je now
oconsiderably reduced in sige, and occupied as a farm-house,

In the market-place stands a large building, called the Moot- Hall, in which
the Bishop of Durbam, 4s Lord of the Manor, holds four Copyhold Courts in the

€ar.
y ‘This place gave birth to the celebrated historian Jahn of Hoveden, who was
chaplate to King Henry I1. His history begins with the year 732, and comes
down to the reign of King John. Ia 1291, King Edward 1. is said to have
caused diligent search 10 be made, in all the libraries in Englang, for Hoveden’s
History, to adjust Lhe dispute about the homage due from the Crown of Scotland.
‘This history was publisbed in London in 1595, and at Frankfort in 1601,

-Several per<ons have assumed a local surname from this place, and Leland
obeerves, that John of Hoveden, reputed a saint, was one of the first prebenda-
ries here; another John of Hoveden, was representative in five parliaments for
the city of York. The cliarter for the great Fair held at Howden in Oct. appears
to have been granted in the year 1200, by King John. For a more detailed ac-
count of this place, which appears to have attracted particular notice from all
the antiquaries since Leland’s time, we beg to refer the reader to Hutchinson’s
History of Durham, vol. 3.~ Savage’s History of Howden Church.—Gurosz, .
Leuann, TannEr, PENNAxT, &c.—A view of the east-end of the church has beer
ma; ublishted by Mr Espin, of Louth, Lincalnshire . : )

I;ENSH[ ¥, a wapentake nearly south of York, over which -
the Bishop of Durbam is lord and ohief bailiff; his jurisdiction




. EAST-RIDING. 118

“also extendds over some townshipe or places in the.adjoining wapep.

take of Ouse and Derwent. It is bounded on the east, by Huns-
ley-Beacon division of Harthill, on the south and west by the
rivers Derwent and Ouse, and on the north, by Holme-Beacon
division. It contains one warket town, Howden, which gives name
to the wapentake; 26 townships, 6 of which are parishes,
and 7,883 inhabitants.

HOWDEN-DYKE, Aam. in the township and parish of Howden;
1} mile from Howden. Here is a Ferry over the river Ouse, .

HOWDEN-GRANGE, {. 4. in the township and parish of Howdea §
3 miles from Howden. :

HOWSIIAM, in the parish of Scrayingham, wapentake of Buck-
vose; (llowsham-Hall, the scat of Charles Cholmley, Esq.) 8 wiles
from Malton, 12 from York.—Pop. 225.

‘HUGGATE, a parish-town, in Wilton-Beacon division of Harthill ;
7 miles from Pocklington, 8 from Driffield, 12 from Malton, 20
from . York.—Pep. 413. The Church is a rectory, dedicated to
St. Mary, in the deanry of Harthill, value, 15/. Patron, the King.

HUGGATE-WOLD-HOUSE, f. 4. in the township and parish of
Huggate ; 7 miles from Pocklington.

HULL, KINGSTON-UPON, a distinct coun’y, calle the town
and county of Kingston-upgn-Hull, in the parishes of §t. Mary
snd the Holy-Trinity, Hull: 8 wiles from Hedon, 9 from Bever-
ley, 12 from Bouth-Cave, 16 from Hornsea, J8 from Patring.
ton, 25 from Howden, 39 from York; from London, by Lincoln,
1743 &y York. 236.—Murkcts, Tuesday and Friday.— Fair, Oet,
10, for horned-cattle, hpraes, woollen-eloths, toys, &o— Bankers,
©01d-Bank, Messrs. Pease and Liddell, draw on Messrs. Sir Poter
Pole, Thornton, and Co, 1, Barlholomew-Lane; Messrs. Pease,
Harrison, and Co. draw on Messrs. Marryatt, Kay, and Co. 1,
Mansion-House-Street; Messrs. R. Raikes, and Co. draw on Mesers.
Caurries, Raikes. and Co. 29, Comnhill; Messrs. Smiths and Thomp-
son draw on Messrs. Smith,Payne, and Smiths, Mansion-House-
Place.—Pop. 28,624. .

Bhxe town is of ho greatantiquity, for King Edward L. wes the fonnder of it
he having observed the advantageons sitaation of the place, (thea called /7ik)
obtained it by way of exchange of the Abbot of Meaux, end built the town called

_ frem.him Kin, , i.¢. the King’s town. Here be madea good barhour; and
the inhabitants Free-Burgesses, and granted them many privileges. They were
at first governed by s Warden, and then by Bailiffs ; and after that by a Mayor
sad Bailiff+, and at last obtained of King Henry V1. to be governed by a Mngt
aud a Sheriff, and that the town shonld be a county corporate of itself. ' 8ig
Michael de 1a Pole prevailed on King Richard II. to enlarge their charter, and
grant them other privileges. It is now inferior to few places in England for
trade; ‘being well furnished with shipping. 1t is governed by a Mayor, a Re-
ocorder, 12 Aldermen, drc.— Camden~— Magna Brit.

Charles 1. wns refeived here with great pomp’and ceremony. During the -
mpture between the King and partiament, Sir John Hotham was made governos
of the place, and previous to the King entering the town, he sent & message to
Sir John, to inform him, thet he intended to do himself the pleasure to dine with
him ; but his Majesty was Jmmediately informed by the govereor, that he 90
notapen the gatesto him, without betraying the trust that was repesed im him
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Panliament. Charles, irritated by the refusal, determined to besiege the town §
But after repeated repulses, and finding all his attempts ineffectual, raised the
olege, and proceeded to York. ' It seems, howaver, that though Hetham at first
wefused to open the gates to the King, yet he afterwarda, in 1643, seat his son

ivately to treat with him. These designs being made known to Psrliameat,
mh the father and son were exccuted. ’

-‘Another attempt to besicge the town was made soon efterwards by the Mar-
quisof Newcastle, but uttended with no better success.

The Arnnory in the cifadel, “which’ has lately undergone considerable
repairs, i capable of confaining arms and accoutrements fer 15,000 Cavalry,
and 20,000 Infantry.

The Trinity-house, a spacious building, begun at first by subecription, for
the relief of distressed seamen and their wives ; byt afterwards a patent was ob--
tained from the Crown, with many privileges, by the advantage of which they
maintain many distressed seamen with their widows, both at Hull and other

laces.
? Michael de la Pole, founded here, in 1378, a Monastery for a Prior, and 12
Carthusian Monks. This bouse was founded in honour of God, the Virgin Mary,
and 8t. Michael the Archangel.—Duepare. The “ Whitc Freres College,”
says Leland, “stode hy Beverlegate, The Percys were taken for founders of it.
The Augustine Freres stode at the est ende of Trinite Chireh.” .

The Maison-Dieu, for the relief of the poor, was built by Michael de ja
Pole, in 1334, for 13 poor men and as many women, to which he gave 20 screa
of land and 20/ per ann. ont of his land, in this place and Myton. Over ‘the
door, cut in stone, is this inscription :—

Deo et Pauperibus posuit D. Mickael de la Pole, A. D. 1384,
Muaana Barr.

- 'There are, besides, several hospitals in this place, erected by private be-
nefactors. That benevolent institation, the Female Penitentiary was opened
here in 1811. The great object of it is to employ, and ultimately to restore tp
society, such women as have, by evil courses, rendered themselves ohnoxious to
society. Every applicant is considered as on probation, and not fully admitted
i1l she has conducted herself for two months in a satisfactory manner, -

This town gave birth to Thos. Johnson, M. D. the first istol hiis time in
England. He died in 1644. Doctor Fuller, who knew him well, wrote the fol
lowing epitaph to his memory :—

Hic, Johnsone, jaces, sed i Mors cederet Herbis,
Arte fugata tua cederet illa tuis.

. Captain Edward Thompson was a native of this place, born in about 1733.
He was theguthor of a variety of pieces ; but the merits by which Capt. Thompson
will be best known, are his sea songs, especiaily those beautiful compositions be-
ginuing ‘‘ Loose every sail to the breeze,” ¢ The topeails shiver in the wind,”
aud . Behold-upom the gallant wave.”” He was appointed commander of the
Grampus, and sent to the coast of Africs, where he died in 1786.

In the market-place stands a fine equestrian statue of King William ILL
©Oa the pedestal is this inscription :—  This. statue was erected in 1734, 2othe
wemory of King WisLrax, our great deliverer.” .

- The whale fishery constitutes a principal branch in the commercial coneerns
of Hull, which sends out to0 Greenland and Davis’ Straits, a greater number of
ships than any port in Britain.

Hult sends two members to Parliament.—It first returned 33rd Edward I,
but consed sending till 12th Edward 1. The rigbtaf election is in the Burgesses,
zwhidl tl;ep are about 1,400, 'The Sheriffis the returning Officer.— Oldfieid

Bﬂw 8. N
HULDSﬁIRE, of small extent, isbounded by the River-Humber, and
- was constituied with the town of Hull, a Cdunty of istse, by
Henry VI.—It comprehends the parishes of Hull, Hessle, North
Fertiby, Kirk-Ella, and all the site .of the Priery of Haltemprioe,.
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HULL-BRIDGE, kam. (so called from a bridge over the river Hull)
in the township of Tickton, and parish of St. John, Beverley ; 2
miles from Beverley. .

HULL-BANK, /am. in the township and parish of Cottinghan ;
(tke seat of Benjamin Blades Haworth, Esq.) 3 miles from Hull,

HUMBER-LITTLE, f. k. in the township and parish of Paul; 3°
miles from Hedon, -

HUMBER-SIDE, or PATRINGTON-HAVEN, kam. in the
township and parish of Patrington ; 1 mile from Patrington. .,

HUMBLETON, a parish-town. in the middle-division of Holder- -
ness; § miles from Hedon, 10 from Hull, 17 from Beverley, 48
from York.—Pop. 136. The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to
St. Peter, in the deanry of Holderness, value, $10/. 1s. 0id. Pa-
tron, the King.

"HUNMANRBY, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Dickering ; {she
seat of H. B. Osbaldeston, Esq.) 9} miles from Bridlington, from
Scarborough, (by Gristhorpe and Muston 9}, and by Seamorand Fliz-
ton 111) 16 from Driffield, 20 from Malton, 38 from York, 210
from London.-—No Market.— Faire, May 6, and Oct. 29, for horned
cattle and sheep.~— Principal Inn, Swan.—Pop. 1,018. The Church
i# a vicarage, dedicated to All-Saints, in the deanry of Dickering,
value, 20L 1s. 8d. Patron, Humphrey B. Osbaldeston, Esq.

Here is an Alms-house for six widows, endowment only emall. A uoble
bHequest was made in 1696, by a Mr Henry Cowton, for the benefit of the indwstri<
ous poor, the annual produce of which at preseat is 404

Hunmanby, although now only a large village, a few miles from the sea,
had formerly a market on Tueaddy, but long discontinued—a small croes is yet
standing to paint ont the market-place. It issaid to have been a Barony ; “gr
in King Edward Vs reign, by an inguisition taken at the death of Gilbert de
Gant, it was found that he held the Lordship of Hwndemanby, in this county,
by Barony ; and likewise that upon the marriage of Gilbert his son, with Lorade
&b’d, be settled it upon her for her do P—~Macna Brrr. -k

The site of what is called the cm:-z;a, adjoining the village, and where,
we are told, “ are still to be traced the foundations of an ancient fortrees,’ is
now planted with trees. .

The Mansion-house of Humphrey Osbaldeston, Esq. the present owtter of
the Mauor, is adorued with medern embellishments, completely hid by bigh
walls, from pablic view. . :

A sumptoous marble monument, by Fisher, in the church, commamorates
the Osbaldeston family. The church contains two or three other mouu-
ments remarkable only for their simplicity: And over the central arches of

-thé church are embiszoned, in eleven distinct shiields, the armorial bearings mib-~
scribed with the names of ancient Lords of the place. The vicarage-house,
which adjoins the ehurch, is occupied by the present incumbent, the Rev.
Francis Wrangham, M. A. F. R. S. recently elevated to the Archdeaconry of
-Cleveland, North-Riding.

At Hunmaoby was born, in 1671, Richard Fiddes, an Englich divine. In

- - 1604, he eatered into Holy Orders, and soon after obtained the Rectory of
Halsham, in Holderness ; but the air of the place proving nnhealthy, he was de-
prived of his speech, which he never perfectly recovered. 1Im 1712, he removed
to London, where he was under the necessity of commencing anthor, in order to

for bimself a comfortable sabsistence. Unfortuvately, he enlisted under
the banners of party, and closely conmected himself with Swift and Auterbury.
At thé recommendation of- the former, the Ear} of Oxford appointed him hi
Chaplain ; be was afterwards appointed Chaplain to the Garrieon at Hull, of
which he was deprived on the death of Queen Anne, and thrown back upon his
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former resources of &ﬁrn. He died at Putuey in 1725, 54. Nis pria-
cipal works are, the Life of Cardinal Wolsey ; a Body of Divinity, folio, for
which the University conferred on him the degree of D. D. and for which Lintot

paid him 250 guineas; 52 Practical Sermons; a Treatise on Morality, &c.— -

Gen. Biographical Dict.— Nichols® Lit. Anecdotes.

HUNSLE?: HIGH and LOW, 2 f. h. (which gives name to the
division) in the township and parish of Rowley, Hunsley-Beacon
division of Harthill ; 5 miles from South-Cave and Beverley.

HUTTON-CRANSWICK, a parish-town, in Bainton-Beacon divi-
sion of Harthill; 3} miles from Driffield, 10 from Beverley, 30
from York.—Pop. 917. The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to
8t. Peter, in the deanry of Harthill, value, p. r. +53.. 1s. Patron,
Lord Hotham. - :

I

INGROLMES, f. A. in the township and parish of Patrington; }
mijle from Patrington.

K

KAYINGHAM, a parish-town, in the south-division of Holderness ;
& miles from Patrington and Hedon, 13 from Hull, §1 from York.
~—Pop. 639. The Church iz a vicarage, dedicated to 8t. Nicholas,
in the deanry of Holderness, value, 12/, p. r. 42/, Patron, the

.. Archbishop of York. '

EAYINGHAM-MARSH, 3 or 4 f. /. in the township and parish of
Kayingham; 6 wiles from Hedon, 6} from Patrington.

KELFIELD, in the parish of Stillingfleet, wapentake of Ouse and
Derwent; 6 miles from Selby, 9 from York, 15 from Pocklington.
Pop. 286.

KELK, GREAT,.in the parish of Foston, wapentake of Dickering ¢
6 miles from Driffield, 10 from Bridlington.—Pop. 158,

‘KELK. LITTLE. (extraparochial)in the wapentake of Dickering;
6 miles from Driffield, 9 from Bridlington.—Pop, 51.

KELLYTHORPE, f. A, in the towssbip of Emswell, and parish of
Great-Driffield ; 2 miles from Great-Driffield.

KENDALL, f. k. in the township and parish of Great-Driffield; 2
miles from Great-Driffield. . )

KENNYTHORPE, in the parish of Langton, wapentake of Buck~

. vose; 3} miles from Malton, 10 from Sledmere.—Pop. 83.

KEXBY, in the parish of Low-Catton, wapentake of Ouse and Der-

" went; 6} miles from York, 7 from Pocklington, 12} from Market-
Weighion.—Pop. 149.
KILDWICK, or KILNWICK-PERCY, a parish-town, in Wilton-
division of Harthill; (the seat of Robert Denison, Esq.) £
miles from Pocklington. 9 from Market-Weighton, 15 from York.
Pop. 43, The Church, peculiar, is a vicarage, dedicated to §t.
H:Y;n, in the deanry of Harthill, value, 34/, 16¢, 3d. Patron, the
Dean of York.

Y
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KILHAM, a parish-town, in the wapentske of Dickering, a part
in the Jiberty of St. Peter ; 5 miles from Driffield, 7 from Sledmere,
8 from Hunmanby and Bridlington, 12 from Scarborough, 31}
from York, 231 from London.— Fairs, August 21, and November
12, for horses, horned cattle, and sheep,—Principal Inn, Black-

. Bull.—Pop. 971. The Charch, peculiar, isa vicarage; dedicated

. to All-Saints, in the deanry of Dickering, valae, 36/. 13¢; 4d,
p- 1. #106L. 18s. 4d. Patron, the Dean of York.

KILNSEA, a parish-town, in the south-division of Holdernesss §
miles from Patrington, 18 from Hedon, 64 from York.—Pop.
including Spurn, 196.—The Church is a vicarage, dedicated to St.
Helen, jin the deanry of Holderness, value, $6/. 18s. 6}d, p. T
198!l. 5s. Od. Patron, George Lowther Thompson, Esq. |,

In the Gentleman’s Magasine for July, 1821, may be seen a vidw of au
ancient Cross, that stood here till the year 1818, when it was taken down and
removed into the Park of Sir Thomas Constable, Bart. at Burton-Constable, ox
aocount of the encroachment of the sea. “ This ancient Crows, according fo Tra<
dition, was originally erected st the town of Ravenspur,” (long since s
mp by the sea) “ to commemorate the landing of Henry of Bolingbroke; Duke

Hereford, afterwards King Henry IV. in the year 1399: The appearsmce of
the two latter numeral figures formerly observed on the Cross, seenm to support

this conjecture. Ravenspur was also celebrated for the landing of Edward,
Dhake of York, afterwards Kiug Edward IV. in the yeaz 1471.7—Gen. Mage s

KILLINGWOLD-GROVE, f. & in the township end pazish of

+ Bishop-Burton ; 3 miles from Beverley.

KILNWICK, OR, KILNWICK-JUXTA-WATTON, & she

. town, in Bainton-Beacon division of Hartbill, (the seat of Charles
Grimston, Esq.) 7 miles from Great-Drifficld, 8 from Beverley,

29 from York.—Pop. 230. The Church is a perpetual curaoy,
dedicated to AH-Saints, in the deanry of Harthill, valde, p. r.
4100!. Patron, Charles Grimston, Esq.

KILPIN, in the parish of Howden, wapentake of Howdenshire; 2
miles from Howden, 11} from Selby, 12 from Soutb-Cave.~
Pop. 318. )

KILPIN-PIKE, kam, in tbe township of Kilpin, and parisk of How's
den; 1} mile from Howden.

KINGSFIELD, NORTH amd SOUTH, 3 f. k. in the township of
Fraisthorpe, and parish of Carnaby ; 4 miles from Bridlington.

KIPLIN-COATES-HOUSE, f. 4. in the township amd perish of
Middleton ; 5 miles from Market- Weighton. ) )

- 1n the year 1618, five noblenren, st the head of whont %aw Lord Burlingtesty
19 Baronets, and 35 gentlemerr of the cotlnty subscribed 360/ to the establishment
of annual horse races here.— They were held om the third Thursday in Maxclry
and are occasionally continued. I

KIRBY-GRINDALYTH, a parish-town?, in the wi of
Buckrose; 2 miles from Sledmere, 9 from Malton, 23 from York,
—Pop. inclading Mowthorpe, 178. The Church is a vicarage,
dedicatell fo 8t. Andrew, in the deeniry of Buckrose, valve, $81,
9s. 7d, p. . 180l Patron, Sir Mark Masteyman Sykes, Bari,

* ° This Churdk was given by Walter Espec, to the Priory of Kirkham,
KIRBY-UNDERDALE, a perish-town, in the wapentake of Buck~

+y08e ; 3 milgs.from Pocklington, 9 from Sledmere, 13 from

z .
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York.—Pop. 335. The Charch isa rectory, dedicated to Afl-
%uinu, in the deanry of Buckrose, value, 6/ 3s. 4d. Patron, the
ing. .
KIR%URN, a perish-town, in Bainton-Beacon division of Hart-
fiill; 4 miles from Great-Driffield, 11 from Beverley, 25 from
York.—Pop. 119. The Charch is a vicarage, dedicated to St.
Mary, in the deanry of Harthill, value, $4/. 10s. 21d. p. r. $75L
Patron, the King. ‘
KIRK-ELLA, a parish-town, in Hullshire; (tke residences of Mrs
John Sykes and Mrs Williamson) 5§ miles from Hull, 7 from
South-Cave, 34 from York. The Church isa vicarage, dedicated
toSt. Andrew, in the deanry of Harthill, value, $18L. 2s. 8}d.
Patron, the Rev. Richard Sykes.—Pop. see Addenda. - A
. " Ia the reigu of Bdward II. a great part of the lands in this parish were in
the hands of Lord Wake, of Cottingham ; at present the ancient mereantile
family of the Sykes have large possessions here ;—and in the church is a badd-
some monument to the memory of the late Joseph Sykes, Esq. who js s

to have had more extensive dealings with the nobles and merchants of Sgndn,
than any other person in England.—Ticxzct.

KlRK[fAM, (extraparochial) in the wapentake of Buckrose; 6
miles from Malton, 124 from York.—It consists of 3 houses and
7 inbebitants, There has been no Church since the Abbey was
dissolved.~~The inhabitants attend Westow church, .

Kirkham, which dﬁiﬂn the place of a Church, is situated in a delightfal
wale, on the eastery banksof the Derwent. Here Walter de Espec and bis wife,
Wdeline, in 1191-2, founded a Priory of Cannons regular, of the order of 8¢,
Austin, to the honour of the Holy Trinity; which he endowed with seven
Churches, and which were appropriated thereto. The reason -Td for e
building this Priory, will be founded under the article Rievale.——A4 the disso-

© lution it was valued at 269/. 5¢. 9. Duepane ; 300/. 15s. 64. Srezp ; and was
surrendered in 1539, by John de Kildwick, Prior, and seventeen Canons. Im
32nd Henry VIII, it was granted to Sir Henry Knevet, Knight, and Ann, his wife §
but in the 8rd Edward VI. the Earl of Rutland heldit “ de rege i onpite per
servic. militar”’ to whom Queen Elizabeth, in the 5th year of iern ) gave
license to alienate this manor, with those of Billesdale, Stiperiow, and Rievalx,
to Ecward Jackman, and Richard Lambert.——Burron. The prineipal part
that remains of this Priory, consisis of a beautifal Gateway, a fine S8axon §¢.
man Doorway, and part of the Cloisters.

KNAPTONY, in the parish of Winteringham, wapentake of Buckrose
7 miles from Malton, 9 from Sledmere.—Pop. 206, The Church
is a ‘rerpetml curacy, value, p. r. 145/ 10s. Patron, John
Tindall, Esq,

ENEDLINGTON, in the perish of Howden, take of How-
denshire ; (the scat of Thomas Clarke, Esq.) 1 mile from Howden,
9} from Selby.—Pop. 118. .

In an old Hall, in this village, was born Dr. Terrick, Bishop of London.

L

LANGTHORPE-HALL, ‘f k. in the township of Elletby, and
L parish of Swine ; 9 miles from l;lbe:on and Hullo.f tibert
ANGTOFT, e parish-town, in the wapentake of Dickering, ki
of §t. Peter’; 6 miles fmm’Drimeld and Sledmere, 12 from de!
lington, 15} from Scarborough, 30 from York.—Pop 416. The

.
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“Church, peculiar, is a vicarage, dedicated to 8t. Peter, in the deanry
of Dickering, value, {8/, Patron, the Dean of York.

Peter Langtoft, an eminent Chronicler, so called from this place, was a
Canon regular, of the order of St. Austin, at Bridlington, and wrote a Chronicle
of Eagland in Freach verse, in the time of Edward I. or 11. which was after-
wards tramslated in the latter of those reizns, by Robert of Brunne, and edited
by Hearne in 1725. He died in the beginning of the reign of Edward II.

LANGTON, a parish-town, in the wapentake of Buckrose ; (the seat
of Mrs Norcliffe) 3} miles from Malton, 9 from Sledwere, 14} from
klington, 18 from York.—Pop. 280. The Cburch is a rectory,
dedicated to 8t. Andrew, in the deanry of Buckrose, value, 17/,
4s. 7d, Patron, the King.

The Church was given by Burga, wile of Wm, Vesey, to the Priory of Malton,
thence it came to the Crown. )

LANGWITH, a township, in the parish of Wheldrake, liberty of
8¢, Peter ; 7 miles from York. Contains 5 f. . and 39 inhabitants,

LAXTON, in the parish of Howden, wapentake of Howdenshirve;
3 miles from Howden, 12 from Selby, 13} from South-Cave.—Pop.
268. A perpetaal curacy under Howden, value, p. r. 450,

LAYTHAM, in the parish of Aughton, Holme-Beacon division of -

Harthill ; 8 miles from Howden and Pocklington.—Pop. 125.

LEAVENING, in the parish of Acklam, wapentake of Buckrose,
liberty of §t. Peter; 5 miles from Multon, 9} from Pocklington,
11 from 8ledmere.—Pop. 294.

LECKONFIELD, a parish town, in Hunsley-Beacon division of
Harthill ; 3 miles from Beverley, 10 from Market-W eighton and
Driffield, 29 from York.—Pop. 302, The Church is a vimngq,
dedicated to St, Catharine, in the deanry of Harthill, value $8¢. p.
r. $66L 7s. 4d. Patron, the Earl of Egremont,

At this was once a celebrated Mansion of the ancient Earls of North-
umberiand, but of this, not a vestige now remains. Leland describes it as fol-
lows :—* Leckinfield is a large house, and stondish within & great mote, yn one
vﬂz lzciom courte; 3 parts of the house, saving the méane gate that is made
of bricke, is al of tymbre. The 4 parte is fair, made of stone, and sumn bricke.
¥ saw in a little studying chaumbre there, callid Paradice, the genealogie of the
Percys. The Park thereby is very fair and large, and meatly welle. woddid
Ther isa fair tour of bricke, for a logge yn the Park.”

In the year 1541, Henry VIIL in his progress ta Hull, lodged at ¢ Leconfield-

Castle.” Besides the genealogy of the Percys in this house, as noticed by Le-
land, it appears from the * Scarborough Guide,” that there were a great many
¢ moral inscriptions in the chambers of this noble Mansion, chiefly colleeted by
H. Algernon Percy, fifth Earl of Northumterland.” The following curious and
ancient bill of fare for the breakfast of a noble Earl and Countess, may not prove.
mnacceptable to our readers: “First, for my Lord and Lady, s loafof bread on
trenchers; {wo manchets of the finest mcal, weighing each six ounces ; a quart
of beer; a quart of wise; two pieses of salt fish ; six baconed (i. e. smoked)
herrings; four white herrings; or a dish of sproits,” (i. e. sprats.) This was
during the holy fast of Lent. “ On flesh-days, the bread as before; a quart.
of beer ; & quart of wine; haif a chine of muiton, or a piece of beef boiled.”
This about the year 1430 (as appears from the house-bovk) was in wee at Leoon-
field. Nor was the general hour for meals among persons of condition, at that
period, less remarka